
From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 2/06/2015 2:07 PM (GMT­05:00) 
To:  "Hill, John (DHS)" <jhill@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Warsaw Chemical 

Are you in DC?

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 6, 2015, at 1:22 PM, "Hill, John (DHS)" <jhill@gov.in.gov> wrote:

David Kane is en route to the scene.

Sent from my Windows Phone

From: Kane, David
Sent: ​2/​6/​2015 1:21 PM
To: Carter, Doug; Hill, John (DHS)
Cc: Mike
Subject: Re: Warsaw Chemical

EMA is reporting two, seemingly minor inhalation injuries to responding firefighters. They
are being on treated on scene currently. 

On Feb 6, 2015, at 1:16 PM, Carter, Doug <DCarter@isp.IN.gov> wrote:

Info ref Warsaw Chemical. 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Bilkey, Matt" <MBilkey@isp.IN.gov>
Date: February 6, 2015 at 12:56:49 EST
To: "Carter, Doug" <DCarter@isp.IN.gov>, "French, Mark"
<MFrench@isp.IN.gov>, "Hill, John (DHS)" <jhill@gov.in.gov>,
"Karns, Allison" <AKarns@gov.IN.gov>
Subject: RE: Warsaw Chemical

Sir‐  here is what we have on the chemical fire at Warsaw Chemical. 
 
Helicopter is NOT available until after 4pm.  Ref: presidential detail.
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ISP is assisting with traffic control at this time.
 
 
From: ISP Operations Center 
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 12:53 PM
To: Bilkey, Matt
Cc: Bundy, Clint
Subject: Warsaw Chemical
 
1104‐Troopers enroute to Warsaw Chemical to assist with a business
fire.
 
1105‐24‐55K advised several explosions from the business, shutting
down the area.
 
1142‐Evacuating area due to chemical fumes.
 
1200‐ISP Operations contacted IERC Ian Ewusi for additional information
regarding chemicals.  He advised that Warsaw Chemical had contacted
IDEM reference methanol leak in underground tank believed to be
leaking into lake.  No additional at this time but he will update us when
he learns more.
 
1214‐Elkhart HAZMAT contacted for assistance.
 
According to their website, Warsaw Chemical makes misc. different
“green” cleaners and disinfectants. 
 
ISP Currently has six Troopers on scene including Sgt. Brandon Mcbrier
with one additional enroute.
 
 
Indiana State Police
     Operations Center
           <image001.png>
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Wed 3/18/2015 6:54 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Atterholt Status 

Gosh I sorry to hear it but be at ease.
All is well.
Get lots of rest and get well
Prayers
Mike

Sent from my iPhone

> On Mar 18, 2015, at 6:49 PM, "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> wrot=
e:
> 
> A bit of a relapse boss. Hope today is the worst of it. I pray you and K=
aren have blessed time with your son this weekend. It is an amazing accompl=
ishment! I can't tell how proud I would be if that was one of my boys.
> 
> Jim 
> James Atterholt
> Chief of Staff
> Governor Mike Pence 
> jatterholt@gov.in.gov
> Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis
> Office: 317­232­1800
> 
>> On Mar 18, 2015, at 6:06 PM, "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:
>> 
>> How ya feelin?
>> 
>> Sent from my iPhone
>> 
>>> On Mar 18, 2015, at 8:42 AM, "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> wr=
ote:
>>> 
>>> I think I rushed my return a bit as I am completely without voice this m=
orning. I plan to be home but checking e­mail. Thanks all.
>>> 
>>> Jim 
>>> James Atterholt
>>> Chief of Staff
>>> Governor Mike Pence 
>>> jatterholt@gov.in.gov
>>> Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis
>>> Office: 317­232­1800



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 2/06/2015 9:50 PM (GMT­05:00) 
To:  "Kane, David" <DKane@dhs.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Carter, Doug" <DCarter@isp.IN.gov>, "Hill, John (DHS)"

<jhill@gov.in.gov>, "Clark, Cameron F" <CClark@dnr.IN.gov>, "Czarniecki, Cary (Lani)"
<LaniCz@gov.IN.gov>, "Cardwell, Jeffery" <JCardwell@gov.IN.gov> 

Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Warsaw Chemical 

David
Good report.
Good effort today.
Thanks for leading from the front.
Mike Pence

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 6, 2015, at 7:02 PM, "Kane, David" <DKane@dhs.IN.gov> wrote:

Final Report from Warsaw:

Status:  Fire is completely extinguished and units have begun to clear the scene.  Cause of
the fire is undetermined but there is no indication it was intentional. 

Impact:  One storage building belonging to Warsaw Chemical was heavily damaged by fire.
Twenty different chemicals, the overwhelming majority being flammable solvents, burned
and or leaked, some in to the city sewer system with overflow in to Lake Winona. 

Ice on the lake makes the environmental impact from the leak difficult to accurately assess.
 Private environmental clean up crews are on site and will be aerating areas of the lake, in
addition to their other environmental clean up activities at the plant site.  Clean up is
anticipated to take months to complete. 

Some firefighting equipment such as hoses and boots which came in to direct contact with
water runoff is likely unsalvageable. The risk presented by that loss of equipment can be
absorbed in the short term by local fire services. 

EMS has not fully accounted for the number of persons treated as the result of first response
efforts. In addition to the eight previously reported, many other first responders were
transported to hospital to be checked out following their decontamination.  One suggestion
was that that number was upwards of 30 people. 

Immediate impact to the economy was limited to the loss of approximately four hours of
business revenue for surrounding businesses.  Warsaw Chemical employment and related
production activity will continue.  All evacuated residents and business owners have been
allowed to return to their properties. 

State Response Agencies:  IDEM, ISP, DNR, IOSHA, IDHS
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Local Officials Consulted:  Warsaw Mayor Thallemer
Kosciusko County Emergency Management Director Rock

Subject to your questions. 

David W. Kane
Executive Director

On Feb 6, 2015, at 2:45 PM, Kane, David <DKane@dhs.IN.gov> wrote:

I spoke with Mayor Thallmer. Fire is out. Eight firefighters or other city
employees hospitalized as the result of chemical exposure during early
containment efforts.  Serious lake water contamination is feared.  They are still
in the response mode and won't know the full environmental impact for several
hours.  He expressed gratitude for the state response. 

On Feb 6, 2015, at 2:07 PM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

Good decision 
Full support

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 6, 2015, at 1:24 PM, "Carter, Doug"
<DCarter@isp.IN.gov> wrote:

I am in communication with David and unless
something substantially changes I plan stay here to
monitor the Presidential detail. We have senior level
commanders at the explosion site. 

On Feb 6, 2015, at 13:21, Mike
<mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

Helpful update

Are you and David Kane enroute?

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 6, 2015, at 1:16 PM, "Carter,
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Doug" <DCarter@isp.IN.gov> wrote:

Info ref Warsaw Chemical. 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Bilkey,
Matt"
<MBilkey@isp.IN.gov>
Date: February 6,
2015 at 12:56:49
EST
To: "Carter,
Doug"
<DCarter@isp.IN.gov>,
"French, Mark"
<MFrench@isp.IN.gov>,
"Hill, John
(DHS)"
<jhill@gov.in.gov>,
"Karns, Allison"
<AKarns@gov.IN.gov>
Subject: RE:
Warsaw
Chemical

Sir‐  here is what
we have on the
chemical fire at
Warsaw Chemical. 
 
Helicopter is NOT
available until after
4pm.  Ref:
presidential detail.
 
ISP is assisting with
traffic control at
this time.
 
 
From: ISP
Operations Center 
Sent: Friday,
February 06, 2015
12:53 PM

mailto:DCarter@isp.IN.gov
mailto:MBilkey@isp.IN.gov
mailto:DCarter@isp.IN.gov
mailto:MFrench@isp.IN.gov
mailto:jhill@gov.in.gov
mailto:AKarns@gov.IN.gov


To: Bilkey, Matt
Cc: Bundy, Clint
Subject: Warsaw
Chemical
 
1104‐Troopers
enroute to Warsaw
Chemical to assist
with a business
fire.
 
1105‐24‐55K
advised several
explosions from
the business,
shutting down the
area.
 
1142‐Evacuating
area due to
chemical fumes.
 
1200‐ISP
Operations
contacted IERC Ian
Ewusi for
additional
information
regarding
chemicals.  He
advised that
Warsaw Chemical
had contacted
IDEM reference
methanol leak in
underground tank
believed to be
leaking into lake. 
No additional at
this time but he
will update us
when he learns
more.
 
1214‐Elkhart
HAZMAT contacted
for assistance.
 
According to their
website, Warsaw
Chemical makes



misc. different
“green” cleaners
and disinfectants. 
 
ISP Currently has
six Troopers on
scene including
Sgt. Brandon
Mcbrier with one
additional enroute.
 
 
Indiana State
Police
     Operations
Center
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Mon 3/30/2015 1:11 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org>, "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Ahearn, Mark"

<MAhearn@gov.IN.gov>, "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov>, "Ryan Streeter
(ryantstreeter@gmail.com)" <ryantstreeter@gmail.com>, "Atkins, Chris" <catkins@gov.in.gov>, "Bill
Smith (smith@sextonscreek.com)" <smith@sextonscreek.com>, "Crabtree, Chris"
<CCrabtree@gov.IN.gov>, "sje" <SJE@lg.IN.gov> 

Bcc:   
Subject: Re: RFRA op­ed FINAL 3­30­15 

It's gone out

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 30, 2015, at 1:10 PM, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

Reviewing now. 

Christy Denault
Communications Director
317/

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 30, 2015, at 11:23 AM, Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org> wrote:

THIS IS THE FINAL VERSION UNLESS PRESS TEAM SEES ANY TYPOS. 
<RFRA op­ed FINAL 3­30­15.docx>
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Tue 2/10/2015 8:53 AM (GMT­05:00) 
To:  "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov>, "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov>, "Atterholt,

Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Brooks, Kara D" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Please arrange a short leg briefing at 1030 

> On Feb 10, 2015, at 8:37 AM, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> wr=
ote:

>> On Feb 10, 2015, at 8:25 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:
>> 
>> Sorry to hear that
>> Take care of that little one and we will pray for a quick recovery
>> 
>> Where do we stand on the consultant release and oped?
>> 
>> Sent from my iPhone
>> 
>>> On Feb 10, 2015, at 8:22 AM, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> w=
rote:
>>> 
>>> Adding Kara as I won't be in before noon ­­ home with a different sick k=
id today. 
>>> 
>>> Christy Denault
>>> Communications Director
>>> 317/
>>> 
>>> Sent from my iPhone
>>> 



>>>> On Feb 10, 2015, at 8:20 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:
>>>> 
>>>> Jenn
>>>> I need a short briefing from Danielle and press before I go out to the C=
TE event
>>>> 
>>>> Sent from my iPhone



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Tue 2/10/2015 9:00 AM (GMT­05:00) 
To:  "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov>, "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov>, "Atterholt, Jim"

<jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Brooks, Kara D" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Please arrange a short leg briefing at 1030 

Danielle, what is your desk and mobile phone number? I don't have it on my p=
hone

Sent from my iPhone

> On Feb 10, 2015, at 8:38 AM, "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov> wro=

> ­­­­­Original Message­­­­­
> From: Denault, Christina 
> Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 8:38 AM
> To: Mike
> Cc: Pavlik, Jennifer L; McGrath, Danielle; Atterholt, Jim; Brooks, Kara D
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
Sent:  Thu 3/05/2015 9:57 AM (GMT­05:00) 
To:  "Bridget Cleveland" <bcleveland@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:  "Christy Denault" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Morning Clips­March 5, 2015 

Bridget
Could you ask Katie to make sure we check south bend media for daily clips?

It occurs to me that we are not checking southbend clips since there are no clips of last nights event and it
is covered extensively on television and newspaper up there. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 5, 2015, at 8:46 AM, "Gilson, Katie" <KGilson@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

GOVERNOR
Pence makes multiple board, commission appointments
Inside Indiana Business
Governor Mike Pence recently named appointees to multiple boards and commissions.
 
Pence options with Supreme Obamacare decision
Washington Herald
CHARLESTON, S.C. ‐ Last Wednesday, the U.S. Supreme Court heard arguments on King v.
Burwell that could determine the fate of Obamacare. The law’s survival could come down to the
vote of Hoosier‐bred Chief Justice John G. Roberts…Into this scenario walks presidentially
ambitious Indiana Gov. Mike Pence, a vociferous opponent of Obamacare, who repeatedly urges
its repeal. Pence will make a decision following the Indiana General Assembly session on
whether to seek reelection, or take a shot at a wide‐open Republican nomination. The Supreme
Court decision will be announced in June, which would be several weeks after Pence makes his
political decision. Part of that decision could be based on issues that will propel the eventual
nominee. And it is in the health care debate the first‐term Hoosier governor has a fascinating
set of talking points.
 
LEGISLATURE
Indiana Senate panel set to begin state budget work
NWI Times
The Indiana Senate is set to take its turn at working on the state's new two‐year budget.
 
Faiths divided over Indiana’s ‘religious freedom’ bill
Indy Star
For a Southern Baptist pastor bound to his Bible, the legal protections around religious
freedom do not go far enough. Without further safeguarding, he fears he could be forced to wed
a gay couple against his beliefs.
 
State appeals ruling blocking fenced hunting preserve rules
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette
The Indiana attorney general's office is appealing a court ruling that state wildlife officials
overstepped their authority in trying to shut down Indiana's high‐fenced deer‐hunting
preserves.

mailto:KGilson@gov.IN.gov
http://www.insideindianabusiness.com/newsitem.asp?ID=69635
http://www.washtimesherald.com/columns/pence-options-with-a-supreme-obamacare-decision/article_7afee250-fb0e-5cbb-bf7e-3f2222d5976e.html
http://www.nwitimes.com/news/state-and-regional/indiana/indiana-senate-panel-set-to-begin-state-budget-work/article_82e5324f-1805-56ce-a84c-5a41f338f7fe.html
http://www.indystar.com/story/news/politics/2015/03/04/faiths-divided-indianas-religious-freedom-bill/24407181/
http://www.journalgazette.net/news/local/indiana/State-appeals-ruling-blocking-fenced-hunting-preserve-rules-5366714


 
Senate panel to consider banning plastic beads in soaps
NWI Times
An Indiana Senate committee is set to consider a bill that would ban the sale and manufacture
of soaps and cosmetics containing plastic particles that environmentalists say are polluting
water resources.
 
E‐Liquids regulation bill nears state OK
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette
State lawmakers are nearing first‐time regulations for the growing trend of vaping, and the
industry isn’t too happy about it.
 
Senate panel considers ‘right to try’ trial drugs bill
Evansville Courier & Press
An Indiana Senate committee is considering a bill that would give terminally ill patients easier
access to experimental drugs that have not received full federal approval.
*Subscription required, full text below
 
Proposed teacher tax credit now in Indiana Senate
Evansville Courier & Press
A tax credit to help educators who use personal money to purchase classroom supplies is
making its way through the General Assembly.
*Subscription required, full text below
 
STATE AGENCIES
Lawmakers honor Umbarger for 45 years of Indiana National Guard service
Evansville Courier & Press
Lawmakers recognized Adjutant General Martin Umbarger for his 45 years of service to the
Indiana National Guard, describing him as a devoted and caring leader.
 
Indiana BMV suit on overcharges heads to mediation
Indy Star
A second class‐action lawsuit alleging the Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles overcharged
Hoosier motorists millions of dollars is headed toward mediation.
 
Companies adding jobs in central Indiana
Inside Indiana Business
Three companies today announced new investment across central Indiana expected to create a
combined 59 new jobs over the next few years.
 
AROUND INDIANA
‘Father Ted’ memorialized at funeral Mass
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette
The Rev. Theodore Hesburgh, who transformed the University of Notre Dame into an academic
power during his more than three decades as president, was memorialized Wednesday as a
world leader in social issues but whose main goal was helping people connect with God.
 
Donors Push EDC Campaign close to Target
Inside Indiana Business
The Whitley County Economic Development Corporation (EDC) announced today key
community supporters have stepped forward to commit two‐thirds of the funding sought in its
"Start Where You Are" investment campaign to continue the organization's economic
development initiatives.
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JOBS/ECONOMY
Strong local economy driving real estate sectors
Indianapolis Business Journal
Indianapolis’ strong economy is helping drive the growth of most local real estate sectors to
heights that outpace the city's Midwestern counterparts, a panel of commercial real estate
experts said Wednesday.
*Subscription required, full text below
 
Officials to Cut Ribbon on Fort Wayne Center
Inside Indiana Business
 Nearly seven months after Gov. Mike Pence joined executives from Lutheran Health Network
and other local and state leaders to announce plans for an expansion of Shared Services Center
Fort Wayne, almost a third of the 320 new jobs have already been filled.
 
Social media company lands funding, targets talent
Inside Indiana Business
Geofeedia, the pioneer in location‐based social media intelligence, today announced the closing
of a $3 million series A4 financing. Hyde Park Venture Partners led the financing round with
follow‐on participation from Tim Kopp, former CMO of ExactTarget; David Gupta, founder and
CEO of SDI Enterprises; and Gene Delaney, former president at Motorola. The financing brings
the company's total funding to $6.8 million and will enable Geofeedia to hire key talent, to
invest in marketing, and to expand into additional vertical segments.
 
EDITORIAL
Tully: On pot, partnership goes up in smoke
Indy Star
Finally, we have something Democrats and Republicans agree on. At least young ones.
 
Overturning ACA counters conservative goal
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette
If the Supreme Court rules against the government in the latest challenge to Obamacare,
conservatives will have done more than undercut the Affordable Care Act. They will also have
crippled a cause they have long supported: weakening the link between health insurance and
employment.
 
At war over wages
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette
In a session quickly marked by unexpected and divisive issues, a bid to repeal common
construction wage stands out. The interest in pushing the measure through before the 2016
election is obvious, but the lack of concern for another hit on Indiana paychecks is puzzling.
 

Senate panel considers 'right‐to‐try' trial drugs bill
An Indiana Senate committee is considering a bill that would give terminally ill patients easier
access to experimental drugs that have not received full federal approval.
Senate health committee members heard testimony Wednesday about the measure. It would
allow patients to opt in for experimental drug treatments that have passed at least Phase‐1 of
the Federal Drug Administration's approval process.
The "right to try" legislation passed through the state House last month.
Supporters say it would shorten the time patients wait for potentially life‐saving drugs. No one
spoke in opposition at the hearing, but lawmakers raised several questions, including how drug
usage would be tracked and monitored.
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Committee Chairwoman Patricia Miller, an Indianapolis Republican, decided not to hold a vote
until next week so that changes can be made.
 
 
Proposed teacher tax credit now in Indiana Senate
Chelsea Schneider
3:50 PM, Mar 4, 2015
A tax credit to help educators who use personal money to purchase classroom supplies is
making its way through the General Assembly.

A proposal, which already cleared the House and is now in the Senate, provides for as
much as $200 per year in income tax credits for teachers to help offset the purchase of
supplies that benefit students.

The bill's author, state Rep. Ben Smaltz, an Auburn Republican, said the proposal is "one
small step" in helping attract the best and brightest teachers to work in Indiana's
classrooms.

Smaltz told a Senate committee on Wednesday that teachers don't go into the field for
money. They do it to help students learn, he said.

"They don't make a lot of money doing that. They go into it knowing they won't make a lot
of money," Smaltz said.

John Barnes, a representative with the Indiana Department of Education, spoke in
support of the legislation and recalled purchasing items, such as tissues, hand sanitizer
and pencils, in his 33 years as a school teacher before working for the state.

"This is an awesome gesture and recognition of the fact they make that kind of sacrifice
and put themselves into doing what they do every day," Barnes said.

More than 65,000 teachers spent an average of $250 apiece on classroom supplies in
2012, according to a fiscal analysis by the nonpartisan Legislative Services Agency.
However, the analysis also found about 60,000 teachers used an expense deduction in
2011, with the average claim amount at $950.

Along with classroom teachers, superintendents, principals and guidance counselors are
eligible for the tax credit, Smaltz said.

The proposal passed the House unanimously in February, and now needs to pass the
Senate before it can head to Gov. Mike Pence's desk for consideration.

House Republicans made the proposal part of their legislative priorities for this year, and
say the credit is a way to support funding that goes directly to the classroom.

 
Strong local economy driving real estate sectors
March 4, 2015
Scott Olson
Indianapolis’ strong economy is helping drive the growth of most local real estate sectors to
heights that outpace the city's Midwestern counterparts, a panel of commercial real estate
experts said Wednesday.
Leaders of the local office of the Chicago‐based global real estate services firm DTZ (formerly

http://www.ibj.com/authors/4-scott-olson/articles


Cassidy Turley) delivered the optimistic message at the company's annual State of Real Estate
outlook.
The city last year ranked 35th in job growth out of roughly 280 metropolitan areas, while
lowering its unemployment rate to about 5 percent, DTZ chief economist Kevin Thorpe said.
Ticking through the office, industrial and multifamily sectors, Thorpe described industrial as
“on fire” while noting the more than 17 million square feet of space absorbed in the market in
recent years.
“You’re one of the few markets that absorbed space during the recession,” Thorpe said. “It’s
because you’re in the middle of the country. You have a great advantage there.”
The job growth also is helping drive the huge surge in downtown apartment construction, as
millennials enter the rental market. The number of apartment units (4,200) that came on line
last year downtown equaled the entire amount built throughout the rest of the metro area.
Another 4,000 units downtown are expected to be ready for occupancy this year. The building
boom should last for another five to seven years, Thorpe predicted.
Though the downtown population is growing, the office market so far is failing to keep pace.
The vacancy rate stands at an alarming 24 percent, mostly driven by disappointing occupancy
in traditional towers, said Jon Owens, a DTZ managing director and office broker.
“But I’m optimistic about downtown,” he said. “It’s undergoing rapid change, a renaissance.”
More than half of the city's office towers were built before 1980 and still sport outdated
interior designs that need to come out of the “dark ages,” Owens said.
Building owners are beginning to remodel common areas to help attract tenants, who in turn
need more modern workspaces to recruit millennials.
White Plains, N.Y.‐based True North Management Group, the owner of the troubled BMO Plaza,
has added a trendy‐looking tenant lounge. And the new owner of Market Tower, Chicago‐based
Zeller Realty, is embarking on a multi‐million‐dollar renovation of the building’s atrium, Owens
said.
Just as the office market is changing, the retail sector is, too, shifting to make shopping
experiences more experiential, said Jacque Haynes, a DTZ senior vice president and retail
broker.
The change is driven by the recovering economy and the influence of millennials and their
shopping demands and interests.
It’s occurring at high‐end luxury malls where retailers like Tesla, Apple and Microsoft are
tenants, Haynes said.
Despite the perception that millennials prefer to shop online, statistics show they actually enjoy
visiting malls. That’s driving online retailers such as Amazon to open outlets. The company
opened its first ever staffed store in February at Purdue University.
 



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Thu 6/11/2015 4:42 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Matthew Lloyd" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov>, "Shelley Triol" <STriol@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: [Govstate] Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure 
Attachments: image00100001.jpg; image00200002.jpg; image00300003.jpg; image00400004.jpg; Atkins

Resignation00005.pdf 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Cleveland, Bridget" <BCleveland@gov.IN.gov>
Date: June 11, 2015 at 1:02:57 PM EDT
To: undisclosed­recipients:;
Subject: [Govstate] Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
June 11, 2015
 
Contact: Matt Lloyd
mlloyd@gov.in.gov
 

Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure
Micah Vincent Named OMB Director

 
Indianapolis – Governor Mike Pence recently accepted the resignation of Office of Management and
Budget Director Chris Atkins, who has served in the role since January of 2013. His resignation is
effective at close of business on June 26. Prior to this role, he served on the Governor’s campaign,
as OMB General Counsel and Policy Director for Governor Mitch Daniels, and in a variety of other
roles regarding fiscal and tax policy. His letter of resignation can be found attached.
 
“As Director of the Office of Management and Budget, Chris Atkins has served as a devoted steward
of taxpayer dollars,” said Governor Pence. “He is a true public servant in every way, and his
leadership and service to the people of Indiana will be greatly missed. We wish him the best as he
begins this new chapter of his life.”
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Atkins will be joining Mainstreet, where he will serve as Senior Vice President for Corporate
Strategy and Analytics.
 
Micah Vincent, OMB General Counsel and Policy Director, will replace Atkins as OMB Director,
effective June 27. Under the Pence Administration, Vincent previously served as Commissioner of
the Indiana Department of Local Governance Finance. Prior to this role, he served as Assistant
General Counsel and Policy Director for Utilities, Energy, and Higher Education in the Office of
Governor Daniels; General Counsel for the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance;
Director of Legislative Affairs and Policy for the Indiana State Department of Agriculture; and Staff
Attorney for the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. Vincent, of Whitestown, earned
his undergraduate degree from Purdue University and his law degree from the Indiana University
Robert H. McKinney School of Law.
 
“Micah Vincent has a strong background in state government and the proven leadership skills
needed to take on the role of Director of Indiana’s Office of Management Budget,” said Pence. “I
am confident he will continue to serve Hoosiers well in this new position and keep the Office of
Management and Budget laser‐focused on ensuring the proper use of taxpayer dollars and
maintaining Indiana’s strong fiscal reputation.”
 
OMB oversees the following state agencies: Department of Local Government Finance, Indiana
Finance Authority, Indiana Department of Revenue, Government Efficiency and Financial Planning,
Indiana Board of Tax Review, Indiana Public Retirement System, Indiana Office of Technology, Office
of State Based Initiatives, State Board of Accounts, and State Budget Agency.
 
Upon Atkins’ departure, the Indiana Finance Authority and Indiana Department of Revenue will
report to State Budget Director Brian Bailey, whose current responsibilities include working with the
legislature to develop and implement the state budget, evaluating fiscal and policy impacts of
legislative proposals, serving as fiscal forecaster and fiscal policy advisor to the Governor, and
keeping state expenditures in line with revenue collections.
 

###
 











From:  Atterholt, Jim 
Sent:  Wed 3/18/2015 6:49 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Atterholt Status 

A bit of a relapse boss. Hope today is the worst of it. I pray you and Ka=
ren have blessed time with your son this weekend. It is an amazing accompl=
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
Sent:  Sat 3/14/2015 1:12 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Crystalynne Boyer" <cboyer@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: Bio 2014.doc 
Attachments: Bio 201400001.doc 

Crystalynne
Please add to the file on IU board of trustees
Thanks
Mike

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Michael McRobbie < >
Date: March 13, 2015 at 4:31:54 PM EDT
To: mpence1314@aol.com
Cc: Michael McRobbie < >
Subject: Fwd: Bio 2014.doc

Governor,

Greatly appreciated the opportunity to meet Wednesday & thank very much for your time &
support.

You mentioned having met Melanie Hart who was one of my recommendations to you last
year as candidate to be appointed as an IU Trustee. I have appended the email I sent you then
as well as an updated copy of her bio. I would reiterate, that I think she would make an
excellent Trustee.

Also, following our conversation about your visit to China & our Global Gateway Office
there in Beijing, I have asked Bill Stephan to work with your office as to any opportunities
you might have to visit it. As well, if you would like to use it as a base of operations while
you are there, we would be delighted to make it available to you for the whole period of your
visit there.

Again, thank you very much for your support.

Regards,

Michael

­­­­­­­­­­­­­

[From May, 2014]

mailto:mpence1314@aol.com


Governor ­ we are about half way through our Asian trip. It's all been extremely successful. I hope you may
have had a chance to see some of the news releases.

While in Tokyo, we met with Mr Yasuyuki Ohara, the Chairman & CEO of the Tsuchiya Group. They make
various components for the auto industry and other areas & have some interesting niche markets. 

They have four facilities in North America employing about 400 people & in fact their North American
Headquarters is in Bloomington where Melanie Hart is their President. 

I thanked Mr Ohara for his investment in Indiana & his confidence in the state, and  took the liberty of adding
that I was sure you would want me to convey these sentiments to him as well.

Incidentally Melanie Hart is one of the few women who is president of a subsidiary of a Japanese company &
is a very impressive woman. She is also heavily involved in a number of different areas for IU as well. 

Consequently I have also taken the liberty of suggesting her to Marilee as another possible Trustees candidate
& sent her her Vita.

With best regards,

Michael



MELANIE W. HART

CEO, Tsuchiya Group North America
President, TASUS Corporation

After graduating from Cornell University’s School of Industrial and Labor Relations, and holding positions with
Mobil Oil and Chemical, and Schlegel Corporation, Melanie began her career with Tsuchiya Company of
Nagoya, Japan, 25 years ago (www.tsuchiya-group.co.jp) . Tsuchiya, established in 1950, is a $1.3 billion
company, with 26 manufacturing and sales operations in 32 cities around the globe (Japan, China, Thailand,
Vietnam, Indonesia, Czech Republic, the U.S. and Canada).

In 1994 Melanie was named President of TASUS Corporation (www.tasus.com), Tsuchiya’s first North
American subsidiary.  She was believed to be the first and youngest female president of a Japanese owned
manufacturing company in North America.

During the past 20 years of Melanie’s presidency, she established four more Tsuchiya companies in North
America: TASUS Canada, of Ontario Canada, Craft Mexico, in Mexico City, TASUS Texas in Georgetown,
Texas, and most recently, TASUS Alabama in Florence, Alabama. These Tsuchiya Group North America
companies employ over 500, with annual combined revenues of over $80 million. They manufacture plastic
injection molded assemblies, blow molded assemblies, extrusions, labels, overlays and dimensional graphic
products for the automotive industry.

In addition to leading and growing Tsuchiya’s presence in North America, Melanie alsoworks closely with the
headquarters leadership in Japan in matters of the operations of the Tsuchiya businesses around the globe.

AFFILIATIONS/ACTIVITIES:

Select USA Summit, U.S. Department of Commerce, Speaker and Member

State of Indiana Delegate, White House Conference on Small Business

President, Japan America Society of Indiana

Gubernatorial appointed Member, State of Indiana, Workforce Innovation Council

Deans Council Member, Indiana University, School of Public and Environmental Affairs

Member of the Board, Indiana University Credit Union

Member of the Board, Bloomington Economic Development Corporation

Member of the Board, Susie’s Place Child Advocacy Center

Former Chair of the Board, Greater Bloomington Chamber of Commerce

Former President, Executive Leadership Team, American Heart Association

Former Member of the Board, Monroe County Community Foundation

Speaking Engagements:



. SelectUSA Summit, U.S. Department of Commerce

. Executive Conference, Plastics News

. Columbia Business School, Agents of Change:  Women CEO’s

. Indiana University, Kelly School of Business, International Summit

. Indiana University, Kelly School of Business, MBA Entrepreneurship Program

. Indiana University, Women Partners Program

. Small Business Development Center, Bloomington Executive Success Training

. Japan America Society of Alabama, Monozukuri and the Toyota Production System

. Japan America Society of Indiana, The Toyota Production System



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Thu 3/26/2015 6:20 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Josh Pitcock" <jpitcock@sso.org>, "Christy Denault" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Can you forward the draft statement on RFRA? 

Sent from my iPhone



From:  Atkins, Chris 
Sent:  Tue 3/31/2015 1:33 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike Pence" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: [Clip] Time ­ Connecticut Gov. Malloy: ‘Mike Pence Knew What He Was Doing’ 
Attachments: Indiana vs Connecticut00001.doc 

Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE Tablet

­­­­­­­­ Original message ­­­­­­­­
From: "Rusthoven, Mark" 
Date:03/31/2015 10:32 AM (GMT­08:00) 
To: "Atkins, Chris" 
Subject: RE: [Clip] Time ­ Connecticut Gov. Malloy: ‘Mike Pence Knew What He Was Doing’ 

From: Atkins, Chris 
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:20 PM
To: Rusthoven, Mark
Subject: Fwd: [Clip] Time ­ Connecticut Gov. Malloy: ‘Mike Pence Knew What He Was Doing’

­­­­­­­­ Original message ­­­­­­­­
From: "Hodgin, Stephanie" 
Date:03/31/2015 10:11 AM (GMT­08:00) 



To: "Denault, Christina" ,"Brooks, Kara D" ,"Atterholt, Jim" ,"Espich, Jeff" ,"Ahearn, Mark" ,"Simcox,
Stephen" ,"Crabtree, Chris" ,"Atkins, Chris" ,"Pitcock, Josh" ,"Keefer, Sean (GOV)" ,"McGrath,
Danielle" ,"Brookes, Brady" ,"Pavlik, Jennifer L" ,"Craig, Lindsey M" ,"'smith@sextonscreek.com'"
,"Cleveland, Bridget" ,"Johnson, David (OSBI)" ,"Anderson, Christopher M" 
Subject: [Clip] Time ­ Connecticut Gov. Malloy: ‘Mike Pence Knew What He Was Doing’

Connecticut Gov. Malloy: ‘Mike Pence Knew What He Was Doing’

Time – Connecticut Gov. Malloy

 

But he did it anyway

If we stand idly by while states legalize bigotry, we are responsible for allowing
it to happen. Yesterday, Connecticut took action to stop discrimination against
any of our citizens. I signed my 45th executive order, which made our state the
first in the nation to ban state­funded travel to Indiana.

Uproar has occurred both in and out of the Hoosier State for good reason. The
religious freedom law Republican Governor Mike Pence signed last week —
deliberately lacking protections against discrimination for the LGBTQ
community — will allow an entire group of citizens to be treated as second
class.

The law is disturbing, disgraceful, and outright discriminatory. Governor Mike
Pence knew what he was doing. He knew this legislation would allow
discrimination against American citizens. He signed it anyway.

Codifying discrimination in our laws should be something we read about in
American history, not on the front pages of today’s American newspapers and
magazines. Fortunately, Connecticut has been joined by many elected officials,
business leaders, and organizations across the nation who are standing up
against this discriminatory law.

No person should be denied service at a lunch counter because of who they
love. A landlord should not be able to deny housing to a person based on his or
her sexual preference. No state, as a matter of public policy, should turn back
the clock on progress by, in effect, legalizing and relitigating the same types of

http://time.com/3765380/connecticut-gov-malloy-mike-pence-knew-what-he-was-doing/
http://www.governor.ct.gov/malloy/lib/malloy/EO_45_Discrimination.pdf


discriminatory laws and debates that took America centuries to overcome.

I am a person of faith who believes deeply in the right to exercise religious
beliefs. But that’s not what Indiana’s law is about. It legally gives one private
individual or business a blank check to discriminate against another. Packaging
the law as a matter of “religious freedom” may provide a palatable political
message to some, but ultimately Indiana is using religion as a legal basis for
treating some Americans as second­class citizens. 

To be clear, Connecticut has for two decades had a law recognizing freedom of
religion. We celebrate it. But what separates us from Indiana is that we also
have numerous statutes outlawing discrimination on the basis of sexual
orientation and gender identity. We protect the rights of all our citizens.

Indiana doesn’t. And through what is a deliberate omission of those basic
statutes that codify equality, Indiana has approved legal discrimination.

And for Governor Pence and Indiana, that’s just bad business — because it’s
bad for business.

Apple CEO Tim Cook said it himself, penning an op­ed that called this law
“dangerous” because it attempts to “rationalize injustice.” Business leaders
from coast to coast are panning it. So is the NCAA.

All of it makes you wonder how many can so falsely and egregiously claim to be
so “pro­business” while simultaneously implementing policies that are rooted
in so much hate for America’s workforce.

Well, here’s my message to businesses in Indiana.

To the NCAA: Your LGBTQ athletes are always welcome in Connecticut. To
Angie’s List, Eli Lilly, Yelp, Gen Con, and to all companies and leaders either
overtly or privately questioning Indiana’s direction, please know that
Connecticut is open for business— and will welcome those in your workforce
for who they are. Everyone is treated equally under Connecticut’s laws.

http://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/pro-discrimination-religious-freedom-laws-are-dangerous-to-america/2015/03/29/bdb4ce9e-d66d-11e4-ba28-f2a685dc7f89_story.html


As elected officials, we have a small window in time to impact lives in big ways.
And it’s incumbent upon leaders to do what we’re supposed to: lead by doing
what’s right for the people we serve.

Yesterday, Connecticut did that by standing up for progress and rebuking
Indiana’s laws. I would encourage leaders across the nation, Democrat and
Republican, to join us in standing up for action — and against discrimination.

 

 

 

Stephanie Hodgin

Communications Specialist

Office of Governor Michael R. Pence

shodgin@gov.in.gov

Office: 317­234­8926
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Thu 4/02/2015 2:01 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mark Ahearn" <mahearn@gov.in.gov>, "Bill Smith (NEW consultant)" <smith@sextonscreek.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Fwd: FYI Confidential Legal Analysis of IN RFRA with Amendment 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: JBoppjr@
Date: April 2, 2015 at 1:51:38 PM EDT
To: jboppjr@
Subject: FYI Confidential Legal Analysis of IN RFRA with Amendment

    Friends, my associate's view of the RFRA with the amendment.  He is general counsel for Indiana
Right to Life. I agree with his analysis.  Jim
 

This amendment would limit the scope of the protections afforded by RFRA significantly. The
amendment will create a RFRA that is far more restrictive than federal RFRA. (1) It will restrict the
permissible religious beliefs (i.e., it excludes race, sex, sexual orientation, etc as beliefs protected by
RFRA) that businesses can use to claim protection under RFRA. (2) It withdraws RFRA protection
from individuals and “other organized groups of persons” (e.g., a bridge club, a book club, an
independent bible study group, etc) who would seek to claim RFRA protection on the same set of
prohibited beliefs.

The most troubling aspect of the amendment is that it singles out particular religious beliefs and
accords them lesser protection than other religious beliefs. This raises serious questions about the
constitutionality of the amendment under the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment. The
Supreme Court does not look favorably upon attempts to single out particular religious beliefs and
has held laws that do unconstitutional. See Church of the Lukumi Babalu Aye v. Hialeah, 508 U.S.
520 (1993) (holding unconstitutional a municipal ordinance that targeted the specific religious
beliefs and practices). In addition, the amendment poses an equal protection problem under the
Fourteenth Amendment in that it treats certain religious beliefs different from others.

With respect to individuals, the amendment has a unique impact on individuals who are rabbis,
priests, preachers, ministers, or pastors because it exempts them from RFRA’s protections when
acting in their personal capacities but not when “engaged in a religious or affiliated educational
function of the church or other nonprofit religious organization or society.” The amendment
essentially draws an artificial line between the activities of such religious figures, protecting them
only when they act on behalf of a church or nonprofit and not when they act on their own. Though
such religious figures will be more protected than regular individuals who would be covered under
the current RFRA version and hold religious beliefs related to the prohibited categories of beliefs. 

Another striking feature of the amendment is the scope of activities covered. It would apply not
only to the provision of services, public accommodations, employment, and housing but also to the



provision of “facilities” and “goods”. The breadth of activities exempted from RFRA protection by
the amendment is cause for concern especially when considered in light of the fact that the
amendment withdraws protections from individuals. Under the amendment, individuals could not
use RFRA as a defense against someone asserting a legal right to receive services, facilities, goods,
employment, or housing from that individual if the reason the individual is refusing stems from a
prohibited religious belief.

This amendment could impact pro‐life individuals and organizations in several ways, including the
following:

         Under the amendment, RFRA could no longer be used by a medical provider (doctor, nurse,
hospital, etc) as a basis for refusing to provide an abortion for a woman seeking to abort a child
because the child has a disability like down syndrome (disability discrimination) or because the child
is of a particular sex/race/color/national origin (sex/race/color/national origin discrimination). The
amendment would exempt an unborn child’s disability, sex, race, color, and national origin from the
religious reasons that a person/organization could refuse to provide the “service” of abortion or, in
the case of an entity, refuse to provide it’s “facility”.

         If “sex” is interpreted by a court as including a woman’s reproductive capacity and thus abortion as
the New Mexico Supreme Court has done (New Mexico Right to Choose/NARAL v. Johnson, 975 P.2d
841 (N.M. 1998) (holding that the restricting the use of Medicaid funds for abortion is tantamount
to discrimination on the basis of sex and gender)), then, under the amendment, Indiana’s RFRA
would no longer support the result reached in the Hobby Lobby case, exempting Hobby Lobby from
the requirement to offer insurance covering the abortion pill. This amendment would consider that
sex discrimination and therefore exclude it from RFRA’s protection (assuming “sex” interpreted to
encompass abortion). More generally, if “sex” is construed as including abortion, the amendment
would prevent RFRA from being used as a defense by any doctor, pharmacist, nurse, etc. who
refuses to provide a government or government‐employment mandated services for abortion.

Justin



From:  Atkins, Chris 
Sent:  Wed 4/08/2015 4:42 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Vincent, Micah" <mvincent@gov.in.gov>, "Espich, Jeff"

<JEspich@gov.IN.gov>, "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: FW: BBA One­Pager Draft.doc 

Good news
 
AFP should be weighing in too
 
From: Quandt, Barbara [mailto:barbara.quandt@nfib.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2015 3:50 PM
To: Atkins, Chris
Subject: RE: BBA One‐Pager Draft.doc
 
Chris,
I will be signing a letter of support.  I had to do a little work to make sure I was in compliance with NFIB policy,
but I am now good to go.  I may sign letter with Realtors and Builders.
 
Barbara Quandt
Indiana State Director | NFIB.com
National Federation of Independent Business
317­638­4447 Office | 317­  Cell
Follow NFIB

   

 
From: Atkins, Chris [mailto:catkins@gov.in.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 1:58 PM
To: Quandt, Barbara
Cc: Vincent, Micah
Subject: RE: BBA One­Pager Draft.doc
 
Thanks Barbara. Bill number is SJR19.
 
Chris
 
From: Quandt, Barbara [mailto:barbara.quandt@nfib.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2015 1:57 PM
To: Atkins, Chris
Subject: RE: BBA One‐Pager Draft.doc
 
Hi Chris,
We did not take a formal position on the BBA because it wasn’t on the state member ballot.  However, this is

http://www.nfib.com/
http://www.facebook.com/nfib
http://www.twitter.com/nfib
http://www.linkedin.com/groups/NFIB-Voice-Small-Business-2627178?gid=2627178&trk=hb_side_g
http://www.nfib.com/app
mailto:catkins@gov.in.gov
mailto:barbara.quandt@nfib.org


something we may have balloted previously and if so, I would think our membership would surely have
supported it.  I will check with our folks in DC and see if I am able to do this.  I will be back with you ASAP.  What
is the bill number?
 
Barbara Quandt
Indiana State Director | NFIB.com
National Federation of Independent Business
317­638­4447 Office | 317­  Cell
Follow NFIB

   

 
From: Atkins, Chris [mailto:catkins@gov.in.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 12:54 PM
To: Quandt, Barbara
Cc: Vincent, Micah
Subject: FW: BBA One­Pager Draft.doc
 
Barbara, would you be willing to do a communication to House members in support of SJR19, the balanced
budget amendment? One pager attached.
 
Thanks for consideration,
 
Chris
 
From: Vincent, Micah 
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2015 12:34 PM
To: Atkins, Chris
Subject: BBA One‐Pager Draft.doc
 
Draft One‐pager
 

Privacy Notice

The information contained in this message may be privileged and confidential and protected from
disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent

responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have

received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by replying to this message and
deleting it from your computer.

 

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

The information contained in this message may be privileged and confidential
and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to

the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by replying

to this message and deleting it from your computer.

 

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
Sent:  Sat 4/11/2015 11:14 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "MPENCE1314@aol.com" <MPENCE1314@aol.com> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Star story 

My guess is your quote did not help the narrative of their negative story.

Jim 
James Atterholt
Chief of Staff
Governor Mike Pence 
jatterholt@gov.in.gov
Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis
Office: 317­232­1800

On Apr 11, 2015, at 9:10 AM, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

I don't know yet. Trying to find out. 

Christy Denault
Communications Director
317/

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 11, 2015, at 8:34 AM, "MPENCE1314@aol.com" <MPENCE1314@aol.com>
wrote:

why?
 
 
In a message dated 4/11/2015 8:29:54 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time, CDenault@gov.IN.gov writes:

I'm hearing that Tom and Tony's "what really happened with RFRA" is not going to run
Sunday. 

Christy Denault
Communications Director
317

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:jatterholt@gov.in.gov
mailto:CDenault@gov.IN.gov
mailto:MPENCE1314@aol.com
mailto:MPENCE1314@aol.com
mailto:CDenault@gov.IN.gov


From:  Mark Ahearn 
Sent:  Sun 4/19/2015 8:03 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "mpence1314@aol.com" <mpence1314@aol.com>, "Karen

Pence" <kspence1314@ , "Chris Crabtree" <christopher.l.crabtree@ > 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Atterholt Checks In­­Aaron Reber post 



On Sunday, April 19, 2015 5:38 AM, "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

Spoke with Curt last night.  He did not hesitate in making the change.

Jim 
James Atterholt
Chief of Staff
Governor Mike Pence 
jatterholt@gov.in.gov
Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis
Office: 317­232­1800

Begin forwarded message:

From: Curt Smith <hoosierfamily@ >
Date: April 18, 2015 at 7:16:00 PM EDT
To: RM <ryan@ >
Subject: Aaron Reber post

Ryan ­­

Please take down Aaron's April 5 post. Even though it is from him, because it is on
our site, I feel like it goes against my word to not pile on in the aftermath of RFRA.
 it's been up for more than a week, so Aaron should not feel slighted.

Thanks!

mailto:jatterholt@gov.in.gov


Sent from my iPad



























































































































From:  Matt Lloyd 
Sent:  Tue 5/19/2015 6:25 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "MRP_home" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Politico 

On May 19, 2015 6:19 PM, "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

On May 19, 2015, at 6:10 PM, Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> wrote:

_______________________________________
From: POLITICO Pro Campaigns [politicoemail@politicopro.com]
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 5:19 PM
To: Mike Allen
Subject: Pence won't run for president

Pence won't run for president

By Jonathan Topaz

5/19/15 5:20 PM EDT

Indiana Gov. Mike Pence won't run for president in 2016, a spokeswoman confirmed
Tuesday.

The Republican governor said Monday that he would run for a second term next year,
which he will likely officially announce at the Indiana Republican Party's Spring Dinner
next month. Indiana law disallows candidates from running for two offices on the same
ballot ­ and a legislative effort to allow Pence to run both for the White House and
governor hasn't gone anywhere.

Asked whether there is now no scenario in which Pence will run for president in 2016,
spokeswoman Christy Denault replied: "Correct."

Pence told POLITICO in February that he was still considering a bid, but that he couldn't
run for both offices. "Indiana law, in terms of a federal office and a state office, doesn't
permit that," he said<http://www.politico.com/story/2015/02/mike­pence­2016­election­
115386.html>.

The governor, 55, spent more than a decade in Congress, at one point serving as chairman
of the Republican Study Committee.

mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
mailto:matthewhlloyd@gmail.com
mailto:politicoemail@politicopro.com
http://www.politico.com/story/2015/02/mike-pence-2016-election-115386.html


For a time, Pence was seen as a strong 2016 contender. An evangelical governor who
often touted his balanced budgets and job­creation record, he was considered by some in
the party as a candidate who could bring together the establishment and social
conservative wings of the party. Many of his former staffers have assumed top roles with
GOP mega­donors Charles and David Koch, and the brothers' Americans for Prosperity
political group supported his efforts in office.

But Pence recently suffered a series of missteps, most notably his support for a state
Religious Freedom Restoration Act, a bill that earned national attention following major
criticism from the business and gay rights communities. Pence declared in a defensive
interview on ABC's "This Week" that he wouldn't change the law, which critics argued
would allow for businesses to refuse service to gay and lesbian individuals.

Under mounting national pressure ­ including Apple CEO Tim Cook pledging to boycott
Indiana and Connecticut Gov. Dannel Malloy calling Pence a "bigot" ­ Pence oversaw a
change in the law to ensure it didn't allow for discrimination. The governor's approval
rating subsequently dropped nearly 20 points in the state.

Pence also earned ridicule for planning to launch a state­run news service funded by
taxpayers, a plan his administration quickly scrapped after it was roundly criticized. And
Pence's prospects suffered due to the sudden rise of another Midwestern Republican ­
Wisconsin Gov. Scott Walker, who has quickly emerged as a front­runner embraced by
top donors including the Koch brothers and conservative activists.

The 2016 gubernatorial election may be a rematch of the close 2012 race between Pence
and former Indiana House Speaker John Gregg, who has already declared his candidacy.
Former Indiana Democratic Gov. Evan Bayh, who also served two terms in the Senate,
said he won't run in 2016.

Indiana GOP chairman Jeff Cardwell praised Pence's decision to run for reelection in a
statement Monday. "Gov. Mike Pence is a conservative leader and dedicated public
servant who always puts Indiana first ... We are excited the governor will formally
announce his plans to seek reelection during our annual Spring Dinner," he said.

To view online:
http://politi.co/1GnoG

http://politi.co/1GnoG


From:  Atterholt, Jim 
Sent:  Tue 5/19/2015 6:42 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "'Mike'" <mpence1314@aol.com>, "Matt Lloyd" <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: RE: Politico 

From: Mike [mailto:mpence1314@aol.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 6:27 PM
To: Matt Lloyd
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Re: Politico

On May 19, 2015, at 6:25 PM, Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> wrote:

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

Indiana Gov. Mike Pence won't run for president in 2016, a spokeswoman
confirmed Tuesday.

The Republican governor said Monday that he would run for a second term next
year, which he will likely officially announce at the Indiana Republican Party's
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Spring Dinner next month. Indiana law disallows candidates from running for
two offices on the same ballot ­ and a legislative effort to allow Pence to run
both for the White House and governor hasn't gone anywhere.

Asked whether there is now no scenario in which Pence will run for president in
2016, spokeswoman Christy Denault replied: "Correct."

Pence told POLITICO in February that he was still considering a bid, but that he
couldn't run for both offices. "Indiana law, in terms of a federal office and a
state office, doesn't permit that," he
said<http://www.politico.com/story/2015/02/mike­pence­2016­election­
115386.html>.

The governor, 55, spent more than a decade in Congress, at one point serving as
chairman of the Republican Study Committee.

For a time, Pence was seen as a strong 2016 contender. An evangelical governor
who often touted his balanced budgets and job­creation record, he was
considered by some in the party as a candidate who could bring together the
establishment and social conservative wings of the party. Many of his former
staffers have assumed top roles with GOP mega­donors Charles and David
Koch, and the brothers' Americans for Prosperity political group supported his
efforts in office.

But Pence recently suffered a series of missteps, most notably his support for a
state Religious Freedom Restoration Act, a bill that earned national attention
following major criticism from the business and gay rights communities. Pence
declared in a defensive interview on ABC's "This Week" that he wouldn't
change the law, which critics argued would allow for businesses to refuse
service to gay and lesbian individuals.

Under mounting national pressure ­ including Apple CEO Tim Cook pledging to
boycott Indiana and Connecticut Gov. Dannel Malloy calling Pence a "bigot" ­
Pence oversaw a change in the law to ensure it didn't allow for discrimination.
The governor's approval rating subsequently dropped nearly 20 points in the
state.

Pence also earned ridicule for planning to launch a state­run news service
funded by taxpayers, a plan his administration quickly scrapped after it was
roundly criticized. And Pence's prospects suffered due to the sudden rise of
another Midwestern Republican ­ Wisconsin Gov. Scott Walker, who has
quickly emerged as a front­runner embraced by top donors including the Koch
brothers and conservative activists.

The 2016 gubernatorial election may be a rematch of the close 2012 race
between Pence and former Indiana House Speaker John Gregg, who has already
declared his candidacy. Former Indiana Democratic Gov. Evan Bayh, who also
served two terms in the Senate, said he won't run in 2016.

Indiana GOP chairman Jeff Cardwell praised Pence's decision to run for
reelection in a statement Monday. "Gov. Mike Pence is a conservative leader

http://www.politico.com/story/2015/02/mike-pence-2016-election-115386.html


and dedicated public servant who always puts Indiana first ... We are excited the
governor will formally announce his plans to seek reelection during our annual
Spring Dinner," he said.

To view online:
http://politi.co/1GnoG

http://politi.co/1GnoG


O n M a y 2 1 , 2 0 1 5 , a t 1 0 : 3 6 A M , M a t t L l o y d < m a t t h e w h l l o y d @ g m a i l . c o m > w r o t e :

- - - - - - - - - - Fo r w a r d e d m e s s a g e - - - - - - - - - -
Fr o m : " H o d g i n , S t e p h a n i e " < S H o d g i n @ g o v . i n . g o v >
D a t e : M a y 2 1 , 2 0 1 5 1 0 : 2 9A M
S u b j e c t : [ C l i p ] In d y S t a r - S w a r e n s : M i k e P e n c e s a y s h e n e e d e d t o l i s t e n m o r e a b o u t RFRA
T o : " D e n a u l t , C h r i s t i n a " < C D e n a u l t @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " B r o o k s , Ka r a D "
< k b r o o k s @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " H o d g i n , S t e p h a n i e " < S H o d g i n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " A t t e r h o l t , J i m "
< j a t t e r h o l t @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " E s p i c h , J e f f " < J E s p i c h @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " A h e a r n , M a r k "
< M A h e a r n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " J o h n s o n , D a v i d (O S B I)" < D J o h n s o n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " A n d e r s o n ,
C h r i s t o p h e r M " < C A n d e r s o n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " C r a b t r e e , C h r i s " < C C r a b t r e e @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" A t k i n s , C h r i s " < c a t k i n s @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " P i t c o c k , J o s h " < j p i t c o c k @ s s o . o r g > , " Ke e f e r , S e a n
(GO V )" < s k e e f e r @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " M c Gr a t h , D a n i e l l e " < D M c Gr a t h @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " B r o o k e s ,
B r a d y " < B B r o o k e s @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " P a v l i k , J e n n i f e r L " < J P a v l i k @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" s m i t h @ s e x t o n s c r e e k . c o m " < s m i t h @ s e x t o n s c r e e k . c o m > , " M a t t L l o y d "
< m a t t h e w h l l o y d @ g m a i l . c o m >
C c :

S w a r e n s : M i k e P e n c e s a y s h e n e e d e d t o l i s t e n m o r e a b o u t RFRA

Gov.Mike Pence ticked off the accomplishments.Rising student achievement.Falling

unemployment.A new ,balanced budget,w hich includes in dollar terms the largest single increase

in schoolfunding in the state’s history.A smallbut groundbreaking investment in preschool.A

responsible,innovative expansion of Medicaid.

“There are a lot of really encouraging things happening around Indiana,” the governor said during a

meeting w ith the Indy Star’s publisher and a group of editors in his Statehouse office on

W ednesday.

And — let’s be fair here — encouraging things are happening in our state.

But also,let’s not be naive.

From: Mike
Sent: Thu 5/21/2015 11:49AM (GMT-04:00)
To: "Matt Lloyd" <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com>, "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>
Cc:
Bcc:
Subject: Re: [Clip] IndyStar - Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA



It’s clear that the challenges facing Indiana — from bolstering incomes to training w orkers,from

rebuilding communities to improving Hoosiers’health — remain daunting.

It’s also clear,three w eeks removed from a brutallegislative session,that the conversations

lingering in Indianapolis and beyond aren’t about Team Pence’s accomplishments.The talk rather

is stillabout the destructive,unnecessary passage of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act,and

Pence’s failure to prevent the damage.

Iasked Pence about the lessons he learned from the RFRA debacle.“Icertainly learned — again —

that I’m not perfect,” he said.“If Ihave a regret,Iregret that w e didn’t spend more time listening

before the billgot to my desk.My ambition is to be a better listener.”

H e also emphasized,as he did at the height of the RFRA inferno,that in his mind the law w as not

about discrimination.“Isupport religious freedom.Ialso oppose discrimination.Iw as raised to do

unto others,w hat you w ould have them do unto you.Those are core principles for me,” he said.“If

Ihad thought it w as about discrimination,Iw ould have vetoed the bill.Imeant that to my bone

marrow .”

Yet,Pence acknow ledged that he made a mistake by signing the billin private,w ith a group of

hand-picked,hard-line religious conservatives standing behind him.That staging sent an

exclusionary message to the state and to the w orld,and it stoked flames of outrage that quickly

burned out of control.

Tw o days after he signed RFRA,Pence admitted that clarifying legislation w as necessary.Five days

after that,state law makers passed the “fix,” and the governor soon signed it.

W ith the fix in place,the initialfirestorm began to die.But there w as a promise made during the

height of the crisis that could stillburn the governor,and the state,if he lets it.

The RFRA clarification w as introduced during an extraordinary Statehouse new s conference called

by key legislative,business,academic and community leaders.In addition to revising the new law ,

those leaders promised to push in the next year for the addition of sexualorientation and gender

identity to the state’s civilrights law .

The governor,how ever,has been largely noncommittalabout that idea.

So on W ednesday,Ipressed him for his position on an expansion of the civilrights law .He

repeatedly dodged direct answ ers to my questions on the issue — to the point that it felt like an

episode of “Dancing w ith the Stars.”

H e did promise to listen as he travels the state,and to keep an open mind,but questioned w hether

the issue is a high priority for most H oosiers.



Bottom line: Pence is stillfar from a yes on w hether he’s w illing to embrace statew ide civilrights

protections for LGBT Hoosiers.But he didn’t say no.

As Pence’s bid for re-election unfolds in 2016 — “My intention is to get another five years out of

this gig” — his mishandling of RFRA provides Democrats w ith their best opportunity in 12 years to

w in back the governor’s office and even raises the potentialfor a challenge in the Republican

primary.

During the campaign,the governor w illw ant to talk about his record on jobs,education and other

core issues,and he’llbe able to point to significant accomplishments in severalkey areas.

But,as a leader w ho acknow ledges he needs to become a better listener,Pence runs a high risk if

he’s seen as intransigent on expanding civilrights.Many voters may stop listening to him.

S t e p h a n i e H o d g i n

C o m m u n i c a t i o n s S p e c i a l i s t

O f f i c e o f Go v e r n o r M i c h a e l R. P e n c e

s h o d g i n @ g o v . i n . g o v

O f f i c e : 3 1 7 - 2 3 4 - 892 6

< i m a g e 0 0 1 . j p g > < i m a g e 0 0 2 . j p g > < i m a g e 0 0 3 . j p g > < i m a g e 0 0 4 . j p g >



O n M a y 2 1 , 2 0 1 5 , a t 1 2 : 0 1 P M , M a t t L l o y d < m a t t h e w h l l o y d @ g m a i l . c o m > w r o t e :

O n T h u , M a y 2 1 , 2 0 1 5 a t 1 1 : 4 9A M , M i k e < m p e n c e 1 3 1 4 @ a o l . c o m > w r o t e :

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
S u b j e c t : [ C l i p ] In d y S t a r - S w a r e n s : M i k e P e n c e s a y s h e n e e d e d t o l i s t e n
m o r e a b o u t RFRA
T o : " D e n a u l t , C h r i s t i n a " < C D e n a u l t @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " B r o o k s , Ka r a D "
< k b r o o k s @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " H o d g i n , S t e p h a n i e " < S H o d g i n @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" A t t e r h o l t , Ji m " < j a t t e r h o l t @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " E s p i c h , Je f f "
< JE s p i c h @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " A h e a r n , M a r k " < M A h e a r n @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" Jo h n s o n , D a v i d (O S B I)" < D Jo h n s o n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " A n d e r s o n , C h r i s t o p h e r
M " < C A n d e r s o n @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " C r a b t r e e , C h r i s " < C C r a b t r e e @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" A t k i n s , C h r i s " < c a t k i n s @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " P i t c o c k , Jo s h " < j p i t c o c k @ s s o . o r g > ,
" Ke e f e r , S e a n (GO V )" < s k e e f e r @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " M c Gr a t h , D a n i e l l e "

Fr o m : M i ke
S e n t : T hu 5/21/201512: 21PM (G M T -04: 00)
T o : " M a t t Llo yd " <m a t t he whllo yd @ g m a i l.c o m >
C c : " Ji m A t t e r ho lt C O S " <j a t t e r ho lt @ g o v .i n .g o v >
B c c :
S u b j e c t : Re : [ C li p ] In d yS t a r -S wa r e n s : M i ke Pe n c e s a ys he n e e d e d t o li s t e n m o r e a b o u t RFRA



< D M c Gr a t h @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " B r o o k e s , B r a d y " < B B r o o k e s @ g o v . i n . g o v > ,
" P a v l i k , Je n n i f e r L " < JP a v l i k @ g o v . i n . g o v > , " s m i t h @ s e x t o n s c r e e k . c o m "
< s m i t h @ s e x t o n s c r e e k . c o m > , " M a t t L l o y d " < m a t t h e w h l l o y d @ g m a i l . c o m >
C c :

S w a r e n s : M i k e P e n c e s a y s h e n e e d e d t o l i s t e n m o r e a b o u t RFRA

G ov.Mike Pence ticked offthe accomplishments.Rising student achievement.

Falling unemployment.A new ,balanced budget,w hich includesin dollar termsthe

largest single increase in schoolfunding in the state’shistory.A smallbut

groundbreaking investment in preschool.A responsible,innovative expansion of

Medicaid.

“There are a lot ofreally encouraging thingshappening around Indiana,” the

governor said during a meeting w ith the Indy Star’spublisher and a group of

editors in hisStatehouse office on W ednesday.

And — let’sbe fair here — encouraging thingsar e happening in our state.

But also,let’snot be naive.

It’sclear that the challengesfacing Indiana — from bolstering incomesto training

w orkers,from rebuilding communitiesto improving Hoosiers’health — remain

daunting.

It’salso clear,three w eeksremoved from a brutallegislative session,that the

conversationslingering in Indianapolisand beyond aren’t about Team Pence’s

accomplishments.The talk rather isstillabout the destructive,unnecessary

passage ofthe ReligiousFreedom Restoration Act,and Pence’sfailure to prevent

the damage.

Iasked Pence about the lessonshe learned from the RFRA debacle.“Icertainly

learned — again — that I’m not perfect,” he said.“IfIhave a regret,Iregret that

w e didn’t spend more time listening before the billgot to my desk.My ambition is

to be a better listener.”

H e also emphasized,ashe did at the height ofthe RFRA inferno,that in hismind

the law w asnot about discrimination.“Isupport religiousfreedom.Ialso oppose

discrimination.Iw asraised to do unto others,w hat you w ould have them do unto

you.Those are core principlesfor me,” he said.“IfIhad thought it w asabout

discrimination,Iw ould have vetoed the bill.Imeant that to my bone marrow .”



Yet,Pence acknow ledged that he made a mistake by signing the billin private,w ith

a group ofhand-picked,hard-line religiousconservativesstanding behind him.That

staging sent an exclusionary message to the state and to the w orld,and it stoked

flamesofoutrage that quickly burned out ofcontrol.

Tw o daysafter he signed RFRA,Pence admitted that clarifying legislation w as

necessary.Five daysafter that,state law makerspassed the “fix,” and the governor

soon signed it.

W ith the fix in place,the initialfirestorm began to die.But there w asa promise

made during the height ofthe crisisthat could stillburn the governor,and the

state,ifhe lets it.

The RFRA clarification w asintroduced during an extraordinary Statehouse new s

conference called by key legislative,business,academic and community leaders.In

addition to revising the new law ,those leaderspromised to push in the next year

for the addition ofsexualorientation and gender identity to the state’scivilrights

law .

The governor,how ever,hasbeen largely noncommittalabout that idea.

So on W ednesday,Ipressed him for hisposition on an expansion ofthe civilrights

law .He repeatedly dodged direct answ ersto my questionson the issue — to the

point that it felt like an episode of“Dancing w ith the Stars.”

H e did promise to listen ashe travelsthe state,and to keep an open mind,but

questioned w hether the issue isa high priority for most Hoosiers.

Bottom line:Pence isstillfar from a yeson w hether he’sw illing to embrace

statew ide civilrightsprotectionsfor LGBT Hoosiers.But he didn’t say no.

AsPence’sbid for re-election unfolds in 2016 — “My intention isto get another

five yearsout ofthisgig” — hismishandling ofRFRA providesDemocratsw ith their

best opportunity in 12 yearsto w in back the governor’soffice and even raisesthe

potentialfor a challenge in the Republican primary.

During the campaign,the governor w illw ant to talk about hisrecord on jobs,

education and other core issues,and he’llbe able to point to significant

accomplishments in severalkey areas.

But,asa leader w ho acknow ledgeshe needsto become a better listener,Pence

runsa high risk ifhe’sseen as intransigent on expanding civilrights.Many voters



may stop listening to him.
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From:  Matt Lloyd 
Sent:  Thu 5/21/2015 12:01 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: [Clip] IndyStar ­ Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA 

On Thu, May 21, 2015 at 11:49 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

On May 21, 2015, at 10:36 AM, Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> wrote:

­­­­­­­­­­ Forwarded message ­­­­­­­­­­
From: "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov>
Date: May 21, 2015 10:29 AM
Subject: [Clip] IndyStar ­ Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA
To: "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.in.gov>, "Brooks, Kara D"
<kbrooks@gov.in.gov>, "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov>, "Atterholt, Jim"
<jatterholt@gov.in.gov>, "Espich, Jeff" <JEspich@gov.in.gov>, "Ahearn, Mark"
<MAhearn@gov.in.gov>, "Johnson, David (OSBI)" <DJohnson@gov.in.gov>,
"Anderson, Christopher M" <CAnderson@gov.in.gov>, "Crabtree, Chris"
<CCrabtree@gov.in.gov>, "Atkins, Chris" <catkins@gov.in.gov>, "Pitcock, Josh"
<jpitcock@sso.org>, "Keefer, Sean (GOV)" <skeefer@gov.in.gov>, "McGrath, Danielle"
<DMcGrath@gov.in.gov>, "Brookes, Brady" <BBrookes@gov.in.gov>, "Pavlik, Jennifer
L" <JPavlik@gov.in.gov>, "smith@sextonscreek.com" <smith@sextonscreek.com>,
"Matt Lloyd" <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com>
Cc: 

Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA

 

Gov. Mike Pence ticked off the accomplishments. Rising student achievement. Falling
unemployment. A new, balanced budget, which includes in dollar terms the largest single
increase in school funding in the state’s history. A small but groundbreaking investment in
preschool. A responsible, innovative expansion of Medicaid.

“There are a lot of really encouraging things happening around Indiana,” the governor said during
a meeting with the Indy Star’s publisher and a group of editors in his Statehouse office on
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Wednesday.

And — let’s be fair here — encouraging things are happening in our state.

But also, let’s not be naive.

It’s clear that the challenges facing Indiana — from bolstering incomes to training workers, from
rebuilding communities to improving Hoosiers’ health — remain daunting.

It’s also clear, three weeks removed from a brutal legislative session, that the conversations
lingering in Indianapolis and beyond aren’t about Team Pence’s accomplishments. The talk rather
is still about the destructive, unnecessary passage of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, and
Pence’s failure to prevent the damage.

I asked Pence about the lessons he learned from the RFRA debacle. “I certainly learned — again
— that I’m not perfect,” he said. “If I have a regret, I regret that we didn’t spend more time
listening before the bill got to my desk. My ambition is to be a better listener.”

He also emphasized, as he did at the height of the RFRA inferno, that in his mind the law was not
about discrimination. “I support religious freedom. I also oppose discrimination. I was raised to
do unto others, what you would have them do unto you. Those are core principles for me,” he
said. “If I had thought it was about discrimination, I would have vetoed the bill. I meant that to
my bone marrow.”

Yet, Pence acknowledged that he made a mistake by signing the bill in private, with a group of
hand‐picked, hard‐line religious conservatives standing behind him. That staging sent an
exclusionary message to the state and to the world, and it stoked flames of outrage that quickly
burned out of control.

Two days after he signed RFRA, Pence admitted that clarifying legislation was necessary. Five days
after that, state lawmakers passed the “fix,” and the governor soon signed it.

With the fix in place, the initial firestorm began to die. But there was a promise made during the
height of the crisis that could still burn the governor, and the state, if he lets it.

The RFRA clarification was introduced during an extraordinary Statehouse news conference called
by key legislative, business, academic and community leaders. In addition to revising the new law,
those leaders promised to push in the next year for the addition of sexual orientation and gender
identity to the state’s civil rights law.

The governor, however, has been largely noncommittal about that idea.

So on Wednesday, I pressed him for his position on an expansion of the civil rights law. He
repeatedly dodged direct answers to my questions on the issue — to the point that it felt like an



episode of “Dancing with the Stars.”

He did promise to listen as he travels the state, and to keep an open mind, but questioned
whether the issue is a high priority for most Hoosiers.

Bottom line: Pence is still far from a yes on whether he’s willing to embrace statewide civil rights
protections for LGBT Hoosiers. But he didn’t say no.

As Pence’s bid for re‐election unfolds in 2016 — “My intention is to get another five years out of
this gig” — his mishandling of RFRA provides Democrats with their best opportunity in 12 years to
win back the governor’s office and even raises the potential for a challenge in the Republican
primary.

During the campaign, the governor will want to talk about his record on jobs, education and other
core issues, and he’ll be able to point to significant accomplishments in several key areas.

But, as a leader who acknowledges he needs to become a better listener, Pence runs a high risk if
he’s seen as intransigent on expanding civil rights. Many voters may stop listening to him.

 

 

Stephanie Hodgin

Communications Specialist

Office of Governor Michael R. Pence

shodgin@gov.in.gov

Office: 317­234­8926
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From:  Matt Lloyd 
Sent:  Thu 5/21/2015 12:33 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: [Clip] IndyStar ­ Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA 

On Thu, May 21, 2015 at 12:21 PM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

On May 21, 2015, at 12:01 PM, Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> wrote:

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
Subject: [Clip] IndyStar ­ Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen
more about RFRA
To: "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.in.gov>, "Brooks, Kara D"
<kbrooks@gov.in.gov>, "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov>,
"Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov>, "Espich, Jeff"
<JEspich@gov.in.gov>, "Ahearn, Mark" <MAhearn@gov.in.gov>,
"Johnson, David (OSBI)" <DJohnson@gov.in.gov>, "Anderson,
Christopher M" <CAnderson@gov.in.gov>, "Crabtree, Chris"
<CCrabtree@gov.in.gov>, "Atkins, Chris" <catkins@gov.in.gov>,
"Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org>, "Keefer, Sean (GOV)"
<skeefer@gov.in.gov>, "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.in.gov>,
"Brookes, Brady" <BBrookes@gov.in.gov>, "Pavlik, Jennifer L"
<JPavlik@gov.in.gov>, "smith@sextonscreek.com"
<smith@sextonscreek.com>, "Matt Lloyd" <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com>
Cc: 

Swarens: Mike Pence says he needed to listen more about RFRA

 

Gov. Mike Pence ticked off the accomplishments. Rising student achievement.
Falling unemployment. A new, balanced budget, which includes in dollar terms
the largest single increase in school funding in the state’s history. A small but
groundbreaking investment in preschool. A responsible, innovative expansion of
Medicaid.

“There are a lot of really encouraging things happening around Indiana,” the
governor said during a meeting with the Indy Star’s publisher and a group of
editors in his Statehouse office on Wednesday.

And — let’s be fair here — encouraging things are happening in our state.

But also, let’s not be naive.

It’s clear that the challenges facing Indiana — from bolstering incomes to training
workers, from rebuilding communities to improving Hoosiers’ health — remain
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daunting.

It’s also clear, three weeks removed from a brutal legislative session, that the
conversations lingering in Indianapolis and beyond aren’t about Team Pence’s
accomplishments. The talk rather is still about the destructive, unnecessary
passage of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, and Pence’s failure to prevent
the damage.

I asked Pence about the lessons he learned from the RFRA debacle. “I certainly
learned — again — that I’m not perfect,” he said. “If I have a regret, I regret that
we didn’t spend more time listening before the bill got to my desk. My ambition is
to be a better listener.”

He also emphasized, as he did at the height of the RFRA inferno, that in his mind
the law was not about discrimination. “I support religious freedom. I also oppose
discrimination. I was raised to do unto others, what you would have them do
unto you. Those are core principles for me,” he said. “If I had thought it was about
discrimination, I would have vetoed the bill. I meant that to my bone marrow.”

Yet, Pence acknowledged that he made a mistake by signing the bill in private,
with a group of hand‐picked, hard‐line religious conservatives standing behind
him. That staging sent an exclusionary message to the state and to the world, and
it stoked flames of outrage that quickly burned out of control.

Two days after he signed RFRA, Pence admitted that clarifying legislation was
necessary. Five days after that, state lawmakers passed the “fix,” and the
governor soon signed it.

With the fix in place, the initial firestorm began to die. But there was a promise
made during the height of the crisis that could still burn the governor, and the
state, if he lets it.

The RFRA clarification was introduced during an extraordinary Statehouse news
conference called by key legislative, business, academic and community leaders.
In addition to revising the new law, those leaders promised to push in the next
year for the addition of sexual orientation and gender identity to the state’s civil
rights law.

The governor, however, has been largely noncommittal about that idea.

So on Wednesday, I pressed him for his position on an expansion of the civil rights
law. He repeatedly dodged direct answers to my questions on the issue — to the
point that it felt like an episode of “Dancing with the Stars.”



He did promise to listen as he travels the state, and to keep an open mind, but
questioned whether the issue is a high priority for most Hoosiers.

Bottom line: Pence is still far from a yes on whether he’s willing to embrace
statewide civil rights protections for LGBT Hoosiers. But he didn’t say no.

As Pence’s bid for re‐election unfolds in 2016 — “My intention is to get another
five years out of this gig” — his mishandling of RFRA provides Democrats with
their best opportunity in 12 years to win back the governor’s office and even
raises the potential for a challenge in the Republican primary.

During the campaign, the governor will want to talk about his record on jobs,
education and other core issues, and he’ll be able to point to significant
accomplishments in several key areas.

But, as a leader who acknowledges he needs to become a better listener, Pence
runs a high risk if he’s seen as intransigent on expanding civil rights. Many voters
may stop listening to him.

 

 

Stephanie Hodgin

Communications Specialist

Office of Governor Michael R. Pence

shodgin@gov.in.gov

Office: 317­234­8926
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 5/29/2015 3:47 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Chris Atkins" <catkins@gov.in.gov>, "Matt Lloyd"

<matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Homerun ! Good work guys 

http://www.indystar.com/story/money/2015/05/26/business­insider­rfra­crisis­=
led­tourism­budget­hike/27978265/

Sent from my iPhone=



































From:  Matt Lloyd 
Sent:  Wed 5/20/2015 9:52 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "MRP_home" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Josh Pitcock" <joshpitcock@gmail.com>, "Bill Smith" <smith@sextonscreek.com>, "Robert Vane"

<robertvane@mikepence.com>, "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Jindahl 

You may get question on this from Indy Star:

http://www.msnbc.com/msnbc/gov­bobby­jindal­resurrects­louisiana­religious­freedom­bill

http://www.msnbc.com/msnbc/gov-bobby-jindal-resurrects-louisiana-religious-freedom-bill




















































































From:  Zach Bauer 
Sent:  Wed 3/25/2015 3:42 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  <mpence1314@aol.com>, "Christy Denault" <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, "Chris Crabtree"

<CCrabtree@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject:  New Recording 4 
Attachments: New Recording 400001.m4a 

First min is HIV rest is RFRA

















S e n t f r o m m y i P h o n e

O n Ju n 5 , 2 0 1 5 , a t 1 1 : 5 4 A M , " D o w d , Ja c l y n (D W D )" < j d o w d @ d w d . IN . g o v > w r o t e :

Governor – Just w ant you to see this communication Isent to the Career Councilmoments ago.
Know ing you are traveling on June 15,the LG is prepared to chair the meeting in your absence.
Best w ishes,alw ays.

JPD

Fr o m :Dowd, Jaclyn (DWD)
Se n t :Friday, June 05, 2015 11:52 AM
To :Brian Burton;'Dan Waldrop';'Gary Hobbs';'J.R. Gaylor';'Joe Loughrey';'Kevin Brinegar';'Lt.
Gov. Ellspermann';'Neil Pickett';'Rep Christina Hale';'Rep Christina Hale';Sen Doug Eckerty;'Sen
Frank Mrvan';Steve Braun;'Superintendent Ritz';'Teresa Lubbers';'Tom Snyder';'Victor Smith';
Wernert, Dr. John J. (Dr.John.Wernert@fssa.in.gov)
Subje c t :Career Council Meeting - Core 40

Dear Career CouncilMembers,

As part of the June 15th Career Councilagenda,w e w illengage in a discussion w ith Superintendent
Ritzand Commissioner Lubbers on the w ork of the Core 40 subcommittee.Attached are tw o
documents that w illbe helpfulto you in preparation for that conversation.First is the current Core
40 diploma,and second are the proposed high schooldiplomas now being vetted by the Core 40

subcommittee to a broad range of stakeholders.In addition to the June 15th discussion,below is a
message from colleagues at the Department of Education w ho invite feedback via an online survey.
A more detailed agenda for the Career Councilmeeting w illbe shared next w eek.Please let me
know if you have questions in the interim.

From: Mike
Sent: Fri 6/05/201512:11 PM (GMT-04:00)
To: "Dowd,Jaclyn (DW D)" <jdowd@ dwd.IN.gov>
Cc: "Atterholt,Jim" <jatterholt@ gov.IN.gov>,"Steven JBraun" <SBraun@ dwd.IN.gov>,"Chad E

Timmerman" <CTimmerman@ gov.in.gov>
Bcc:
Subject: Re: Career Council Meeting -Core 40



Best regards,
Jackie
Jaclyn P. Dowd
Executive Director,Indiana Career Council
Chief Operating Officer for W orkforce
Department of W orkforce Development
317 | w w w .in.gov/dw d

Please distribute to your constituents.

< i m a g e 0 0 2 . j p g >

Indiana High School Diploma Survey
June 2015

As part of the Indiana Career Council,the Core 40 subcommittee w as established in 2014 per IC-20-
19-6-9 to examine the current Core 40 diploma offerings and make recommendations to the SBOE,
w hich may include:

< !- - [ i f !s u p p o r t L i s t s ] - - > · < !- - [ e n d i f ] - - > Changing course requirements for the Core 40
diploma

< !- - [ i f !s u p p o r t L i s t s ] - - > · < !- - [ e n d i f ] - - > Changing the types of diplomas offered in Indiana

< !- - [ i f !s u p p o r t L i s t s ] - - > · < !- - [ e n d i f ] - - > Analysis of need in Indiana for a CTE diploma
and/or CTE offerings

Over the past severalmonths,and through the chairmanship of both Superintendent of Public
Instruction Glenda Ritzand Commissioner of H igher Education Teresa Lubbers,a large committee
made up of stakeholders representing business and industry,higher education,school
administration,K-12 educators,specialeducators,and CTE directors has developed the follow ing
proposed draft of diploma requirements to be implemented w ith the freshman class of 2018-
2019.Please go to http://w w w .doe.in.gov/ccr/indiana-high-school-diploma-survey to review the
drafts and then take the survey that follow s.

W e appreciate your feedback!

Jenny
<image003.png>
Jenny Berry
Director,College & Career Readiness
115W est W ashington Street,South Tower Suite 600
Indianapolis,Indiana 46204
(317)233-5191 (work)
(317 (cell)
jberry@ doe.in.gov
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From:  Brooks, Kara D 
Sent:  Thu 3/26/2015 2:04 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: Statement 
Attachments: image00100001.jpg; image00200002.jpg; image00300003.png 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov>
Date: March 26, 2015 at 2:04:19 PM EDT
To: "Brooks, Kara D" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov>
Subject: Statement

Governor Pence Issues Statement Regarding the Religious Freedom Restoration Act
Pence: “This bill is not about discrimination, and if I thought it legalized discrimination in any way in

Indiana, I would have vetoed it.”
 
Indianapolis – Governor Mike Pence today issued the following statement after signing the Religious
Freedom Restoration Act (SEA 101) in a private ceremony.
 
“Today I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, because I support the freedom of religion
for every Hoosier of every faith.
 
“The Constitution of the United States and the Indiana Constitution both provide strong recognition
of the freedom of religion but today, many people of faith feel their religious liberty is under attack
by government action.
 
“One need look no further than the recent litigation concerning the Affordable Care Act. A private
business and our own University of Notre Dame had to file lawsuits challenging provisions that
required them to offer insurance coverage in violation of their religious views.
 
“Fortunately, in the 1990s Congress passed, and President Clinton signed, the Religious Freedom
Restoration Act—limiting government action that would infringe upon religion to only those that
did not substantially burden free exercise of religion absent a compelling state interest and in the
least restrictive means.
 
“Last year the Supreme Court of the United States upheld religious liberty in the Hobby Lobby case
based on the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act, but that act does not apply to individual
states or local government action. At present, nineteen states—including our neighbors in Illinois
and Kentucky—have adopted Religious Freedom Restoration statutes. And in eleven additional
states, the courts have interpreted their constitutions to provide a heightened standard for
reviewing government action.

mailto:SHodgin@gov.in.gov
mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov


 
“In order to ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under Indiana law, this year our General
Assembly joined those 30 states and the federal government to enshrine these principles in Indiana
law, and I fully support that action.
 
“This bill is not about discrimination, and if I thought it legalized discrimination in any way in
Indiana, I would have vetoed it. In fact, it does not even apply to disputes between private parties
unless government action is involved. For more than twenty years, the federal Religious Freedom
Restoration Act has never undermined our nation’s anti‐discrimination laws, and it will not in
Indiana.
 
“Indiana is rightly celebrated for the hospitality, generosity, tolerance, and values of our people,
and that will never change. Faith and religion are important values to millions of Hoosiers and with
the passage of this legislation, we ensure that Indiana will continue to be a place where we respect
freedom of religion and make certain that government action will always be subject to the highest
level of scrutiny that respects the religious beliefs of every Hoosier of every faith.”
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From: Mike [mailto:mpence1314@aol.com]
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 4:43 PM
To: Lloyd, Matthew; Triol, Shelley
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Fwd: [Govstate] Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Cleveland, Bridget" <BCleveland@gov.IN.gov>
Date: June 11, 2015 at 1:02:57 PM EDT
To: undisclosed-recipients:;
Subject: [Govstate] Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
June 11, 2015

Contact: Matt Lloyd
mlloyd@gov.in.gov

Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure
Micah Vincent Named OMB Director

Indianapolis – Governor Mike Pence recently accepted the resignation of Office of Management
and Budget Director Chris Atkins, who has served in the role since January of 2013. His resignation
is effective at close of business on June 26. Prior to this role, he served on the Governor’s
campaign, as OMB General Counsel and Policy Director for Governor Mitch Daniels, and in a variety
of other roles regarding fiscal and tax policy. His letter of resignation can be found attached.

From: Lloyd, Matthew
Sent: Thu 6/11/2015 4:53 PM (GMT-04:00)
To: "'Mike'" <mpence1314@aol.com>, "Triol, Shelley" <STriol@gov.IN.gov>
Cc: "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>
Bcc:
Subject: RE: [Govstate] Office of Management and Budget Director Announces Departure



“As Director of the Office of Management and Budget, Chris Atkins has served as a devoted
steward of taxpayer dollars,” said Governor Pence. “He is a true public servant in every way, and
his leadership and service to the people of Indiana will be greatly missed. We wish him the best as
he begins this new chapter of his life.”

Atkins will be joining Mainstreet, where he will serve as Senior Vice President for Corporate
Strategy and Analytics.

Micah Vincent, OMB General Counsel and Policy Director, will replace Atkins as OMB Director,
effective June 27. Under the Pence Administration, Vincent previously served as Commissioner of
the Indiana Department of Local Governance Finance. Prior to this role, he served as Assistant
General Counsel and Policy Director for Utilities, Energy, and Higher Education in the Office of
Governor Daniels; General Counsel for the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance;
Director of Legislative Affairs and Policy for the Indiana State Department of Agriculture; and Staff
Attorney for the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. Vincent, of Whitestown,
earned his undergraduate degree from Purdue University and his law degree from the Indiana
University Robert H. McKinney School of Law.

“Micah Vincent has a strong background in state government and the proven leadership skills
needed to take on the role of Director of Indiana’s Office of Management Budget,” said Pence. “I
am confident he will continue to serve Hoosiers well in this new position and keep the Office of
Management and Budget laser-focused on ensuring the proper use of taxpayer dollars and
maintaining Indiana’s strong fiscal reputation.”

OMB oversees the following state agencies: Department of Local Government Finance, Indiana
Finance Authority, Indiana Department of Revenue, Government Efficiency and Financial Planning,
Indiana Board of Tax Review, Indiana Public Retirement System, Indiana Office of Technology,
Office of State Based Initiatives, State Board of Accounts, and State Budget Agency.

Upon Atkins’ departure, the Indiana Finance Authority and Indiana Department of Revenue will
report to State Budget Director Brian Bailey, whose current responsibilities include working with
the legislature to develop and implement the state budget, evaluating fiscal and policy impacts of
legislative proposals, serving as fiscal forecaster and fiscal policy advisor to the Governor, and
keeping state expenditures in line with revenue collections.

###



From:  Vincent, Micah 
Sent:  Thu 6/11/2015 9:54 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  Lottery Deal Discussed in Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15 
Attachments: Aigi151700001.pdf; ATT0000100002.htm 

Governor,
 
Gaming Insight led with a good story on the new Lottery deal that we renegotiated. I’m very pleased with how
this is being portrayed here.
 
From: Taylor, Sarah 
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 7:25 PM
To: Vincent, Micah
Subject: Fwd: Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15
 
Here you go

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Ed Feigenbaum <EDF@ingrouponline.com>
Date: June 11, 2015 at 6:57:18 PM EDT
To: INGroup <info@ingrouponline.com>
Subject: Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15
Reply­To: <EDF@ingrouponline.com>

Your newsletter is attached for you to download.
Please bear in mind that this is copyrighted material, and must be treated as a normal paper
copy of the newsletter should be treated. Under federal law, this newsletter may not be
electronically forwarded, and copies may not be made unless arrangements exist with the
publisher to purchase the rights to make or forward additional copies.

Copyright infringement is a serious crime, and can have expensive
implications.

Your newsletter is attached in .pdf format. To access it, you must have Adobe Acrobat
Reader 3.0 (or higher) software, the universal program used to view documents in a .pdf
format. To download Adobe Acrobat Reader at no charge, please visit the Adobe website at
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html

mailto:EDF@ingrouponline.com
mailto:info@ingrouponline.com
mailto:EDF@ingrouponline.com
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html
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GTECH stays, but numbers shuffleLottery deal restructured as parties realize targets now unrealistic 
Hoosier Lottery officials confirm for us that they will dramatically scale backannual revenue and income targets for GTECH Indiana after the companydisclosed earlier this year that the growth trajectory laid out in the originalIntegrated Services Agreement (ISA) in 2012 is no longer attainable.
We told you in late 2014 that GTECH Indiana expected Fiscal Year 2015performance to fall short of the $320 million Bid Net Income (BNI) goal andthat as a result GTECH anticipated having to pay the Hoosier Lottery themaximum allowable shortfall penalty, which for FY 15 will total $16 million.
We’ve now learned that GTECH Indiana forecasts paying the maximumannual shortfall penalty for all 13 years remaining on the original 15-year ISA. . . and lottery officials tell us they recognize that’s an unsustainable positionfor any company to be in. 
Rather than walk away, the parties have renegotiated the numbers to reflectthe current market reality, says Lottery spokesperson Courtney Arango. Recallthat early in March we told you that some serious renegotiations would benecessary if GTECH were to continue to serve the Lottery under the long-term contract. The State Lottery Commission of Indiana was expected voteon the amendment to the ISA at its meeting on Friday, June 11, after we wentto press with this issue. The new terms would take effect beginning with FiscalYear 2016. 
“There was a disclosure from GTECH that maximum shortfall payments forthe next 13 years would not work,” explains the Lottery’s outside legalcounsel, Phil Sicuso of Bingham Greenebaum Doll LLP. “No one anticipatedwhen the contract was executed that you would have possibly 14 straight yearsof maximum shortfalls. The notion that the contractor would basically payus to work was not economically feasible.”
Other states have experienced much the same issue with sales. Illinois, whichhas been working with a GTECH consortium, has sought a break-up of thedeal, which itself has become problematic. Northstar New Jersey, anotherGTECH consortium, is early into a 15-year contract to run New JerseyLottery’s sales and marketing operations, but it missed the net income target by $55 million (- 7.3%) in its Garden State contract, triggering a potential$14.1 million penalty there, but New Jersey officials — in a surprisinglybipartisan manner — are reshaping their revenue estimates in conjunction withNorthstar to more realistic levels and forging ahead with the long-term deal.
Even our next-door neighbors in Kentucky, which handles sales andmarketing in-house, has seen its sales for the first 10 months of the fiscal yearlag estimates by $30 million — even as revenues are above the prior fiscal yearperiod. 
The Bid Net Income target for Fiscal Year 2016 was originally set above $350million and was slated to rise north of $400 million for Fiscal Year 2017.
The proposed amendment would replace the concept of a single Bid NetIncome target with two annual thresholds: a minimum net threshold bywhich the shortfall payment will be measured, and an incentive threshold. 
For more, please see the following page . . . 

Compact guidance from GAOReport details concerns; offers road map As Indiana considers the ramifications ofNative American gaming likely coming toSouth Bend, most of those involved in andaffected by the process are unaware of a newGovernment Accountability Office (GAO)report examining Indian Gaming: Regulationand Oversight by the Federal Government,States, and Tribes that has already attractedattention from key federal lawmakers andcould result in national policy changes.
The report, released June 3, notes that overthe past 25 years, Indian gaming has becomea significant source of revenue for manytribes, reaching $28 billion in gross revenuesin FY 2013, up from $3 billion in 1995. 
GAO examines: (1) the U.S. Department ofthe Interior’s review process to help ensurethat tribal-state compacts comply with theIndian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA); (2)how states and selected tribes regulate Indiangaming; (3) National Indian GamingCommission (NIGC) authority to regulateIndian gaming; and, (4) NIGC efforts toensure tribes abide by IGRA and related rules.
U.S. Sen. John McCain (R-AZ), who has longtaken the Senate lead on Native Americangaming issues, and U.S. Sen. John Barrasso(R-WY), chair of the Senate Committee onIndian Affairs, expressed  concern with someof what GAO uncovered, principally thatfederal regulators at the National IndianGaming Commission are not effectivelypromoting voluntary compliance with federalguidelines concerning the proper handling ofmoney, accuracy of financial statements, andsecurity requirements at Indian casinos.
“If NIGC continues to rely on Indian casinosto voluntarily comply with federal guidelines,then the Commission must at least improveits state and tribal training and consultationinitiatives and develop metrics that assesstheir effectiveness,” said Sen. McCain, whileSen. Barrasso added, “This new report callsfor improvements in the Commission’smethods in maintaining the integrity of thegaming system. The NIGC should find moreeffective methods that will ensure all facets ofgaming are conducted with accountabilityand accuracy.”
For more, please see p. 4 . . . 
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For FY 2016, the minimum net income threshold will be$270 million, and the incentive threshold will be $290million. The incentive column grows annually throughoutthe life of the ISA, and the minimum net income thresholdwill reach $300 million in four years in FY 2018 and growincrementally thereafter. 
The new minimum net income targets are “substantially lessthan the original Bid Net Income,” says Sicuso. “If we reach$300 million on a consistent basis they won’t pay us ashortfall.”
Under the current arrangement, for every dollar above BNI,GTECH receives a dollar bonus, subject to a 5.0% cap. Theamendment slashes incentive compensation in half bymaking GTECH eligible for only 50 cents for everyadditional dollar earned above the incentive threshold . . .with the State now eligible for the other 50 cents. 
“For them to maximize their incentive payment, they willnow have to earn twice as much as if we kept the incentivepayment at a dollar-for-dollar amount,” explains Sicuso. Thefive percent cap remains in place.
The amended agreement also requires GTECH to wire to theHoosier Lottery by July 31 a lump-sum amount of $18.25million, which will be immediately transferred to the state asif it were revenue earned on sales. The payment will bereported for accounting purposes as deferred revenue and willshow up on the ledger as $1.4 million per year over the next13 years. 
The lump-sum payment is not to be confused with the $16million shortfall penalty we referred to earlier that GTECHwill also have to pay for not meeting the FY 15 income target.
GTECH forecasts net income of $273 million in its to-be-approved FY 16 business plan, meaning the company wouldavoid a shortfall payment and would not qualify for anyincentive compensation.
GTECH has invested tens of millions of dollars in newequipment including upgraded terminals, modernized instantticket vending machines, and counter-top display cases, andhas conducted extensive player research to help drivemarketing and advertisement strategies, explains Arango. Shesays that the company generated record revenue in excess of$1 billion in the first year of the contract and will likely doso again this year. 
Sicuso says, “It didn’t go exactly as planned on Bid NetIncome, but does that mean you break it up that quickly?”Sicuso says that after only two years, “Management believesthey deserve more time to essentially use what they’ve learnedabout this market to help us continue to grow.” 
Many of the new draw games that GTECH has rolled outhave under-performed, and Powerball sales suffered across thenation from having only one mega-jackpot during this fiscalyear. 

But bread-and-butter scratch-off sales under GTECH havebeen unprecedented (and new higher price points haveproven sustainable), and Lottery officials are optimistic thatthe recently consummated merger between IGT and GTECHwill also provide substantial benefits to Indiana and thelottery industry as a whole. 
One thing there has been no talk of: expanding Lotteryofferings to include such games as Keno, and options for on-line games and ticket sales, the best way for GTECH topump up sales. As we told you in March, Governor MikePence (R) is unalterably opposed to such concepts. 
Some media reports have speculated that GTECH and IGTwill move away from the lottery business, but Sicuso suggeststhat’s all wrong. “From everything we have heard there is aneffort to do the opposite,” he says.
The amendment to the ISA will also tighten up the contracttermination provisions. Currently the Lottery can terminatethe agreement at no cost if GTECH misses Bid Net Incomeby 10% or more for two consecutive years or for three out offive years. Moving forward, the threshold will be reduced toonly five percent. Since GTECH will miss the FY 15 target bymore than 10%, if the company does not reach $256.5million in income in FY 16, the State Lottery Commissionwill have the option to terminate the contract at no cost tothe State. 
“The point is the State has the ability to quickly re-evaluatewhat it wants to do in the long term,” Sicuso notes. “2015was disappointing, and it’s on their record.” Additionally, theamendment will provide that any “underspend” in theannual management fee paid by the Lottery to GTECH mustbe returned to the State. The parties agreed to this in practicein the past years . . . but it wasn’t a requirement under thecontract.  
The Illinois Lottery has spent millions of dollars on legal feesfighting GTECH in a nasty battle that may have underminedthe lottery brand there, but what you have seen here is thatthe Hoosier Lottery and GTECH have been able to workthrough their differences amicably. Arango attributes that inpart to the co-location of GTECH and the Lottery in thesame building. “The fact that Colin sits two doors downfrom Sarah, they see each other multiple times a day. Theydon’t have that in Illinois,” Arango says, referring to theclose proximity of the offices of GTECH Indiana GeneralManager Colin Hadden and Hoosier Lottery ExecutiveDirector Sarah Taylor.
Extracting itself from the GTECH agreement andsubsequently contracting out for lottery management servicesagain was not, as we’ve explained before, a viable option. 
There is a definite paucity of qualified potential vendors, andthey would now be in a better position to understand justhow much the Lottery would have available and would bewilling to pay for assorted services, eviscerating thetraditional leverage the State might ordinarily enjoy under anew round of Request for Proposals.
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Then there is Governor’s concern over the State effectivelyrunning and pushing sales for a gambling enterprise . . . andthe concern that if the contract ended and a decision neededto be made as to how to proceed, lawmakers might choose toget involved and complicate the process. 
As we reminded you in March, the initial procurementprocess was executed by the Daniels Administration after thelegislature left town in 2012 and before the 2013 sessionbegan. The Pence Administration was presented with a faitaccompli when it entered office that January, and somelawmakers (including one key committee chair) were clearlyperturbed that they had been left out of the loop by theDaniels Administration.
Only three members of the State Lottery Commission areexpected at Friday’s meeting.

IN General
!  We had told you to expect the Governor to appoint SaraGonso Tait, the agency’s general counsel, as interim executivedirector of the Indiana Gaming Commission (fullyanticipating that the appointment would become permanentwithin a month), but the Guv surprised us by naming her tothe post on a permanent basis without the interim tag. Shesucceeds Ernie Yelton, who had told the Governor a fewmonths ago that he was retiring after more than 10 years inthe thankless post. 
  Q  Tait, who worked as director of license control and as astaff attorney for the Commission before taking over the toplegal role, was earlier a contract attorney for Lewis Wagner,LLP. Tait also currently serves as a volunteer guardian adlitem at Kids Voice. She earned her undergraduate degreefrom Miami University and her law degree from IndianaUniversity McKinney School of Law, and her father, an IceMiller LLP partner, served as  the first chief of staff to thegovernor in the Daniels Administration.
  Q  Tait becomes the first IGC chief to be promoted fromwithin, and is the first who is not a former state or federalprosecutor or former judge. 
!  So why did legislative leaders and the Legislative Councilopt against assigning gaming tax-related issues (includinglocal riverboat revenue distributions) to an interim studycommittee, as had seemed a certainty given the statementsissued by key lawmakers at assorted points in the debate overHEA 1540-2015? Writing in the Evansville Courier & Press,State House correspond Chelsea Schneider explains that“Senate President Pro Tem David Long, a Fort WayneRepublican, said lawmakers will watch to see how themeasure they passed this year impact the casinos’ bottomlines.” Schneider then quotes him saying “I think we feel likewe’ve studied that enough for once…I think people feel prettygood what we did with the industry this year, and we’recomfortable with that. Whatever we did in the bill this yearis likely to stay put for a little while.”

  Q  Local government officials and those who representthem collectively are breathing a sigh of relief that theirrevenues appear to now remain unthreatened for at leastanother budget cycle.
!  Officials in Illinois are debating whether the latestattempt to site a land-based casino in  Chicago should bepremised on the ability of such a city-owned facility toexclusively fund the Windy City’s staggering pension bills.While Chicago Mayor Rahm Emanuel (D) is pushing theconcept as a win-win proposition for taxpayers, others are abit more skeptical, noting that such an arrangement couldput the City on the hook for major construction costs; leadto a nasty clout-based battle over management rights andcosts; suck revenues and tax dollars from suburban casinosthat initially thrived (and subsequently struggled) underchanged state rubrics; divert tax revenues from state coffersas suburban casino revenues take a hit from the newcompetition; and would make the pension fundingdependent upon an uncertain funding mechanism that givesthe City major incentives to reach deeply into the pockets ofplayers with more casino-friendly policies. 
  Q  Such a facility would also, of course, have an impactupon Northwest Indiana casinos, both directly, and then asthe other Chicago-area casinos in Illinois adjust theirmarketing efforts to cope with the addition of a what wouldlikely be the largest casino in the area to an already saturatedmarket. 
!  May wasn’t exactly a bountiful month for the key gamingsources of General Fund tax revenue, as both the riverboatand racino wagering tax collections declined year-over-year bya double-digit percentage . . . the first time that’s happenedin the current fiscal year since August. 
  Q  Indiana collected $40.0 million from the riverboatwagering tax during May, lagging the revised monthlyestimate issued in mid-April by 5.3% (- $2.2 million) anddeclining from May 2014 by an even larger 13.6% (- $6.3million). May marks the ninth month of Fiscal Year 2015 inwhich dollars generated within this tax category have shrunkfrom the prior year. With only one month remaining in thefiscal year, riverboat wagering tax revenue is off from thesame 11 months in FY 2014 by 9.1% (- $29.7 million),although it running marginally (0.6%) ahead of the mostrecent April target, a $1.6 million surplus. 
  Q  Racino wagering tax collections totaled $10.0 million,underperforming the monthly estimate revised in April by8.1% (- $900,000) and shrinking from May 2014 numbers byan even more concerning 12.3% (- $1.4 million). On a fiscalyear-to-date basis, however, the category is down by a mere0.6% (- $600,000) compared to the same 11 months in FiscalYear 2014.
  Q   Riverboat admissions taxes were not posted during May,but for the fiscal year-to-date through Memorial Day, this taxcategory has brought in $11.5 million, down by $900,000(7.0%) from the July - May period in FY 2014.
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  Q  Looking ahead to the fiscal year-end wrap-up, it will bea close call on whether riverboat wagering tax revenues closeout FY 2015 down by 10% from FY 2014.
    July 2014 - May 2015 Comparison to Prior Fiscal Year-to-Date                                                                 FYTD Comparison to Monthly Targets
                                       Forecast     Actual        $ Amount   Percent
Riverboat Wagering        $ 295.6M   $ 297.2M         $ 1.6M         0.6%
Racino Wagering            $ 101.5M   $   99.8M      (- $ 1.7M)    (- 1.7%)
Riverboat Admissions     $   11.5M   $   11.5M         $ 0.0M         0.1%
 
                                                   FYTD Actual Revenue Change
                                           2014           2015         $ Amount    Percent
Riverboat Wagering        $ 326.9M    $ 297.2M      (- $ 29.7M)   (- 9.1%)
Racino Wagering            $ 100.4M    $   99.8M      (- $   0.6M)   (- 0.6%)
Riverboat Admissions     $   12.4M    $   11.5M      (- $   0.9M)   (- 7.0%)
 
*  Rounding may mean some actual change figures may not add up
!  U.S. Rep. Luke Messer (R) is one of 17 House membersrepresenting 11 different states signing a bipartisan letter forthe Internal Revenue Service rulemaking docket opposing apotential change in IRS regulations that would lower thethreshold for reporting slot win from $1,2000 to as little as$600, an issue we’ve noted for you in these pages. “Westrongly believe the IRS should not consider any reduction ofthis reporting threshold, as any lowering from $1,200 wouldhave significantly negative impacts on casino operations andcustomers,” the lawmakers, writing under the aegis of theCongressional Gaming Caucus, contend. “Any reduction inthis threshold would dramatically raise costs to comply,decrease gaming revenue due to more frequent slot machine‘lock-ups,’ and would greatly increase the burden workloadfor IRS.” His CD 06 includes three casinos and one racino. 

IN Illegal Gaming   
!  Fort Wayne Animal Care & Control was one of a handfulof entities credited by the Minneapolis  Star-Tribune as being“involved” in an investigation of “what authorities havedescribed as a massive cockfighting and breeding operation”in two western Wisconsin counties that involved some 1,200birds and “several” suspects and was broken wide open earlierthis month when the first group of individuals involved  were arrested and four different farms were raided.
  Q  The City of Fort Wayne explains that the AmericanSociety for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (ASPCA)Field Investigations & Response team deployed staff fromFort Wayne Animal Care & Control to four properties in  St.Croix, Wisconsin and Polk County in Wisconsin to assistwith the removal of the . 1,200 birds. Animal Care &Control Officer Erika Hedge and Animal Care SpecialistMelissa North volunteered their time to participate in theASPCA’s emergency response team. All expenses were paid bythe ASPCA and staff used their own available time for thedeployment.

  Q  Belinda Lewis, Animal Care & Control’s executivedirector, confirmed to the Fort Wayne Journal Gazette thatthis was the first time the Summit City’s animal control staffhad been requested to participate in a raid outside of FortWayne. “We’re very proud of the fact that (the ASPCA)recognized our training level and our responsive ability,”Lewis told the paper. “We’re really proud of these two instepping up and using their own time to assist the ASPCA.”The two staffers “were particularly suited for the task, Lewissaid, because they helped break up a cockfighting ring inFort Wayne in 2010, she said. In that raid, 42 birds wereseized.”

IN Native American Gaming 
º  Cont. from page one . . . 
Other interesting findings from the 88-page GAO reportinclude:
C  NIGC auditors reported that one-quarter of all Indian gamingoperations were a “high audit risk.”
C  NIGC has undertaken very few enforcement actions, such asissuing violation notices, since 2010.
C  Approximately 80% of all Indian gaming operations now includeclass III gaming (Las Vegas-style games).
C  NIGC’s budget, funded by fees collected from tribes, has grownfrom $3.3 million in 1995 to $19 million in 2015.
GAO recommends that the Commission: (1) obtain inputfrom states on its plans to issue guidance on class IIIminimum internal control standards; (2) review and revise,as needed, its performance measures to better assess itstraining and technical assistance efforts; and (3) developdocumented procedures and guidance to improve the use ofletters of concern. 
NIGC, an independent regulatory agency established withinthe Department of the Interior pursuant to the IndianGaming Regulatory Act of 1988, generally agreed with GAO’srecommendations. 
But there’s more food for thought in the report for Indianaas the process evolves. Indiana  is a state that allows class IIIgaming, so that type of gaming would be available to thePokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians for their proposedSouth Bend casino complex. 
The GAO investigation found that the 24 states with class IIIgaming operations vary in their approach for regulatingIndian gaming. Specifically, based on the extent andfrequency of state monitoring activities, GAO categorized 7states as having an active regulatory role, 11 states with amoderate role, and six  states with a limited role. In addition,all 12 of the selected tribes GAO visited had regulatoryagencies responsible for the day-to-day regulation of theirgaming operations.
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According to the GAO report, “The National Indian GamingCommission possesses the authority to regulate class IIgaming, but not class III gaming, by issuing and enforcinggaming standards (minimum internal control standards forgaming). The Commission does, however, play a role in classIII gaming. For example, the Commission Chair mustapprove tribal gaming ordinances. In addition, Commissionofficials told us they do have authority to issue guidance onclass III gaming standards. In its plans for developing suchguidance, the Commission has laid out specific steps forgathering tribal input, but its plan for gathering input fromaffected states is unclear. Federal internal control standardscall for managers to obtain information from externalstakeholders that may have a significant impact on the agencyachieving its goals. Along with tribes, state input could aidthe Commission in making an informed decision. Even withdifferences in its authority for class II and class III gaming,the Commission conducts monitoring activities, and theCommission Chair takes enforcement action to ensurecompliance with IGRA and applicable Commissionregulations.” 
What should be of concern to regulators in Indiana is  thisnote from GAO: “The Commission has more recentlyemphasized actions that encourage voluntary resolution ofcompliance issues, including providing training and technicalassistance and alerting tribes of potential compliance issuesusing letters of concern. However, the effectiveness of thesetwo approaches is unclear. The Commission has limitedperformance measures that assess outcomes achieved. Withsuch additional measures, the Commission would be betterpositioned to assess the effectiveness of its training andtechnical assistance. Further, the Commission does not havea documented process for its letters of concern to help ensuretheir effectiveness in encouraging tribal actions to addressidentified issues. Without written procedures the Commissioncannot ensure consistency or effectiveness of the letters itsends.”
GAO also criticizes the Commission over a lack of stateinput on how to proceed with issuing guidance for class IIIminimum internal control standards. “The Commission’splans for obtaining input from states on its proposal to issueguidance on minimum internal control standards for class IIIgaming and withdraw its 2006 regulations [regulationsestablishing minimum internal control standards for bothclass II and class III gaming updated in 2002, 2005, and 2006]is unclear. Standards for Internal Control in the FederalGovernment call for management to ensure that there areadequate means of communicating with, and obtaininginformation from, external stakeholders that may have asignificant impact on the agency achieving its goals.Commission officials told us that in the past some statesprovided written comments on updating minimum internalcontrol standards for class III gaming, but the Commissiondid not specifically outreach to the states. In its letters totribes, the Commission did not specify including states in itssolicitation of comments on its proposal to issue guidanceand withdraw its 2006 regulations.”

The GAO report offers an excellent overview of the compactprocess and its particulars. “A tribe may only conduct classIII gaming activities if such activities are conducted inconformance with a tribal-state compact, among otherrequirements. Compacts are negotiated agreements thatestablish the tribes’ and states’ regulatory roles for class IIIgaming and specify the games that are allowed, among otherthings. According to the Senate committee reportaccompanying the legislation, IGRA was intended to providea means by which tribal and state governments can realizetheir unique and individual governmental objectives. TheSenate committee report also noted that the terms of eachcompact may vary extensively and may allocate most or allof the jurisdictional responsibility to the tribe, to the state,or to any variation in between. IGRA specifies that compactsmay include provisions related to 
•  the application of criminal and civil laws and regulations of thetribe or the state that are directly related to and necessary for thelicensing and regulation of gaming,
•  the allocation of civil and criminal jurisdiction between the tribeand the state necessary to enforce those laws and regulations,
•  state assessments of gaming activities as necessary to defray thecosts of regulating Indian gaming,
•  tribal taxation of gaming activities,
•  remedies for breach of contract,
•  standards for gaming activity operations and gaming facilitymaintenance, and
•  any other subjects directly related to the operation of gamingactivities.
IGRA authorizes the Secretary to approve compacts andallows the Secretary to disapprove a compact only if itviolates IGRA, any other federal law that does not relate tojurisdiction over gaming on Indian lands, or the trustobligation of the United States to Indians. Under IGRA, theSecretary has 45 days to approve or disapprove a compactonce it receives a compact package from a state and tribe.Under IGRA, if a compact is not approved or disapprovedwithin 45 days, then it is considered to have been approved(referred to as deemed approved) to the extent it is consistentwith IGRA [No court has issued a decision considering theextent to which a deemed approved compact is consistentwith IGRA]. Compacts go into effect only when a noticefrom the Secretary has been published in the FederalRegister. Interior’s Office of Indian Gaming manages thecompact review process and also reviews and approvesrevenue allocation plans.” 
The report suggests that compacts submitted  to the feds arealmost always approved. “Of the 516 compacts and compactamendments submitted to Interior since 1998, Interiordisapproved 19. In decision letters we reviewed, the mostcommon reason for disapproving compacts was that theycontained revenue sharing provisions Interior found to beinconsistent with IGRA.”
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Instructive to the State going forward: the reasons fordisapproval, which should serve as a warning.  “For example,Interior found that the concessions offered by the state insome compacts were not proportional to the value of therevenues the state sought from the tribe. Interior disapprovedthese compacts because they did not eliminate or sufficientlyreduce the tribe’s payment to the state if the tribe’s exclusivityended or was diminished in the future. In addition, Interiorfound the revenue sharing payment to the state in somecompacts to be a tax, fee, charge, or assessment on the tribe,which is prohibited by IGRA. For example, for one compact,Interior found the state’s offer of support for the tribe’sapplication to take land into trust did not provide aquantifiable economic benefit that justified the proposed revenue sharing payments. Consequently, Interior viewed thepayment to the state as a tax or other assessment in violationof IGRA.”
And while some in Indiana have questioned the interventionof the General Assembly into the compact process underlegislation just enacted, the GAO report observes that“Compacts are generally negotiated between tribes and stateGovernors or their staffs but, in some states, state law requiresthe state legislature to approve or ratify a compact negotiatedby the Governor.”
Just what can the compacts cover? “Compacts lay out theresponsibilities of both tribes and states for regulating classIII gaming. For example, compacts may include provisionsallowing states to conduct inspections of gaming operations,certify employee licenses, review surveillance records, andimpose assessments on tribes to defray the state’s costs ofregulating Indian gaming. They may also include provisionsrequiring tribes to notify the state when they hire a newemployee or when they make changes to their gamingregulations or rules. In addition, compacts may containprovisions governing how any disputes between the state andtribe over the compact and its terms will be resolved,including provisions waiving the sovereign immunity of thestate, tribe, or both, to lawsuits seeking to resolve disputes.”
GAO identified seven states with an “active regulatory role”:Arizona, Connecticut, Kansas, Louisiana, New York, Oregon,and Wisconsin. These states “monitor gaming operations atleast weekly, with most having a daily on-site presence.” GAOfound that “states with an active regulatory role perform themajority of monitoring activities, including
• formal and informal inspection or observation of gaming  operations,
• review of financial report(s),
• review of compliance with internal control systems,
• audit of gaming operation records,
• verification of gaming machines computer functions,
• review of gaming operator’s surveillance, and
• observation of money counts.

Some states with an active regulatory role told us they alsoverify gaming operation funds to confirm payments to thestate and inspect gaming operations to ensure public healthand safety, such as reviewing building inspection records forgaming facilities. Of these states, five states assign staff atgaming operations to observe money counts, conductbackground checks, and investigate compact violations,among other things.” 
IN Riverboats
Northern Market News . . . 
!  The Indiana Tax Court denies Blue Chip Casino’spetition for a rehearing in Blue Chip Casino, LLC v. LaPorteCo. Treasurer, No. 49T10-1008-TA-00037. Almost three yearsafter the oral argument, the Tax Court in March dismissedthis appeal for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Blue Chiphad appealed the LaPorte County Treasurer’s failure torespond to its request for a refund of some $300,000 ininnkeeper’s tax monies that it paid to the Treasurer betweenJanuary 2007 and August 2009 (the period at issue) for thecomplimentary hotel rooms it provided to various membersand non-members of its Players Club program.
!  The saga continues in Jones v. Horseshoe Casino, No.2:15-cv-00014-PPS-PRC, a lawsuit filed in U.S. District Courtfor the Northern District of Indiana in which Gloria Jonesclaims she was injured at Horseshoe Casino Hammondwhen a gas cylinder component in the chair she was sittingin failed, causing the seat of the chair to abruptly descend.She sought subpoena to take control of the chair for testing,but the co-defendant chair manufacturer, Gasser ChairCompany, contends that its requests to her attorney seekinga protocol for testing of the chair, including any proposeddestructive testing, has been met with no response. The judgegrants the chair manufacturer a protective requiring allparties to consent to any destructive testing before suchtesting may be done. “The chair is a crucial piece of evidenceand destructive testing by one party could result inunfairness or unnecessary expense.” 
  Q  The chair manufacturer also asked Horseshoe for videofootage of the alleged accident as well as for leave to inspectthe chair in which the plaintiff was hurt. This case had beenstayed as to Horseshoe because its parent company iscurrently in bankruptcy, and, finding that the request lacked“any legal authority for the propriety of this request,”Magistrate Judge Paul R. Cherry denies the manufacturer’smotion to lift the stay. 
!   UNITE HERE, the union for workers in gaming, hotels,and food service industries that represents more than 900workers at four Northwest Indiana casino properties (200workers at Ameristar Casino East Chicago, 300 at MajesticStar Casino I and Majestic Star Casino II, and 450 at BlueChip Casino), launches a new website which it says isintended to serve as a resource for customers of NorthwestIndiana casinos who want to check whether labor disputescould affect their entertainment plans. 
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  Q  The union website, www.indianagamingalert.org, will beregularly updated with what it says will be “informationabout actual and potential labor disputes affecting NWIndiana casinos and the status of contract negotiations.”Visitors to the site may sign up for email updates, “as well asfind strategies to protect their event or travel plans from thepossibility of being impacted by labor disputes.”
  Q  The site is currently presenting the union local’s side ofits dispute with Ameristar over health care insurance plans,a rift which has caused UNITE HERE Local 1 to call for alabor boycott of the East Chicago property.
!  The Majestic Star Casino, LLC announced the expirationand final results of its previously announced invitation to theholders of its 12.5%/14.5% Senior Notes due 2016 to becomelenders in a new 12.5%/14.5% First Lien Secured Term LoanFacility, and the related solicitation of consents from theholders of the notes to the adoption of proposedamendments to the indenture and the intercreditor and liensubordination agreement relating to the notes. The expirationcame May 28, before which Majestic received valid deliveriesof approximately $109.2 million in aggregate principalamount of the notes, representing commitments in the newterm loan for the same aggregate principal amount. On May29, Majestic accepted all the notes and entered into the newterm loan. Holders of notes that participated in the invitationreceived accrued and unpaid interest on the notes up to, butnot including, the closing date, in cash. After giving effect tothe cancellation of the notes accepted in the invitation,approximately $1.9 million in aggregate principal amount ofthe notes remain outstanding.
  Q  Holders of notes who made commitments to becomelenders in the new term loan also consented to the proposedamendments which among other things, eliminated most ofthe restrictive covenants and certain events of defaultcontained in the indenture, released all of the liens on thecollateral securing the notes under the indenture, andincreased the amount of permitted obligations set forth inthe intercreditor agreement. 
Southern Market News . . . 
!  The Indiana Tax Court issued an 11-page opinion inPinnacle Entertainment, Inc. v. Indiana Dep’t of StateRevenue, No. 49T10-1206-TA-34. We’ve told you before aboutthis matter, in which Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.,  which atthe time claimed only Belterra Casino Resort among itsIndiana holdings, appealed the Department of Revenue’sassessments of Indiana adjusted gross income tax for the 2006and 2007 tax years. The matter, which was before SeniorJudge Tom Fisher on cross-motions for partial summaryjudgment, presents two issues for the court to decide: (1)  Whether an apportioned sum of the gain generated by Pinnacle’s1999 sale of Hollywood Park, Inc., a California racetrack and cardclub, to Churchill Downs, Inc. for $140 million in cash isattributable to Indiana under I.C. § 6-3-2-2.2; and if so, 
(2)  Whether the Department correctly classified Pinnacle’s gain asbusiness income. 

  Q  In 2000, Pinnacle filed an Indiana adjusted gross incometax return classifying the gain derived from the track sale asnonbusiness income. Revenue, after an audit, reclassifiedPinnacle’s gain as business income, recalculated net operatinglosses, and assessed Pinnacle with additional adjusted grossincome tax, interest, and penalties for the 2006 and 2007 taxyears. The Tax Court takes a deep dive into the characteristicsof the particular sales transaction, sides with the Departmentof Revenue on the sale being attributable to Indiana, andgrants summary judgment in favor of the Department onthis issue. However, Judge Fisher determines that there areissues of genuine material fact as to whether the Departmentcorrectly classified Pinnacle’s gain as business income, anddenies summary judgment to either party on theclassification question and orders the parties to file a jointcase management plan with proposed order by early August.
!  Seeking Alpha takes a deep dive into the financial futureof Full House Resorts, Inc., parent company of Rising Star
C Casino Resort, and is more bullish about the overallcompany’s prospects than its underperforming Indianacomponent. The analysis finds that Rising Star — “thecompany’s most difficult property” — “has likely beencrippled by live dealer expansion in Indianapolis; it’s notclear how the company can or should proceed.” With livedealers for table games potentially being allowed in early2021, the company faces what top exec Dan Lee called a“Catch-22” in his legislative testimony against live dealers.“The addition of live dealers at the racinos — which are nearIndianapolis — would seemingly preclude the need forgamblers in the area to leave the city for blackjack, roulette,etc. With expansion in Ohio — across the river from RisingSun — now complete, and two competitive casinos on eitherside of the property, Rising Star doesn't have a base to drawon. The addition of live dealers in Indianapolis could,without exaggeration, be the death knell for Rising Star. Yet,the expansion to table gaming won’t come for over five years.[Full House] would like to try and turn the property around,but making any significant capital expenditures is unwise ifthe payoff from the investment will dry up in 4-5 years.”
  Q  Seeking Alpha observes that “revenue is declining - down16% year-over-year, per the 10-Q — and it’s not clear whatFull House can do to stop it. The end of expansion in Ohioshould stabilize the situation, but stabilization at breakevendoesn’t add much value to shares. The company is trying toadvertise hotel specials (after visiting the hotel’s website a fewweeks ago, I’ve seen numerous cookie-based ads of late,advertising a $39 room special) that will get customers in thedoor. Promotional spending for more local customers isanother possibility. But any substantial capital investmentmakes little sense if returns from those investments will dryup in 2021. It does appear that Full House can walk awayfrom the lease on the property, which was agreed to by asubsidiary but not guaranteed by the parent. But a sale seemsoutright impossible (at least for more than $1), and thebest-case scenario here appears to be wringing out a fewmillion in EBITDA over the next few years. OnceIndianapolis has full table games at its racinos, Rising Starwill be literally surrounded.”
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IN Casinos . . . 
!  When the Casino Association of Indiana consciouslydecided in 2002 to upgrade its operations, particularly on thelobbying side, it enlisted Mike Smith, a newly re-electedRepublican state representative from Rensselaer who had justserved as his party’s floor leader. The genial Smith quicklyhelped cement the symbiotic relationship between the Stateof Indiana and its casino industry, build the “three-leggedstool” necessary for passage of key gaming legislation over thepast dozen+ years, and forge a strong working relationshipbetween all elements of the gaming industry whileassimilating the casino gaming industry into the Hoosiermainstream and making the collective industry a partner inpublic affairs programming and problem gambling solutions. 
  Q  After almost 13 years on the job, Smith is stepping down,but will work with the eight properties who are Associationmembers in recruiting his replacement as president and CEO.  
!  Here are your May casino numbers:
CASINO               ADMITS.   TABLE WIN      SLOT WIN     TOTAL WIN 
Ameristar 222,872 $   4,883,819 $ 16,440,873  $ 21,324,692
Belterra 101,555 $   1,537,735 $   8,942,702  $ 10,480,437
Blue Chip 209,110 $   1,662,693 $ 12,454,366  $ 14,117,059
French Lick   76,204 $      874,462 $   5,972,788  $   6,847,250
Hollywood 130,982 $   2,332,898 $ 13,426,760  $ 15,759,658
Hoosier Park      N/A          N/A $ 18,888,349  $ 18,888,349
Horseshoe HD 334,972 $ 10,579,667 $ 27,628,256  $ 38,207,923
Horseshoe SI 167,740 $   5,536,335 $ 17,455,869  $ 22,992,204
Indiana Grand      N/A         N/A $ 21,662,111  $ 21,662,111
Majestic Star I   83,076 $   1,930,062 $   6,283,015  $   8,213,077
Majestic Star II   83,076 $      166,660 $   6,216,213  $   6,382,873
Rising Star   62,125 $      393,284 $   3,786,447  $   4,179,731
Tropicana   97,277 $   1,399,963 $   8,977,457  $ 10,377,420
Statewide           1,568,989   $ 31,297,578   $168,135,206 $199,432,784
          ADMISSIONS     TABLE WIN        SLOT WIN         TOTAL WIN
(  1)   Horseshoe HD Horseshoe HD  Horseshoe HD Horseshoe HD
(  2)   Ameristar Horseshoe SI  Indiana Grand Horseshoe SI
(  3)   Blue Chip Ameristar  Hoosier Park Indiana Grand
(  4)   Horseshoe SI Hollywood  Horseshoe SI Ameristar
(  5)   Hollywood Majestic Star I  Ameristar Hoosier Park
(  6)   Belterra Blue Chip  Hollywood Hollywood
(  7)   Tropicana Belterra  Blue Chip Blue Chip
(  8)   Majestic Star I Tropicana  Tropicana Belterra
(  9)   Majestic Star II French Lick  Belterra Tropicana
(10)   French Lick Rising Star  Majestic Star I Majestic Star I
(11)   Rising Star Majestic Star II  Majestic Star II French Lick
(12)       N/A       N/A  French Lick Majestic Star II
(13)       N/A       N/A  Rising Star Rising Star

 WIN, month-over-month change
CASINO                       TOTAL WIN                        ADMISSIONS        
Rising Star   11.32%   $      424,915         3.11%         1,874
Belterra   10.62%   $   1,006,504       10.97%       10,037
Horseshoe SI   10.07%   $   2,103,366         9.46%       14,499
Hoosier Park     9.39%   $   1,620,859          N/A          N/A
Tropicana     9.19%   $      873,333       13.73%       11,746
Ameristar     6.80%   $   1,358,480         5.56%       11,729
Majestic Star II     6.56%   $      393,041         2.66%         2,155
French Lick     5.84%   $      377,513       10.10%         6,988
Horseshoe HD     5.67%   $   2,050,823         6.68%       20,979
Blue Chip     5.37%   $      719,236         6.39%       12,567
Indiana Grand     3.27%   $      686,540          N/A          N/A
Majestic Star I     1.31%   $      105,889         2.66%         2,155
Hollywood -   0.03%  ($         4,580)         2.63%         3,359
Statewide     6.24%   $ 11,715,919         6.67%       98,088

WIN, year-over-year change
CASINO                         TOTAL WIN                        ADMISSIONS       
French Lick   11.91%      $    728,956          9.91%            6,871
Belterra     8.48%      $    819,385          2.04%            2,031
Ameristar     6.47%      $ 1,296,730          2.76%            5,992
Majestic Star II     6.12%      $    368,176      - 15.30%        - 15,009
Hoosier Park     1.71%      $    316,958           N/A             N/A
Blue Chip     1.50%      $    208,098          3.55%            7,173
Tropicana     1.16%      $    118,975          1.00%               962
Horseshoe SI  -  0.28%     ($     64,706)      -   2.93%        -   5,061
Indiana Grand  -  0.87%     ($   189,362)           N/A             N/A
Horseshoe HD  -  2.10%     ($   818,219)      -   5.56%        - 19,707
Majestic Star I  -  4.57%     ($   393,057)       - 15.30%        - 15,009
Hollywood  -  6.63%     ($ 1,119,762)       -   7.46%        - 10,566
Rising Star  -  8.29%     ($   377,876)      -   6.83%        -   4,551
Statewide     0.45%      $   894,296      -   2.90%        - 46,874
WIN, year-to-date
CASINO                2015                  2014          DIFFERENCE       %    
Horseshoe HD  $ 186,020,042  $ 186,879,005  ($    858,963)  -   0.46%
Indiana Grand  $ 105,240,925  $ 101,664,045   $ 3,576,880       3.52%
Horseshoe SI  $ 102,978,098  $ 108,715,799  ($ 5,737,701)  -   5.28%
Ameristar  $   97,600,422  $   93,074,472   $ 4,525,950       4.86%
Hoosier Park  $   86,898,467  $   86,754,974   $    143,493       0.17%
Hollywood  $   76,758,777  $   86,174,521  ($ 9,415,744)  - 10.93%
Blue Chip  $   65,223,502  $   63,152,645   $ 2,070,857       3.28%
Tropicana  $   49,180,166  $   50,046,072  ($    865,906)  -   1.73%
Belterra  $   48,054,751  $   46,771,792   $ 1,282,959       2.74%
Majestic Star I  $   39,739,154  $   42,123,372  ($ 2,384,218)  -   5.66%
French Lick  $   31,613,203  $   28,957,587   $ 2,655,616       9.17%
Majestic Star II  $   29,458,182  $   28,801,807   $    656,375       2.28%
Rising Star  $   19,959,373  $   22,400,927  ($ 2,441,554)  - 10.90%
Statewide  $ 938,725,062  $ 945,517,018  ($ 6,791,956)  -  0.72%
ADMISSIONS, year-to-date
CASINO                  2015               2014         DIFFERENCE            %     
Horseshoe HD   1,622,337  1,697,131 ( 74,794) -   4.41%
Ameristar   1,049,110     985,550   63,560     6.45%
Blue Chip      944,008     904,966   39,042     4.31%
Horseshoe SI      787,979     872,706 ( 84,727) -   9.71%
Hollywood      652,782     731,500 ( 78,718) - 10.76%
Tropicana      465,617     468,889 (   3,272) -   0.70%
Belterra      463,462     470,910 (   7,448) -   1.58%
Majestic Star I      398,998     441,548 ( 42,550) -   9.64%
Majestic Star II      398,998     441,548 ( 42,550) -   9.64%
French Lick      341,731     312,149   29,582     9.48%
Rising Star      296,214     316,732 ( 20,518) -   6.48%
Statewide   7,421,236  7,643,629         (222,393) -   2.91%
WIN PER ADMISSION
CASINO               05/2015 05/2014        04/2015
Horseshoe SI      $ 137   $ 133 $ 136
Hollywood      $ 120   $ 119 $ 124
Horseshoe HD      $ 114   $ 110 $ 115
Tropicana      $ 107   $ 107 $ 111
Belterra      $ 103   $   97 $ 104
Majestic Star I      $   99   $   88 $ 100
Ameristar      $   96   $   92 $   95
French Lick      $   90   $   88 $   93
Majestic Star II      $   77   $   61 $   74
Blue Chip      $   68   $   69 $   68
Rising Star      $   67   $   68 $   62
Statewide      $ 101   $   98 $ 102
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WIN PER SLOT PER DAY 
CASINO    05/2015   05/2014        04/2015
Horseshoe SI     $ 338    $ 349 $ 336
Indiana Grand     $ 338    $ 350 $ 340
Hoosier Park     $ 319    $ 311 $ 299
Tropicana     $ 318    $ 318 $ 299
Horseshoe HD     $ 313    $ 299 $ 314
Ameristar     $ 302    $ 296 $ 304 
Belterra     $ 241    $ 231 $ 229
Majestic Star I     $ 228    $ 247 $ 230
Majestic Star II     $ 238    $ 229 $ 231
Blue Chip     $ 224    $ 207 $ 224
Hollywood     $ 211    $ 221 $ 212
French Lick     $ 193    $ 179 $ 189
Rising Star     $ 125    $ 112 $ 119
Statewide     $ 272    $ 267 $ 269
  
WIN PER TABLE PER DAY
CASINO    05/2015   05/2014          04/2015
Ameristar   $ 2,219   $ 1,912 $ 1,842
Horseshoe HD   $ 2,094   $ 2,405 $ 1,904
Horseshoe SI   $ 1,768   $ 1,585 $ 1,356
Majestic Star I   $ 1,175   $ 1,210 $ 1,224
Tropicana   $ 1,129   $ 1,182 $ 1,112
Belterra   $ 1,102   $    701 $ 1,123
Blue Chip   $ 1,031   $ 1,023 $    837
Hollywood   $ 1,003   $    685 $ 1,104
French Lick   $    762   $    571 $    746
Rising Star   $    437   $    472 $    381
Majestic Star II   $    207   $    279 $    212
Statewide   $ 1,459   $ 1,369 $ 1,316
 
WIN, past six months ($ in millions)
CASINO            05/2015  04/2015  03/2015  02/2015 01/2014   12/2015
Horseshoe HD  $ 38.21   $ 36.16   $ 41.50   $ 36.03   $ 34.13   $ 35.81
Horseshoe SI  $ 22.99   $ 20.89   $ 17.26   $ 20.52   $ 21.33   $ 21.54
Indiana Grand  $ 21.66   $ 20.98   $ 22.54   $ 21.04   $ 19.02   $ 20.09
Ameristar  $ 21.32   $ 19.97   $ 20.19   $ 18.53   $ 17.60   $ 18.72
Hoosier Park  $ 18.89   $ 17.27   $ 18.81   $ 16.39   $ 15.54   $ 16.14
Hollywood  $ 15.76   $ 15.77   $ 16.12   $ 14.34   $ 14.78   $ 15.86
Blue Chip  $ 14.12   $ 13.40   $ 14.47   $ 11.51   $ 11.73   $ 13.08
Belterra  $ 10.48   $   9.47   $   9.71   $   8.52   $   9.87   $   8.99
Tropicana  $ 10.38   $   9.50   $ 10.02   $   9.62   $   9.66   $ 10.05 
Majestic Star I  $   8.21   $   8.11   $   8.56   $   7.63   $   7.23   $   7.17
French Lick  $   6.85   $   6.47   $   6.81   $   5.37   $   6.12   $   6.32
Majestic Star II  $   6.38   $   5.99   $   6.14   $   5.65   $   5.30   $   5.42
Rising Star  $   4.18   $   3.75   $   4.33   $   3.56   $   4.13   $   3.79 
Statewide  $199.43  $187.72  $196.45  $178.71  $176.42  $183.00
 
WIN, same month past years ($ in millions)
CASINO            05/2015 05/2014   05/2013  05/2012  05/2011  05/2010
Horseshoe HD  $ 38.21    $ 39.03   $ 41.32  $ 41.60   $ 46.25  $ 50.75
Horseshoe SI  $ 22.99    $ 23.06   $ 25.86  $ 23.56   $ 23.67  $ 25.20
Indiana Grand  $ 21.66    $ 21.85   $ 20.53  $ 20.03   $ 20.68  $ 20.18
Ameristar  $ 21.32    $ 20.03   $ 19.35  $ 18.78   $ 20.48  $ 22.19
Hoosier Park  $ 18.89    $ 18.57   $ 21.27  $ 17.92   $ 18.86  $ 19.07
Hollywood  $ 15.76    $ 16.88   $ 23.06  $ 34.20   $ 36.19  $ 38.98
Blue Chip  $ 14.12    $ 13.91   $ 15.16  $ 14.82   $ 14.67  $ 15.42
Tropicana  $ 10.38    $ 10.26   $ 11.69  $ 10.01   $ 10.94  $ 10.12
Belterra  $ 10.48    $   9.66   $ 12.90  $ 12.72   $ 10.97  $ 12.75
Majestic Star I  $   8.21    $   8.61   $ 10.86  $   9.62   $   9.79  $ 10.50
French Lick  $   6.85    $   6.12   $   8.24  $   7.13   $   7.54  $   7.36
Majestic Star II  $   6.38    $   6.01   $   9.45  $   7.89   $   8.45  $   9.48
Rising Star  $   4.18    $   4.56   $   7.23  $   7.60   $   8.15  $   8.50
Statewide           $199.43   $198.54  $226.93  $225.88  $236.65  $250.49

WIN, month-over-month change
CASINO 05/2015      04/2015     03/2015      02/2015     01/2015
Rising Star  11.32%     - 13.31%      21.57%    - 13.75%        8.91%
Belterra  10.62%     -   2.48%      14.03%    - 13.66%        9.79%
Horseshoe SI  10.07%       21.05%    - 15.89%    -   3.79%     -  1.00%
Hoosier Park    9.39%     -   8.20%      14.74%        5.50%     -  3.71%
Tropicana    9.19%     -   5.11%        4.08%    -   0.39%     -  3.92%
Ameristar    6.80%     -   1.09%        8.96%        5.30%     -  6.02%
Majestic Star II    6.56%     -   2.39%        8.60%        6.64%     -  2.28%
French Lick    5.84%     -   4.99%      26.84%    - 12.24%     -  3.21%
Horseshoe HD    5.67%     -  12.88%     15.19%        5.57%     -  4.70%
Blue Chip    5.37%     -   7.43%      25.74%     -  1.83%    - 10.37%
Indiana Grand    3.27%     -   6.93%        7.11%      10.61%     -  5.33%
Majestic Star I    1.31%     -   5.32%      12.28%        5.46%        0.79%
Hollywood -  0.03%     -   2.18%      12.36%    -   2.93%     -  6.86%
Statewide             6.24%     -   4.45%        9.93%        1.30%     -  3.60%

WIN, year-over-year change
CASINO  05/2015     05/2014      05/2013      05/2012      05/2011
French Lick   11.91%     - 14.97%     -   7.21%       3.51%    -   8.66%
Belterra     8.48%     -   7.11%     - 18.23%    -  3.14%        3.99%
Ameristar     6.47%         3.49%     -   1.37%    -  6.54%    - 11.68%
Majestic Star II     6.12%     - 19.91%     - 11.98%    -  3.42%    -   6.21%
Hoosier Park     1.71%     -   2.39%         4.75%    -  6.65%    -   8.06%
Blue Chip     1.50%         3.39%     - 14.58%       1.56%    -   8.52%
Tropicana     1.16%     -   1.34%     -   3.04%       2.84%    -   9.90%
Horseshoe SI  -  0.28%     -   6.28%     -   0.85%    -  0.06%    -   1.45%
Indiana Grand  -  0.87%         6.44%         2.52%    -  4.17%    -   4.87%
Horseshoe HD  -   2.10%    -   5.54%     -   5.14%    -  0.54%    -   9.46%
Majestic Star I  -  4.57%     -   2.87%     - 13.10%    -  1.74%    -   6.85%
Hollywood  -  6.63%     - 26.80%     - 38.28%    -  4.68%    -   6.84%
Rising Star  -  8.29%     - 26.65%     - 22.52%    -  1.82%    - 11.69%
Statewide     0.45%     -   6.31%     - 10.43%    -  2.44%    -   7.07%

SLOT WIN % vs. TABLE WIN %, past four months
CASINO                05/2015          04/2015         03/2015         02/2015   
Majestic Star II   97.4/02.6%    97.2/02.8%    96.8/03.2%    87.7/12.3%
Rising Star   90.6/09.4%    91.2/08.8%    90.7/09.3%    88.1/11.9%
Blue Chip   88.2/11.8%    90.3/09.7%    89.5/14.2%    89.4/10.6%
French Lick   87.2/12.8%    87.2/12.8%    85.3/14.7%    84.8/15.2%
Tropicana   86.5/13.5%    86.0/14.0%    86.2/13.8%    86.6/13.4%
Belterra   85.3/14.7%    87.6/12.4%    91.8/08.2%    87.0/12.3%
Hollywood   85.2/14.8%    84.2/15.8%    85.8/14.2%    87.7/12.3%
Ameristar   77.1/22.9%    80.4/19.6%    86.4/13.6%    83.5/16.5%
Majestic Star I   76.5/23.5%    76.0/24.0%    75.3/24.7%    77.9/22.1%
Horseshoe SI   75.9/24.1%    80.3/19.7%    78.4/21.6%    77.6/22.4%
Horseshoe HD   72.3/27.7%    74.2/25.8%    69.1/30.9%    72.2/27.8%
Statewide   84.3/15.7%    85.7/14.3%    85.2/14.8%    85.4/14.6%
ADMISSIONS, past five months
CASINO         05/2015      04/2015       03/2015     02/2015     01/2015
Horseshoe HD  334,972      313,993      360,642      303,958     308,772
Ameristar  222,872      211,143      226,775      194,211     194,109
Blue Chip  209,110      196,543      203,131      167,521     167,703
Horseshoe SI  167,740      153,241      132,260      159,844     174,894
Hollywood  130,982      127,623      138,535      128,227     127,415
\Belterra  101,555        91,518      101,454        82,555       86,380
Tropicana    97,277        85,531        95,837        90,407       96,565
Majestic Star I    83,076        80,921        82,963        75,618       76,420
Majestic Star II    83,076        80,921        82,963        75,618       76,420
French Lick    76,204        69,216        72,703        58,421       65,187
Rising Star    62,125        60,251        63,609        53,648       56,581
Statewide        1,568,989   1,470,901   1,560,872   1,390,028   1,430,446
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ADMISSIONS, same month past years
CASINO               05/2015     05/2014     05/2013      05/2012     05/2011
Horseshoe HD    334,972     354,679    377,523     487,725     476,413 
Ameristar    222,872     216,880    217,004     226,915     234,023 
Blue Chip    209,110     201,937    199,940     202,526     204,654 
Horseshoe SI    167,740     172,801    182,908     191,476     184,989 
Hollywood    130,982     141,548    187,841     274,610     307,292 
Belterra    101,555       99,524    115,114     137,687     143,284 
Tropicana      97,277       96,315      94,677     100,773     108,904 
Majestic Star I      83,076       98,085    114,708     122,977     125,205 
Majestic Star II      83,076       98,085    114,708     122,997     125,205 
French Lick      76,204       69,333      79,046       81,125       84,299 
Rising Star      62,125       66,676      74,668     104,337     104,583 
Statewide          1,568,989  1,615,863  1,758,137   2,053,148   2,098,851
INDIANA vs. ILLINOIS WIN ($ in millions)
STATE     05/2015    04/2015    03/2015    02/2015    01/2015    12/2014
Indiana $ 199.43   $ 187.72   $ 196.45   $ 178.71   $ 176.42   $ 183.00
Illinois $ 130.37   $ 126.52   $ 129.86   $ 109.72   $ 115.49   $ 121.84
IL VGTs $   77.85   $   76.50   $   77.65   $   68.49   $   65.44   $   66.81
Spread $   69.06   $   61.20   $   66.59   $   68.99   $   60.93   $   61.16
STATEWIDE MARKET SHARE
CASINO            05/2015   04/2015  03/2015  02/2015   01/2015  12/2014
Horseshoe HD  19.16%   19.26%   21.13%   20.16%   19.34%   19.57%
Horseshoe SI  11.53%   11.13%    8.78%    11.48%   12.09%   11.77%
Indiana Grand  10.86%   11.17%   11.47%   11.77%   10.78%   10.98%
Ameristar  10.69%   10.64%   10.28%   10.37%    9.97%    10.23%
Hoosier Park    9.47%     9.20%    9.58%     9.17%     8.81%     8.82% 
Hollywood    7.90%     8.40%    8.20%     8.03%     8.38%     8.67%
Blue Chip    7.08%     7.14%    7.37%     6.44%     6.65%     7.15% 
Belterra    5.26%     5.05%    4.94%     4.77%     5.59%     4.91%
Tropicana    5.20%     5.06%    5.10%     5.38%     5.48%     5.49% 
Majestic Star I    4.12%     4.32%    4.36%     4.27%     4.10%     3.92%
French Lick    3.43%     3.45%    3.47%     3.00%     3.47%     3.45% 
Majestic Star II    3.20%     3.19%    3.12%     3.16%     3.00%     2.96%
Rising Star    2.10%     2.00%    2.20%     1.99%     2.34%     2.07% 
REGIONAL WIN ($ in millions)
  $             05/2015     04/2015    03/2015   02/2015    01/2015    12/2014
North         $ 88.25      $ 83.62     $ 90.86    $ 79.34     $ 75.98     $ 80.21
South        $ 70.64      $ 65.86     $ 64.24    $ 61.93     $ 65.88     $ 66.56
Racino      $ 40.55      $ 38.24     $ 41.35    $ 37.43     $ 34.56     $ 36.23
%             05/2015    04/2015   03/2015    02/2015    01/2015    12/2014
North        44.25%     44.54%    46.25%    44.40%     43.07%     43.83% 
South       35.42%     35.08%    32.70%    34.66%     37.34%     36.37% 
Racino     20.33%     20.37%    21.05%    20.95%     19.59%     19.80%
REGIONAL MARKET SHARE
NORTH            05/2015   04/2015  03/2015  02/2015   01/2015   12/2014
Horseshoe HD 43.30%   43.24%   45.68%   45.41%   44.92%    44.65%
Ameristar 24.17%   23.88%   22.22%   23.35%   23.16%    23.34%
Blue Chip 16.00%   16.02%   15.93%   14.51%   15.43%    16.31%
Majestic Star I   9.31%     9.70%     9.42%     9.61%     9.52%      8.94%
Majestic Star II   7.23%     7.16%     6.75%     7.12%     6.97%      6.76%
NORTH             05/2015  05/2014  05/2013   05/2012  05/2011  05/2010
Horseshoe HD 43.30%   44.56% 42.98% 44.87%   46.42%   46.84%
Ameristar 24.17%   22.87% 20.13% 20.26%   20.55%   20.48%
Blue Chip 16.00%   15.88% 15.77% 15.98%   14.73%   14.23%
Majestic Star I   9.31%     9.83% 11.30% 10.38%     9.83%     9.69%
Majestic Star II   7.23%     6.87%   9.83%   8.51%     8.48%     9.08%

SOUTH              05/2015   04/2015   03/2015   02/2015   01/2015  12/2014
Horseshoe SI 32.55%   31.72%    26.86%   33.13%   32.37%   32.36%
Hollywood 22.31%   23.94%    25.09%   23.16%   22.43%   23.83%
Belterra 14.84%   14.39%    15.12%   13.76%   14.98%   13.50%
Tropicana 14.69%   14.43%    15.59%   15.54%   14.66%   15.11%
French Lick   9.69%      9.82%   10.60%     8.67%     9.29%     9.50%
Rising Star   5.92%      5.70%     6.74%     5.75%     6.27%     5.70%
SOUTH             05/2015  05/2014  05/2013   05/2012  05/2011  05/2010
Horseshoe SI 32.55%   32.69%   29.06%   24.74%   24.29%   24.49%
Hollywood 22.31%   23.93%   25.91%   35.92%   37.13%   37.88%
Belterra 14.84%   13.70%   14.50%   13.36%   11.26%   12.39%
Tropicana 14.69%   14.54%   13.14%   10.51%   11.22%     9.84%
French Lick   9.69%     8.67%     9.26%     7.49%     7.74%     7.15%
Rising Star   5.92%     6.46%     8.13%     7.98%     8.36%     8.26%
CORPORATE MARKET SHARE ($ in millions)
   $                     05/2015  04/2015  03/2015  02/2015  01/2015  12/2014
Caesars  $ 61.20   $ 57.05   $ 58.76   $ 56.54   $ 55.45   $ 57.35 
Centaur  $ 40.55   $ 38.24   $ 41.35   $ 37.44   $ 34.56   $ 36.23
Pinnacle  $ 31.81   $ 29.44   $ 29.90   $ 27.05   $ 27.46   $ 27.71
Majestic Star  $ 14.60   $ 14.10   $ 14.70   $ 13.28   $ 12.53   $ 12.60
   %                   05/2015  04/2015  03/2015  02/2015  01/2015   12/2014
Caesars 30.69%   30.39%   29.91%   31.64%   31.43%   31.34%
Centaur 20.33%   20.37%   21.05%   20.95%   19.60%   19.80%
Pinnacle 15.95%   15.68%   15.22%   15.13%   15.57%   15.14%
Majestic Star   7.32%     7.51%     7.48%     7.43%     7.10%     6.88%
SLOT PAYBACK PERCENTAGE, past six months
CASINO           05/2015  04/2015  03/2015  02/2015  01/2015  12/2014
Blue Chip 91.88%   91.28%   91.37%   91.48%   91.35%   91.21%
Rising Star 91.66%   92.44%   91.55%   92.12%   92.09%   92.24%
Hoosier Park 91.65%   91.81%   91.87%   91.81%   91.80%   91.56%
Indiana Grand 91.50%   91.53%   91.28%   91.24%   91.46%   91.48%
French Lick 91.27%   91.00%   91.53%   91.70%   91.32%   91.07%
Belterra 91.05%   90.80%   90.50%   90.50%   90.48%   91.09%
Hollywood 90.73%   90.60%   90.40%   90.45%   90.95%   90.64%
Ameristar 90.43%   90.45%   90.16%   90.31%   90.21%   90.38%
Majestic Star I 90.33%   90.35%   90.48%   90.24%   90.38%   90.17%
Tropicana 90.27%   89.96%   90.37%   90.08%   90.59%   90.17%
Horseshoe SI 90.26%   89.66%   90.04%   89.43%   89.88%   90.12% 
Horseshoe HD 89.74%   89.60%   89.53%   89.42%   90.52%   89.74% 
Majestic Star II 89.67%   89.75%   89.88%   89.73%   90.00%   89.76% 
Statewide 90.82%   90.69%   90.68%   90.58%   90.86%   90.71%
COIN-IN, past five months ($ in millions)
CASINO   05/2015     04/2015    03/2015    02/2015    01/2015
Horseshoe HD   $ 269.36    $ 258.23    $ 273.90    $ 245.90    $ 249.32
Indiana Grand   $ 254.85    $ 247.60    $ 258.43    $ 240.34    $ 222.83
Hoosier Park   $ 226.27    $ 210.88    $ 231.30    $ 200.21    $ 189.59
Horseshoe SI   $ 179.29    $ 162.22    $ 135.79    $ 150.51    $ 165.74
Ameristar   $ 171.85    $ 168.07    $ 177.23    $ 159.64    $ 149.88
Blue Chip   $ 153.29    $ 138.69    $ 150.00    $ 120.79    $ 119.60
Hollywood   $ 144.79    $ 141.30    $ 144.00    $ 131.66    $ 135.52
Belterra   $   99.92    $   90.20    $   93.87    $   77.97    $   84.57
Tropicana   $   92.25    $   81.39    $   89.68    $   83.97    $   86.55
French Lick   $   68.39    $   62.66    $   68.58    $   54.86    $   58.41
Majestic Star I   $   64.96    $   63.81    $   67.72    $   60.86    $   55.87
Majestic Star II   $   60.18    $   56.80    $   58.72    $   53.16    $   51.35
Rising Star   $   45.40    $   45.28    $   46.51    $   39.82    $   42.74
Statewide   $ 1.831B   $ 1.727B    $ 1.796B   $ 1.620B    $ 1.612B
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COIN-IN, same month past years ($ in millions)
CASINO  05/2015    05/2014     05/2013    05/2012     05/2011
Horseshoe HD  $ 269.36    $ 277.59     $ 295.77    $ 301.70     $ 348.88
Indiana Grand  $ 254.85    $ 246.87     $ 226.87    $ 233.22     $ 250.23
Hoosier Park  $ 226.27    $ 220.49     $ 231.41    $ 233.39     $ 235.89
Horseshoe SI  $ 179.29    $ 182.45     $ 197.06    $ 207.65     $ 195.48
Ameristar  $ 171.85    $ 174.67     $ 179.24    $ 172.84     $ 180.69
Hollywood  $ 144.79    $ 165.18     $ 213.45    $ 311.72     $ 352.00
Blue Chip  $ 153.29    $ 144.46     $ 150.26    $ 160.80     $ 155.48
Belterra  $   99.92    $   92.09     $ 109.85    $ 126.10     $ 128.26
Tropicana  $   92.25    $   89.31     $   89.57    $   85.95     $   97.53
Majestic Star I  $   64.96    $   70.82     $   71.93    $   75.97     $   78.55
French Lick  $   68.39    $   62.56     $   75.90    $   71.28     $   73.29
Majestic Star II  $   60.18    $   59.49     $   70.78    $   76.32     $   83.42
Rising Star  $   45.40    $   50.89     $   68.14    $   81.50     $   84.98
Statewide  $ 1.830B   $ 1.837B     $ 1.980B    $ 2.138B    $ 2.265B
 
SLOT & TABLE WIN, month-over-month change
CASINO          SLOT WIN                                TABLE WIN        
Rising Star 10.60% $    362,974   18.69%  $      61,941 
Tropicana   9.89% $    807,720     4.92%  $      65,613 
Hoosier Park   9.39% $ 1,620,859     N/A         N/A
Belterra   7.81% $    647,481   30.46%  $    359,023 
Majestic Star II   6.73% $    391,892     0.69%  $        1,149 
French Lick   5.87% $    331,306     5.58%  $      46,207 
Horseshoe SI   4.03% $    675,428   34.76%  $ 1,427,938 
Indiana Grand   3.27% $    686,540     N/A         N/A
Blue Chip   2.99% $    361,557   27.41%  $    357,679 
Horseshoe HD   2.92% $    783,794   13.61%  $ 1,267,029 
Ameristar   2.48% $    397,098   24.51%  $    961,382 
Majestic Star I   1.99% $    122,542 -   0.86% ($      16,653)
Hollywood   1.10% $    146,011 -   6.06% ($    150,591)
Statewide   4.56% $ 7,335,202   16.27%  $ 4,380,717 
 
SLOT & TABLE WIN, year-over-year change
CASINO                          SLOT WIN                           TABLE WIN          
French Lick     9.32%  $    509,317   33.54%  $    219,639 
Majestic Star II     7.36%  $    426,134 - 25.80% ($      57,958)
Belterra     3.26%  $    281,974   53.72%  $    537,411 
Tropicana     2.11%  $    185,159 -   4.51% ($      66,184)
Hoosier Park     1.71%  $    316,958     N/A       N/A
Blue Chip     1.06%  $    130,392     4.90%  $      77,706 
Horseshoe HD     0.57%  $    156,414 -   8.44% ($    974,633)
Indiana Grand -   0.87% ($    189,362)     N/A       N/A
Horseshoe SI -   3.00% ($    540,179)     9.40%  $    475,473 
Ameristar -   3.99% ($    683,399)   68.19%  $ 1,980,129 
Majestic Star I -   7.68% ($    522,842)     7.21%  $    129,785 
Rising Star -   8.07% ($    332,475) - 10.35% ($      45,401)
Hollywood - 10.30% ($ 1,542,451)   22.13%  $    422,689 
Statewide -  1.06% ($ 1,804,360)     9.44%  $ 2,698,656 
TABLE HOLD, past six months
CASINO            05/2015  04/2015  03/2015   02/2015  01/2015  12/2014
Majestic Star II 99.41%  101.45% 101.67%   80.99%   58.43%   63.03%
Horseshoe SI 26.00%    23.45%   26.52%   27.87%   25.22%   28.09%
Horseshoe HD 24.34%    22.14%   27.72%   25.83%   24.89%   21.03%
Blue Chip 22.64%    17.25%   21.15%   18.87%   22.15%   17.65%
Hollywood 22.39%    24.43%   21.44%   18.75%   26.45%   28.19% 
Tropicana 22.38%    22.47%   20.65%   21.40%   25.15%   25.88%
Majestic Star I 21.01%    21.30%   21.01%   19.74%   23.26%   15.71%
Ameristar 20.77%    17.74%   12.75%   18.14%   17.13%   17.68%
Belterra 20.02%    20.38%   13.31%   23.09%   28.88%   19.54%
French Lick 15.63%    18.39%   18.57%   18.25%   21.76%   16.93%
Rising Star 14.01%    12.51%   13.68%   17.99%   26.54%   18.18%
Statewide 22.72%    21.10%   22.14%   22.87%   23.93%   21.63%

TABLE DROP  vs. TABLE HOLD
CASINO TABLE DROP                         TABLE HOLD         
Horseshoe HD $   43,470,140 $ 10,579,667    24.34%
Ameristar $   23,514,386 $   4,883,819    20.77%
Horseshoe SI $   21,292,979 $   5,536,335    26.00%
Hollywood $   10,419,599 $   2,332,898    22.39%
Majestic Star I $     9,185,824 $   1,930,062    21.01%
Belterra $     7,679,239 $   1,537,735    20.02%
Blue Chip $     7,345,125 $   1,662,693    22.64%
Tropicana $     6,254,042 $   1,399,963    22.38%
French Lick $     5,594,026 $      874,462    15.63%
Rising Star $     2,808,099 $      393,284    14.01%
Majestic Star II $        167,656 $      166,660    99.41%
Statewide $ 137,731,115 $ 31,297,578    22.72%

SLOT MACHINES, past six months
CASINO            05/2015   04/2015   03/2015  02/2015  01/2015  12/2014
Horseshoe HD   2,851       2,851       2,851      2,855      2,859      2,859
Indiana Grand   2,066       2,058       2,058      2,014      1,986      1,994
Hollywood   2,054       2,087       2,130      2,185      2,215      2,223
Hoosier Park   1,913       1,923       1,923      1,925      1,928      1,929
Blue Chip   1,795       1,799       1,808      1,808      1,819      1,819
Ameristar   1,759       1,759       1,749      1,747      1,748      1,768
Horseshoe SI   1,667       1,667       1,668      1,661      1,661      1,661
Belterra   1,195       1,206       1,207      1,207      1,207      1,210
French Lick      996          996          998         990         985      1,000
Rising Star      981          961          961         943         939         921
Tropicana      910          910          910         907         889         889
Majestic Star I      890          893          879         890         889         891
Majestic Star II      843          842          827         823         823         814
Statewide          19,920     19,952     19,969     19,955    19,948   19,978

TABLE GAMES, past six months
CASINO               05/15  04/15 03/15     02/15 01/15     12/14
Horseshoe HD     163        163         163        163          163        163
Horseshoe SI     101        101         101        101          101        101
Hollywood       75          75           75          76            76         90
Ameristar       71          71           71          71            70         68
Majestic Star I       53          53           52          51            50         50
Blue Chip       52          52           52          52            52         52
Belterra       45          35           39          45            45         45
Tropicana       40          40           40          40            40         40
French Lick       37          37           37          37            37         37
Rising Star       29          29           29          29            28         28
Majestic Star II       26          26           27          26            26         26
Statewide               692        682         686        691          688       700

WIN, past 12 months
                            Statewide             % Change          Actual Change
                                 Win                 Previous Yr.          Previous Yr.  
06/14                 $ 179,731,956         -   8.57%              ($ 16,837,314)
07/14                 $ 187,513,864         - 10.10%              ($ 21,074,886)
08/14 $ 199,545,478 -   4.66%             ($   9,763,386)
09/14 $ 174,254,906 -   8.85%             ($ 16,922,284)
10/14 $ 184,730,051 -   4.51%             ($   8,716,555)
11/14 $ 178,352,105 -   7.27%             ($ 13,987,118)
12/14 $ 182,998,838     3.00%              $   5,333,093 
01/15 $ 176,415,115   13.63%              $ 21,154,388
02/15 $ 178,709,837 -   3.73%             ($   6,928,332)
03/15 $ 196,450,461 -   7.32%             ($ 15,514,944)
04/15 $ 187,716,865 -   3.30%             ($   6,397,364)
05/15 $ 199,432,784     0.45%               $      894,296 
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WIN, same month past year
                             Statewide            % Change          Actual Change
                                  Win                Previous Yr.          Previous Yr.  
05/02 $ 170,363,078   12.88%  $ 19,433,559 
05/03 $ 192,295,445   12.87%  $ 21,932,367 
05/04 $ 201,798,423     4.94%  $   9,502,978 
05/05 $ 206,189,444     2.18%  $   4,391,021 
05/06 $ 209,280,381     1.50%  $   3,090,937 
05/07 $ 220,906,583     5.56%  $ 11,626,202 
05/08 $ 222,525,225     0.73%  $   1,618,642 
05/09 $ 251,613,385   13.07%  $ 29,088,160 
05/10 $ 250,489,223 -   0.45% ($   1,124,162)
04/11 $ 239,042,511     0.84%  $   1,980,053 
05/11 $ 236,645,752 -   5.53% ($ 13,843,471)
05/12 $ 225,884,407 -   4.55% ($ 10,761,345)
05/13 $ 202,335,139 - 10.43% ($ 23,549,268)
05/14 $ 198,538,488 -   6.31% ($ 13,378,960)
05/15 $ 199,432,784     0.45%  $      894,296 

May State Summary
Indiana’s 13 gaming properties brought in May revenue of$199.43 million, a year-over-year improvement of 0.45%($894,296). The marginal gain can likely be chalked up to thefact that the calendar was more favorable in May 2015 thanMay 2014, with 15 weekend days in May 2015 vs. 14 in May2014 (the only month with five full weekends during 2015).The state has failed to top $200 million in revenues in anymonth since March 2014, the longest such streak since thestate first cracked the $200 million barrier in August 2003,with one fewer casino and neither of the two racinos. 
This is the highest monthly win since August (the last timethe calendar offered the 15-weekend day phenomenon), andrepresents the first year-over-year gain since January. Theimprovement ends a slide of five consecutive years in whichwin had progressively declined on a May-to-May basis, datingback to the last May increase seen from 2008 to 2009. Win isthe second-lowest for any May over the past 10 years. Still, wenow have posted two months with year-over-year gains to dateduring 2015, the first time we have seen this occur since 2012. 
The casinos welcomed the fewest May patrons in state historyas only 1,568,989 passed through the turnstiles, ayear-over-year decline of 2.90% (- 46,874 visitors). This was,however, the highest monthly headcount since August.Admissions have now declined on a May-to-May basis inevery year since 2010, and looking at the entire year-to-datethrough Memorial Day, industry folks are beginning to getconcerned about their inability to drive up attendance. 
All three regions posted improvement in win. The five LakeMichigan riverboats accounted for revenues of $88.25million, up marginally from last year by 0.76% ($661,728),but this still marked the first May-to-May growth for thenorthern tier since 2009 and the recession. The six SouthernIndiana casinos added up May win of $70.64 million, also upby only a tad, gaining 0.15% ($104,972) compared to lastyear. This becomes the first May-to-May gain for the southerncasinos since 2010. 

The two Central Indiana racinos posted May win of $40.55million, rising by 0.32% ($127,596), making this the thirdconsecutive May-to-May growth for the slots at the tracks. 
Win per admission of $101.26 is the highest ever for themonth of May. For the first time since March-April 2008(which you will recognize as being close to the onset of therecession), win per admission has topped $100 inback-to-back months. 
The 10 Illinois casinos generated May receipts of $130.4million, which is the highest take for the Land of Lincolnsince March 2014. Win improved from May 2014 by 0.55%($710,083), which you’ll notice is a rate almost identical tothat achieved here . . . but when you add in the record$77,848,306.44 in May win from the 20,349 video gamingterminals in 4,888 establishments, Illinois shows a moresubstantial year-over-year gain, and surpasses Indiana in totalgaming revenue by $8.79  million. 
Some of the casinos in Iowa and Missouri that are competingagainst the VGTs in Illinois (and the massive coin-in, topping$970 million in May, about one-half of Indiana;’s statewideslot handle) are designing projects which they see as clearlydifferentiating their respective casino products from VGTs,and offer patrons a materially better experience. 
The top casino gainer in Illinois by far was Harrah’sMetropolis, which continues to benefit from its new land-based platform (and gives hope to market-mate TropicanaEvansville that going land-based will prove to be a game-changer).
The four Ohio land-based casinos collected May win of$71.05 million, down by less than one percent from $71.18million in May 2014. Horseshoe Casino Cincinnati recordedMay revenue of $16.71 million, down from almost $17.17million in May 2014 (a reduction of 2.7%), but  up by about$809,000 from April and performing well enough to lead thebroader Cincinnati market. 
While numbers were  off slightly for the four casinos,revenue generated by the Buckeye State’s seven racinos addedup to $73.6 million, more than the cash from the casinosand up by almost one-third (32.2%) from May 2014, whenonly five racinos were in business.
Interestingly, the downtown Cincinnati Horseshoe propertyhas failed to post a year-over-year gain in any month yet thisyear . . . despite the fact that its promotional play spend hasgrown by some $3.72 million (37.1%) over the same periodin 2014, with the free play spend increasing in each monthof 2015 compared to the same month one year earlier. Thefree play amount claimed by the Cincinnati casino in May2015 was $2.52 million. 
All told, four corporate owners account for almost three-quarters (74.29%) of all May revenues. 
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The two Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.-owned riverboats,Ameristar Casino East Chicago and Belterra Casino Resortare on a roll, as they combine for $31.8 million in win, thehighest take for parent company since April 2013. The twoboats own a 15.95% state market share, which is thesecond-largest slice of the state pie ever claimed by thecompany (Pinnacle’s Belterra Park racino near Cincinnatialso outperformed that market during May as well). The twoCentral Indiana racinos owned by Centaur Gaming captureda 20.33% share of the state market, representing the fourthmonth in a row above the 20% threshold, the first time thathas ever happened for them. The two Horseshoe-brandedboats owned by Caesars Entertainment Corporationcombined for $61.2 million in May win, a 10-year May low.The twin Majestic Star Casino riverboats in Gary claim 7.32%of the state market, down from 10.20% in May 2007. 
Indiana gamblers parted with May coin-in of $1.830 billion,the largest volume of slot play since August. But the slothandle is also down by $6 million from May 2014,representing the sixth consecutive May-to-May decline in slotplay. Indiana’s slots paid back at a rate of 90.82%, which isthe highest payback percentage offered to patrons sinceJanuary. Slot win fell to $168.14 million, a reduction fromthe prior year of 1.06% (- $1.80 million), representing thesixth consecutive May-to-May decline in slot win, although itconstitutes the highest slot win since August. 
Indiana relied on slot machines for 84.31% of overall win,the lowest reliance on slots as a percentage of total win forMay since 2007. The 13 properties offered 19,920 slots forplay, the fewest in any month since the racinos opened inMay 2008, and the 11 casinos were home to 692 tables, thehighest inventory since December. 
Players wagered $137.7 million at the tables during May,which is the highest monthly table drop for the state sinceMarch 2014. The casinos posted a table hold rate of 22.72%,which is a new state record high for the month of May. Tablewin tallied to $31.3 million, rising from last year by 9.44%($2.70 million), and representing the first month since April2013 during which table win has topped $30 million. Thiswas the highest May table win the casinos have enjoyed since2011. Win per table per day of $1,459 is the highest in anymonth since April 2013.  

Hoosier Lottery
!  The new Fast Play game family is now available from theHoosier Lottery, a new series of games that allow the feel andinstant gratification of scratch-off games in a draw gamecontext. The games are  dispensed by instant terminals, butplay slips are not used. 
  Q  The Lottery debuts the concept with four different FastPlay games, including: $1 Fast Cash with a top prize of $500;$1 Red Hot Numbers with a top prize of $1,000; $2 Slots ofFun with a $5,000 top prize; and $5 Bling Bling Bucks witha maximum payout of $25,000. 

  Q  Two new Fast Play games are targeted to join the four-game lineup beginning August 2: Piggy Bank Bucks (win upto $500) and 10X The Cash (win up to $5,000).  
  Q  We told you back in March to expect this new genre as the Lottery seeks to afford players a better perception of adifferentiation of games, trying to position each game as itsown “experience” of sorts, and looking to appeal to playerswithin specific demographic categories with individualgames. 
  Q   Many jurisdictions already offer Fast Play, and, as we’ve explained, some markets offer an ever-changing number ofFast Play configurations and themes (each with its own pricepoint, odds, rules, and prizes), while other markets offer aversion of Fast Play that includes a progressive jackpot thatgrows over time and as more people play. 
  Q  GTECH Indiana originally forecasted sales of $1 millionfrom this concept in just the first three weeks of sales beforethe current fiscal year closes on June 30. 
!    The MegaMillions jackpot was hit for $260 million witha ticket in Illinois on June 2, with that game surpassing $200million for the third time in the past 12 months. A $188.9million Powerball jackpot was hit the next day. 
  Q  The Hoosier Lotto jackpot of $18.7 million for Saturday,June 13 was the fifth-largest domestic jackpot, and theseventh-largest available in the world. Among state lotteries,only California and New York offered larger bottom linewinning opportunities. 
  Q  The jackpot had been bumped up by the usual $200,000from Saturday, June 6 to Wednesday, June 10, but thenLottery officials decided Wednesday to take the unusual stepof pumping it up by another $300,000. The jackpot then roseby the customary $300,000 for June 13 (the usual progressionof $200,000 and $300,000 increments was interrupted by a$900,000 boost when the annuity could be funded). Thisjackpot run began October 25, 2014. This is the largesthomegrown Hoosier Lotto jackpot available since the $28million won more than one year ago — on May 10, 2014. 
!  Stop the presses! Buck’s Market in New Albany isdisplaced from its top rung on the Hoosier Lottery retailerladder after 12 consecutive months leading the state. SilverExpress in Indianapolis moves into the top spot in May,maintaining their positions as the top two Hoosier Lotteryretailers since December. Behind them, Grand FoodJunction in Fort Wayne which jumped from fifth to third inApril, remained there in May. K & D Marathon inHammond remains in fifth place for a second consecutivemonth and the third time in four months after placing thirdfrom November through January, where it ranked in May2014 as well. Lassus Handy Dandy 46 in Fort Wayne hit theTop 10 for the first time in April, placing ninth in its onlyappearance on the charts, but is bounced off by the re-entryof Lightning Food Mart in New Albany and the first-timepresence of MCR Short Stop in Portage. The Hen in CrownPoint also leaves the list after six consecutive months.
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  Q  As in April, the six leading lottery retailers each hailfrom different communities, remaining down from seven inJanuary - March. Seven of the Top 10 on the overall list areagain from different communities after eight were representedin February and March. Indianapolis leads with a trio; NewAlbany is back up to a pair, and Fort Wayne drops to oneafter having three as recently as in February.  
Top 10 Hoosier Lottery Retailers - May 2015 Sales Rank    May
15 14                               April   Mar.  Feb.   Jan.  Dec.   Nov. 1  (2)  Silver Express              2       2        2       2       2        4           - Indianapolis 2  (1)   Buck’s Market             1       1       1       1       1        1           - New Albany 3  (9)  Grand Food Junction   3       5       6       6       7        6           - Fort Wayne 4  (—)  Friendly Market           4       3       3       4       5        2           - Speedway 5  (3)  K & D Marathon         5       4       5       3       3        3           - Hammond 6  (4)  Lucky Stop                 6       6       4       5       4        5           - Michigan City 7  (—)  Marsh Supermkt. 83     7       8       9       8       –      10           - Indianapolis 8 (10) Safeway Foods #14       8       9       –       –      –      –           - Indianapolis 9  (5)  Lightning Food Mart   –      –      –        9      10       –           - New Albany10 (—)  MCR Short Stop          –      –      –       –       –       –            - Portage

Horse Racing & Racinos
!  Indiana Grand Racing & Casino celebrated its seventhanniversary on Wednesday, June 10, offering players several7-themed promotions.
!  The Indiana Horse Racing Commission inks a newcontract for Fiscal Year 2016 that will pay Katz & Korin PCof Indianapolis up to $75,000 for the services of formerHamilton County judge Buddy Pylitt as an administrativelaw judge for the Commission. Pylitt, who will be paid $175per hour, has served as an ALJ for the Indiana GamingCommission as well. 
!   More than $200,000 ($201,078) was raised  Saturday, May30 at the second annual “Jockeys & Jeans” event at IndianaGrand Racing & Casino. The money was raised for thePermanently Disabled Jockeys Fund (PDJF) throughsponsorships, ticket sales, donations, and a live and silentauction that featured more than 100 items. This was by farthe largest single day fundraiser in the history of PDJF.
  Q  The evening’s high bid was $30,000 by Indiana Grandand Centaur Gaming executive Jim Brown, who bought acolorful painting of jockeys Chris McCarron, Laffit Pincay,Jr., and Steve Cauthen by noted sports artist Bill Lopa. 

!  Hoosier Park Racing & Casino reprises its “Hour of Play Free Lunch Buffet” promotion Mondays through Fridays forClub Centaur members earning a minimum of 50 same-daypoints during the aurifying hour of play to be eligible. 
  Q  The buffet at Centaur Gaming’s other property, IndianaGrand Racing & Casino, is being renovated so mmanagement is offering patrons of that food service optiona 15% discount while construction continues. Jim Brown,who oversees the property for Centaur, tells the ShelbyvilleNews that “We are going to turn the deli into a sidewalk caféand we are changing the buffet area, especially where peoplecome in, and that is under construction.” 
!  The Power Plant Entertainment Casino Resorts Indianav. Mangano, No. 24C11001014, the litigation in whichformer Indianapolis Downs, LLC chief exec Ross J.Mangano of South Bend was accused of improperlyundercutting a Cordish Companies casino referendumelection in Maryland (involving some of the aspects of theoriginal business relationship between Mangano and Cordishover the Indiana Live! Casino) is apparently still alive in theCircuit Court for Baltimore City in Maryland. We had toldyou recently that a Notice of Contemplated Dismissal forLack of Prosecution had been filed, and there had been aflurry of correspondence to the court from attorneys on bothsides of the case. 
  Q   Although the Baltimore attorneys involved have optednot to respond to our requests for information on the statusof the case, earlier this month and Order of Court wasentered deferring any such dismissal until November 25,2015 . . . and just last week there was a docket entry entitled“Notice of Service of Discovery Material,” so the matter hasapparently been revived.
  Q   Because, however, Mangano passed away on April 13 inin Rancho Mirage, California, we’re not sure whether theaction survives his death.
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 6/12/2015 11:23 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: [Govstate] Indy Star: Study: Indiana has a light bite in business taxes 

Why are you sending clips around?

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 12, 2015, at 10:22 AM, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

http://www.indystar.com/story/money/2015/06/11/study‐indiana‐light‐touch‐business‐
taxes/71086836/
 
Study: Indiana has a light bite in business taxes
Only six states have lighter business tax burden than Indiana
 
 Jeff Swiatek, jeff.swiatek@indystar.com6:51 a.m. EDT June 12, 2015
 
 
Its economic growth might be lagging much of the nation, but at least Indiana can boast of low
business taxes.
 
A day after new data showed Indiana's economy grew at a feeble 0.4 percent rate last year, a new
study spotlights the Hoosier state for having the seventh lowest tax burden for businesses.
 
The report by Anderson Economic Group shows businesses in Indiana paid just 7.5 percent of their
pre‐tax gross operating surplus in state and local taxes in 2013. Only six other states (none in the
Midwest) levy a lighter tax burden on business.
 
Indiana's relatively favorable business tax climate has long been a selling point for Indiana
governors when they shop the state to companies.
 
In fact, this week, Gov. Mike Pence's business development team ran an ad in the Wall Street
Journal trying to lure Connecticut businesses to Indiana.
 
Indiana pledged in the full‐page ad to "offer our support in the wake of Connecticut's looming tax
increase, because friends don't let friends pay higher taxes."
 
The ad specifically mentions two big companies, General Electric and Aetna, that publicly said
they'd consider leaving Connecticut if the tax increases included in a two‐year, $40.3 billion
Democratic budget become law.
 
The only states with a lighter business tax burden than Indiana were Oregon, Louisiana, North
Carolina, Utah, Delaware and South Dakota. The business tax burden is heaviest in Alaska and North
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Dakota (because of large tax revenues paid by oil and gas industries) and West Virginia and Maine.
 
Connecticut ranked 26th, with a business tax burden of 9.1 percent.
 
Indiana Secretary of Commerce Victor Smith said Thursday's news that a Louisville wine and spirits
company will spend $12 million to buy and expand a wood mill in Spencer to make bourbon barrel
staves is a sign that Indiana's low taxes are a real incentive for business expansion.
 
"Indiana's recognition as the best state in the Midwest for business is more significant than a title,"
Smith said in a statement. "Brown‐Forman's expansion across state lines is evidence that our efforts
to lower taxes and reduce regulations are producing tangible results, attracting new investments
and new companies to the Hoosier State."
 
Pence spokeswoman Bridget Cleveland said the favorable business tax ranking is partly behind
Indiana's recovering economy since the recession of 2007‐09.
 
"With employers committing to Indiana in record numbers in 2014, a growing labor force, and
historic levels of employment on the horizon, it is clear that our economic policies are working for
Hoosier businesses and families alike."
 
Indiana Democratic Party spokesman Drew Anderson said the state's low business taxes haven't
managed to revive what he termed Indiana's "sluggish" economy.
 
"Indiana's economy still hasn't grown at an accelerated rate nor has it provided high wage jobs for
the struggling middle class. Simply put, the state's economy is not reaching the 'historic' levels
Governor Pence touts to the public. Instead ... Hoosier families are falling behind the rest of the
nation."
 
Call Star reporter Jeff Swiatek at (317)444‐6483. Follow him on Twitter: @JeffSwiatek.
 
 
Matt Lloyd
Deputy Chief of Staff, Communications and Strategy
Governor Mike Pence
317‐864‐0884 (cell)
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 6/12/2015 1:07 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: [Govstate] Indy Star: Study: Indiana has a light bite in business taxes 

Got it
Thanks 

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 12, 2015, at 11:35 AM, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

I'm sending them to other media and stakeholders to help drive narrative

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 12, 2015, at 11:24 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

Why are you sending clips around?

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 12, 2015, at 10:22 AM, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov>
wrote:

http://www.indystar.com/story/money/2015/06/11/study‐
indiana‐light‐touch‐business‐taxes/71086836/
 
Study: Indiana has a light bite in business taxes
Only six states have lighter business tax burden than Indiana
 
 Jeff Swiatek, jeff.swiatek@indystar.com6:51 a.m. EDT June 12, 2015
 
 
Its economic growth might be lagging much of the nation, but at least
Indiana can boast of low business taxes.
 
A day after new data showed Indiana's economy grew at a feeble 0.4
percent rate last year, a new study spotlights the Hoosier state for having
the seventh lowest tax burden for businesses.
 
The report by Anderson Economic Group shows businesses in Indiana
paid just 7.5 percent of their pre‐tax gross operating surplus in state and
local taxes in 2013. Only six other states (none in the Midwest) levy a

mailto:MLloyd@gov.IN.gov
mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
mailto:MLloyd@gov.IN.gov
http://www.indystar.com/story/money/2015/06/11/study-indiana-light-touch-business-taxes/71086836/
mailto:%C2%A0Jeff%20Swiatek
mailto:jeff.swiatek@indystar.com
http://www.andersoneconomicgroup.com/Portals/0/AEG%20Tax%20Burden%20Study_2015.pdf


lighter tax burden on business.
 
Indiana's relatively favorable business tax climate has long been a selling
point for Indiana governors when they shop the state to companies.
 
In fact, this week, Gov. Mike Pence's business development team ran an
ad in the Wall Street Journal trying to lure Connecticut businesses to
Indiana.
 
Indiana pledged in the full‐page ad to "offer our support in the wake of
Connecticut's looming tax increase, because friends don't let friends pay
higher taxes."
 
The ad specifically mentions two big companies, General Electric and
Aetna, that publicly said they'd consider leaving Connecticut if the tax
increases included in a two‐year, $40.3 billion Democratic budget
become law.
 
The only states with a lighter business tax burden than Indiana were
Oregon, Louisiana, North Carolina, Utah, Delaware and South Dakota.
The business tax burden is heaviest in Alaska and North Dakota (because
of large tax revenues paid by oil and gas industries) and West Virginia
and Maine.
 
Connecticut ranked 26th, with a business tax burden of 9.1 percent.
 
Indiana Secretary of Commerce Victor Smith said Thursday's news that a
Louisville wine and spirits company will spend $12 million to buy and
expand a wood mill in Spencer to make bourbon barrel staves is a sign
that Indiana's low taxes are a real incentive for business expansion.
 
"Indiana's recognition as the best state in the Midwest for business is
more significant than a title," Smith said in a statement. "Brown‐
Forman's expansion across state lines is evidence that our efforts to
lower taxes and reduce regulations are producing tangible results,
attracting new investments and new companies to the Hoosier State."
 
Pence spokeswoman Bridget Cleveland said the favorable business tax
ranking is partly behind Indiana's recovering economy since the
recession of 2007‐09.
 
"With employers committing to Indiana in record numbers in 2014, a
growing labor force, and historic levels of employment on the horizon, it
is clear that our economic policies are working for Hoosier businesses
and families alike."
 
Indiana Democratic Party spokesman Drew Anderson said the state's low
business taxes haven't managed to revive what he termed Indiana's
"sluggish" economy.
 



"Indiana's economy still hasn't grown at an accelerated rate nor has it
provided high wage jobs for the struggling middle class. Simply put, the
state's economy is not reaching the 'historic' levels Governor Pence touts
to the public. Instead ... Hoosier families are falling behind the rest of the
nation."
 
Call Star reporter Jeff Swiatek at (317)444‐6483. Follow him on Twitter:
@JeffSwiatek.
 
 
Matt Lloyd
Deputy Chief of Staff, Communications and Strategy
Governor Mike Pence
317‐864‐0884 (cell)
 

_______________________________________________
Govstate mailing list
Govstate@lists.in.gov
http://lists.in.gov/mailman/listinfo/govstate
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From:  Brooks, Kara D 
Sent:  Mon 3/30/2015 2:22 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Ahearn, Mark" <MAhearn@gov.IN.gov>, "Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org>, "Mike"

<mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Fwd: WSJ, please confirm op­ed edits 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Bachelder, Kate" <Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com>
Date: March 30, 2015 at 2:11:12 PM EDT
To: "CDenault@gov.IN.gov" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov>
Cc: "kbrooks@gov.in.gov" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov>
Subject: WSJ, please confirm op­ed edits

Edited text below, with questions noted in caps. Please mark all suggested changes in bold or using
track changes, so I can be sure we’re working with the same copy.
 
We’ll need to be ready by about 3:30 PM EST. Please let me know when you’ve received my note;
I’m happy to be of any assistance.
 
Thanks so much,
Kate
 
 
Last week I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, known as RFRA, which ensures that
Indiana law will respect religious freedom and apply the highest level of scrutiny to any state or
local governmental action that infringes on people’s religious liberty. Unfortunately, the law has
stirred a controversy and in recent days has been grossly misconstrued as a “license to
discriminate.”
 
I want to make clear to Hoosiers and every American that despite what critics and many in the
national media have asserted, the law is not a “license to discriminate,” either in Indiana or
elsewhere. In fact, the Religious Freedom Restoration Act reflects federal law, as well as law in 30
states nationwide. Indiana’s legislation is about affording citizens full protection under Indiana law.
 
I abhor discrimination. I believe in the Golden Rule that you should “do unto others as you would
have them do unto you.” If I saw a restaurant owner refuse to serve a gay couple, I wouldn’t eat
there anymore. As governor of Indiana, if I were presented a bill that legalized discrimination
against any person or group, I would not sign it. Indiana’s new law contains no reference to sexual
orientation. It simply mirrors the judicial‐review standards that President Bill Clinton signed in 1993
and now prevail in a majority of the states. PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT “JUDICIAL‐REVIEW STANDARDS”
MEANS.

mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com
mailto:CDenault@gov.IN.gov
mailto:CDenault@gov.IN.gov
mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov
mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov


 
As Prof. Daniel O. Conkle of Indiana University’s Maurer School of Law, a supporter of gay rights,
including same‐sex marriage, wrote last week in the Indianapolis Star, “The proposed Indiana RFRA
would provide valuable guidance to Indiana courts, directing them to balance religious freedom
against competing interests under the same legal standard that applies throughout most of the
land. It is anything but a ‘license to discriminate,’ and it should not be mischaracterized or dismissed
on that basis.
 
Many people have asked why this is necessary. After all, the U.S. Constitution and the Indiana
Constitution both provide strong recognition of freedom of religion. But RFRA is in many ways
overdue in Indiana.
 
In 1990 the U.S. Supreme Court issued a ruling in WHAT CASE?? that reduced the level of scrutiny
courts could apply when someone thought the government acted in a way that infringed on that
person’s religious liberty. CHANGED FROM WHAT TO WHAT? WHAT COURTS ALLOWED TO DO THAT
THEY WEREN’T AFTER THE DECISION? In response, Congress passed and President Clinton signed
the Religious Freedom Restoration Act in 1993. This law limits federal government action LIKE
WHAT? AN EXAMPLE that would infringe upon religion to only those acts that did not substantially
burden free exercise of religion, absent a compelling governmental interest and in the least
restrictive means. ADD AN EXAMPLE HERE OF HOW THIS PLAYS OUT IN REAL LIFE? OTHERWISE TOO
ABSTRACT.
 
Many states have enacted RFRAs of their own; 19 states have passed such laws and 11 state courts
have interpreted the law to provide a heightened standard for reviewing government action. LIKE
ALLOWING WHAT KIND OF REVIEW? When President Obama was a state senator in Illinois, he
supported Illinois’s version of the law IN WHAT YEAR?. Historically, this law has received wide
bipartisan support.
 
But Indiana never passed such a law. Then in 2010 came the Affordable Care Act, which renewed
concerns about government infringement on deeply held religious beliefs. Hobby Lobby and the
University of Notre Dame both filed lawsuits challenging provisions that required the institutions to
offer certain types of insurance coverage in violation of their religious views. Last year the Supreme
Court upheld religious liberty in Burwell v. Hobby Lobby, based on the federal RFRA.
 
With the Supreme Court’s ruling, the need for a RFRA at the state level became more important, as
the federal law does not apply to states. Therefore, to ensure that religious liberty is fully protected
under Indiana law, this year the General Assembly enshrined these principles in Indiana law. I fully
supported that action.
 
It is important to note the Religious Freedom Restoration Act doesn’t apply to disputes between
private parties unless government action is involved. For more than 20 years, the federal RFRA has
never undermined federal antidiscrimination laws, and it won’t in Indiana. I am currently working
with leaders of the Indiana General Assembly to determine if there is a way to clarify the intent of
the RFRA.
 
As Thomas Jefferson noted, “No provision in our Constitution ought to be dearer to man than that
which protects the rights of conscience against the enterprises of civil authority.” I regret that false
narratives and misrepresentations of the RFRA have taken hold.
 
The hospitality and character of Hoosiers are synonymous with everything that is good about

http://www.indystar.com/story/opinion/readers/2015/03/07/indiana-needs-religious-freedom-legislation/24477303/


America. Faith and religion are important values to millions of Indiana residents. With the passage
of this legislation, Indiana will continue to be a place that respects the beliefs of every person in our
state.
 
Mr. Pence, a Republican, is the governor of Indiana.
 
 
 
From: Bachelder, Kate 
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 1:54 PM
To: 'CDenault@gov.IN.gov'
Cc: 'kbrooks@gov.in.gov'
Subject: op­ed edits
 
Hi there,
In a few minutes I’m going to have edits/questions for you on Gov. Pence’s op‐ed. We’ll need to
move quickly, so I just wanted to get in touch with you both in advance. Thanks so much for your
help  & looking forward to working with you.
 
 
 
Kate Bachelder
Assistant Op­ed editor
The Wall Street Journal.
1211 Avenue of the Americas
New York, N.Y. 10036
212.
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From:  Kerry Waite 
Sent:  Tue 3/31/2015 11:17 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "mpence1314@aol.com" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov>, "Jim Atterholt (jatterholt@gov.in.gov)"

<jatterholt@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  BreakPoint Article ­ Indiana's RFRA 
Attachments: image00100001.png; BreakPoint Indiana's RFRA Article 03 31 201500002.pdf 

Governor Pence,
 
                Mr. Simcox requested I forward the attached article to you.
 
Blessings,
Kerry
 
 
Kerry L. Waite
Indiana Energy Association
1600 One American Square
Indianapolis, IN  46282
Email ‐ kwaite@indianaenergy.org
Office  (317) 632‐4406
www.indianaenergy.org

 































From:  Curt Smith 
Sent:  Thu 4/02/2015 11:42 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "James Atterholt" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov>, "Mark G. Ahearn" <MAhearn@gov.IN.gov>, "Lindsey Craig"

<LCraig@gov.IN.gov>, "Christopher Crabtree" <ccrabtree@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject:  Heritage Foundation: Indiana "Fix" is bad policy 
Attachments: image00100001.png 

From: "Wagner, Bridgett" <bridgett.wagner@
Date: April 2, 2015 at 11:20:52 AM EDT
To: "micah@ " <micah@ >, "curt@
<curt@ >
Subject: Indiana "Fix" is bad policy

 
Just up: http://dailysignal.com/2015/04/02/indiana‐fix‐on‐religious‐liberty‐law‐creates‐bad‐sexual‐
orientation‐gender‐identity‐law/
 

Indiana ‘Fix’ on Religious Liberty Law
Creates Bad Sexual Orientation, Gender
Identity Law
Ryan T. Anderson / April 02, 2015

At a press conference in the Indiana State House earlier this morning, Senate President Pro
Tem David Long,R­Fort Wayne, and House Speaker Brian Bosma,R­Indianapolis, announced
a proposed “fix” to their religious liberty law.

The religious liberty law is good policy. It needs no “fix.”

And the proposed “fix” amounts to nothing less than a wholesale repeal of the Indiana
Religious Freedom Restoration Act with respect to those who need religious liberty
protections the most.

http://dailysignal.com/2015/04/02/indiana-fix-on-religious-liberty-law-creates-bad-sexual-orientation-gender-identity-law/


The “fix” is bad public policy that explicitly exempts sexual orientation and gender identity
laws from the Religious Freedom Restoration Act except with respect to a narrow class of
nonprofit religious organizations and their agents. The “fix” specifically targets the millions of
other religious Americans who wish to live their lives in accordance with their faith values,
free from government coercion.

As Attorney General Ed Meese and I explain in today’s Washington Post, the Indiana
religious liberty bill is good policy that protects all Americans from government
discrimination. And as I explained last month in testimony before the U.S. Commission on
Civil Rights, sexual orientation and gender identity laws are bad policy that create special
privileges enforceable against private citizens and backed up with government coercion and
fines.

At the press conference, Big Business and LGBT activists were represented and featured
speakers. Noticeably absent were Gov. Mike Pence, R­Ind., and religious leaders.

The “fix” will need to pass both chambers of the legislature and receive the governor’s
signature to become law. It should not.

It is important to note that this fix does not create new sexual orientation and gender identity
privileges in Indiana; it says that the religious freedom restoration act cannot protect citizens
from existing (municipal) Indiana sexual orientation and gender identitylaws and ensuing
coercion from government.

In other words, it eliminates any balancing test for sexual liberty and religious liberty. It says
sexual orientation should trump religious liberty. That’s bad policy.

All citizens should oppose unjust discrimination, but sexual orientation and gender identity
laws are not the way to achieve that goal. Sexual orientation and gender identity laws threaten
fundamental First Amendment rights. These laws create new, subjective protected classes that
will expose employers to unimaginable liability, and would increase government interference
in labor markets in ways that could harm the economy.

Yet sexual orientation and gender identity laws’ damage is not only economic. It would also
threaten the freedom of citizens and their associations to affirm their religious or moral
convictions, such as that marriage is the union of one man and one woman and that maleness
and femaleness are not arbitrary constructs but objective ways of being human. Sexual
orientation and gender identity laws would treat expressing these beliefs in a commercial
context as actionable discrimination.

http://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/religious-liberty-protections-promote-tolerance/2015/04/01/4fb66cca-d88b-11e4-ba28-f2a685dc7f89_story.html?postshare=4961427978235186
http://www.thepublicdiscourse.com/2015/03/14649/
http://dailysignal.com/2014/11/09/sexual-liberty-religious-liberty-can-coexist-heres/


Sexual orientation and gender identity laws do not protect equality before the law. Instead,
they create special privileges that are enforceable against private actors.

We should respect the intrinsic dignity of all people, but sexual orientation and gender identiy
laws are bad public policy. They threaten our freedoms and unite civil libertarians concerned
about free speech and religious liberty, free marketers concerned about freedom of contract
and government interference in the marketplace, and social conservatives concerned about
marriage and culture.
Religious freedom bills, by contrast, protect against government coercion. They don’t
infringe on anyone’s rights. They simply create a standard that government must meet before
it violates the free exercise of religion of any citizen.

The United States is in a time of transition. Courts have redefined marriage, and beliefs about
human sexuality are changing. Will the right to dissent be protected? Will the right of
Americans to speak and act in accord with what the United States had always believed about
marriage — that it’s a union of husband and wife — be tolerated?

Equating sexual orientation and gender identity with race is bad policy. As I explained in my
testimony last month before the United States Commission on Civil Rights, sexual orientation
and gender identity are conceptually different from race, and beliefs about marriage as the
union of man and woman are conceptually and historically different from opposition to
interracial marriage.
So, too, while protections against discrimination based on race were necessary and justified,
creating such laws based on sexual orientation and gender identity is neither necessary nor
justified.

It is outrageous and irresponsible for activists to compare such dissent to racism and Jim
Crow. What does marriage have to do with race? Absolutely nothing.

But more or less every society throughout human history, and all the major world religions
today, have held that marriage is the union of man and woman. Even if the legal definition of
marriage is changed for public policy purposes, should that entitle activists to silence citizens
and eradicate charities, schools and business that simply ask for the freedom to operate
according to this belief?

The “fix” from Indiana is no good and it must be opposed.

Religious liberty protections are one way of achieving civil peace even amid disagreement.
The United States is a pluralistic society. To protect that pluralism and the rights of all
Americans, of whatever faith they may practice, religious liberty laws are good policy.

http://www.thepublicdiscourse.com/2015/03/14649/
http://dailysignal.com/2015/04/01/qa-on-indiana-would-restaurants-be-allowed-to-turn-away-lgbt-customers/
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Liberals committed to tolerance should embrace them.

Print
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From:  Mike 
Sent:  Tue 6/23/2015 10:22 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Chad E Timmerman" <CTimmerman@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Micah Vincent" <mvincent@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: ESA info 
Attachments: Educational Savings Account00001.docx; republican presidents00002.docx; Danielsen 1

pager00003.docx; WHAT IF GEORGIA ADOPTED NEVADA (1) (2)[2]00004.docx; IMG_1580[1]
[1]00005.PNG 

Begin forwarded message:

From: Bob Luddy <bob.luddy@ >
Date: June 22, 2015 at 4:22:57 PM EDT
To: "Gov. Mike Pence" <mpence1314@aol.com>
Subject: ESA info

 
Governor Pence,

Its always great to hear from you. We can provide any information to your staff, which is useful. We
also have an Academic Study on the Economic Impact of Excellence Schools on housing prices, growth
and family income, to be released July 15th. Also note the Nevada article about parental enthusiasm for
this new law.

ESA’s can take several forms.  NC uses a check to the school, which must be validated by the
Parent for the NC Educational Scholarships.  Dual Control but remains a small program.
The Nevada law is universal, which is real school reform. The Public Schools will try to keep
students in the school, which is positive as it will force change.
My thought is the State should save  money (big incentive for the Legislature), so I propose 75 %
of normal state allocation per student. You can decide whats best for Ind. 

Parents can’t curb ESA enthusiasm

The response from parents to my previous two columns on Nevada’s groundbreaking Education Savings
Accounts was overwhelming: Tell me more!How hungry are parents for information on the country’s
strongest school choice law? Imagine a line of construction workers and lumberjacks at an all‐you‐can‐
eat pancake breakfast, and you’re getting close.For those new to the discussion, Gov. Brian Sandoval...

Read More

http://spectator.org/articles/62949/nevada‐esa%E2%80%99s‐affirm‐ultimate‐
right‐parents‐educate‐children

mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
http://mandrillapp.com/track/click/30109106/www.reviewjournal.com?p=eyJzIjoiZnZ4N19Kd1diQkJ5b0w0aWNVaEZxOUpjYTVFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDEwOTEwNixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LnJldmlld2pvdXJuYWwuY29tXFxcL2NvbHVtbnMtYmxvZ3NcXFwvZ2xlbm4tY29va1xcXC9wYXJlbnRzLWNhbi10LWN1cmItZXNhLWVudGh1c2lhc21cIixcImlkXCI6XCJhNjUwY2M3Y2RmYzA0OGEwOTM5MTYzODFlZTM3NDkxYlwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjMyNDljMjE3NjAxZjY5ODU1ZjE1OTRmMTJiYzE3ZWYwMGE0YzJhYTZcIl19In0
http://spectator.org/articles/62949/nevada-esa%E2%80%99s-affirm-ultimate-right-parents-educate-children


Articles about Nevada, Mississippi, basic ESA info, why Republican candidates should vote ESAs, and
Danielsen’s basic argument for how school choice improves the local economy and why universal ESAs
are the best route.

Atlanta lawyer and education advocate Glenn Delk on Nevada’s ESA
program: http://spectator.org/blog/62897/nevada­shows­way­education­savings­accounts

Mississippi Governor Phil Bryant recently announced that MS plans to move forward with Educational
Savings Account (ESA) legislation for special needs students. The program will increase options for
parents of special needs students, providing funding for therapy, tuition, and tutoring, and following in
the footsteps of Arizona and Florida. Many different ESA programs have been considered by a number
of states, but all provide a voucher­like payment that is more convenient for parents to use and may even
encourage greater cost savings. See link for more information: http://www.cato.org/blog/win­
educational­choice­mississippi

Let me know how I can help.

Regards,

Bob

Bob Luddy, President
CaptiveAire, Inc. commercial kitchen ventilation
4641 paragon park road, raleigh, north carolina  27616
P 919 882 2410 ext. 302  

Related Article

http://thehill.com/blogs/congress‐blog/education/244303‐is‐clinton‐ready‐to‐
fight‐for‐school‐choice

http://spectator.org/blog/62897/nevada-shows-way-education-savings-accounts
http://www.cato.org/blog/win-educational-choice-mississippi
http://thehill.com/blogs/congress-blog/education/244303-is-clinton-ready-to-fight-for-school-choice


Educational Savings Account (ESA)

Overview

 Funding that would usually be allocated to recipient’s school district

is deposited into a scholarship account, or ESA

o Amount: 75% of normal allocation, saving the state and

county 25% per student

o Funding issued as a joint check to a qualified private school and

the scholarship recipient

 Parents must renew ESA each year

 Funds may roll over to the next year, until high school graduation

 ESA closed upon student’s high school graduation. Any extra funds

return to the state and county.

ESA Eligibility

 Available to any student entering kindergarten OR any student entering

grades 1 through 12 and transferring from a public school

 Use ESA for tuition/fees at qualified private school that is officially

registered with the state



WHY REPUBLICAN CANDIDATES FOR PRESIDENT SHOULD SUPPORT EDUCATION SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

1. ESA’S ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE AMERICAN DREAM

ESA’s represent the best policy vehicle to give all Americans, not just those who can afford to buy a
home in a “good” school district, or pay private school tuition, equal opportunities to achieve the
American Dream.  In today’s 21st Century global competition for jobs, American families should be given
the financial resources and freedom to choose the best educational fit for every child.  This principle is
especially true for America’s low-income citizens who are denied access to the best teachers, best
schools and a route to a career by our use of zip codes to determine access to schools.

2. ESA’S ARE SIMPLE, STRAIGHTFORWARD AND EASY TO UNDERSTAND

Americans fundamentally believe in the inherent right of parents to make the best choices for their
children with as little interference from the government as possible. By passing S.B. 302, Nevada’s
version of ESAs, the Republican-controlled legislature has, one of its members said, “set a new standard
for school choice in our nation”.  If Republican Gov. Brian Sandoval, as expected, signs the bill, then
families all over America will legitimately ask—If Nevada trusts its parents to make the right choice, why
can’t my children have the same freedom and opportunity?  As Assemblyman Ira Hansen said, when one
of the bill’s opponents questioned whether parents are skilled in making the right choices for curriculum
and instruction: “I think we need to have more confidence in our parents…”  Added Brent Jones: ‘This
session is not just about public education. It’s about better education.  School choice has been proven
over and over.”

SB 302 is simple in its key provisions:

 Parents will enter into an agreement with the Nevada State Treasurer
 Money is deposited into an education savings account to be spent on tuition, class fees,

textbooks, etc.
 Low-income students receive 100% of the state funding; all others-90%
 Because local and federal funding will remain unchanged, those students who choose to remain

in traditional public or public charter, schools, will receive more funding per student.

3. ESAS , ALONG WITH ALL FORMS OF SCHOOL CHOICE, ARE FAVORED BY LARGE MAJORITIES

Nearly every poll shows that, regardless of political persuasion, economic class or race, 2 of every 3
Americans support school choice.  As Deborah Beck, a Democratic pollster put it in announcing the
results of her January 2015 poll showing 70% support for the concept, said:



“The poll clearly shows widespread support, among both political parties, for school choice.
Any public official-or potential candidate for President-who ignores these numbers does so at
their own peril.”

4. STATES WITH REPUBLICAN GOVERNORS HAVE OVER 300 VOTES IN THE ELECTORAL COLLEGE

No one will argue that school choice, by itself, will win the Presidency for Republicans. However, @ 30
million children currently attend k-12 public schools in states controlled by Republicans, in addition to
Nevada.  Total state spending in those 30 states on k-12 education  is @$150 billion, which means that
all 30 states could adopt their own version of Nevada S.B. 302, giving all 30 million kids annual ESA’s of
$5000 each ,without touching the roughly $200 billion in federal and local spending  on public education
in those states.

When you combine state-authorized ESAs with Steve Moore’s concept of converting most of the budget
for the federal Department of Education into millions of ESAs for the poorest children, Republicans
would have compelling arguments to appeal, not only to their base voters, but also to attract a larger
share of the minority vote.

5. AS COMMON CORE DEMONSTRATES, NEVER UNDERESTIMATE THE POWER OF PARENTS

Many so-called education experts have denounced the grass-roots opposition to the Common Core
Standards.  They have mistaken the opposition for objections to rigorous standards; in reality, parents
want their children to achieve at the highest level.  They simply don’t want the government, whether
local, state or federal, imposing those standards and curriculum on them.

Such a sea change in public education will not occur overnight.  However, we’ve had over 30 years since
publication of “A Nation at Risk” to trust the Education-Industrial Complex to improve academic
performance.  The so-called “education experts” have failed miserably; it’s time to, as the Nevada
representative said—“have more confidence in our parents”.



Dr. Bart Danielsen, Associate Professor of Finance & Real Estate, NCSU

Middle class families vote with their feet when choosing schools
 Known as spatial segregation: Wealthy end up in better assigned schools,poor end up in poorer assigned schools
 Economic growth is inhibited in areas with failing schools

o Jobs and businesses disappear as wealthier people leave
o Crime rises and social services decline
o Assignment-based schools produce income segregation and

income inequalityE.g., Nashville-Davidson County School District has 16% fewer 8 year olds than 3year olds
 Families move to the suburbs: Williamson County School District has 34%more 8 year olds than 3 year olds

To fix these problems, must attack the root causes
 In assignment-based system, wealthy move to better schools
 In choice-based system, wealthy can have schools they want without moving

o This creates and sustains jobs and increases economic vitality
Economic models show that school choice reduces income segregation

 If people can have the schools they want in less expensive neighborhoods,they have no need to moveDr. Bart Danielsen has coauthored several academic papers showing how schoolchoice impacts property values:
 Housing prices are higher in areas where school choice (in the form ofvouchers) is offered, especially in places that offer vouchers in place ofstudents being assigned to a bad school

o In Vermont, in the 90 rural districts with school choice programs,home prices are higher than those without school choice
 This is true in the US as well as in other countries
 Also found that good schools prompt families to move closer to the

school at a rate that exceeds what has been found in any other study
that looks at job location

 Good schools are likely more important than good jobs in building a
community

o Good schools draw good jobs
To build economic growth, you must build good schools and school choice

 Good school choice programs are critical to revitalizing distressed areas
 Providing options for middle class families will reduce poverty, crime,

income inequality, urban sprawl, air pollution, and construction costs
o Will increase economic development, job creation, skilled workforce



GIVE ALL CHILDREN A FAIR SHOT AT ACHIEVING THE AMERICAN DREAM THRU EDUCATION FREEDOM
ACCOUNTS

BACKGROUND

Within the last two weeks, the Nevada legislature passed SB. 302, establishing education savings
accounts (“ESAs”) and Gov. Brian Sandoval signed the bill into law, thereby making Nevada the first state
in the country to offer universal school choice to Nevada’s families and up to 500,000 children.  We
hope to make Georgia and North Carolina the second and third states to do so, thereby freeing another
3.2 million students to pursue their version of the American Dream.

Nevada Gov. Brian Sandoval and his Republican colleagues in the legislature took control of the
governor’s office and both houses for the first time since 1929 as a result of their election in November
2014.  Within six months of taking office, they passed SB 302, showing the rest of the country that:

 School choice is a winner politically
 ESAs, as well as all forms of school choice, are favored by 70% of all Americans
 ESAs are consistent with the American Dream
 ESAs are clear, simple and easy to understand
 States with Republican control like Nevada have over 300 votes in the Electoral College,

educating over 30 million students
 Republican-controlled states such as Georgia and North Carolina should move quickly to pass

universal school choice through what we call “Education Freedom Accounts”
 These states should also lobby the Republican candidates for President to sign a pledge,

agreeing to pass legislation within six month of taking office, establishing federal ESAs for the
poorest children by converting the current federal education budget into $10,000 ESAs

We believe that Nevada’s actions are just the beginning of a groundswell of similar legislation
throughout the country.  Arizona and Florida already have limited ESAs; Mississippi and Tennessee just
past special needs ESAs.  A liberal Democrat, Gov. Andrew Cuomo of New York, is leading a diverse
coalition of more than 100 organizations pushing for passage of New York’s version.  Our political
leaders are finally hearing the message from families all over America—the current system of a top-
down, one size fits all, governmental monopoly over public education does not give all children an equal
opportunity to achieve the American Dream.

THE CAMPAIGN

Glenn Delk of Atlanta, and Bob Luddy of Raleigh, had discussed, before Nevada’s actions, a possible
campaign to pass ESAs in their respective states.  This memo outlines the initial thoughts on a campaign
aimed at:



 Convincing one or both state legislatures to follow Nevada’s example and pass state-funded
ESAs

 Convincing the Republican candidates for President to sign a pledge to establish federal ESAs if
elected

The campaign will include as many individuals and organization who wish to join the coalition, provided
they all agree to coalesce around supporting one bill, allowing universal school choice through state-
funded ESAs.  Set out below is an outline of how the Georgia plan would work; North Carolina’s effort
should be similar.

ESSENTIAL COMPONENTS OF PLAN

1. Nevada’s plan calls for poor students to get 100% of the state per pupil funding, with everyone
else getting 90%.  Estimated average is $5000 per student for as many as 500,000 students.

2. Georgia could set funding at $8000 for low income, and $7000 for everyone else.  Assume the
funds only came from annual state budget of $7.5 billion, although request would be made to
federal government to allow Georgia’s $2.3 billion in Title 1 money to be converted to ESA’s for
the poorest.

3. If only state funds were used, and we assume that 50% of the low-income students choose the
ESA route, cost at $8000 each, for those 450,000 students, is $3.6 billion annually.

4. With remaining $3.9 billion, could create up to 550,000 ESAs of $7000 each for remaining
students.

5. If # 3 and # 4 occurred, would leave 700,000 students attending traditional district-run schools.
Exclusive of federal funds, would have $8 billion in local property tax funds, or $11,428 per
student.

6. If a Republican President and Congress, in early 2017, were to approve converting federal Title 1
money into ESAs, then Georgia could offer additional 287,500 low-income students an ESA of
$8000 each.

7. If # 6 occurred, then, between the combination of federal funds and state funds, Georgia could
offer 737,500 low income kids an ESA of $8000 each, while providing as many as 550,000 ESAs
of $7000 each to middle and upper-income students.

8. In the event that # 7 occurred, local school districts would need to educate only 412,500 kids,
based on the current enrollment of 1.7 million.  If local property taxes were maintained at the
current level of $8 billion, conceivably, local districts would have $19,417 to spend on each
pupil.

9. Assuming per pupil spending in local districts was reduced to S12,000 each, or 50% higher than
the most generous ESA, the total amount of property taxes needed to sustain local districts
would be @ $5 billion, resulting in the largest property tax cut in the history of Georgia, $3
billion.

10. The net result of all of these items would be:



 Georgia becomes the national leader in parental choice, while offering  all families more
equal opportunities and choices in education for each child

 Potentially, Georgia becomes the world leader in terms of an educational model for
education providers—nearly $10 billion annually in revenue available to operators of
private or charter schools, thus attracting the best and brightest.

 Gov. Deal would be known as the Georgia governor who completed Gov. Zell Miller’s
vision of giving “Hope” to all students, while also delivering the largest property tax cut
in Georgia’s history.

 All parents would have the ability and responsibility, for the first time, of owning their
child’s education, motivated to choose the highest quality education for each child at
the lowest possible cost, since any savings roll-over to pay for college.

STRATEGY

Build a broad coalition led by core group of

 Georgia Public Policy Foundation
 Friedman Foundation
 Americans for Prosperity
 American Federation for Children
 Foundation for Excellence in Education
 Center for Opportunity
 Georgia Charter Schools Association
 Catholic Archdiocese
 Other religious leaders
 BAEO
 Students First
 Stand for Children
 Families for Excellent Schools
 Southern Association of Independent Schools
 Walton Family Foundation
 Georgia Chamber of Commerce
 Georgia Municipal Association
 U.S. Chamber of Commerce
 Business Roundtable
 Atlanta Regional Commission
 Urban League
 100 Black Men
 Atlanta Rotary
 Atlanta Committee for Progress
 Gates Foundation
 Broad Foundation



 Arnold Foundation
 Technology Association of Georgia
 Alt School funders
 Faith and Freedom Coalition

Agree on one bill

 Use Nevada S.B. 302 as model
 Combine Ga. H.B. 243 and S.B. 92

Fund-raise

We believe that each state campaign should contain two major elements, working side-by-side.  First, an
inside politics lobbying campaign would attempt to convince 8-10 key political leaders to support the
legislation.  Simultaneously, a targeted marketing campaign would aim to convince parents, especially
low-income minority parents, of the need for them to become politically active on this issue.

 Individuals
 AFP
 Local Foundations
 Local Business
 National Foundations and Business

A very rough estimate of the costs of a campaign in each state, from July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016, is
$500,000.

Execute

 Goldwater study by August 15
 Attempt to secure support of Gov. Deal, Lt. Gov. Cagle, Speaker Ralston, Brooks

Coleman, Jan Jones and Lindsey Tippins
 Raise issue’s profile with Republican Presidential candidates with goal of getting

questions asked at first Fox News debate
 Develop written pledge for candidates
 Build website and social messaging campaign
 Post-card size mailings to selected districts
 Lobby
 Speakers Bureau
 Free Media
 Official endorsement by Gov. and include in budget
 General Assembly
 Make #1 issue in SEC primary





From:  Mike 
Sent:  Tue 7/07/2015 5:17 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mark Ahearn" <mahearn@gov.in.gov>, "Jim Atterholt" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Matt Lloyd"

<MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject: Fwd: Sam Brownback Executive Order on Religious Liberty 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Thomas Rose <romtose@ >
Date: July 7, 2015 at 5:03:47 PM EDT
To: Pence Mike <MPENCE1314@aol.com>
Subject: Sam Brownback Executive Order on Religious Liberty

http://www.kansas.com/news/politics­government/article26668207.html

Gov. Sam Brownback issued an executive order Tuesday prohibiting state
government from taking “discriminatory action” against clergy members or
religious organization that deny services to couples based on religious beliefs.

The order, which comes in the wake of last month’s landmark U.S. Supreme
Court ruling, will among other things protect religious organizations that
contract with the state to provide adoption services from placing children with
gay couples if it conflicts with their religious beliefs.

“We have a duty to govern and to govern in accordance with the Constitution
as it has been determined by the Supreme Court decision," Brownback said in
a statement. "We also recognize that religious liberty is at the heart of who we
are as Kansans and Americans, and should be protected."

Brownback said the order protects “Kansas clergy and religious organizations
from being forced to participate in activities that violate their sincerely and
deeply held beliefs.”

The order explicitly protects religious organizations “that provides social
services or charitable services,” meaning that it extends beyond just the

mailto:MPENCE1314@aol.com
http://www.kansas.com/news/politics-government/article26668207.html
https://governor.ks.gov/media-room/executive-orders/2015/07/07/executive-order-15-05


wedding ceremony.

Tom Witt, executive director of Equality Kansas, the state’s leading gay rights
organization, called the order a “dog whistle” and said that at first look it
appears to “enable religious organizations that use taxpayer money to provide
services to deny services to gay and lesbian couples.”

Micah Kubic, executive director of the Kansas chapter of the ACLU, said in a
statement that the order means “a homeless shelter that received a state
contract or grant could refuse family housing to a gay couple with a child, or a
foster care agency could refuse to place a child in their custody with the child’s
family member just because the family member was in a same­sex relationship
– and the state could not require them to treat all families equally.”

Executive orders carry the weight of law, but unlike pieces of signed legislation
can be rescinded by subsequent administrations. The governor issued an
executive order earlier in the year that eliminated a protection against
discrimination for gay state workers, which had been established through
executive order by Democratic Gov. Kathleen Sebelius.

Attorneys said it was difficult to know the full impact of the governor’s order just
yet.

Ron Nelson, a family law expert from Lenexa, said that the order would mean
that religious organizations that contract with the state to provide adoption
services could refuse to place a child with a gay couple.

“Any organization that contracts with the state that says their religious beliefs
don’t allow them to do something, then they don’t have to do it,” Nelson said.

Nelson compared this to the strategies used by southern states in the 1950s
and 1960s to resist desegregation.

“This is the same technique that southern states tried to use to frustrate Brown
v. Board of Education,” Nelson said.

The state’s Catholic Bishops released a statement Tuesday afternoon
applauding the order. The statement explicitly highlighted the closure of
Catholic adoption services in Massachusetts and Illinois in recent years

“In America, religious freedom has not just meant the right to hold a religious
ceremony in a private setting, confined to the four walls of a church,” the



statement said. “In this country, religious freedom has meant the right to live
one’s faith in one’s daily life, at home and at work, in private and in public…
Kansans who believe that every child deserves a mother and a father should
not be punished by the government for that belief.”

Witt said it was no coincidence that the order came down the same day that
same­sex spouses of state workers became eligible to be added to their
spouses’ health plans.

“The governor clearly has no respect for gay and lesbian Kansans and this is
his way of saying that,” Witt said. “Instead of welcoming us to first class
citizenship along with everyone else in this state he sends out this executive
order that basically says, too bad.”

Terry Fox, a Wichita pastor who opposes same­sex marriage, said it was “very,
very encouraging that on the day that some other news was breaking that Gov.
Brownback is attempting to bring religious protection to some of the people of
Kansas and certainly the conservative Christian people of Kansas.”

Fox said that he had received word from the governor’s office to expect the
order. However, he said that he thinks more steps need to be taken.

Fox said that he met with 60 pastors in Wichita on Tuesday and that they plan
to push for additional religious freedom protections.

“There is a great passion here that we need some religious freedom protection
not just for churches but for Christian business owners,” Fox said.

Mark Johnson, an attorney with the Dentons firm in Kansas City and the
University of Kansas, said the term “religious organization” in the governor’s
order could potentially extend beyond churches and apply to businesses
because of the Supreme Court’s 2014 ruling that said businesses, such as
Hobby Lobby, have a right to religious protections under the First Amendment.

The Kansas House passed a bill in 2014 that would have enabled both private
and public workers to refuse to serve same­sex couples on religious grounds.
The bill was scuttled by Kansas Senate leaders after it inspired international
backlash.

This year Indiana passed similar legislation, sparking uproar and calls for
boycotts, which it later amended.



Brownback hinted last week that his administration would push for additional
religious freedom protections in the wake of the court’s ruling on same­sex
marriage.



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Fri 6/26/2015 6:15 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Matt Lloyd" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Posting our statement ? 

Matt
I see where we didn't tweet our gay marraige statement 

Understood

But shouldn't we post it on official Facebook?

Sent from my iPhone



From:  Atterholt, Jim 
Sent:  Thu 7/09/2015 3:31 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Cc:  "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov>, "Vincent, Micah" <mvincent@gov.in.gov>, "Ahearn, Mark"

<MAhearn@gov.IN.gov>, "tomrose@ " <tomrose@ > 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: The Boycott Divestment and Sanctions Movement 

Governor,

I have asked Brady to look into this as a possible addition to our legislative agenda for next session.  I
have also asked Mark to see if this was something we could do by executive order.  We will circle back
with you.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 9, 2015, at 9:15 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote:

Please review and advise

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jack Miller <jmiller@ >
Date: June 30, 2015 at 12:01:40 PM EDT
To: "mpence1314@aol.com" <mpence1314@aol.com>
Cc: Jennifer Olsen <jolsen@ >
Subject: FW: The Boycott Divestment and Sanctions Movement

Dear Mike,
 
I enjoyed our telephone conversation yesterday, and a campaign contribution is in
progress. 
The Boycott Divestment and Sanctions movement to delegitimize Israel and foster
anti‐Semitism on college campuses that I mentioned when we spoke is gaining ground
at universities across the country, probably in Indiana.  This attack on Israel (and Jews)
is just a prelude to an attack on all western civilization and the freedom we cherish in
this country. 
 
Gov. Bruce Rauner is taking a major step in countering this by supporting a bill they
recently passed unanimously in the IL House that also had a 49‐0 vote in the Senate in
April.  The bill says that Illinois will not do any business with companies that boycott or
disinvest from Israel.  Attached is a copy of the bill, and if you could get Wisconsin to
pass a similar bill, it will have a major impact itself and be a big step toward getting all

mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
mailto:mpence1314@aol.com


states to pass such a bill. 
 
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
Regards,
 
 
 
Jack Miller
 

<IL SB1761.pdf>



From:  Mike 
Sent:  Tue 7/07/2015 9:41 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Ahearn, Mark" <MAhearn@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov>, "Pitcock, Josh"

<jpitcock@sso.org> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: Sam Brownback Executive Order on Religious Liberty 

On Jul 7, 2015, at 8:18 PM, "Ahearn, Mark" <MAhearn@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

 
Mark G. Ahearn
General Counsel to Indiana
Governor Mike Pence
Office:   (317) 232­4579
Cell:       (317) 
Email:    mahearn@gov.in.gov
 
 
 
This email is subject to attorney client privilege and may be for internal and
deliberative decision making purposes.  If you have received this email in error,
I apologize ­ please delete and notify me at mahearn@gov.in.gov or call me at
317­232­4579.  Thank you.
 
From: Mike [mailto:mpence1314@aol.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 07, 2015 5:18 PM
To: Ahearn, Mark; Atterholt, Jim; Lloyd, Matthew
Subject: Fwd: Sam Brownback Executive Order on Religious Liberty

mailto:MAhearn@gov.IN.gov
mailto:mahearn@gov.in.gov
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
 
Gov. Sam Brownback issued an executive order Tuesday prohibiting state government

from taking “discriminatory action” against clergy members or religious organization that

deny services to couples based on religious beliefs.

The order, which comes in the wake of last month’s landmark U.S. Supreme Court

ruling, will among other things protect religious organizations that contract with the state

to provide adoption services from placing children with gay couples if it conflicts with

their religious beliefs.

“We have a duty to govern and to govern in accordance with the Constitution as it has

been determined by the Supreme Court decision," Brownback said in a statement. "We

also recognize that religious liberty is at the heart of who we are as Kansans and

Americans, and should be protected."

Brownback said the order protects “Kansas clergy and religious organizations from being

forced to participate in activities that violate their sincerely and deeply held beliefs.”

The order explicitly protects religious organizations “that provides social services or

charitable services,” meaning that it extends beyond just the wedding ceremony.

Tom Witt, executive director of Equality Kansas, the state’s leading gay rights

organization, called the order a “dog whistle” and said that at first look it appears to

“enable religious organizations that use taxpayer money to provide services to deny

services to gay and lesbian couples.”

Micah Kubic, executive director of the Kansas chapter of the ACLU, said in a statement

that the order means “a homeless shelter that received a state contract or grant could

refuse family housing to a gay couple with a child, or a foster care agency could refuse

to place a child in their custody with the child’s family member just because the family

mailto:MPENCE1314@aol.com
http://www.kansas.com/news/politics-government/article26668207.html
https://governor.ks.gov/media-room/executive-orders/2015/07/07/executive-order-15-05


member was in a same­sex relationship – and the state could not require them to treat all

families equally.”

Executive orders carry the weight of law, but unlike pieces of signed legislation can be

rescinded by subsequent administrations. The governor issued an executive order earlier

in the year that eliminated a protection against discrimination for gay state workers,

which had been established through executive order by Democratic Gov. Kathleen

Sebelius.

Attorneys said it was difficult to know the full impact of the governor’s order just yet.

Ron Nelson, a family law expert from Lenexa, said that the order would mean that

religious organizations that contract with the state to provide adoption services could

refuse to place a child with a gay couple.

“Any organization that contracts with the state that says their religious beliefs don’t allow

them to do something, then they don’t have to do it,” Nelson said.

Nelson compared this to the strategies used by southern states in the 1950s and 1960s

to resist desegregation.

“This is the same technique that southern states tried to use to frustrate Brown v. Board

of Education,” Nelson said.

The state’s Catholic Bishops released a statement Tuesday afternoon applauding the

order. The statement explicitly highlighted the closure of Catholic adoption services in

Massachusetts and Illinois in recent years

“In America, religious freedom has not just meant the right to hold a religious ceremony

in a private setting, confined to the four walls of a church,” the statement said. “In this

country, religious freedom has meant the right to live one’s faith in one’s daily life, at

home and at work, in private and in public… Kansans who believe that every child

deserves a mother and a father should not be punished by the government for that

belief.”

Witt said it was no coincidence that the order came down the same day that same­sex

spouses of state workers became eligible to be added to their spouses’ health plans.

“The governor clearly has no respect for gay and lesbian Kansans and this is his way of

saying that,” Witt said. “Instead of welcoming us to first class citizenship along with

everyone else in this state he sends out this executive order that basically says, too

bad.”

Terry Fox, a Wichita pastor who opposes same­sex marriage, said it was “very, very

encouraging that on the day that some other news was breaking that Gov. Brownback is



attempting to bring religious protection to some of the people of Kansas and certainly the

conservative Christian people of Kansas.”

Fox said that he had received word from the governor’s office to expect the order.

However, he said that he thinks more steps need to be taken.

Fox said that he met with 60 pastors in Wichita on Tuesday and that they plan to push

for additional religious freedom protections.

“There is a great passion here that we need some religious freedom protection not just

for churches but for Christian business owners,” Fox said.

Mark Johnson, an attorney with the Dentons firm in Kansas City and the University of

Kansas, said the term “religious organization” in the governor’s order could potentially

extend beyond churches and apply to businesses because of the Supreme Court’s 2014

ruling that said businesses, such as Hobby Lobby, have a right to religious protections

under the First Amendment.

The Kansas House passed a bill in 2014 that would have enabled both private and public

workers to refuse to serve same­sex couples on religious grounds. The bill was scuttled

by Kansas Senate leaders after it inspired international backlash.

This year Indiana passed similar legislation, sparking uproar and calls for boycotts,

which it later amended.

Brownback hinted last week that his administration would push for additional religious

freedom protections in the wake of the court’s ruling on same­sex marriage.

Read more here: http://www.kansas.com/news/politics­
government/article26668207.html#storylink=cpy
 

http://www.kansas.com/news/politics-government/article26668207.html#storylink=cpy


From:  Mike 
Sent:  Thu 7/09/2015 9:15 AM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Jim Atterholt COS" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Danielle McGrath" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov>, "Micah

Vincent" <mvincent@gov.in.gov> 
Cc:   
Bcc:   
Subject:  Fwd: The Boycott Divestment and Sanctions Movement 
Attachments: IL SB176100001.pdf 

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
 
I enjoyed our telephone conversation yesterday, and a campaign contribution is in progress. 
The Boycott Divestment and Sanctions movement to delegitimize Israel and foster anti‐Semitism on
college campuses that I mentioned when we spoke is gaining ground at universities across the
country, probably in Indiana.  This attack on Israel (and Jews) is just a prelude to an attack on all
western civilization and the freedom we cherish in this country. 
 
Gov. Bruce Rauner is taking a major step in countering this by supporting a bill they recently passed
unanimously in the IL House that also had a 49‐0 vote in the Senate in April.  The bill says that
Illinois will not do any business with companies that boycott or disinvest from Israel.  Attached is a
copy of the bill, and if you could get Wisconsin to pass a similar bill, it will have a major impact itself
and be a big step toward getting all states to pass such a bill. 
 
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
Regards,
 
 
 
Jack Miller
 

mailto:mpence1314@aol.com
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From:  Atterholt, Jim 
Sent:  Mon 7/27/2015 12:05 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Rose Thomas" <tomrose@ > 
Cc:  "Mike Pence" <MPENCE1314@aol.com>, "Hill, John (GOV)" <jhill@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: EMP Discussion per Joan Mandel 

On Jul 27, 2015, at 8:39 AM, Rose Thomas <tomrose@ > wrote:

Begin forwarded message:

Date: July 26, 2015 at 8:58:51 PM EDT
From: Carl Mills <mills14090@ >
To: tomrose@
Subject: EMP Discussion per Joan Mandel

Tom,
 
My long time research friend, Joan Mandel, suggested I contact you because of my
strong interest in meeting with Gov. Pence over the EMP issue of hardening the Indiana
electrical grid. Other nations have already accomplished hardening their grids. Congress
can't seem to get an EMP bill past the House. It is becoming more apparent that this job
will fall to the individual states. The clock continues ticking and we are on borrowed time.

As the Iran sanctions are lifted and the treaty in its final form, our U.S. electrical grid
vulnerability heads toward a critical point. Without going into more details here I think we
are sitting ducks. Based on research from others a fix is very doable. Thus my reason to



quickly reach Gov. Pence. 

I would especially like to meet with you first and to discuss this in greater detail.
Additionally, I have numerous research to prove all of my points.

Best regards,

Suzy Mills

It is easier to reach me by phone at 317­



From:  Rose Thomas 
Sent:  Mon 7/27/2015 12:10 PM (GMT­04:00) 
To:  "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc:  "Mike Pence" <MPENCE1314@aol.com>, "Hill, John (GOV)" <jhill@gov.in.gov> 
Bcc:   
Subject: Re: EMP Discussion per Joan Mandel 

On Jul 27, 2015, at 12:05 PM, Atterholt, Jim <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> wrote:

On Jul 27, 2015, at 8:39 AM, Rose Thomas <tomrose@ > wrote:

Begin forwarded message:

Date: July 26, 2015 at 8:58:51 PM EDT
From: Carl Mills <mills14090@ >
To: tomrose@

mailto:jatterholt@gov.IN.gov


Subject: EMP Discussion per Joan Mandel

Tom,
 
My long time research friend, Joan Mandel, suggested I contact you 
because of my strong interest in meeting with Gov. Pence over the EMP 
issue of hardening the Indiana electrical grid. Other nations have already 
accomplished hardening their grids. Congress can't seem to get an EMP 
bill past the House. It is becoming more apparent that this job will fall to the
individual states. The clock continues ticking and we are on borrowed time.

As the Iran sanctions are lifted and the treaty in its final form, our U.S. 
electrical grid vulnerability heads toward a critical point. Without going into 
more details here I think we are sitting ducks. Based on research from 
others a fix is very doable. Thus my reason to quickly reach Gov. Pence. 

I would especially like to meet with you first and to discuss this in greater 
detail. Additionally, I have numerous research to prove all of my points.

Best regards,

Suzy Mills

It is easier to reach me by phone at 317



Scott.A.Milkey

From: mrp
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 9:13 AM
To: Triol, Shelley;Lloyd, Matthew;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Fwd: June 2015 Employment Report
Attachments: June 2015 Employment Report.pdf; ATT00001.htm

Matt 
I thought the unemployment numbers are coming out next Tuesday?  
 
Let's be sure and tweet and celebrate the drop in unemployment below 5%. 
 

 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "George, Cindy" <cgeorge@dwd.IN.gov> 
To: "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov>, "Bailey, Brian (OMB)" <bbailey@gov.in.gov>, 
"Brothersbridge, Tonya J" <TBrothersBridge@lg.IN.gov>, "Gras, Abby S" 
<AGras@iedc.IN.gov>, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov>, "Mantravadi, Adarsh V" 
<AMantravadi@gov.IN.gov>, "McGrath, Danielle" <DMcGrath@gov.IN.gov>, "mrp" 
<MRPGOV@gov.IN.gov>, "Schpok, Jacob" <JSchpok@osbe.in.gov>, "Shields, Eric" 
<EShields@iedc.IN.gov>, "sje" <SJE@lg.IN.gov>, "Smith, Victor P" <VSmith@iedc.IN.gov>, 
"Triol, Shelley" <STriol@gov.IN.gov>, "Vincent, Micah" <mvincent@gov.in.gov>, "Zarazee, 
Megan" <mzarazee@ocra.IN.gov> 
Cc: "Baker, Lou Ann (DWD)" <lbaker@dwd.IN.gov>, "Frank, Joseph" <JFrank@dwd.IN.gov>, 
"Leeuw, Allison A" <ALeeuw@dwd.IN.gov>, "Ensley, Al" <AEnsley@dwd.IN.gov>, "Gill, 
Jeffrey M" <JMGill@dwd.IN.gov> 
Subject: June 2015 Employment Report 

Please find attached the June 2015 Employment Report.  This information is embargoed until the 
Press Release on Tuesday, July 21, 2015 at 10:00 am, please keep data confidential until then. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
Cindy George 
Executive Assistant to Commissioner 
Indiana Department of Workforce Development 
10 N. Senate Avenue 
Indianapolis, IN  46204 
317-232-7676 
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Indiana Department of Workforce Development  
June 2015 Employment Report 

Key Points 

• Indiana’s June seasonally adjusted unemployment rate declined by 0.2 to 4.9%.  Indiana’s rate is 
down (-1.0%) from June 2014. The national rate was 5.3% in June. (LAUS, a survey of approximately 
1,000 Indiana households). 

• The decline in the unemployment rate in June was similar to May’s trend - driven by employment gains 
of 11,378 and unemployment declines of -9,152.  This was an overall gain in the labor force of 2,226 
over the month. Indiana's labor force participation rate remained unchanged at 63.3%, which remains 
above the US labor force participation rate of 62.6% in June (a decline of 0.3% over the month 
nationally). (LAUS) 
 

• Indiana's labor force is up 16,726 over the year, and has gained 65,973 since January 2013. Indiana’s 
labor force stands at 3,248,274. Indiana’s unemployment is down by 107,904 since January 2013, 
which is a decline of (41%). (LAUS) 
 

• Indiana’s private sector employment declined by 3,800 in June, (-0.1%).  US private employment 
grew by 223,000 over the month, a rate of (0.2%).  (CES) 

• Indiana private sector employment is up 51,900 from a year ago, June 2014. This is annual growth 
of (2.0%).   Nationally, private sector employment is up by 2.5% over the year. (CES, a survey of 
approximately 5,000 Indiana employers) 

• Since January 2013 Indiana private employment has grown by 114,400 (4.6%).   Private sector 
monthly job growth has averaged about 3,900 over the last two years with 23 of 30 months showing 
positive job growth. (CES)     

 

Private Sector Jobs 

• Key sectors showing job increases in June: 
o Manufacturing gained 1,600 and Leisure and Hospitality gained 1,300 in June.  
o Construction grew by 200 over the month. 

• Key sectors showing job decreases in June: 
o Trade, Transportation, and Utilities drove the over the month losses, down by 3,600. There 

were also losses of 1,900 in other services, and other health and educational services sectors 
showed small declines and softness over the month.  
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Indiana and National Net Job Creation Comparison (000s) 
 

 
 

Indiana gains in Manufacturing are outpacing the national average for all three time frames, over the month, 
over the year and year to date.  Gains in many other sectors are softer than the national trend over the year 
and over the month.  Trade remains strong over the year, yet showed softness for Indiana in June. 
Construction shows the most significant lag over the year, compared to the national trends. 
 

IN Employment Change Over the Month, Year-to-Date and Over the Year (seasonally adjusted)

Industry June 2014
December 

2014 May 2015 June 2015
Month

Change
Y-to-D

Change
Y-to-Y

Change

Private Educational & Health Services 439.5 441.5 446.8 445.9 -0.9 4.4 6.4

.....Private Educational Services 65.2 65.5 65.9 62.4 -3.5 -3.1 -2.8

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 374.3 376.0 380.9 383.5 2.6 7.5 9.2

Manufacturing 506.8 514.6 519.7 521.3 1.6 6.7 14.5

Professional & Business Services 320.1 328.2 323.8 323.9 0.1 -4.3 3.8

Financial Activities 127.8 130.9 128.0 127.4 -0.6 -3.5 -0.4

Construction 123.5 122.9 122.7 122.9 0.2 0.0 -0.6

Leisure and Hospitality 294.5 295.0 299.8 301.1 1.3 6.1 6.6

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 574.4 581.5 599.1 595.5 -3.6 14.0 21.1

.....Trade 436.7 440.1 451.0 447.2 -3.8 7.1 10.5

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 137.7 141.4 148.1 148.3 0.2 6.9 10.6

All Other 168.8 168.3 171.2 169.3 -1.9 1.0 0.5

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,555.4 2,582.9 2,611.1 2,607.3 -3.8 24.4 51.9

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 428.6 429.2 429.2 436.9 7.7 7.7 8.3

Total Nonfarm 2,984.0 3,012.1 3,040.3 3,044.2 3.9 32.1 60.2

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 117,052.0 118,690.0 119,709.0 119,932.0 223.0 1,242.0 2,880.0

Industry

Indiana
Month to 

Month
U.S. Month 

to Month

Indiana
vs

U.S. 
Change

Indiana 
Year-to-

Date
U.S. Year-

to-Date

Indiana vs 
U.S. 

Change

Indiana 
Year-to-

Year
U.S. Year-

to-Year

Private Educational & Health Services -0.2% 0.2% UNDER 1.0% 1.4% UNDER 1.5% 2.7%

.....Private Educational Services -5.3% -0.1% UNDER -4.7% 0.4% UNDER -4.3% 1.0%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 0.7% 0.3% OVER 2.0% 1.6% OVER 2.5% 3.0%

Manufacturing 0.3% 0.0% OVER 1.3% 0.3% OVER 2.9% 1.3%

Professional & Business Services 0.0% 0.3% UNDER -1.3% 1.6% UNDER 1.2% 3.5%

Financial Activities -0.5% 0.2% UNDER -2.7% 1.0% UNDER -0.3% 2.0%

Construction 0.2% 0.0% OVER 0.0% 1.7% UNDER -0.5% 4.2%

Leisure and Hospitality 0.4% 0.1% OVER 2.1% 1.2% OVER 2.2% 2.9%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities -0.6% 0.2% UNDER 2.4% 0.9% OVER 3.7% 2.0%

.....Trade -0.8% 0.2% UNDER 1.6% 0.9% OVER 2.4% 1.8%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utils 0.1% 0.3% UNDER 4.9% 0.8% OVER 7.7% 3.1%

All Other -1.1% 0.2% UNDER 0.6% 0.0% OVER 0.3% 1.0%

NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN

Total Private -0.1% 0.2% UNDER 0.9% 1.0% UNDER 2.0% 2.5%

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 1.8% 0.0% OVER 1.8% 0.0% OVER 1.9% 0.3%

Total Nonfarm 0.1% 0.2% UNDER 1.1% 0.9% OVER 2.0% 2.1%

IN Employment Change Compared to the U.S.

Indiana vs 
U.S. 

Change

UNDER

UNDER

UNDER

OVER

UNDER

UNDER

UNDER

UNDER

UNDER

OVER

UNDER

OVER

OVER

OVER

UNDER

UNDER
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  Indiana Job Creation (Number Change in 000’s) since Peak and Trough 

 
 
Indiana Job Creation (Percent Change) since Peak and Trough 

 

IN Statewide Estimates (seasonally adjusted) --  June 2015

Supersector

Private 
Empl. 
Peak 

March 
2000

Private 
Empl. 

Trough 
July 2009 May 2015 June 2015

Change 
Since 
Peak

Change 
Since 
Trough

Month to 
Month 
Change

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 446.8 445.9 115.8 34.8 -0.9

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 65.9 62.4 10.2 -0.9 -3.5

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 380.9 383.5 105.6 35.7 2.6

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 519.7 521.3 -149.8 93.4 1.6

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 323.8 323.9 63.4 68.0 0.1

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 128.0 127.4 -18.3 -3.3 -0.6

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.7 122.9 -31.2 6.4 0.2

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 299.8 301.1 33.9 24.3 1.3

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 599.1 595.5 -22.0 49.8 -3.6

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 451.0 447.2 -37.9 25.6 -3.8

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 148.1 148.3 15.9 24.2 0.2

All Other 166.4 158.6 171.2 169.3 2.9 10.7 -1.9

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,611.1 2,607.3 -5.3 284.1 -3.8

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.2 436.9 32.3 2.4 7.7

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,040.3 3,044.2 27.0 286.5 3.9

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,098.0 119,709.0 119,932.0 9,059.0 11,834.0 223.0

IN Statewide Estimates (seasonally adjusted) --  June 2015

Supersector

Private 
Empl. 
Peak 

March 
2000

Private 
Empl. 

Trough 
July 2009 May 2015 June 2015

% Chg. 
Since 
Peak

% Chg. 
Since 
Trough

% Month 
to Month 
Change

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 446.8 445.9 35.1% 8.5% -0.2%

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 65.9 62.4 19.5% -1.4% -5.3%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 380.9 383.5 38.0% 10.3% 0.7%

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 519.7 521.3 -22.3% 21.8% 0.3%

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 323.8 323.9 24.3% 26.6% 0.0%

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 128.0 127.4 -12.6% -2.5% -0.5%

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.7 122.9 -20.2% 5.5% 0.2%

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 299.8 301.1 12.7% 8.8% 0.4%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 599.1 595.5 -3.6% 9.1% -0.6%

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 451.0 447.2 -7.8% 6.1% -0.8%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 148.1 148.3 12.0% 19.5% 0.1%

All Other 166.4 158.6 171.2 169.3 1.7% 6.7% -1.1%

NaN NaN NaN

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,611.1 2,607.3 -0.2% 12.2% -0.1%

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.2 436.9 8.0% 0.6% 1.8%

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,040.3 3,044.2 0.9% 10.4% 0.1%

NaN NaN NaN

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,098.0 119,709.0 119,932.0 8.2% 10.9% 0.2%
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Private Sector Growth – IN %  

 

Since the low point of employment (July 2009), private sector employment growth in Indiana has 
surpassed the U.S. (12.2% vs. 10.9%).   

 

Since Indiana’s high point of employment (March 2000), private sector employment growth in Indiana 
has lagged the U.S. (-0.2% vs. 8.2%). 
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Production Worker Hours  

 

• Average weekly hours for Indiana manufacturing workers declined by 0.5 to 42.1 in June.  Nationally, 
average weekly hours were 41.9 (increase of 0.1).  Hours above 42.0 weekly are considered a positive 
economic indicator as employers typically cut hours before jobs. (CES) 

Unemployment Rate   

• Indiana’s rate declined to 4.9% in June.  Lower than that national rate, yet slightly higher than the 
broader Midwest state average, when considering the low unemployment rates in the Dakotas and 
Nebraska. 
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Neighboring Midwestern Unemployment Rates – Seasonally Adjusted 
 

 
 
Indiana’s unemployment rate declined to 4.9% in June.  Michigan stands unchanged at 5.5%.  Ohio’s rate was 
also unchanged at 5.2%. Kentucky’s rate is 5.1%.   The rate in Illinois is unreported prior to official release.  
Indiana’s rate is below the rates of the US and our neighboring states.  Most of the monthly movement in LAUS 
rates were not significant this month. 
     

CES/LAUS Point in Time Comparison – Seasonally Adjusted 

 

LAUS unemployed estimates declined by 9,152 over the month.  With employment gains of 11,378, this led to 
a slight increase of 2,226 in the labor force overall.  Both series are moving in the same direction with 
employment gains in June when including Total Nonfarm.  CES total nonfarm payroll employment showed 
gains of 3,900 over the month.   

 

 

 

Current Employment Statistics (CES) and Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS) 

Point in Time Comparison

March 2000 
(Peak)

July 2009 
(Trough) May 2015 June 2015

Change
Peak

Change
Trough

Change
Prev.

 Month

CES Employed 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,040.3 3,044.2 27.0 286.5 3.9
LAUS Employed 3,039.1 2,847.9 3,079.0 3,090.4 51.3 242.5 11.4
LAUS Unemployed 102.9 340.8 167.0 157.9 55.0 -182.9 -9.2
Labor Force 3,142.1 3,188.7 3,246.0 3,248.3 106.2 59.6 2.2
Unemployment Rate 3.3 10.7 5.1 4.9 1.6 -5.8 -0.2
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Labor Force 

 

Indiana’s labor force has grown 1.9% since the trough, with the US Labor Force growing 1.6% over this time 
frame.  Indiana’s labor force has increased by 65,973 since January 2013 (2.1%). 

Employment to Population Ratio 

Indiana’s employment to population ratio increased by 0.1 from 60.1% to 60.2% in June.  This is an increase of  
0.5 over the year.  The US employment to population rate stands at 59.3% and has gained 0.3% since last 
June. The broader list of Midwest BLS States shows a different trend with stronger employment to population, 
given strong employment growth in oil and manufacturing related industries for some of these states.  

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: George, Cindy
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 8:52 AM
To: Atterholt, Jim;Bailey, Brian (OMB);Brothersbridge, Tonya J;Gras, Abby S;Lloyd, 

Matthew;Mantravadi, Adarsh V;McGrath, Danielle;mrp;Schpok, Jacob;Shields, 
Eric;sje;Smith, Victor P;Triol, Shelley;Vincent, Micah;Zarazee, Megan

Cc: Baker, Lou Ann (DWD);Frank, Joseph;Leeuw, Allison A;Ensley, Al;Gill, Jeffrey M
Subject: June 2015 Employment Report
Attachments: June 2015 Employment Report.pdf

Please find attached the June 2015 Employment Report.  This information is embargoed until the Press Release on 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015 at 10:00 am, please keep data confidential until then. 
 
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

From: George, Cindy on behalf of Braun, Steven J
Sent: Tuesday, June 16, 2015 9:38 AM
To: Atkins, Chris;Atterholt, Jim;Bailey, Brian (OMB);Brothersbridge, Tonya J;Keefer, Sean 

(GOV);Lloyd, Matthew;Mantravadi, Adarsh V;mrp;Prentice, Katelyn;Schpok, Jacob;Shields, 
Eric;sje;Smith, Victor P;Triol, Shelley;Vincent, Micah;Zarazee, Megan

Cc: Baker, Lou Ann (DWD);Frank, Joseph;Leeuw, Allison A;Ensley, Al;Gill, Jeffrey M
Subject: May 2015 Employment Report
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
May 2015 Employment Report 

Key Points 

• Indiana’s May seasonally adjusted unemployment rate declined by 0.3 to 5.1%.  Indiana’s rate is 
down (-0.9%) from May 2014. The national rate was 5.5% in May. (LAUS, a survey of approximately 1,000 
Indiana households). 

• The decline in the unemployment rate was driven by employment gains of 10,666 and unemployment 
declines of -9,275.  This was an overall gain in the labor force of 1,391 over the month. Indiana's labor 
force participation rate remained unchanged at 63.3%, this remains above the US labor force 
participation rate which was 62.9% in May. (LAUS) 
 

• Indiana's labor force is up by 19,333 over the year, and is up by 64,043 since January 2013. Indiana’s 
labor force stands at 3,246,344. Indiana’s unemployment is down by 98,746 since January 2013, this is 
a decline of (37%). (LAUS) 
 

• Indiana’s private sector gained 9,700 jobs in May, (0.4%).  US private employment grew by 262,000 
over the month, a rate of (0.2%).  (CES) 

• Indiana private sector employment is up 58,900 from a year ago, May 2014. This is annual growth 
of (2.3%).  (CES, a survey of approximately 5,000 Indiana employers) 

• Since January 2013 Indiana private employment has grown by 119,400 (4.8%).   Private sector 
monthly job growth has averaged about 4,100 over the last two years with 23 of 29 months showing 
positive job growth. (CES)     

 

Private Sector Jobs 

• Key sectors showing job increases in May: 
o Trade, Transportation and Utilities 2,500, Leisure and Hospitality 3,100, and Manufacturing 

gained 2,000. 
• Key sectors showing job decreases in May: 

o Financial Activities declined by -500 and private educational services down by -300. 
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Indiana and National Net Job Creation Comparison (000s) 
 

 
 

Indiana gains in Manufacturing, and in Trade, Transportation, & Utilities (TTU) are outpacing the national 
average for all three time frames, over the month, over the year and year to date.  Gains in many other sectors 
are softer than the national trend over the year.  Construction employment levels are still flat over the year in 
Indiana, the only sector not showing increases over this time frame. 
 

Industry May 2014
December 

2014 April 2015 May 2015
Month

Change
Y-to-D

Change
Y-to-Y

Change

Private Educational & Health Services 438.5 441.5 446.2 447.1 0.9 5.6 8.6

.....Private Educational Services 64.9 65.5 66.4 66.1 -0.3 0.6 1.2

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 373.6 376.0 379.8 381.0 1.2 5.0 7.4

Manufacturing 505.4 514.6 517.6 519.6 2.0 5.0 14.2

Professional & Business Services 323.3 328.2 322.7 323.8 1.1 -4.4 0.5

Financial Activities 127.7 130.9 129.5 129.0 -0.5 -1.9 1.3

Construction 122.5 122.9 122.4 122.4 0.0 -0.5 -0.1

Leisure and Hospitality 293.5 295.0 297.6 300.7 3.1 5.7 7.2

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 573.9 581.5 596.4 598.9 2.5 17.4 25.0

.....Trade 436.2 440.1 449.2 450.9 1.7 10.8 14.7

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 137.7 141.4 147.2 148.0 0.8 6.6 10.3

All Other 168.6 168.3 170.2 170.8 0.6 2.5 2.2

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,553.4 2,582.9 2,602.6 2,612.3 9.7 29.4 58.9

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 426.7 429.2 429.4 430.5 1.1 1.3 3.8

Total Nonfarm 2,980.1 3,012.1 3,032.0 3,042.8 10.8 30.7 62.7

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 116,780.0 118,690.0 119,476.0 119,738.0 262.0 1,048.0 2,958.0

IN Employment Change Over the Month, Year-to-Date and Over the Year (seasonally adjusted)

Industry

Indiana
Month to 

Month
U.S. Month 
to Month

Indiana
vs

U.S. 
Change

Indiana 
Year-to-

Date
U.S. Year-to-

Date

Indiana vs 
U.S. 

Change

Indiana 
Year-to-

Year
U.S. Year-to-

Year

Private Educational & Health Services 0.2% 0.3% UNDER 1.3% 1.3% UNDER 2.0% 2.8%

.....Private Educational Services -0.5% 0.5% UNDER 0.9% 1.2% UNDER 1.8% 2.2%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 0.3% 0.3% OVER 1.3% 1.3% OVER 2.0% 2.9%

Manufacturing 0.4% 0.1% OVER 1.0% 0.3% OVER 2.8% 1.5%

Professional & Business Services 0.3% 0.3% OVER -1.3% 1.2% UNDER 0.2% 3.5%

Financial Activities -0.4% 0.2% UNDER -1.5% 0.8% UNDER 1.0% 2.0%

Construction 0.0% 0.3% UNDER -0.4% 1.8% UNDER -0.1% 4.5%

Leisure and Hospitality 1.0% 0.4% OVER 1.9% 1.1% OVER 2.5% 3.0%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 0.4% 0.2% OVER 3.0% 0.7% OVER 4.4% 2.1%

.....Trade 0.4% 0.2% OVER 2.5% 0.8% OVER 3.4% 1.9%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utils 0.5% 0.3% OVER 4.7% 0.5% OVER 7.5% 3.0%

All Other 0.4% -0.2% OVER 1.5% -0.3% OVER 1.3% 0.9%

NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN

Total Private 0.4% 0.2% OVER 1.1% 0.9% OVER 2.3% 2.5%

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 0.3% 0.1% OVER 0.3% 0.2% OVER 0.9% 0.5%

Total Nonfarm 0.4% 0.2% OVER 1.0% 0.8% OVER 2.1% 2.2%

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

 

IN Statewide Estimates (seasonally adjusted) --  May 2015

Supersector

Private 
Empl. 
Peak 

March 
2000

Private 
Empl. 

Trough 
July 2009 April 2015 May 2015

Change 
Since 
Peak

Change 
Since 
Trough

Month to 
Month 
Change

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 446.2 447.1 117.0 36.0 0.9

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 66.4 66.1 13.9 2.8 -0.3

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 379.8 381.0 103.1 33.2 1.2

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 517.6 519.6 -151.5 91.7 2.0

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 322.7 323.8 63.3 67.9 1.1

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 129.5 129.0 -16.7 -1.7 -0.5

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.4 122.4 -31.7 5.9 0.0

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 297.6 300.7 33.5 23.9 3.1

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 596.4 598.9 -18.6 53.2 2.5

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 449.2 450.9 -34.2 29.3 1.7

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 147.2 148.0 15.6 23.9 0.8

All Other 166.4 158.6 170.2 170.8 4.4 12.2 0.6

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,602.6 2,612.3 -0.3 289.1 9.7

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.4 430.5 25.9 -4.0 1.1

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,032.0 3,042.8 25.6 285.1 10.8

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,098.0 119,476.0 119,738.0 8,865.0 11,640.0 262.0

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

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 446.2 447.1 35.4% 8.8% 0.2%

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 66.4 66.1 26.6% 4.4% -0.5%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 379.8 381.0 37.1% 9.5% 0.3%

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 517.6 519.6 -22.6% 21.4% 0.4%

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 322.7 323.8 24.3% 26.5% 0.3%

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 129.5 129.0 -11.5% -1.3% -0.4%

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.4 122.4 -20.6% 5.1% 0.0%

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 297.6 300.7 12.5% 8.6% 1.0%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 596.4 598.9 -3.0% 9.7% 0.4%

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 449.2 450.9 -7.1% 6.9% 0.4%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 147.2 148.0 11.8% 19.3% 0.5%

All Other 166.4 158.6 170.2 170.8 2.6% 7.7% 0.4%

NaN NaN NaN

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,602.6 2,612.3 0.0% 12.4% 0.4%

Government (Includes Public Schools & 
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.4 430.5 6.4% -0.9% 0.3%

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,032.0 3,042.8 0.8% 10.3% 0.4%

NaN NaN NaN

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,098.0 119,476.0 119,738.0 8.0% 10.8% 0.2%
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Private Sector Growth – IN %  

 

Since the low point of employment (July 2009), private sector employment growth in Indiana has 
surpassed the U.S. (12.4% vs. 10.8%).   

 

Since Indiana’s high point of employment (March 2000), private sector employment growth in Indiana 
has lagged the U.S. (-0.0% vs. 8.0%). 
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Production Worker Hours  

 

• Average weekly hours for Indiana manufacturing workers increased by 0.3 to 42.6.  Nationally, average 
weekly hours were 41.8 (increase of 0.1).  Hours above 42.0 weekly are considered a positive 
economic indicator as employers typically cut hours before jobs. This is the eighth straight month hours 
have been above or nearly 42 per week. (CES) 

Unemployment Rate   

• Indiana’s rate declined to 5.1% in May.  Remains slightly higher than the broader Midwest state 
average, when considering the low unemployment rates in the Dakotas and Nebraska. 
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Neighboring Midwestern Unemployment Rates – Seasonally Adjusted 
 

 
 
Indiana’s unemployment rate declined to 5.1% in May.  Michigan and the US rate stand at 5.5%.  Michigan 
saw a slight increase, other neighbor states experienced no significant change this month in their rates. Ohio’s 
rate stands at 5.2%. Kentucky’s rate is 5.1%.   The rate in Illinois is unreported prior to official release.   
     

CES/LAUS Point in Time Comparison – Seasonally Adjusted 

 

LAUS unemployed estimates declined by 9,275 over the month.  With employment gains of 10,666, this led to 
a slight increase of 1,391 in the labor force overall.  Both series are moving in the same direction with 
employment gains in May.  CES total nonfarm payroll employment showed gains of 10,800 over the month 
(Total Nonfarm).   

 

 

 

Current Employment Statistics (CES) and Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS) 


Point-in-Time Comparison

March 2000 
(Peak)

July 2009 
(Trough) April 2015 May 2015

Change
Peak

Change
Trough

Change
Prev.

 Month

CES Employed 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,032.0 3,042.8 25.6 285.1 10.8
LAUS Employed 3,039.1 2,847.9 3,068.6 3,079.3 40.2 231.4 10.7
LAUS Unemployed 102.9 340.8 176.3 167.0 64.1 -173.7 -9.3
Labor Force 3,142.1 3,188.7 3,245.0 3,246.3 104.3 57.7 1.4
Unemployment Rate 3.3 10.7 5.4 5.1 1.8 -5.6 -0.3
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Labor Force 

 

Indiana’s labor force has grown 1.8% since the trough, with the US Labor Force growing 1.9% over this time 
frame.  Indiana’s labor force has increased by 64,043 since January 2013 (2.0%). 

 

Employment to Population Ratio 

Indiana’s employment to population ratio increased by 0.2 from 59.9% to 60.1% in May.  This is an increase of  
0.5 over the year, similar to the growth rate for the US.  The US employment to population rate stands at 
59.4%. The broader list of Midwest BLS States shows a different trend with stronger employment to population, 
given strong employment growth in oil and manufacturing related industries for some of these states.  
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Study: Indiana has a light bite in business taxes 
Only six states have lighter business tax burden than Indiana 
 
 Jeff Swiatek, jeff.swiatek@indystar.com6:51 a.m. EDT June 12, 2015 
 
 
Its economic growth might be lagging much of the nation, but at least Indiana can boast of low business taxes. 
 
A day after new data showed Indiana's economy grew at a feeble 0.4 percent rate last year, a new study spotlights the 
Hoosier state for having the seventh lowest tax burden for businesses. 
 
The report by Anderson Economic Group shows businesses in Indiana paid just 7.5 percent of their pre-tax gross 
operating surplus in state and local taxes in 2013. Only six other states (none in the Midwest) levy a lighter tax burden 
on business. 
 
Indiana's relatively favorable business tax climate has long been a selling point for Indiana governors when they shop the 
state to companies. 
 
In fact, this week, Gov. Mike Pence's business development team ran an ad in the Wall Street Journal trying to lure 
Connecticut businesses to Indiana. 
 
Indiana pledged in the full-page ad to "offer our support in the wake of Connecticut's looming tax increase, because 
friends don't let friends pay higher taxes." 
 
The ad specifically mentions two big companies, General Electric and Aetna, that publicly said they'd consider leaving 
Connecticut if the tax increases included in a two-year, $40.3 billion Democratic budget become law. 
 
The only states with a lighter business tax burden than Indiana were Oregon, Louisiana, North Carolina, Utah, Delaware 
and South Dakota. The business tax burden is heaviest in Alaska and North Dakota (because of large tax revenues paid 
by oil and gas industries) and West Virginia and Maine. 
 
Connecticut ranked 26th, with a business tax burden of 9.1 percent. 
 
Indiana Secretary of Commerce Victor Smith said Thursday's news that a Louisville wine and spirits company will spend 
$12 million to buy and expand a wood mill in Spencer to make bourbon barrel staves is a sign that Indiana's low taxes 
are a real incentive for business expansion. 
 
"Indiana's recognition as the best state in the Midwest for business is more significant than a title," Smith said in a 
statement. "Brown-Forman's expansion across state lines is evidence that our efforts to lower taxes and reduce 
regulations are producing tangible results, attracting new investments and new companies to the Hoosier State." 
 



Pence spokeswoman Bridget Cleveland said the favorable business tax ranking is partly behind Indiana's recovering 
economy since the recession of 2007-09. 
 
"With employers committing to Indiana in record numbers in 2014, a growing labor force, and historic levels of 
employment on the horizon, it is clear that our economic policies are working for Hoosier businesses and families alike." 
 
Indiana Democratic Party spokesman Drew Anderson said the state's low business taxes haven't managed to revive what 
he termed Indiana's "sluggish" economy. 
 
"Indiana's economy still hasn't grown at an accelerated rate nor has it provided high wage jobs for the struggling middle 
class. Simply put, the state's economy is not reaching the 'historic' levels Governor Pence touts to the public. Instead ... 
Hoosier families are falling behind the rest of the nation." 
 
Call Star reporter Jeff Swiatek at (317)444-6483. Follow him on Twitter: @JeffSwiatek. 
 
 
Matt Lloyd 
Deputy Chief of Staff, Communications and Strategy 
Governor Mike Pence 
317  (cell) 
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Swarens: A trash-talking Indiana steps off the RFRA bench 
 
 Tim Swarens, tim.swarens@indystar.com7:16 a.m. EDT June 12, 2015 
 
It's strange to see aw-shucks, stare-at-your-feet Indiana develop an attitude. But I like it. 
Especially only a couple of months after everybody from the nation's chief executive, Barack Obama, to its chief 
theologian, Charles Barkley, bashed the state because of the self-inflicted chest wound known as the Religious Freedom 
Restoration Act. 
 
Most of us expected the state's economic development team to play defense for a long time — please don't cancel your 
convention, please don't skip our meeting, please return our phone calls. No, no, we really are a state that welcomes 
everybody. And, hey, in the meantime, can we throw in a couple of tax credits as snazzy house warming gifts? 
 
So it was a bit surprising to see a full-page ad in the Wall Street Journal on Wednesday inviting Connecticut-based 
companies General Electric, Aetna and Travelers to relocate their operations to Indiana. It was a brash, in-your-face 
move — from a player who just got off the end of the RFRA bench. 
 
Yet a bit of trash-talking is welcome. Hoosiers have apologized for far too long for not being from somewhere more 
glamorous. Like Wisconsin. 
 
In addition to the ad, Gov. Mike Pence sent a letter, lightly scented with the essence of pork tenderloin, inviting the 
companies' CEOs to drop in next time they're flying over the neighborhood. 
 
Connecticut wasn't selected at random, of course. Its governor, Dannell Malloy, recently helped push $1.1 billion in tax 
increases, including another $700 million in business taxes, through the state legislature. That "you'll-take-another-swat-
and-like-it" approach comes in a state that already has one of the worst business tax climates in the nation. 
 
Connecticut's latest tax hikes prompted executives from the three companies solicited in Indiana's Wall Street Journal ad 
to publicly object. General Electric even sent a letter to employees alerting them that it had formed a team to "look for 
another state with a more pro-business environment." 
 
Although Indiana wants to be that state, it's hard to imagine that GE would abandon Fairfield for Franklin. But that was 
not really the point of the ad. 
 
Instead, it's about trying to rebuild Indiana's brand, which suffered incalculable damage from the RFRA storm, and it's 
about gradually shifting the conversation, at least among business types, toward one of the state's strengths — its tax 
and regulatory environment. 
 
This isn't the first time Indiana leaders have overtly targeted businesses in another state. In 2011, the IEDC launched its 
"Illinoyed" campaign after our neighbors to the west jacked up taxes to levels that would embarrass payday loan 
operators. Since then, a few companies have hopped the Wabash, including Pioneer Oil which recently moved its 
headquarters from southern Illinois to Vincennes. 
 
In return, Illinois Gov. Bruce Rauner said this year that he intends to "rip the economic guts out of Indiana." 



Malloy, Connecticut's governor, wasn't quite so polite. 
 
He told the Hartford Courant. "I think what (Pence) should be saying is 'if you want your employees to be forced to live 
in a state with a bigoted governor, come to Indiana.'" 
 
Wow, now that's trash-talking. 
 
It's tempting to fire back. After all, Dannell Malloy is the governor of a state best known as one of New York's lesser 
suburbs. 
 
But let's not go there. Let Connecticutians — Connectivites? Connects? Cons? — deal with their own governor. 
 
Lord knows, we have enough problems dealing with our own. 
 
Contact Swarens at tim.swarens@indystar.com. Follow him on Twitter @tswarens. 
 
 
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
317-  (cell) 
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When the righteous are in authority, the people rejoice: but........................ 

God bless all your efforts for Indiana, Micah! 

I'm still in shock about Governor Pence insisting the Indiana legislature (that 'We the Hoosiers' voted for last 
November!) capitulate to the brownshirt tactics of a largely out-of-state 'tyranny of a minority' and to the 
economic blackmail of a few Indiana-based corporations and other monied special interests. 'Twas not a "fix" 
but a FLIP - a disenfranchisement of Hoosier voters!  

Randy Brown, Mooresville 
 
 
On Wed, Jun 3, 2015 at 3:08 PM, Micah Clark <micah@ > wrote: 
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 Call to Action 

 
Friends,  
 
     I have always shot straight with you.   This is the hardest email I have ever sent as 
the director of AFA of Indiana.    I cannot even begin to convey the heartbreak that 
comes with what I am about to share.   Yet, faith goes before friendship.  The calling 
before the crying. 
 
     The Indianapolis Star just reported that they have a copy of a letter, confirmed by 
event organizers that came from Governor Mike Pence's office, welcoming the Indy 
Pride homosexual festival and parade to Indianapolis. 
 
     Some folks thought otherwise, but I liked and respected Governor Mitch Daniels, 
yet when I disagreed on a fundamental core issue, I said so.   When he sent a 
welcome letter endorsing this hedonistic festival I spoke up and quickly burned my 
bridge with their staff.  You know that my admiration for Governor Pence and his staff 
runs even deeper and for years prior.    I may burn a bridge here again, yet out of 
respect for Gov. Daniels, for you my supporters at AFA-IN, and for the family for 
religious freedom and all that AFA-IN stands for . . . I must do this again. 
 
      Romans 6:13 says, “Do not offer any part of yourself to sin as an instrument of 



wickedness . . .” Ephesians 5:11 says, “Have nothing to do with the fruitless deeds of 
darkness, but rather expose them.”     I don't know how one can describe what goes 
on at the Indy Pride event and parades as anything but controversial, but why 
Governor Pence would welcome this at all, when not all events in Indianapolis receive 
a welcome letter from the Governor just boggles my mind, and it breaks my 
heart.   This is happening right when social conservatives and people of faith are 
already disgusted with the Republican party, politics, and many politicians.  This is like 
a stick in their eye, and for many, this will be a bridge they can no longer cross again 
on Election Day. 
 
      Governor Pence did not express support for the agenda of Indy Pride, in fact it was 
a rather benign letter, but the fact that it was sent at all, is a move that he, or his 
advisors, should not have even considered.  It wasn't politically necessary, or 
wise.  Everyone knows that Indiana is a good state and that people are free to do as 
they choose, but that does not mean such "freedoms" or all actions should be 
validated by government leaders.    (Already, homosexual activists are saying Gov. 
Pence's letter didn't go far enough.  There's a political lesson in and of itself - 
weakness is provocative. What did you gain from an all or nothing liberal group that 
doesn't like you to start with because of your Christian faith?  How much did you lose 
with your base? ) 
 
    Below is a picture of a recent Indy Pride parade, one of dozens from recent years 
that I have which would shock most Hoosiers.  These are not merely a few exceptions. 
Yet even if they were, .  . . well, all I can say is that this is NOT what I believe our 
state should be linked with in any way beyond basic public accommodations.  It is 
certainly not worthy of a letter from the Governor's office or worse, the Mayor of 
Indianapolis as its Grand Marshall, which is going to happen, but that is no big 
surprise.   
 
    Please pray for this event and those attending it. Pray for this situation, the 
Governor's advisors, and even for AFA of Indiana and myself for the grief I will take 
from a few for this sending email.   (I had no choice.) 
 
    Thank you for your understanding and for your support. 
 
Best regards, 
Micah Clark 
Executive Director 
 
Indy Pride Parade Floats 
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Lloyd, Matthew
Sent: Thursday, June 04, 2015 2:30 PM
To: mrp
Subject: RE: [Govstate] BBC: US manufacturing: how did Indiana power a revival?

Already done 
 

From: mrp  
Sent: Thursday, June 04, 2015 2:27 PM 
To: Lloyd, Matthew 
Cc: Lloyd, Matthew 
Subject: Re: [Govstate] BBC: US manufacturing: how did Indiana power a revival? 
 
Seems like we should get this around 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Jun 4, 2015, at 11:05 AM, "Lloyd, Matthew" <MLloyd@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

Hey Folks, 
  
I wanted to draw your attention to this article, “US manufacturing: how did Indiana power a revival” 
about Indiana’s manufacturing economy that’s running on BBC.com today.   
  
http://www.bbc.com/news/business-32925294 
  
Key excerpt: 
  
Now, manufacturing makes up an astounding 30% of the state's economic output - compared to 12% of 
overall US gross domestic product (GDP) - and produces almost everything from cars and motor homes 
to pharmaceuticals and biomedical devices. 
  
When indirect and induced jobs (that is, the retailers that choose to open up in a town to cater for 
manufacturing workers) are factored in, nearly two-thirds of the state's economic activity is due to 
manufacturing. 
  
Matt Lloyd 
Deputy Chief of Staff, Communications and Strategy 
Governor Mike Pence 
317  (cell) 
  

_______________________________________________ 
Govstate mailing list 
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

From: Govstate <govstate-bounces@lists.in.gov> on behalf of Lloyd, Matthew
Sent: Thursday, June 04, 2015 12:05 PM
To: Lloyd, Matthew
Subject: [Govstate] BBC: US manufacturing: how did Indiana power a revival?
Attachments: ATT00001.txt

Hey Folks, 
 
I wanted to draw your attention to this article, “US manufacturing: how did Indiana power a revival” about Indiana’s 
manufacturing economy that’s running on BBC.com today.   
 
http://www.bbc.com/news/business-32925294 
 
Key excerpt: 
 
Now, manufacturing makes up an astounding 30% of the state's economic output - compared to 12% of overall US gross 
domestic product (GDP) - and produces almost everything from cars and motor homes to pharmaceuticals and 
biomedical devices. 
 
When indirect and induced jobs (that is, the retailers that choose to open up in a town to cater for manufacturing 
workers) are factored in, nearly two-thirds of the state's economic activity is due to manufacturing. 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, May 21, 2015 10:59 AM
To: Atkins, Chris;Atterholt, Jim;Bailey, Brian (OMB);Brothersbridge, Tonya J;Denault, 

Christina;Keefer, Sean (GOV);Mantravadi, Adarsh V;mrp;Prentice, Katelyn;Schpok, 
Jacob;Shields, Eric;sje;Smith, Victor P;Zarazee, Megan

Cc: Baker, Lou Ann (DWD);Frank, Joseph;Leeuw, Allison A;Ensley, Al;Gill, Jeffrey M
Subject: April 2015 Employment Report
Attachments: April 2015 Employment Report.pdf

Please find attached the April 2015 Employment Report.  This information is embargoed until the Press Release on 
Wednesday, May 27, 2015 at 10:00 am, please keep data confidential until then. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Cindy George 
Executive Assistant to Commissioner 
Indiana Department of Workforce Development 
10 N. Senate Avenue 
Indianapolis, IN  46204 
317-232-7676 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Schlene, Eric J <eschlene@ >
Sent: Friday, May 08, 2015 9:26 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence;senator.alting@iga.in.gov;s22@iga.in.gov
Cc: Schlene, Eric J;Cleveland, Bridget;Brooks, Kara D;mlloyd@gov.in.gov;r26@iga.in.gov;r27

@iga.in.gov;s16@iga.in.gov;Bangert, Dave;ctc-
tribletter@chicagotribune.com;David.Rutter@ ;letters@nwi.com;mlwillis@

t;Ruth.Mitchell@nwi.com
Subject: Don' t allow bar at Dunes State Park - from Indianapolis Star, FOLLOWUP

Gov. Pence and Senator Alting, 
 
Don’t say I didn’t warn you. Now the Sierra Club is on board… and rightfully so. This has all the 
wonderful corruption and environmental elements the media love to exploit.  
 
Again, this is another fight we never had to have. Conservatism is more than building business base. 
It has to include proper stewardship of the resources we are entrusted with. It’s about doing the right 
thing, even when it means keeping our own in check.  
 
Governor, you have the power to bring this to an immediate halt and turn this into a defining moment 
for your administration. Stop this banquet hall sweetheart deal now.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Eric Schlene 
West Lafayette, IN 
 
 
cc. fyi 
 
 
From: Marianne Holland <mholland@ > 
Reply-To: "Hoosier Discussion, Alerts and Announcements" <HOOSIER-TOPICS@LISTS.SIERRACLUB.ORG> 
Date: Friday, May 8, 2015 at 5:32 AM 
To: <HOOSIER-TOPICS@LISTS.SIERRACLUB.ORG> 
Subject: FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: Statewide Groups Opposing New Banquet Hall on the Indiana Dunes State Park 
Beach 
 
NOTE: This HOOSIER-TOPICS discussion list is open to anyone. Messages 
        posted do not necessarily represent positions of the Sierra Club. 
----------------------------------------------------------------------- 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 

May 8, 2015 

  

MEDIA CONTACTS: 

Marianne Holland 



Hoosier Environmental Council 

317-702-4847 

  

Bowden Quinn 

Indiana Chapter Sierra Club 

317-695-3046. 

  

Kerwin Olson 

Citizens Action Coalition 

317-205-3535 

More Statewide Organizations Object to Dunes Pavilion Plans and 
Process            Statewide Groups Opposing New Banquet Hall on the Indiana Dunes State Park 

Beach 

 

(INDIANAPOLIS)- Three more statewide organizations --the Hoosier Environmental Council, Hoosier 
Chapter Sierra Club and Citizens Action Coalition – announced today that they have taken a position against an 
Indiana Department of Natural Resources (DNR) proposal to build a new banquet and conference facility on the 
beach at the Indiana Dunes State Park. Instead, the groups support a prior compromise – renovating the existing 
park pavilion-- which would have limited adverse impacts to the park, its visitors, and the natural resources it 
protects. 

 

The DNR signed a contract with Pavilion Partners LLC in February 2015 to rehabilitate the iconic old park 
pavilion building built in 1930, to build a family “comfort center” on the west side of the pavilion, and a new 
banquet hall on the east side.  The expanded pavilion/banquet center will harm the park’s beach environment by 
contributing more light pollution at night, creating an attractive --even deadly -- nuisance for birds given the 
banquet hall’s huge glass windows, and setting the stage for more beach-front development in the form of a 
hotel and marina (described in the developer’s original proposal as possible future projects at the site). The 
groups say the DNR and the Partners have been touting the project as a pavilion re-use project but omitted 
telling the public that the selected proposal included a new building being built next to the old one. “This was 
intentionally misleading on their part to keep the public out of the process after their experience in 2006,” said 
Bowden Quinn, chapter director of the Sierra Club’s Hoosier Chapter, referring to a battle between the locals 
and the DNR to build a hotel in the same general area. That proposal was withdrawn, and a compromise 
resulted which would have allowed only renovation of the existing pavilion.  

 

“Here is yet another conversion of public land to benefit private development interests,” said Tim Maloney, 
senior policy director for the Hoosier Environmental Council. “Dunes State Park and its beach are public lands 
and held in trust for the people of Indiana. With this project the developers will retain the majority of profits 



from the project, while paying a very cheap lease payment –no more than a family would pay for a 4 bedroom 
home -- for as long as 65 years.” 

 

Citizens Action Coalition executive director Kerwin Olson was critical of the lack of transparency on the plan. 
“The DNR and the developers have been negotiating this deal since 2012,” he said. “The public should have 
been advised then about the new building.” Olson said the plans were just made public in February. 

 

“The fact that the DNR would even consider building a new banquet hall with huge windows on the beach there 
shows how poorly thought out this was,” said Maloney. “The DNR just built a beautiful bird observation 
platform at the park, and now they are adding a new structure that may become a major bird hazard.” The Lake 
Michigan shoreline is critically important to millions of migratory birds, which use the shoreline as an 
important resting area. 

 

“The paltry amount of money the DNR will get from putting a private banquet hall on the most desirable real 
estate on Lake Michigan in Indiana amounts to a give-away of public land,” added Quinn. "We strongly object 
to DNR's secrecy, lack of transparency and failure to get adequate public participation, which are vital to any 
proposal to increase human impacts on our state's precious natural areas." 

The organizations are encouraging letters, emails, and phone calls to Governor Pence to cancel this 
project.  Contact information can be found at http://in.gov/gov/2333.htm 

 

 # # # 

 

About Hoosier Environmental Council: 

Founded more than thirty years ago, the Hoosier Environmental Council (HEC) is the largest statewide 
environmental policy organization in Indiana.  HEC works to advance solutions that are good for the 
environment and good for the economy. Visit hecweb.org for more information. You can follow HEC’s 
activities on Twitter: @hec_ed, and on Facebook at facebook.com/hecweb.    

About Sierra Club: 

Founded in 1892, the Sierra Club is America’s largest and most influential grassroots environmental 
organization, with more than 2.4 million members and supporters nationwide and more than 8,000 members in 
Indiana. In addition to helping people from all backgrounds explore nature and our outdoor heritage, the Sierra 
Club works to promote clean energy, safeguard the health of our communities, protect wildlife, and preserve 
our remaining wild places through grassroots activism, public education, lobbying, and legal action. 

About Citizens Action Coalition: 



Founded in 1974, Citizens Action Coalition is a grassroots organization representing more than 40,000 
members across Indiana. CAC’s mission is to initiate, facilitate and coordinate citizen action directed to 
improving the quality of life of all inhabitants of the State of Indiana through principled advocacy of public 
policies to preserve democracy, conserve natural resources, protect the environment, and provide affordable 
access to essential human services. CAC has saved rate payers more than $4 billion in excess utility charges si 
From: @K.ST Action: REJECT  
 
 
 

From: Schlene, Eric J  
Sent: Monday, May 04, 2015 4:30 PM 
To: 'senator.alting@iga.in.gov' 
Subject: RE: Eric Schlene has sent you - Don' t allow bar at Dunes State Park - from Indianapolis Star 
 
I’m not sure you do understand my concerns.  
 
Did you take the time to review the violation statistics on IDSP I was able to derive from raw data provided by Major 
Portteus at the DNR? It showed a 47% increase in drug and alcohol charges over four years at the IDSP. The Dunes is 
nothing like the other state parks. From May to August, it draws weekend revelers from all over greater Chicago. It can 
get very dangerous very quickly. More alcohol will mean more trouble for law enforcement that is over worked as it is.  
 
While any alcohol at IDSP is a bad idea because of the specific situation of this park, it’s the political nuances of the deal 
that are so troubling.  
 
Tantamount is this outrageous insider relationship between Pavilion Partners and key members of the state 
government. Tacking the IDSP permit onto 515 smacks of improper process to help precinct chair Chuck Williams and his 
personal agenda. This isn’t the Toll Road. That made sense. And Mitch wasn’t going to personally gain from it. There’s no 
way to sugar coat it, Williams will benefit from Pavilion Partners. And to any progressive in the media, it appears he is 
using his state contacts to line his pockets on this deal.  
 
I’m not some wild-eyed union liberal. I’m a conservative. I’m a life time Republican like you. But I’m from the region and 
know what rubs people north of Ridge Road. This Pavilion Partners deal is too far. The radicals are going to latch onto 
this and we’ll have another media mess to contend with. The opposition was busy petitioning and gathering followers at 
the Chesterton’s farmer’s market on Saturday. And signers are coming from all walks, from environmentalists to shop 
owners. There are already articles coming out of the Chicago Tribune making us look like country shysters.  
 
This legislative session is being portrayed as a national embarrassment. RFRL set the cause of conservatism back in 
Indiana. And now, when our state GOP could garner real credibility by showing it can police its own by throwing water 
on this crony deal, you’re going to turn a blind eye to this?  
 
I get it that the vote on 515 is on record. But it’s never too late to fix a mistake when you have more information. And it 
certainly is not too late to intervene to stop the Pavilion Partners’ banquet hall expansion for additional public input and 
review. Please sir, I beg you, find a way to put a moratorium on this DNR deal, at least until there’s more local buy in. 
The IDSP banquet expansion building is another battle we don’t need to fight. 
 
I welcome your questions, 
 
Eric 
 
-------------------------- 
 

From: senator.alting@iga.in.gov [mailto:senator.alting@iga.in.gov]  
Sent: Monday, May 04, 2015 2:51 PM 



To: Schlene, Eric J 
Subject: RE: Eric Schlene has sent you - Don' t allow bar at Dunes State Park - from Indianapolis Star 
 

Dear Eric, 

Thank you very much for your comments regarding Senate Bill 515 which partly deals with alcoholic beverages 
at the Indiana Dunes State Park. Your thoughts  are very important to me as they help me to continually be 
informed of the issues affecting our district. 

While I understand your concerns, I voted yes for this bill. The final version of the bill only allows alcohol 
within 100 feet of the pavilion. It has wide bi-partisan support, passing the Senate 40-5 and the House 95-2.  

Again, thank you for your comments. Please do not hesitate to reach out to me with any further questions or 
concerns regarding this or any other matter in the future. 

Sincerely, 
 
Ron Alting 
State Senator 
 
 
--------------------- 
 
 
 
From: Schlene, Eric J  
Sent: Thursday, April 23, 2015 3:45 PM 
To: mpence@gov.in.gov 
Subject: Please, no dunes park alcohol! No dunes park private banquet hall 
 
Governor, 
 
As a concerned Hoosier and fellow Republican, I urge you to bring an immediate halt to the plans of the Pavilion Partners 
to build a conference center adjacent to the historic pavilion at the Indiana Dunes State Park.  
  
Without sufficient feedback from local advocacy organizations or the public at large, the proposed concessions contract 
appears to be rushed through as a sweetheart deal to the former GOP county chairman.  
  
There is already a groundswell of push back in the Duneland area. There are sufficient news articles about FBI probes into 
the Porter county planning commission and elected officials to cast a pall of impropriety on this deal. 
  
Stepping in now would send a clear message that the Governor's office hears the people of Indiana and will shine the 
light of day on this deal. If it goes forward as the will of the people after REAL discussion, so be it. 
  
In addition, as a former neighbor to the state park, I am well aware of the numerous calls the ISP must make to the 
beach each summer. As out of state visitors increase, so do the problems they bring with them. Adding alcohol to the 
state park will only make the park less friendly to Hoosier families. 
  
Please sir, with respect and for the sake of my state and our party, I ask you to stop the DSP expansion. And, as a matter 
of recourse, veto the ill-advised Senate Bill 515 which would allow alcohol sales. 
 
Eric Schlene 



West Lafayette 
(Porter county land owner and former resident.) 
 
 
 
 
From: Schlene, Eric J  
Sent: Sunday, April 19, 2015 1:55 PM 
To: Chicago Tribune 
Subject: SB515: The bill Indiana Republicans want you to ignore 
 
I’m an Indiana Republican. And today I’m ashamed. 
  
The DNR is awarding a 35-year deal to GOP-connected investors, Pavilion Partners, at the Dunes State Park 
with little public input. What started as a concessions franchise in exchange for renovating the classic 1929 
beach pavilion, turned into a public land grab. Using falsehoods, the privateer’s architect deemed the 
landmark bathhouse as unadaptable, ignored the DNR mandate for ‘minimal additional construction,’ and 
chose the cheaper path to dwarf the iconic structure with a modern, multi-story banquet hall and covered 
plaza. 
  
Now, the legislature is passing SB515 allowing outdoor liquor on site. This clears the way for these cronies to 
run a taxpayer-supported beach bar.   
 
Today, state police often speed to the pavilion when weather and tempers get hot. Add alcohol and our beach 
may soon be unfit for Hoosier families. 
  
There is furor in Duneland. Local ecology organizations are now unified against this. This is the same 
community that rallied to stop NIPSCO’s nuclear plant. How did this sneak past them? Cronyism is my only 
answer.  Did you think they would sit by while you built a Senior Frog’s in the heart of their beach? 
  
Bad laws get vetoed. And this is bad law. Pavilion Partners’  agenda burdens local authorities to maintain 
peace. It disregards the park’s ecological and civic purpose. And it degrades a historical landmark to the golden 
era of progress in Northwest Indiana. 
  
Governor Pence should stop this nonsense before we get another national black eye. 
  
  
Eric Schlene 
West Lafayette 
(Porter County land owner and former resident) 
 
Sent from my Virgin Mobile phone. 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2015 9:41 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious freedom?

 
 

From: Erna Vanhelfteren [mailto:evhelft@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2015 7:14 PM 
To: robertvane@mikepence.com 
Subject: Religious freedom? 
 
Mr. Pence,  
 
You claim that your bill will protect the freedoms of religious people, but which religion do you have in mind? 
Nowhere in the bible does it tell us to ward off or refuse service to anyone who is not heterosexual.  
 
I am really disappointed and wonder what is next? You are allowing people, under the cover of being religious, 
to discriminate against others who are not like them. I understand that business owners have the right to refuse 
service to people, but would they also be allowed to refuse service to women or blacks, Muslims, Jews, 
Mexicans, Russians or smokers? Why not?  My friends in other states and abroad have all commented on this 
news in shock, and asked what kind of back-ward thinking part of The States this is.  I thought you were a well-
educated and responsible, caring man, but obviously not.  
 
Those “religious” people, whose rights you pretend to protect, are bigots. They are mean and evil, narrow-
minded souls, if indeed a soul they have. Are they not aware of the fact that being a homosexual or lesbian is 
not a choice; that many have fought a terrible fight within themselves before they could accept what and who 
they are? Many have lost people who once loved them dearly, but then gave them their back, supposedly 
because their religion cannot accept this other way of love.   
 
The Christian bible says to love thy neighbor and thy enemy, so why not a couple of people who love each other 
and mean no harm?  
Please reconsider this bill as it is harmful to innocent people and to the state you said you would serve. This bill 
only serves the few outspoken voices of people who hate. Do not listen to them, instead serve the ones who kept 
silent for too long. I was one of them and regret it, as are many others like me.  
 
This bill is an embarrassment. Save the two million dollars and invest it in teachers who work hard to make this 
a better state, in roads, in birth control for couples who are not able or willing to take care of a child they create. 
If you are going to spend two million dollars, spend them in Indiana, on flowers along the high way or other 
beautification projects. Please contact me if you need more ideas.  
 
Sincerely, 
Erna Vanhelfteren 

 
 

evhelft@   
(260)  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: CKBentley <pcnot@ >
Sent: Wednesday, April 08, 2015 5:25 PM
To: Governor Mike 

Pence;brateike@gov.in.gov;jjankowski@gov.in.gov;kaevans@gov.in.gov;lmills@gov.in.g
ov;mabecker@gov.in.gov;scjenkins@gov.in.gov;Brooks, Kara 
D;mspringer@gov.in.gov;Myers, Janille;Cleveland, Bridget;Denault, Christina;Martin, 
Joshua;gov@gov.in.gov;bsmith@gov.in.gov;Dowd, Jaclyn 
(DWD);cfgreen@gov.in.gov;Streeter, Ryan T;jburleson@gov.in.gov;Schmidt, Daniel 
W;cigreen@gov.in.gov

Subject: FW: Letter to the Editor, Evansville Courier & Press - Indiana's RFRA "Rework"

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-04-08 05-24PM.html
IQmailID: 8383948
IQpeopleID: 9236982

 
 
From: CKBentley [mailto:pcnot@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 4:08 PM 
Subject: FW: Letter to the Editor, Evansville Courier & Press - Indiana's RFRA "Rework" 
 

 
 

Dear Indiana Legislature, 
 
Please read Jim Bratton’s letter to the Evansville Courier and Press.  I am 
most grateful there were a few legislators with principle and moral 
conviction who stood up for God and Hoosier Christians.  
 
One of thousands of Hoosier Christians that got shafted by the Indiana 
Legislature, 
Kay Bentley 
 
 
----------------------------------------------------------- 
 



 
To the Editor: 
  
  
  
“Courage has just left the building at the Indiana State Capitol.” 
  
Effectively, the “fix” rework of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act (RFRA) Governor 
Mike Pence signed into law on March 26 will turn a bill designed as a shield against 
government force into a weapon of intimidation to people of faith. 
  
The RFRA in its first version was unremarkable; it followed the example of a 22 year-old 
federal law, and similar laws in 19 states, merely giving private citizens a chance to 
have their “day in court.” It did not create a “discrimination” problem – the leftist press 
invented that. 
  
Afraid of bad publicity and name calling, squeamish Indiana politicians surrendered their 
citizens’ religious liberty and freedom of conscience, under intimidation from hypocritical 
corporations, militant activists, and a dishonest press. 
  
Governor Pence’s inability to argue against a manufactured narrative pushed by 
the media apparently caused him to abandon the liberties of Hoosiers to Big Business 
interests in Indiana. He signed the “fix” bill, slipped out the back door, and left the 
country, avoiding any responsibility to defend the principles he was elected to uphold. 
  
Indiana State Representative Wendy McNamara’s (R-H76) comment in the Courier & 
Press made it sound as if she believed Indiana’s “hospitality” was more important than 
Hoosiers’ religious liberty. 
  
It is apparent that many of our legislators and our governor may need reminding that 
the Framers placed religious liberty first in the Bill of Rights. Hospitality isn’t mentioned 
once. 

  

 
 
Jim Bratten 
Evansville, IN 
 
 
 
  
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 9:45 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious freedom

 
 

From: c cm [mailto:cmmaria1@ ]  
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 9:53 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious freedom 
 
Clearly Mr. Pence has no knowledge of our Constitution. 
 "The fix that they came up with at the last minute was rushed to passage, and it actually creates more 
problems than it solves. It now says that sexual liberty should always trump religious liberty, and that’s not 
right." 
  
I wonder whether he would continue governing, showing a rush, panic in judgment, he does not fit to be a 
leader. 
  
He had an opportunity to "shine" but he panicked. Along with the other republicans... they are showing to be 
with no spine or brains to fight for our country. 
  
Disappointed, 
Mari 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 1:29 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Lawrence has posted a new update...

 
 
From: Donald Wilson [mailto:bigkabuda@ ]  
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 11:17 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Re: Lawrence has posted a new update... 
 
PS do you have a more General e-mail for the Governors office ...I pulled yours off a press release and I do not 
want to tie up your e-mail. 
Thanks Don 
 
On Mon, Apr 6, 2015 at 10:11 AM, Donald Wilson <bigkabuda@ > wrote: 

I do not know if you have seen this but they stopped the site after only 2 days. I believe this shows that people 
are upset over the bullying and non-tolerance over a opinion that differs from the LGBT agenda. Including a 
threat to Burn Down the business from a High School coach. I am sure that this is not the opinion of the 
majority of the LGBT community but this.. "Saul Alinsky" tactic should not be tolerated. It is an attack on First 
Amendment.  This is why the law was needed in the first place without the add on language.  Please forward to 
Gov Pence 
Thanks  
Don Wilson 
 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: GoFundMe <messages@gofundme.com> 
Date: Fri, Apr 3, 2015 at 8:19 PM 
Subject: Lawrence has posted a new update... 
To: bigkabuda@  

  

Stay involved and help Lawrence reach their goal by sharing the campaign.  
  

    

 
 

 

    

 

Hi Don!   
A new update has been posted to   

Support Memories Pizza  
  

 



  

Read the Update  
 

    
 

  

  

  

  

  

Why GoFundMe?  
  

 

  Users keep each donation received  

 

  No campaign deadlines or goal limits  

 

  No penalties for missing goal  

 

  Mobile-friendly campaigns  

 

  5-Minute customer support  

      



  
Need Help?  

 

  

GoFundMe  
PO Box 717798  

San Diego, CA 92171  
 

Not interested? Unsubscribe  

  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 1:27 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: the freedom act

 
 

From: David Landsbergen [mailto:dlandsbergen920@ ]  
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 11:12 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: the freedom act 
 
if the Governor makes changes in the bill he already signed, he is turning his back to all the Christian business 
owners 
and they will face enormous fines for not complying with the homosexual  crowd and thereby lose their 
business?????? 
 
Please do all you can to not allow him to renege and remain strong.  !  A blessed Easter to all of you    
 
 
David Landsbergen     dlandsbergen920@        Columbus,Ohio   



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 9:05 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act

 
 

From: micol26 [mailto:micol26@ ]  
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 8:34 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 
Hi 
 
Permit me to use this opportunity to congratulate and commend the state of Louisiana for their courage and 
stand on the above and I wish all American states would adopt this motion. We need freedom to make self 
decisions like this in the world and the central government is wrong to think they can impose laws that is 
contrary to laws of conscience.   
Let us all stand together as one to echo this to the rest of the world.  In Arab States omly one religion 
determines social and political life of both citizens and foreigners in their land but only in the west things are 
dome differently  and some of these things against those with good conscience.  Where has rationalism gone or 
is it now all about winning political mandates and approval.  Let's us not let evil to surpress good. Let every 
state in America practice what they believe in. Same way punitive measures vary from state to state so must 
liberty be practiced. America has a symbol and statute of liberty. Let us not allow those who love to play to the 
gallery presenting themselves as leaders of our nation intimidate us. They are there because of your votes and 
they are there to serve your interests and not theirs.  
 
Once again congratulations Indiana. 
 
 
Michael Chinyere 
London 
United Kingdom 
 
 
 
Sent from Samsung Mobile 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 8:37 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: STOP the RFRA "FIX" - Tell Gov. Pence to VETO

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Keith 7521 <keith7521@ > 
Date: April 3, 2015 at 8:10:51 AM EDT 
To: "mpence@gov.in.gov" <mpence@gov.in.gov>, "brateike@gov.in.gov" <brateike@gov.in.gov>, 
"jjankowski@gov.in.gov" <jjankowski@gov.in.gov>, "kaevans@gov.in.gov" <kaevans@gov.in.gov>, 
"lmills@gov.in.gov" <lmills@gov.in.gov>, "mabecker@gov.in.gov" <mabecker@gov.in.gov>, 
"scjenkins@gov.in.gov" <scjenkins@gov.in.gov>, "kbrooks@gov.in.gov" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov>, 
"jmyers@gov.in.gov" <jmyers@gov.in.gov>, "bcleveland@gov.in.gov" <bcleveland@gov.in.gov>, 
"cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, "jmartin@gov.in.gov" <jmartin@gov.in.gov>, 
"gov@gov.in.gov" <gov@gov.in.gov>, "jdowd@gov.in.gov" <jdowd@gov.in.gov>, "cfgreen@gov.in.gov" 
<cfgreen@gov.in.gov>, "rstreeter@gov.in.gov" <rstreeter@gov.in.gov>, "jburleson@gov.in.gov" 
<jburleson@gov.in.gov>, "dschmidt@gov.in.gov" <dschmidt@gov.in.gov>, "cigreen@gov.in.gov" 
<cigreen@gov.in.gov>, "ccrabtree@gov.in.gov" <ccrabtree@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: FW: STOP the RFRA "FIX" - Tell Gov. Pence to VETO 

This law does not need to be Fixed.  Why does government now bow down to the <1% of the population that 
causes knee-jerk reactions and Media Frenzies?  Don't be bullied by the hype! 
  

Date: Thu, 2 Apr 2015 17:19:00 -0500 
Subject: STOP the RFRA "FIX" - Tell Gov. Pence to VETO 
From: jim.bratten@  
To:  

Patriots: 
  
The "FIX" is in and it's ugly... and dangerous to our religious liberty: 
 
http://www.wnd.com/2015/04/indiana-doing-180-now-leaving-religious-defenseless/ 
  
IF this abomination reaches the governor's desk, it MUST be VETOED! 
Talk about diabolical... you are witness to the advance of tyranny through intimidation 
by the minority, as an elected body (the IGA) crumbles in fear. A lie has been sold 
by hard-left activists, promoted by state-run media and hypocritical corporations who 



care nothing for liberty, and purchased by weak elected officials who would rather live 
on their knees that stand boldly against the crush of  
t 
yranny. The liberty of Hoosiers has been sold!  
  
CALL Governor Pence and URGE that he VETO this "fix" - he MUST. Or Hoosiers will have 
to move to the nearest state that still has a governor with courage... Wisconsin. 
CALL 317-232-4567 - or e-mail the governor and his staff: 
  
mpence@gov.in.gov; brateike@gov.in.gov; jjankowski@gov.in.gov; kaevans@gov.in.gov; 
lmills@gov.in.gov; mabecker@gov.in.gov; scjenkins@gov.in.gov; kbrooks@gov.in.gov; 
jmyers@gov.in.gov; bcleveland@gov.in.gov; cdenault@gov.in.gov; jmartin@gov.in.gov; gov@gov.in.gov; 
jdowd@gov.in.gov; cfgreen@gov.in.gov; rstreeter@gov.in.gov; jburleson@gov.in.gov; 
dschmidt@gov.in.gov; cigreen@gov.in.gov; ccrabtree@gov.in.gov 
  
Take a stand for Religious Freedom and Freedom of Conscience in Indiana!  
  
Tell everyone to call and object to this sell-out of the First Amendment! And thank the 
mere handful of courageous souls in the State House who stood against this 
abandonment of Liberty this week. Then pray. 
  
God help our state... 
  
  
In Liberty, 
  

Jim Bratten 
Director, Hoosier Patriots 
Indiana State Co-Coordinator, Tea Party Patriots 
Co-Founder, Vanderburgh County Tea Party Patriots 
  
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Atterholt, Jim
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 8:35 PM
To: Michael Allen
Cc: Michael Allen;Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Re: RFRA

Points were all well taken Mike--it has been a challenging week. 
 
Jim  
James Atterholt 
Chief of Staff 
Governor Mike Pence  
jatterholt@gov.in.gov 
Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis 
Office: 317-232-1800 
 
On Apr 2, 2015, at 7:11 PM, "Michael Allen" <mealaw@ > wrote: 

Jim, 
 
I hope my emails were accepted in the spirit with which they were sent.  I am confident that 
Governor Pence and you are the right leaders to move the State forward from here.  At your 
request, I am always available to offer my perspective on this topic, adoption or anything else 
that you believe I can help with. 
 
I hope you and Governor Pence get some rest and enjoy this Easter weekend with your 
families.  I cannot imagine how taxed you are. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Mike 
 
On Apr 2, 2015, at 8:24 AM, Michael Allen <mealaw@ > wrote: 

Jim, 
 
I read with interest the latest Star article that states new language has 
been worked out.  According to the Star, the new language will clarify that 
the RFRA "cannot be used as a legal defense to discriminate against 
patrons based on their sexual orientation or gender identity."  That implies 
the State has the power to force an individual or small business to actively 
participate in a same-sex marriage ceremony, which is exactly the 
concern I and many other fair-minded Christians are concerned about.  In 
fact, I believe Chapter 581 of the City of Indianapolis's ordinances already 
would allow a person to file a complaint against a Christian who based on 
his religious beliefs and conscience declines to actively participate in a 
same sex wedding ceremony by declining to make a wedding cake or 
flower arrangement for the ceremony, photograph it or provide other types 



of goods or services that are part of the ceremony.  If the body authorized 
by the ordinance finds the person complained against has engaged in 
discrimination based on the example above (which I believe they would), it 
then has the power to order a remedy, including "[t]he restoration of 
complainant's losses incurred as a result of discriminatory treatment, as 
the adjudication committee or hearing officer may deem necessary to 
assure justice" and possibly the revocation of business licenses issued by 
the City.  This is a stunning power of the State to force someone to violate 
their religious beliefs in order to comply.  I appeal to you one last time to 
ensure the RFRA will continue to be available as a defense in a situation 
like this.  It may not appease all of the people attacking the State of 
Indiana (but I don't think what I've seen proposed will either), but it is 
certainly the right thing to do. 
 
Finally, I want to make clear the situation I am concerned about is narrow 
and confined to the situation above--that is allowing the LGBT agenda 
through the power of the State to force Christians to participate in 
weddings and other ceremonies that we believe would blaspheme 
traditional and well established religious ceremonies that are recognized 
by our religion.  I am not advocating the RFRA should be available as a 
defense to other forms of discrimination against gays and lesbians, 
including general denial of service at a restaurant or other public 
accommodations.  I believe that type of discrimination is directed at an 
individual and should not be allowed.  In fact, I do not believe a person 
who declines to participate in a same sex wedding or similar ceremony 
based on his or her religious beliefs is discriminating against an individual 
at all, they are simply exercise their religious freedom to refuse to 
participate in a ceremony that they honestly believe violates their religious 
beliefs and conscience.  That is a choice all Hoosiers and Americans of 
reasonable mind should understand and respect. 
 
Thanks for hearing me out. 
 
Mike 
 

 
From: "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
To: 'Michael Allen' <mealaw@ >  
Sent: Wednesday, April 1, 2015 12:50 PM 
Subject: RE: RFRA 
 
Points all well taken Mike—thanks for your input!  Hope all is well. 
  
Jim 
  
James Atterholt 
Chief of Staff 
Governor Mike Pence 
jatterholt@gov.in.gov 
Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis 
Office: 317-232-1800 
  
  



  
 

From: Michael Allen [mailto:mealaw@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:57 AM 
To: Atterholt, Jim 
Subject: RFRA 
  
Jim: 
  
I write to thank Governor Pence, you and everyone on the Governor's 
team for your efforts in working to protect Hoosiers' rights to freely 
exercise their religious beliefs without government interference.  I really 
enjoyed hearing the Governor speak at this year's prayer breakfast and 
know his motives are pure and his heart is in the right place.  I was 
particularly struck to hear him say the most comforting words he hears are 
when people tell him they are praying for him.  Please know I am praying 
for Governor Pence and his family.  The attacks on him and the State of 
Indiana are some of the most unfair I've ever seen.  I am also praying for 
you and the Governor's others closest advisors as well as members of the 
General Assembly. 
  
I know the Governor has many interests to balance in light of the firestorm 
that has erupted.  I am concerned, however, that recent statements about 
clarifying the RFRA may actually lead to a result that turns the law on its 
head and codifies the State's purported ability to compel Christians to 
participate in weddings that we believe blaspheme one of the most sacred 
religious ceremonies and relationships established by the God we 
worship.  (Genesis 2:24).  Whatever clarifications are made, I hope they 
do not result in laws being established that give individuals or the State a 
legal basis to sue or otherwise punish persons (including business 
owners) for refusing to actively participate in a wedding ceremony that 
violates the core of their deeply held religious convictions.  There has 
been a lot of talk about Indiana and the RFRA making discrimination 
lawful.  I cannot think of a law that is more discriminatory than one that 
persecutes people of faith by forcing them to choose between abiding by 
their deeply held religious convictions or suffering fines or other 
punishment by the State for doing so. 
  
I imagine you have a team of bright and capable attorneys and others 
considering options to clarify the RFRA.  I am happy to share my thoughts 
with you about how to strike a balance that does not lead to the result I am 
concerned about as described above. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Michael Allen 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Michael Allen <mealaw@ >
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 7:11 PM
To: Michael Allen;Atterholt, Jim
Cc: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Re: RFRA

Jim, 
 
I hope my emails were accepted in the spirit with which they were sent.  I am confident that Governor Pence 
and you are the right leaders to move the State forward from here.  At your request, I am always available to 
offer my perspective on this topic, adoption or anything else that you believe I can help with. 
 
I hope you and Governor Pence get some rest and enjoy this Easter weekend with your families.  I cannot 
imagine how taxed you are. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Mike 
 
On Apr 2, 2015, at 8:24 AM, Michael Allen <mealaw@ > wrote: 

Jim, 
 
I read with interest the latest Star article that states new language has been worked 
out.  According to the Star, the new language will clarify that the RFRA "cannot be used 
as a legal defense to discriminate against patrons based on their sexual orientation or 
gender identity."  That implies the State has the power to force an individual or small 
business to actively participate in a same-sex marriage ceremony, which is exactly the 
concern I and many other fair-minded Christians are concerned about.  In fact, I believe 
Chapter 581 of the City of Indianapolis's ordinances already would allow a person to file 
a complaint against a Christian who based on his religious beliefs and conscience 
declines to actively participate in a same sex wedding ceremony by declining to make a 
wedding cake or flower arrangement for the ceremony, photograph it or provide other 
types of goods or services that are part of the ceremony.  If the body authorized by the 
ordinance finds the person complained against has engaged in discrimination based on 
the example above (which I believe they would), it then has the power to order a 
remedy, including "[t]he restoration of complainant's losses incurred as a result of 
discriminatory treatment, as the adjudication committee or hearing officer may deem 
necessary to assure justice" and possibly the revocation of business licenses issued by 
the City.  This is a stunning power of the State to force someone to violate their religious 
beliefs in order to comply.  I appeal to you one last time to ensure the RFRA will 
continue to be available as a defense in a situation like this.  It may not appease all of 
the people attacking the State of Indiana (but I don't think what I've seen proposed will 
either), but it is certainly the right thing to do. 
 
Finally, I want to make clear the situation I am concerned about is narrow and confined 
to the situation above--that is allowing the LGBT agenda through the power of the State 
to force Christians to participate in weddings and other ceremonies that we believe 



would blaspheme traditional and well established religious ceremonies that are 
recognized by our religion.  I am not advocating the RFRA should be available as a 
defense to other forms of discrimination against gays and lesbians, including general 
denial of service at a restaurant or other public accommodations.  I believe that type of 
discrimination is directed at an individual and should not be allowed.  In fact, I do not 
believe a person who declines to participate in a same sex wedding or similar ceremony 
based on his or her religious beliefs is discriminating against an individual at all, they 
are simply exercise their religious freedom to refuse to participate in a ceremony that 
they honestly believe violates their religious beliefs and conscience.  That is a choice all 
Hoosiers and Americans of reasonable mind should understand and respect. 
 
Thanks for hearing me out. 
 
Mike 
 

From: "Atterholt, Jim" <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> 
To: 'Michael Allen' <mealaw@   
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
  
  
  
 

From: Michael Allen [mailto:mealaw@   
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:57 AM 
To: Atterholt, Jim 
Subject: RFRA 
  
Jim: 
  
I write to thank Governor Pence, you and everyone on the Governor's team for your 
efforts in working to protect Hoosiers' rights to freely exercise their religious beliefs 
without government interference.  I really enjoyed hearing the Governor speak at this 
year's prayer breakfast and know his motives are pure and his heart is in the right 
place.  I was particularly struck to hear him say the most comforting words he hears are 
when people tell him they are praying for him.  Please know I am praying for Governor 
Pence and his family.  The attacks on him and the State of Indiana are some of the 
most unfair I've ever seen.  I am also praying for you and the Governor's others closest 
advisors as well as members of the General Assembly. 
  



I know the Governor has many interests to balance in light of the firestorm that has 
erupted.  I am concerned, however, that recent statements about clarifying the RFRA 
may actually lead to a result that turns the law on its head and codifies the State's 
purported ability to compel Christians to participate in weddings that we believe 
blaspheme one of the most sacred religious ceremonies and relationships established 
by the God we worship.  (Genesis 2:24).  Whatever clarifications are made, I hope they 
do not result in laws being established that give individuals or the State a legal basis to 
sue or otherwise punish persons (including business owners) for refusing to actively 
participate in a wedding ceremony that violates the core of their deeply held religious 
convictions.  There has been a lot of talk about Indiana and the RFRA making 
discrimination lawful.  I cannot think of a law that is more discriminatory than one that 
persecutes people of faith by forcing them to choose between abiding by their deeply 
held religious convictions or suffering fines or other punishment by the State for doing 
so. 
  
I imagine you have a team of bright and capable attorneys and others considering 
options to clarify the RFRA.  I am happy to share my thoughts with you about how to 
strike a balance that does not lead to the result I am concerned about as described 
above. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Michael Allen 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Charlie Goodman <chfgoodman@ >
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 5:57 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence;Senate District 16;Bosma, Brian;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: RFRA

To each of you........ 
 

Thank you.......................IT was obvious to millions that this was perhaps the toughest week 
in legislative History.............yet you collectively passed through Hell with much praise.....I am sure all realize 
now just how important perceptions can play a role in shaping public opinion ............ 
 
And how a small minority can use misconceptions to alter the perception of your work. 
 
Happy Easter to each of you................Charlie Goodman 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 3:04 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW:  Religious Freedom Restoration Act Amendment

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 
Phone: 317/233-9997 
Cell: 317/  
 

From: Gaines Grace [mailto:grace_g_60409 ]  
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:19 AM 
To: Denault, Christina 
Subject: RE: Religious Freedom Restoration Act Amendment 
 
Dear Ms. Denault,  
 
This e-mail is to express my opposition of the amendments made to the Religious Freedom Restoration Act. 
We should not permit a male cross-dresser to use the women’s restroom and women’s shower area, or women 
using the men's restroom. Children should not be subject to being molested by permitting a male cross-dresser 
to use the same restrooms.  Its a known fact that the person who is a male or female cross dresser and those who 
chose a gay lifestyle have been molested somewhere in their life.  We take the chance of letting them molest 
our children and grandchildren. Please pass this message on so that my Government officials know how I and 
many others feel about this amendment.  
  
Thanks,  
  
Grace D. Gaines 



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
 

From: Gaines Grace [mailto:grace_g_60409@   
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
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:35 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom

 
 

From: ttvlr@yahoo.com [mailto:ttvlr ]  
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 9:52 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom 
 
Dear Governor Pence, 
Freedom of religion pertains “only” to the laws, customs, and moral beliefs that belong to a particular 
religion. Recently, in particular those religions that believe in G/d and live respecting His will according to 
Holy Scriptures and tradition are those religions that indicate that marriage in between one woman and one 
man. That would make it an abomination for them to marry or participate in a gay or lesbian marriage. This 
does not mean that they can deny other services and goods to gay and lesbian people because the Holy 
Scriptures teach to love your brothers and sisters and even your enemies. It teaches tolerance of others’ 
sins as well as your own. However, it is different to choose under your own will as a human individual to 
disobey  G/d than to be obligated to commit acts that are immoral according to G/d’s will. Therefore, a 
balance should be guaranteed that no person or individual should refuse products or services to a gay/or 
lesbian individual with the exception of “specifically the act of marriage or participating in marriage that is 
not between one man and one woman”. That is the only situation according to the Holy Scriptures that 
would apply to “freedom of religion” where a person can “choose” to participate in a gay marriage or not. 
Religious people do not hate or discriminate against gays/ or lesbians.  
However, it should also be carefully noted that gay/or lesbian individuals do not persecute or discriminate 
against any individual because of their religion. There is no excuse for a gay/ or lesbian to turn away services 
or products from a religious individual or group because there is no religious reason for turn away this 
person or individual. Therefore, any individual or business that turns away services or products because of 
a person’s religion is not only violating that person’s “freedom of   religion” but, is also discriminating against 
that person. Therefore, the companies that are threatening the religious people from excluding them from 
services or products “really are discriminating against them “ as well as breaking the first amendment of 
“freedom of religion”.   
Note: In the USA, (according to 2010 census) approx. 82% of people are Christian and approx. believe in 
G/d (includes Jews and Islamic faith). Therefore, the interest to stay true to G/d’s law prevails within the 
majority of the people within the USA and it is the court’s maintain civil peace within its’ society.  To enforce 
laws against these religious people might result in civil unrest across the USA. The actions that are taken 
today must really be thought out carefully upon your individual judgments regardless of what others may 
believe (even within your family)  because it is you the lawmaker/s that understand how law can take effect 
upon others and how to maintain unisonous harmony within the land. 
Thanks you for your attention,                            
Liana Cano          
PS: I am not from your state but am a US citizen who believes that is justice is to be done the truth must 
be revealed from both sides of the coin. From this, we can base our judgments as “fair”. 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:32 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW:  Religious Freedom Restoration Act Amendment

 
 

From: Gaines Grace [mailto:grace_g_60409@ ]  
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:16 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: Religious Freedom Restoration Act Amendment 
 
Dear Ms. Brooks, 
 
This e-mail is to express my opposition of the amendments made to the Religious Freedom Restoration Act. 
We should not permit a male cross-dresser to use the women’s restroom and women’s shower area, or women 
using the men's restroom. Children should not be subject to being molested by permitting a male cross-
dresser to use the same restrooms.  Its a known fact that the person who is a male or female cross 
dresser and those who chose a gay lifestyle have been molested somewhere in their life.  We take 
the chance of letting them molest our children and grandchildren. Please pass this message on so 
that my Government officials know how I and many others feel about this amendment.  
 
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
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:30 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Suggested Solution for the State’s Religious Freedom Act

 
 

From: Ennis Sullivan [mailto:ennissullivan ]  
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:23 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Suggested Solution for the State’s Religious Freedom Act 
 
 

  
Gov. Mike Pence, 
 

My thoughts referencing the Religious Freedom Act and its interaction with “The F – Factor of 
Today’s Politics” 

  
F – Factor Definitions 

  
       Democrats Defined:  Democrats believe in a government of “Feelings, Fantasy and 

Fairness”.  Remember Bill Clinton saying, “I feel your pain,” with a tear in his eye 
(Feelings).  And Obama saying “this or that” about a subject because “it’s the right thing to do” 
or “its fair” (again, based on Feelings, Fantasy, Fairness).  We can also reference Hollywood 
liberals.  This group is about performing feelings while working in a fantasy world which, in 
many cases, then flows into their “performing” off-camera life.  Democrats, as a group, make 
emotional judgments and not ones controlled by the brain, (but by feelings).  Democrats 
can accurately be described as being dominated by “Feelings, Fantasy and Fairness”, their 
pathway that leads to socialism and sameness.     

  
       Republicans Defined:  Republicans, on the other hand, use their brains over feelings; 

they believe government should aspire for “the Facts, accurate Figures, being First (the 
best)”.  Facts, Figures and First are absolute, true, conclusive, unquestionable, firm, fixed, 
right, unadulterated, pure and can be PROVEN historically true and quantifiably 
correct.  Republicans think and govern by an entirely different set of sensory inputs than 
Democrats.  The Republicans’ pathway leads to liberty and exceptionalism. 

  
You and the Governor of Arkansas have fallen into the “Feelings, Fantasy, Fairness political-
pit”.  Republicans get so tied-up in the "feelings and fairness" issues…and your not going to win. 
  
The answer – I suggest countering liberal "feelings" with conservative “Facts” and using Democrat 
reasoning for a “fair” solution (as stated, Democrats like “fair” solutions): 
  

1.     Acknowledge the compliant, “I hear you saying that you want a wedding cake for you and your 
partner’s wedding.” 



2.     State a “Fact”, the Law, “I am sorry, but referring Federal and Arkansas law on Religious Freedom, I 
cannot provide that service.” 

3.     Lastly, provide an alternative solution, “But, let me give you the name and contact information for a 
local company who does provide those services.”  

   
Suggestion, “Adjust the state law” to provide an alternative solution. 
 

Don’t back down when you have the “Facts”; fight liberal ‘feelings” (with conservative “facts”). 
 

The best to you Governor, 
 

Ennis Sullivan 

Tel. 214-  

Email, esullivan@  

Website, www  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:14 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Article VI  from the First Amendment "Religious Freedom"

 
 

From: ttvlr@  [mailto:ttvlr@ ]  
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 9:56 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Article VI from the First Amendment "Religious Freedom" 
 
Dear Governor Pence, 
Article VI  clearly states that religious tests as a condition for the exercise of public functions are 
prohibited. For example, in the case of a public servant (as a teacher) is obliged to teach something you 
find offensive against their religion is a double-edged sword. You can interpret that compels a person to 
pass a test of how religious he is and just keep in office those who are willing to take the actions 
or  desires of a particular group within the government. This does not respect the person’s religious 
philosophical foundation or, his/her religious mission in daily and civil life. We all know that a way to test a 
person is to test academic knowledge in written or spoken form.  Another way to test a person is for the 
appraisal of their work and their actions also known as their “performance”. It is not insubordination to the 
government or an employer if an employee refuses to perform acts related to homosexuality / lesbianism 
but, is forcing him to take a test of their religious faith  by "act or by performance". For many public 
servants within the US, they are met with a religious dilemma that could threaten or force him/her to 
renounce from office (or be sued) by not carrying out an act that is against the laws established by their 
religion. Religions have laws already established although some may not know this or recognize this fact. 
Religious laws are those that govern human will are met by conviction and love of God but, not by 
imposition. For thousands of years (even before the existence our constitution) these laws have existed 
but only apply to those of that religious faith. Indeed, there is ample evidence that there (such as in canon 
law, and the sacred Torah) are laws respected and obeyed within religious groups that our Constitution 
recognizes as religious freedom. When a person is forced to break these laws, such is being forced to take 
a religious test to exercise their public functions.  
In other words, you are violating the right to freedom of religion when that person is required to take a 
test of their religion by the "act or performance". For the religious believing in Gd, when issues related are 
given about lesbianism or homosexuality, and issues related to the raising and caring for family are 
involved there is exists the possibility that a “religious test by the form of performance” is being 
evaluated.  However, it is not always offensive to the religious groups when it comes to dealing with 
equality to men and women in their professional, salary, social life. Clearly, the issue of “sexuality 
themes” about  lesbianism and homosexuality are issues that were established in scriptures and traditions 
- Christian, Jewish, Islamic etc., long before the US Constitution was written. You also have to recognize 
the right of parents to raise their families religiously under their religious laws is freedom of religion. Just 
historically think about the Mayflower and why the pilgrims came to America and you can remember what 
the very foundation of our nation was based upon.  
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
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 8:31 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: information about the indiana freedom bill. 
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Flag Status: Completed
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From: Linda Burd [mailto:jsburd@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 9:17 PM 
To: jaime.smith@gov.wa.gov 
Subject: information about the indiana freedom bill.  
 
I can hardly believe Governor Inslee would actually suggest not having people travel to Indiana because our 
state wants to stand up for the rights of freedom of religion. Look, it is not only none of his business what we 
do in Indiana, but it is really very manipulative to pull such ridiculous things on another governor who is 
standing for his principles. He knows the freedom of religion act has nothing to do with Gay rights. It is in fact 
a protection of the state imposing its views on religion unless he has forgotten about the separation of church 
and state. What we actually see is that Gay people are now not as peaceful in the state and are actually 
targeting firms they know are Christian and forcing them to do things that are against their beliefs. They are in 
fact not doing this to Buddhist or Muslim firms but only those that are known to be conservatively Christian. 
Hundreds of my fellow business owners in this state are seeing that we are now being targeted and now more 
than ever need this bill for protection.  
Thank God we have a Governor out here that actually stands for something solid and does not bow to the 
pressures of a few here or there that throw their money and weight around.  
Hey, maybe the CEO of Angies list will move out to your state. I hear he is looking for a state that has very 
liberal laws allowing whatever anyone wants to adhere to.  
Sincerely,  
  
Jim Burd  
Northern Indiana 4 decade Hoosier 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 8:31 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Help

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Ann Godfrey [mailto:paulann@   
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 8:49 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Help 
 
 
Kara, please give Governor Pence a message for me. 
 
Please stand for Christians. Please stand for gays. 
 
Christians should not be abused and forced to do things against their faith. 
Gays should not be abused and denied to live a lifestyle that they choose. 
 
Our country is in chaos. Division is the worst I have ever seen. 
I have a gay son, a black nephew, so I guess you could say that the last 6 years has been hard on our family. 
 
Please tell the Governor to stand firm and fair.  
God gave us freedom to choose. We read His word and work out our own "Salvation with fear and trembling". We do 
not have to believe alike, but we must Respect each other. 
 
Thank you 
 
Celia Godfrey 
 
Sent from my iPad 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 8:29 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious freedom bill  Indiana resident for 35 yrs

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed
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From: Buzz Kramenator [mailto:kramenator@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:08 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious freedom bill Indiana resident for 35 yrs 
 
I am frankly disappointed that governor pence is not scrapping the bill bc if he continues this path he will send 
Hoosiers back to 1960......now we lose events and I have to suffer bc he is not fit for governor and companies 
are leaving....thx Brian k 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Michael Allen <mealaw@ >
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 8:24 AM
To: Atterholt, Jim
Cc: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Re: RFRA

Jim, 
 
I read with interest the latest Star article that states new language has been worked out.  According to 
the Star, the new language will clarify that the RFRA "cannot be used as a legal defense to 
discriminate against patrons based on their sexual orientation or gender identity."  That implies the 
State has the power to force an individual or small business to actively participate in a same-sex 
marriage ceremony, which is exactly the concern I and many other fair-minded Christians are 
concerned about.  In fact, I believe Chapter 581 of the City of Indianapolis's ordinances already would 
allow a person to file a complaint against a Christian who based on his religious beliefs and 
conscience declines to actively participate in a same sex wedding ceremony by declining to make a 
wedding cake or flower arrangement for the ceremony, photograph it or provide other types of goods 
or services that are part of the ceremony.  If the body authorized by the ordinance finds the person 
complained against has engaged in discrimination based on the example above (which I believe they 
would), it then has the power to order a remedy, including "[t]he restoration of complainant's losses 
incurred as a result of discriminatory treatment, as the adjudication committee or hearing officer may 
deem necessary to assure justice" and possibly the revocation of business licenses issued by the 
City.  This is a stunning power of the State to force someone to violate their religious beliefs in order 
to comply.  I appeal to you one last time to ensure the RFRA will continue to be available as a 
defense in a situation like this.  It may not appease all of the people attacking the State of Indiana (but 
I don't think what I've seen proposed will either), but it is certainly the right thing to do. 
 
Finally, I want to make clear the situation I am concerned about is narrow and confined to the 
situation above--that is allowing the LGBT agenda through the power of the State to force Christians 
to participate in weddings and other ceremonies that we believe would blaspheme traditional and well 
established religious ceremonies that are recognized by our religion.  I am not advocating the RFRA 
should be available as a defense to other forms of discrimination against gays and lesbians, including 
general denial of service at a restaurant or other public accommodations.  I believe that type of 
discrimination is directed at an individual and should not be allowed.  In fact, I do not believe a person 
who declines to participate in a same sex wedding or similar ceremony based on his or her religious 
beliefs is discriminating against an individual at all, they are simply exercise their religious freedom to 
refuse to participate in a ceremony that they honestly believe violates their religious beliefs and 
conscience.  That is a choice all Hoosiers and Americans of reasonable mind should understand and 
respect. 
 
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
  
I write to thank Governor Pence, you and everyone on the Governor's team for your efforts in working 
to protect Hoosiers' rights to freely exercise their religious beliefs without government interference.  I 
really enjoyed hearing the Governor speak at this year's prayer breakfast and know his motives are 
pure and his heart is in the right place.  I was particularly struck to hear him say the most comforting 
words he hears are when people tell him they are praying for him.  Please know I am praying for 
Governor Pence and his family.  The attacks on him and the State of Indiana are some of the most 
unfair I've ever seen.  I am also praying for you and the Governor's others closest advisors as well as 
members of the General Assembly. 
  
I know the Governor has many interests to balance in light of the firestorm that has erupted.  I am 
concerned, however, that recent statements about clarifying the RFRA may actually lead to a result 
that turns the law on its head and codifies the State's purported ability to compel Christians to 
participate in weddings that we believe blaspheme one of the most sacred religious ceremonies and 
relationships established by the God we worship.  (Genesis 2:24).  Whatever clarifications are made, 
I hope they do not result in laws being established that give individuals or the State a legal basis to 
sue or otherwise punish persons (including business owners) for refusing to actively participate in a 
wedding ceremony that violates the core of their deeply held religious convictions.  There has been a 
lot of talk about Indiana and the RFRA making discrimination lawful.  I cannot think of a law that is 
more discriminatory than one that persecutes people of faith by forcing them to choose between 
abiding by their deeply held religious convictions or suffering fines or other punishment by the State 
for doing so. 
  
I imagine you have a team of bright and capable attorneys and others considering options to clarify 
the RFRA.  I am happy to share my thoughts with you about how to strike a balance that does not 
lead to the result I am concerned about as described above. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Michael Allen 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:54 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: recent political action

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Darsha Doran <dzrtrat45@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 8:18:00 PM EDT 
To: cdenault@gov.in.gov 
Subject: recent political action 

Sir, 
 
Arizona, presently my home state, attempted to pass a very similar bill but wiser heads prevailed and our 
Governor vetoed the bill.  Apparently, your "employer" did not bother to look into the exceeding;y negative 
press that Arizona received before the bill was passed. The implications of Indiana's bill go far beyond refusing 
to serve "gay" individuals; heinous on its own merit.  It has the potential to impact members of other races and 
religions.  In Arizona we have Evangelicals who claim that Catholics and Mormons are not Christian because 
they worship idols. If businesses carry their "religious rights" to an extreme many individuals and groups can 
and will be negatively impacted. Litigation will abound.  Governor Pence has made a major error in judgement 
by not vetoing this bill especially since he apparently has political aspirations beyond the state level.  The bill 
spits in the face of everything America is supposed to stand for. Hopefully the loss of revenue from 
corporations refusing to do businesses in Indiana, individual, group and conference tourism will be a wake up 
call to rescind this anti-American bill. 
 
Darsha Stockton Doran 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:53 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Please stand firm
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Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Ann Godfrey <paulann@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 8:25:56 PM EDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Please stand firm 

 
Christy after watching the news all day I have to write. 
I need you to tell Gov. Pence something. 
I need you to please get word to Gov. Pence. 
Please, please stand firm on protecting Christians. In schools, in the military, in the  
Work place we are being abused.  
 
Why should a Christian be forced to go against their faith? They should not. 
Why should a gay not marry another gay? He should if he wants to.  
Both deserve to have the freedom to live as their heart tells them. 
People do not have to believe the same thing, but we must respect each 
Other and not abuse anyone.  
 
Again I beg you please protect God's  children. Protect our freedoms. 
Stand firm, please don't cave.  
 
Celia Godfrey 
 
Sent from my iPad 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 5:00 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Indianapolis Marriott East FW: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Chris Rutledge [mailto:crutledge@i ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 2:15 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Indianapolis Marriott East FW: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
Importance: High 
 
Pence, 
 
All I have to say is "Thanks" for negatively impacting the hard working employees at the Indianapolis Marriott East.  We 
already struggle making the eastside of Indianapolis thrive after economical struggles from the 1980's and 1990's.  I'm at 
a loss of words from the terrible press conferences and national interviews.  You are still scared to take ownership.  How 
do you sleep at night?  I'm spending my time expressing that my employees don't represent this ignorant legislation to 
conferences that want to cancel because of you.  In all honesty, I could be proactively calling companies that want to 
spend money in Indiana and/or Indianapolis.  You will never understand nor do I think you have the capacity to 
understand what you and your legislation have done to our city.  If you a big enough person feel free to call me directly.  
My recommendation is to immediately distance yourself from Eric Miller and Micah Clark.  You have allowed a few 
individuals that have no proof this legislation was needed for our economy and people that actually care in this state.  
We could be doing things proactively and evolving.  What a concept.  I do not care if people have or have not read the 
legislation nor do I care if people agree or disagree.  I only care for the people I employee, lead, my neighbors, and my 
friends of Indianapolis that will be impacted by the economic crisis that is on its way to happening.  No matter if people 
are Democrat or Republican at this time, we are all in this together to change our reputation on a national level.  You are 
the leader and need to pick up the pace.  I'm sure you aren't even mature enough to read this letter and comprehend 
this message.  Feel free to call my client below and tell them why they shouldn't cancel.  Again thank you for wasting my 
"TIME" on something that is so unnecessary in life.   
 
CHRIS RUTLEDGE | VP of SALES, MARKETING, and REVENUE MANAGEMENT INDIANAPOLIS MARRIOTT EAST HOTEL | 
7202 EAST 21 STREET | INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46219 
t: 317.352.1231 x 1299  c : 317.   f: 317.352.9775 Marriott Hotels.  Live Life to Discover. 
www.indianapolismarriotteast.com 
 
 
 
marriotthotels.com   
 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Chris Rutledge [mailto:crutledge@ ] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 1:58 PM 
To: 'Sarah Winner' 



Cc: Kris Clark 
Subject: RE: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
I will need specifics on these accounts/sponsors for our legal department.  There hasn't been issues from sponsors 
during Final Four this weekend which makes cancellations for a May event intriguing.  We are aware what is taking place 
in the state but this is the first incident about a group cancelling with our hotel.  Downtown has had a couple of groups 
cancel but not as big of a loss as one would think.  VisitIndy, our convention bureau, hasn't allowed anyone out of 
contracts because our city leadership has signed legislation that does not discriminate the LGBT community and 
acknowledges they are a protected class.  Anyone cancelling at this time with the city is paying the cancellation fee.  If 
you would like to proceed with cancellation we will have to hand this over to our legal department so they can interpret 
the contract and the next phase.  I understand Waste Fleet will want to do the same.  Cancellation of the event is above 
Kris and my pay grade in the company.  Let me know the next step you would like to take or we can reach out to 
sponsors, our Mayor is willing to call anyone, and let them know there will not be an issue.  Thank you. 
   
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Sarah Winner [mailto:sarah@ ] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 1:05 PM 
To: Chris Rutledge 
Cc: Kris Clark 
Subject: Re: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
Hi Chris, 
 
Unfortunately the stigma around Indiana has greatly impacted my conference and the damage has been done. With just 
over a month until the conference dates, I cannot do enough damage control to change the minds of my sponsors, 
exhibitors or attendees. They have already pulled out. Many states are banning state-funded travel to Indiana and this 
greatly affects my attendance, which is another reason my sponsors have pulled funding. The majority of my attendees 
are municipal workers.  
 
If you have another property outside of Indiana then I can consider moving the conference to another location. I am 
sorry that this is the situation we are in but it is totally out of my control. 
 
Please advise on next steps.  
 
 
On Apr 1, 2015, at 12:39 PM, Chris Rutledge <CRutledge@ > wrote: 
 
Sarah, 
 
Hope you are having a good day.  I'm sorry to hear about sponsor cancellations due to RFRA.  I can assure you the city of 
Indianapolis and Indianapolis Marriott East does not discriminate against anyone.  Legislation has been passed in 
Indianapolis that prevents any form of discrimination and acknowledges the LGBT community as a protected class.  I 
would be more than happy to reach out to sponsors and communicate this message.  Are you able to let me know those 
sponsors that have cancelled specifically due to RFRA?  I would really appreciate it and help when discussing with our 
internal staff the gets involved with contracts.  Thank you and we will do our best to help.  Have a great day! 
 
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
From: Mathew Noggle [mailto:matnoggle@ ] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 12:25 PM 
To: Chris Rutledge; Michael Rodden; Christine Noggle 
Cc: Kris Clark 
Subject: RE: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
I would not willingly call this a  "force Majure situation."  We would probably want to litigate this through.  The RFRA 
does not impact having garbage trucks in our parking lot and we are not going to discriminate based on sexual 
orientation or preference. 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Chris Rutledge [mailto:crutledge@ ] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:46 AM 
To: Michael Rodden; Christine Noggle; Mathew Noggle 
Cc: Kris Clark 
Subject: RE: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
The city passed non-discrimination legislation.  She would be the first group at our hotel.  Overall, the city has lost only a 
couple of groups.  
 
 
 
From: Kris Clark [mailto:kclark@ ] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:25 AM 
To: Christine Noggle 
Subject: Fwd: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
 
 
I just got this from Sarah!!!  Should I be passing this on toChris and have him handle this? 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: Sarah Winner <sarah@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 11:06:53 AM EDT 
To: Kris Clark <kclark@ > 
Subject: FME's Negatively Impacted by RFRA 
 
Hi Kris,  
 
 
 



I have some extremely bad news. The Fleet Management Expo is suffering horribly from Indiana’s passage of the 
Religious Freedom Rights Act. All my sponsors have pulled out and the attendees are canceling registrations. I have lost 
over 75% of my participants and at this rate I need to cancel the event. I cannot put on an event if I have no participants. 
 
 
 
I realize that not only is this impacting my business but yours as well.  
 
 
 
I would like to invoke my Force Majeure clause that due to “governmental regulations” negatively impacting the event 
through no fault of my own, I would like to cancel the event. 
 
 
 
Please let me know how we may proceed. 
 
 
 
Again I am sickened by the entire situation and I hope the Marriott will assist me in this time of crisis.  
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Sarah Winner 
 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 4:48 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Rfra bill
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Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Heather Keith <blondie71673@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 4:16:51 PM EDT 
To: cdenault@gov.in.gov 
Subject: Rfra bill 

Gov. Pence, 
Please please please do not amend the Rfra bill that was just passed. Do not take away my freedom of religion. 
It seems as though the freedom to practice religion, which our country was founded on, is starting to apply to 
everyone nowadays except for us Christians. I have just as much right to practice and follow Christ according to 
our constitution but changing this bill puts my freedom in jeopardy. Do Not Take That From Me Please!  Do the 
right thing and DO NOT CHANGE THE BILL!! 
Thank you, 
Heather J. Keith  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 4:48 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Freedom of Religeon

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Jim Tubbs <the2tubbs@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 3:26:30 PM EDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Freedom of Religeon 
Reply-To: Jim Tubbs <the2tubbs@ > 

In my opinion your governor did the correct thing (decision) in signing the Freedom of 
Religion bill. Just because you have a few Gays that are going crazy for NO reason-don't 
change the bill-it's good for all Americans gay and straight!! Thank You Jim Tubbs 
Fairview, Texas 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 3:05 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Governor Pence 
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From: jsalovesJC@ mailto:jsalovesJC@   
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 2:07 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Governor Pence  
 
The governor has been a total disappointment from more and more school funding, preschool funding, allowing illegals to stay in IN 
to his recent caving to pressure concerning RFRA. He has checked his conservative principles at the door. Next thing I will be made to 
perform abortions. Please let him know of our supreme displeasure. 
Jeri Ashley,RNC-OB 
  
Sent from my Verizon 4G LTE Smartphone 
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 2:49 PM
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
From: Mathew Noggle [mailto:matnoggle ] 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 1:25 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Freedom of Religion

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: ruthnharv <rmfruhwirth@ > 
Date: April 1, 2015 at 10:26:36 AM EDT 
To: <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Freedom of Religion 

Gov. Pence, please stand firm, don’t cave in!  Don’t injure our Religious Freedom.  Since Obama became 
President, our world has gone to pot!!  Don’t you go down with him! 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 12:51 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed
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-----Original Message----- 
From: Rick Kennedy [mailto:kennedy8clan@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 12:07 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom  
 
I was very proud of our State for passing this law. Please do not water it down. 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:58 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: "Religious Freedom" law

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: pgat@  [mailto:pgat@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:56 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: "Religious Freedom" law 
 
Govenor Mike Pence- As a 3rd generation Hoosier I am aghast at your so -called "Religious Freedom" laws. First off, 
don't use religion to say that us Hoosiers want to discriminate. That is not how Hoosiers see their religion. Secondly, you 
are creating a black eye on the face of all Hoosiers by creating a discriminatory law such as this.  You need to 
immediately have this law stricken from the books. What were you thinking? 
Now no one wants to come to Indiana. Us Hoosiers believe in freedom but not the freedom to discriminate. I don't know 
who you have been listening to but you haven't been listening to the voters of Indiana. You need to listen now! 
Paul Gates 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:39 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Florist's to lose here first amendment rights?

 
 

From: jeff harter [mailto:jeffbharter@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:32 AM 
To: Hodgin, Stephanie; Denault, Christina; Cleveland, Bridget; Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Florist's to lose here first amendment rights? 
 
Kara, Bridget, Christy and Stephanie, 
 

Please read this back and forth. Some of the facts may be in question, because we are just regular people, not experts in law or history. 
However, read for the spirit of the issue and arguments for the protection of our first amendment rights, and for the ability for a woman 
not to participate in a practice that goes against the core of her sincere beliefs. What the issue is not: discrimination. What this issue is: 
we are eroding our first amendment rights. We cannot provide one person rights and take away the rights of another. There has to be a 
compromise where both groups have their rights, without fear of being severely punished. We need an advocate to stand up for our first 
amendment rights. I urge governor Pence to not back down. 
 

Thank you for your time 
 

Jeff Harter 
 

 

330  
 

http://www.christianpost.com/news/florist-who-refused-gay-wedding-offered-settlement-i-will-not-be-like-judas-betray-jesus-for-money-
she-replied-134593/ 
 

Christian Perspective: This woman chose to not serve a gay couple out of her religious conviction to live by the rules of God. Now she 
is either forced to go against her religious beliefs and pay a fine/serve gay couples in the future, or lose her business and home and be 
shunned by those who advocate the LGBT lifestyle. Sadly, this is what our country is coming to: you increasingly can't live by your 
religious beliefs in our country any more. Respect one person's right, but not right of another. This about respecting the rights of one 
individual but not another. This is about discrimination for one group of people who choose to live by one set of moral codes and to live 
a secular homosexual lifestyle, AND this is about punishing another group of people who choose to live by another set of moral codes - 
to live according to the standards of their religion. It think it does not serve the greater good to force one person to go against their core, 
fundamental beliefs, then threaten to publicly and financially ruin them in order to conform. I believe that a civilised society should allow 
both sides should be free to exist and live according to their deeply held convictions without fear or threat or repercussion. If people 
could respect alternative points of view of others, the world would be better off. 
 
LGTB Perspective: You can have your opinion on this, but I can authoritatively state it falls on the wrong side of history. Should this 
reach the Supreme Court (and I hope it does), the florist will lose again. Fact is: religious duty is not a defense for criminal indictment 
including discrimination. Read up on court case Reynolds v. US if you don't believe me. In that example, the court considered that if 
polygamy was allowed, someone might eventually argue that human sacrifice was a necessary part of their religion, and "to permit this 
would be to make the professed doctrines of religious belief superior to the law of the land, and in effect to permit every citizen to 
become a law unto himself." To now allow a business to hold religious belief is not only a stretch of definition, but it will invite many 
other companies to use such a defense including large companies like Walmart, Disney, Boeing, etc. No supreme court would dare 



reverse centuries of precedent to give respect to one religion. Bottom line: The florist's beliefs do not supersede the common good of 
society. 
 

LGTB Perspective: So those that follow the Jewish faith can refuse service to Christians if they so choose? Muslims can refuse Jewish 
and Christian customers becuase they do not believe in the same doctrine? I am confused of where does it end? . . . In the end it 
seems you are suggesting that members of the LGBT community are God less or have no faith/church to belong. ( "This woman chose 
to not serve a gay couple out of her religious conviction to live by the rules of God.") I am a Catholic and a gay man. I believe in God 
and I believe that he loves all his children and created us all in his image. You then follow up with "If people could respect alternative 
points of view of others, the world would be better off." So if you do not agree with my lifestyle, no one is asking you to do so. I am 
merely asking you provide the goods and services you say you will just like everyone else. And it is a hot button topic, but why should it 
be? Becuase you serve or assist someone that goes against what you believe is not harming your business in any way with the 
excpetion of the loss of a customer and money in your wallet, its called... oh what is that phrase... oh yea.. "A good Christian" ....you 
can have your opinion on this, but I can authoritatively state it falls on the wrong side of history. Should this reach the Supreme Court 
(and I hope it does), the florist will lose again. Fact is: religious duty is not a defense for criminal indictment including discrimination. 
Read up on court case Reynolds v. US if you don't believe me. In that example, the court considered that if polygamy was allowed, 
someone might eventually argue that human sacrifice was a necessary part of their religion, and "to permit this would be to make the 
professed doctrines of religious belief superior to the law of the land, and in effect to permit every citizen to become a law unto himself." 
To now allow a business to hold religious belief is not only a stretch of definition, but it will invite many other companies to use such a 
defense including large companies like Walmart, Disney, Boeing, etc. No supreme court would dare reverse centuries of precedent to 
give respect to one religion. Bottom line: The florist's beliefs do not supersede the common good of society. 
 

Christian Perspective: We'll see what happens if it goes to the Supreme Court. In my opinion, I don't think it should be about giving 
respect to any one religion. It should be about allowing, in rare cases, an individual to live according to their beliefs and convictions 
while respecting the beliefs and convictions of another. That's my opinion. Robert, I never suggested that LGBT are Godless or 
faithless. Yes, the Christian God does love everyone. But he also has rules, sins etc. that he requires his followers to follow. I can't 
speak to other religions. But Robert I agree with you... Christians aren't asking everyone's to agree with the bible. The LGBT community 
isn't asking everyone to agree with their lifestyle choices either. Yet are essentially saying that Christians can no longer uphold scripture 
of the bible. They can no longer uphold their their beliefs. Americans should no longer have that primary right. You are essentially 
advocating the banning of the Christian religion from society altogether, but just incrementally. Not to mention other religions. Practice 
your religion in your own closet, but that's it. Don't act out or live your faith in all areas of your life because it offends others. Christians 
should be punished. Muslims who own a t- shirt shop should be forced to print t-shirts that mock their allah. An artist should be forced to 
draw a picture advocating divorce or abortion or Jesus Christ, even if they respectfully decline because they don't want to promote any 
of those ideas because of their deeply held convictions. I would be fine with that across the board and respect and be tolerant of their 
convictions, and simply take my business elsewhere. I wouldn't sue them or threaten to bankrupt them and force them to conform to 
how I think. That's my opinion, and I think it's pretty respectful and reasonable and tolerant. Let's call this what it is, or is becoming. This 
is about removing religion, and Christianity in this case currently, from our country completely 
 
LGTB Perspective: You consider this an affront to the established christian religion in this country---I see it as simply keeping religion 
in check. Your beliefs and freedom of religion has limits Jeff. In the eyes of a court, the difference is between religion of belief and 
religion of action. To quote Thomas Jefferson, "the legislative powers of the government reach actions only, and not opinions. People 
need to understand that they cannot indulge their self interests (even when it concerns their faith) to the point that society's common 
good is compromised. In other words...the courts have said and will decree again and again that essentially you and I can have our 
beliefs and that no law should ever restrict our beliefs. But law of the land will time and again restrict and control ACTIONS. The 
founding fathers don't care if you worship the spaghetti monster just as long as you don't break laws like steeling pasta, defacing public 
property with tomato sauce OR discriminate against people by refusing to sell meatballs to people who resemble Bill Murray. Get it? I 
am saying that lady needs to get over herself and make cupcakes for Adam and Steve...she runs a Business and part of that 
responsibility is serving the entire public---she can't pick and choose just because of her interpretations of the bible. 
 
Christian Perspective: You can refuse to sell me meatballs because I have big feet, or because I'm being obnoxious. There is no law 
that prevents that. I'm saying that she doesn't have to accept Adam and Steve, or sell those cupcakes. Adam and Steve need to get 
over it and patronise a different bakery. In fact there are 100 bakeries that would be happy to serve them. There are alternatives for 
Adam and Steve. She can pick and choose based on the first amendment and she should be able to practice her deeply held 
convictions according to Bill Clinton. Gregg, if someone calls me to do an illustration for a magazine for which goes against my personal 
beliefs, you are saying I can't say no? I am forced to provide my service and do the assignment? I will respectfully disagree with you 
and say no. You can take away my job, my house, boycott me, humiliate and destroy me as a person in the court of public opinion 
(actions based on your beliefs) but I won't do the assignment. That should be my right, in my opinion. 
 

LGTB Perspective: But, isn't that where the issue is? In Indiana, and only Indiana, the LGBT community is not a protected class. 
Having big feet, being obnoxious, is quite different from what is being talked about. People use religion to create second class citizens 
all the time. There were plenty of deli counters who would refuse to serve black people, or bakeries who wouldn't make cakes for 
interracial couples. 
I just kind of hoped we were past all that. We are back to square one here: using religion to put self interests ahead of the interests of 
the common good.  
 



Christian Perspective: You are looking at this in completely the wrong way. To deny someone a first amendment right in order to 
provide another person a different right is not for the common good.Is there a way for both sides to be able to express their right? Is 
there a way to tolerate the free expression of the deeply held views of both sides? I think there is a creative solution here. 
 
LGTB Perspective: Laws govern actions, not beliefs. No one is being "forced" here. You can dig in your heels on this, but I'm done 
explaining. 
 
Christian Perspective: This isn't discrimination, because the woman sold flowers to that gay man before. It's only when he wanted to 
use the flowers to celebrate gay marriage, which is pretty clear in the bible (one man, one woman). You want to force her to go against 
her deeply held convictions. Let's turn the tables now. Jessup wants Chalonte to print 1 million t shirts. No problem, right? but Jessup 
wants the t shirts to say "white power, long live the KKK." With your logic, Chalonte needs to get over herself and print those t shirts. 
Bart wants to buy 1,000 flowers from Gregg, Jeff and Robert's flower shop. Bart tells him he is going to use them for an event that 
celebrates the death penalty, or abortion, or every time a gay man or a liberal dies. You need to provide that service Gregg, Jeff and 
Robert, so get over yourself. So this isn't only about discriminating against another person for being who they are. This is about refusing 
to promote an idea that goes against your fundamental beliefs. I have no problem protecting everyone above from being forced to go 
against their beliefs. If the laws are currently this way, then they need to be changed. That's for the greater good. 
 

LGTB Perspective: Try being treated as a second class citizen for awhile, you would have a different stance. Though by again 
suggestion; being gay is a sin as shown above, I would ask does she turn away men or women on their second marriage after divorce? 
That too is a sin is it not? If Adam and Steve ordered the cake or cupcakes without saying their purpose, or someone ordered for them 
would the order have been filled? How many LGBT people ate her culinary creations?!? I would guess many and why now, why this 
time you ask? Because she discriminated service to them based on their orientation. Yes, refuse service because they are LGBT but I 
have news for you members of the LGBT community are everywhere. They protect us over seas, they protect us locally, they cure you, 
perform surgery, rescue you from fire, cook your meals, defend you in court and so much more. Just think your way of saying thank you 
to these individuals is to turn them away from your business because you don't agree with what they do behind closed doors. Shame. 
 

LGTB Perspective:  But isn't the current state of things fall right in line with your wants? Indiana passed the bill that let's people put 
"Straights Only" signs in their window at their businesses. Free market prevails, and A LOT of people will be taking their money 
elsewhere. If Indiana can survive economically, then good on them, they'll keep on keeping on being the state that is the home of the 
KKK. 
If economic pressure causes them to change the law, then good on them for making the right choice. 
 

Christian Perspective: Christians are no strangers to second class treatment and persecution around the world. I also agree  - Let 
people put signs up that say "straights only" or "gays only" or "blacks only." We'll see how long they stay in business. Again, that 
woman in the bakery served that gay man in the past. She is not denying gays from her products or services 99% of the time. It was 
only that one event that she does not want to participate in. It's not about choosing not to serve a person because of who they are at 
their core or choose to be, she did so in the past. it's about not wanting to participate or promote a particular idea that she is 
fundamentally and respectfully against because of because of who SHE is at her core, whether you agree or not. This has to be defined 
so that we tolerate and protect the first amendment rights of everyone, not just some. 

 

 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:30 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Gov Pence stance on Religious Freedom

 
 

From: ruthnharv [mailto:rmfruhwirth@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:25 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Gov Pence stance on Religious Freedom 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:26 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed
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From: John Gustin [mailto:jgustin68@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 11:22 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject:  
 
   
My family and I do not see anything wrong with Indiana’s RFRA.  I do not know why so many people 
always look for the negative in everything; rather than the good that it can be used for.  Extremist’s 
will use any law to fit their agenda, so that is what law abiding citizen’s have to fight for to make it not 
happen.  From Colorado wishing you all the best of luck in doing what is right for everyone rather than 
minority groups forcing every one to bend to their beliefs. 
 
Sincerely, 
John and Lori Gustin 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:09 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act

 
 
From: rachwal@  [mailto:rachwal@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:21 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 
This e-mail is to THANK Gov. Mike Pence for restoring the Religious Freedom  
Restoration Act for Indiana.  I only wish EVERY Governor in every state would 
do the same. 
 
We know that Hollywood and the media are against it, which is why they make 
it look like the majority of people are against it too.  When someone owns a bakery or floral store and cannot in 
good conscience make their floral or cakes for same/sex marriages, but gave them names of business that will, 
they were sued and forced  
into doing it or face huge fines or punishment.   Is this America or a Communist  
country?  WHO are these Judges to make these decisions?  It isn't as though no 
one would make it, but they demand retribution or revenge if they don't? 
 
When media states hundreds of people against it, that is just a drop in a bucket 
because the majority of people favor what the Governor is doing.  They just want 
to play it up big to make it look like everyone is up in arms against it.  Compare 
it to the thousands of people who support Gov. Pence.  Don't let this minority  
dictate our laws.  Hold fast and stand your ground, otherwise their demands  
will get bolder and bolder.. 
 
Esther Rachwal 

 
 

  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:09 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: HELP!

 
 
From: Garry Clark [mailto:1gaclark1@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:37 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: HELP! 
 

Governor Pence was for Religious Freedom last week.  Today, he was against Religious Freedom.  Tonight on 
Shawn Hannity, he is said to announce that he is again for Religious Freedom. 
Would you please ask Governor Pence to make-up his mind and be a man who stands for something above 
himself instead of being politically correct and wishy washy? 
Would you please take the governor's balls out of your lock box and allow him to be a man? Please! 

Garry A. Clark 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:09 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Frank Coffey Flammini [mailto:frankly@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:55 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom 
 
 
 
Thank you for being courageous and right in passing the Religious Freedom Restoration Act. I live in Illinois. I am 
impressed with Indiana. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Frank Coffey 

 
 

(708)  
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:08 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious freedom
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-----Original Message----- 
From: Michael Vespa [mailto:mvespa2@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 6:29 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious freedom 
 
Dear Governor Pence, if you are a Christian please don't be a coward, protect religion ! 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:08 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Stand firm Gov. Pence

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Yahoo [mailto:hammvirginia@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 6:19 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Stand firm Gov. Pence 
 
 
I would like to voice my support for Gov. Pence's unpopular stand on Religious Freedom. 
 
It takes courage to stand for what is right and I pray he does not succumb to the noisy, obnoxious people who are 
threatening him.  I am sure he has received death threats and threats to harm his family too.  These are the actions of 
people who only want their group protected.  They have no concern for the rights or thoughts of others.  
 
Gov. Pence, be a David and put your trust in the Living God!  You can stand against this Goliath of public opinion.  Let the 
will of the people be heard, not the will of organizers from Hollywood and the SPLC and ACLU whose salaries are paid by 
our government and special interest groups. Let the people of Indiana count! 
 
Dr. Virginia Hamm 
Troy, AL 
 
 
 
Sent from my 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:08 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Letter to Governor Pence

 
 
From: Karen [mailto:nypd14@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 7:53 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Letter to Governor Pence 
 
March 31, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Governor Michael Pence 
200 W. Washington St., Rm. 206 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
 
Governor Pence, 
 
As a US Citizen, I find it deplorable that you would sign a bill that allows for discrimination against 
“select” people…human beings. "Life, Liberty and the pursuit of Happiness" is a well-known phrase in 
the United States Declaration of Independence. The phrase gives three examples of the "unalienable 
rights" which the Declaration says has been given to all human beings by their Creator, and for which 
governments are created to protect. Tell me, how can LGBT citizens obtain these rights, when there 
are people like you signing such inconceivable laws into place? As Governor, you took an oath to 
“defend the constitution” and the bill you have signed into law goes directly against the principles of 
the Constitution of the United States. Unfortunately, ignorance seems to fuel so many religious 
leaders as well as elected officials, and legacies are made not only through substantial differences 
people make in the lives of others, but 
through considerable ignorance. 
 
I am fortunate that I do not live in your state of Indiana, but I feel for those residents who have been 
completely humiliated, and may feel the inevitable brunt of the economic backlash that has only just 
begun.  
Perhaps in the future, you may consider the consequences; the harm in which you have brought to 
human beings that do not choose to live as LGBT’s – who would in such a society where they need to 
fight for every single right that is freely given to others? I am proud to say that in 2004 Massachusetts 
became the sixth jurisdiction in the world (after the Netherlands, Belgium, Ontario, British Columbia, 
and Quebec) to legalize same-sex marriage. It was the first U.S. state to issue marriage licenses to 
same-sex couples, and guess what? The world did not come to an end. Our state has continued to 
thrive and has been looked upon as a first class model. As a country we passed laws to allow blacks 
to vote, to hold jobs, to sit in restaurants freely and openly…to be the President of the United States! 
We have been a country progressing, albeit slowly at times, but progressing and yet, with actions like 
the one you took, we find ourselves scratching 



our heads. How on earth could the United States of America be a country that is regressing? No 
doubt, other countries look at us and laugh that we fight against our own people. I may not be a 
resident of Indiana, but I am a citizen of the United States, and your actions have insulted not only 
your residents, but citizens throughout the country. I am confident, the millions of service members 
who fight and lose their lives for freedom – the freedom for ALL shake their heads and ask why. Let 
us not forget the LGBT service members who are willing to lay down their lives for EVERY single 
individual – even a heterosexual person; even a bigot. 
 
Disappointed, 
 
Karen Villani 
 
Karen L. Villani 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:06 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Encouragement for Mike
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-----Original Message----- 
From: John P Guarino [mailto:johnpguarino@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 9:12 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Encouragement for Mike 
 
 
I am just sick for Mike Pence. He has been so attacked even from the President of Hanover College. Sue Dewine was just 
short calling Mike a gay/lesbian hater. She had the opportunity to call Mike and share her feelings About the law, but 
she put the article in the Madison Courier 3/31/15 Editorial page and in her page on the Hanover College website The 
article is so belittleing that Mike should never return to Hanover. 
As a teacher of 38 years, I know the hate that is being directed toward my governor. It is unfair and malicious. 
I hope our state people can fix the law or just cancel it. today's protesters Are so full of vengeance and hate there is no 
balance. 
Tell Mike I will be praying for him. Good will prevail. 
John Guarino 
 
Sent from my iPad 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:06 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: 
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From: phyllis bussmann [mailto:pbussmann1942@   
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 9:27 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject:  
 

Tell Gov. Pence to hang in there and fight, fight for our religious freedom s. You rock  Gov. Pence. PLEASE 
dont back down.  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:05 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: The Bill

 
 
From: Anthony Curran [mailto:anthonycurran2@   
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 10:23 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: The Bill 
 
Karen,  
 
Please tell the governor for me that he is an ass among asses, an imbecile and a hypocrite. What a sideshow, to dupe 
and bring on all those dear little nuns and priests. Did he ask them how many gays there are in their own communities? 
May I suggest 50%! 
 
How dare they stand there in full uniform to prostitute their vocations  and religious garb for the governor's hate bill. Oh, I 
know, it has nothing to do with hate. It's all about freedom of religion and he, such a Christian Evangelical is certainly 
going to do his part! Well did he and those brilliant Republicans in the state congress think this bill through? 
 
Now I agree, Obamacare overreached in this matter, but this is your response? 
 
A curse on the governor and on all their heads. What goes around, comes around and I pray fervently that this bill will 
freeze Indiana into the ice age and the governor into political oblivion! It troubles me to think that the electorate of Indiana 
could put such a person in office, but I guess in politics anything is possible I write as one who has a master's from the 
little school in South Bend! 
 
My sorrow is for the good, fair thinking people of Indiana suffering under this kind of strage and misguided "leadership." 
One answer is, well you elected him, now take what you get. But what about the thinking people would have no part of 
such a governor/  
 
Have you done even a casual total of the Billions that have already left the state and  the blood letting will not  stop any 
time soon. 
 
Thanks you Gov. pence for one of the singular dumb ass boondoggles of the 21 st century! 
 
By all means, tell the governor to run for president; it would be more fun than watching Abbot and Costello. I always look 
forward to  the Republican primaries. They are more fun than Comedy Central. Can you just see Pence and Cruz and 
Paul on stage together; that is an award winning comedy video! I certainly would buy ten copies. 
 
If he runs, I will give him three months on the trail before he is dead in the water, even more un-electable than a moron 
like Ted Cruz, the preacher's son! Bring'em on. I  will sit down with a towel to wipe away  the tears of laughter! 
 
With disgust and contempt, 
 
Anthony T. Curran 

Rev.Anthony Curran 
 

 
 

c.570-  
 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:05 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: RFRA

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: rick reinhardt [mailto:rpr20071@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:09 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D; Cleveland, Bridget; Denault, Christina 
Subject: RFRA 
 
To the Unesteemed Governor Pence: 
 
I am a former resident of Indiana (born and raised) and graduate of Indiana University.  I also have many relatives and 
friends still residing in the State, mostly in North Indianapolis and Hamilton and Hendricks Counties -- and, I frequently 
return to the State.  
 
I am deeply disturbed with the current controversy that you and the legislature have created by enacting this flawed 
law;  it is designed to address what are largely manufactured issues.  Your wisdom, as Governor, in signing the bill into 
law is truly lacking.  It demonstrates your inability to listen to volumes of advice that attempted to warn you of the 
consequences for the State.  And, it shows how you blindly follow your fundamentalist religious beliefs/community -- to 
the detriment of the better interests of the State and all of its citizens.   
 
I do hope that you promptly correct this miscarriage as quickly as possible, and that you use your position as Governor 
to  work for the betterment of all IN citizens -- not just the ones that you agree with politically and religiously. 
 
The only positive to come out of this controversy is that more of your State's citizens, and those from around the 
country, will get a better picture of your lack of wisdom and judgment.  Hopefully, this will destroy any further political 
aspirations you might have. 
 
Oh -- and I suggest you stay off of national TV shows.  Totally Inept and Embarrassing!  You're not making your case -- 
you're digging your hole deeper; it is not a "perception" problem.  Frankly, you are clearly a liar; you indicate that the 
law was not directed to create selected opportunities for discrimination, yet if you even bothered to review the website 
and other material put out by Senator Schneider (one of the authors RFRA) and others, the intent in creating and 
sponsoring RFRA is clear.  And, now, you come up with an excuse that your citizens need to be protected against 
Obamacare?  More accurately, many of your citizens need to be protected against extremist and over-reaching 
legislative and executive branches. 
 
Your "Judgment Day", when it comes, might not end up as you are expecting. 
 
(copy to Indpls Star) 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:03 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom From Act!

 
 

From: WK Gainer [mailto:wkgainer@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 5:31 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom From Act! 
 
Sexual Sin is NOT A CIVIL RIGHT! 
Gaymonizum is a State sanctioned religion/cult who's core beliefs are that they are born this way and its not 
just another sin on the list and if you don't tend their church you MUST BE PUNISHED! 
The American U S Constitution and KJV Bible corrects both errors. 
The First Amendment (Amendment I) to the United States Constitution prohibits the making of any law 
respecting an establishment of religion! 
Romans 3:23 For all have sinned, and come short of the glory of God;) 
 
The Church of the Later-day Gayminites are now recognized by law. The State is now respecting this 
establishment of religion and is prohibiting the free exercise against this sinful life stile thereof; abridging our 
freedom of speech and the press against said State established beliefs. The right of the people to peaceably 
assemble, to pursue happiness and to petition the government for a redress of grievances is coming to an 
impasse fast. 
 
Ben Carson CPAC Speech: Gay People 'Don't Get Extra Rights' 
 
Conservative Ben Carson let loose on gay marriage during his Saturday CPAC speech, reinforcing his belief in 
traditional practices. 
 
"As you know, I am not a fan of political correctness," Carson told onlookers, drawing cheers. "I still believe 
that marriage is between a man and a woman." 
 
Carson went on to add that the political world is full of "ideologues" and the only people that can stop them 
are the American people. While he believes gay people are entitled to their rights, Carson drew the line at 
"extra rights" that alter the institution of marriage. 
 
"Of course gay people should have the same rights as everyone else, but they don't get extra rights," Carson 
said. "They don't get to redefine marriage." 
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2014/03/08/ben-carson-cpac-
speech_n_4899410.html?ncid=txtlnkusaolp00000592 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:00 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: RFRA

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Jim Strouse Jr. [mailto:strouseplumbing@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:15 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RFRA 
 
 
I support your law , you are being scapegoated. Fight on & strong  
 
Jim Strouse Jr.  
Burlington , VT 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:00 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Law

 
 

From: stephendefilippo [mailto:stephendefilippo ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 6:46 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Law 
 
WHAT DID YOU EXPECT WHEN YOU PASS A LAW PRESERVING RELIGIOUS FREEDOM? 
TELL MIKE PENCE NOT TO CAVE TO THESE ASSHOLES. STAND UP FOR SOMETHING FOR 
CHRIST'S SAKE. 
ACT LIKE A MAN AND LET THE CHIPS FALL WHERE THEY MAY DESPITE ECONOMICS. 
GOD BLESS! 
 
STEVE DEFILIPPO 
TAMPA, FLORIDA 
Sent via the Samsung GALAXY S® 5, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 10:00 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Simplify Governor Pence's difficulties.

 
 
From: Garry Clark [mailto:1gaclark1@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 7:52 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Simplify Governor Pence's difficulties. 
 

Might I suggest you order Governor Pence to support Religious Freedom every other hour while opposing 
Religious Freedom in the remaining time. 

To simplify and make matters fair, Governor Pence can support Religious Freedom during the even hours of 
today and oppose Religious Freedom during the odd hours of today while reversing this performance tomorrow. 

Since you have more balls than Governor Pense, I am certain that he will obey your orders.  However, when he 
has a press conference he will blame you for his obeying your order. 

Will Governor Mike "Spineless" Pence announce his resignation today and end this calamity? 

Garry A. Clark 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 9:59 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: 

 
 

From: sbwarren56 [mailto:sbwarren56 ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 8:04 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject:  
 
 
My daughter is a Republican, Christian and respect the laws. She prays everyday to forgive her sins but she is 
Gay...She said that this particular law opens more hate crimes and she pray that the Gov. Pence have it reword 
so it does protect all who will be subject to Christian's persecution. ..This reminds me of the witch hunt back in 
the days ... 
 
Sent via the Samsung Galaxy Note® 4, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 9:53 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: RFRA
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From: Aaron Boyle [mailto:aboyle@ ]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 8:48 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RFRA 
 
Ms. Brooks, 
 
I have been in business in Indiana for almost 20 years and in my 53 years of life have never written to a government 
official.  In reference to the RFRA and Governor Pence’s response, I cannot remain silent any longer.  I am embarrassed 
and appalled by the Governor’s position on the entire issue and how he has represented himself and our State.  Even if 
he is right (and I do not think he is), it is beyond me why it is so difficult to admit that the rest of the Country might have 
a point.  Mr. Pence is making our State look like a bunch of goofs that has been pushed around by special interest and 
after hearing him talk this week he sounds like he is in favor of the legislation because it IS anti-gay….I am Catholic and 
do not believe in same sex relationships but when I heard Governor Pence being interviewed I was sick to my stomach 
and again embarrassed that he was representing the State of Indiana.  Please, Please, Please make him stop fighting this 
battle. 
 
 
 
 

Aaron Boyle 
 

 
Phone: 317-  
Mobile 317-  
Fax: 317-580-1169 

  
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 8:37 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Religious Freedom Restoration Act

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: s v ogle <svogle55@ > 
Date: March 31, 2015 at 2:09:21 PM EDT 
To: cdenault@gov.in.gov 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 

Dear Governor:  
 
Please do not cave on this issue because of left wing media bias and 
pressure and the gay mafia lobby. Stand firm and believe in your 
convictions. 
 
The legislators were elected by their constituents and they speak as their 
representatives. In this  case the majority of  citizen Hoosiers support 
the law. Otherwise, why would reps craft a bill that wasn't important to 
their constituents?  
 
To modify the law or force the legislators to do so is a betrayal of the 
voters. Many will not forget those betrayals because a governor was 
pressured by the dollar bill and the gay lobby. What does that say about 
the governor's character? The LGBT crowd and academic elitists didn't put 
him into office.  
 
Examine Scott Walker's situation. The media, the unions and academia were 
all over him for months. Yet, he didn't cave and found tremendous support 
even among moderate democrats in a liberal state and across the nation.  
 
And if Governor Pence has any future presidential aspirations he'd better 
remember the choices he makes now follow him tomorrow.   
 
SVO  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:11 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Congradulate Gov

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Starr Carpenter [mailto:scdl@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 4:21 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Cc: Voy, Le 
Subject: Congradulate Gov 
 
 kbrooks@gov.in.gov was contact info at end of Indiana Gov. Pence's "Statement Regarding Religious Freedom 
Restoration Act." 
 
Thank God for Gov. Pence.  Please pass this on to your Gov.  He did the correct think with this law.  I am from WI and 
wish Gov. Walker would have half as much resolve to stand for his state, people, and correct law.  WI Gov. is walking the 
easy fence because he wants to further his political career.  I will not vote again for him because he has back peddled 
and did not stand and use his Gov. position (like state of Alabama to do all they can to defend their state laws and 
freedom) for all the people and not just an agenda being pushed by minority groups. 
 
Please tell Gov. Pence to "Stand Your Ground".  Just listened to Matt Staver of Liberty Council and he is asking for the 
Gov. to do nothing further.  Let your Religious Freedom Restoration stand as it is - do not try and clarify; do not pass any 
additional laws.  Do not allow the hate groups who are threatening to boycott your fine State to influence your law and 
religion faithfulness to God and truth.  Do not allow the corrosive and intolerant groups to rule in your State.  Do not 
compromise your values and the values of the people of your State who you represent.  Stand the clash and onslaught.  
Stand for God and just laws and to no placate with  unjust laws.  Obey laws that stand for the biblical rule of our United 
States Constitution and the Republic of the USA one Nation Under God. 
 
Please pass this on to your Indiana Speaker of House.  Your legislative body need to know they passed the correct law 
that protects everyone and allows everyone in your fine State to thrive. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Starr Le Voy 

  
 

(715)  
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 4:58 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: BRAVO!

 
 

From: Harry Moomey [mailto:hmoomey@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:53 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: BRAVO! 
 
I live out in Washington State and… I salute the Governor and your state legislators who have chosen to boldly step forth 
with your religious freedom law.   Huraah to you for providing relief and protection for your citizens to follow their own 
religions convictions. 
 
I’ve never visited Indiana – but it appears that I should put your state on my list of places to visit.  The example of your 
leaders should be emulated and rewarded - not criticized. 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 4:03 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: You all are right on target-keep the Religious Freedom law as you have it
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From: Suetta Bartley [mailto:sbartley@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:22 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: You all are right on target-keep the Religious Freedom law as you have it 
 
 
Thanks for all you do for the citizens of IN.  Sincerely, Suetta Bartley, Indianapolis, IN 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 4:02 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act
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From: Garry Clark [mailto:1gaclark1   
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:25 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 

I am totally confused.  With the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, a Sodomite cannot sue a business that 
refuses to cater and Sanctify Sodomite marriage while Governor seeks legislation denying business right to 
practice Religious Freedom by not Sanctifying Sodomite marriage. 
I am confused. 
Do we have religious freedom or are we to sacrifice our faith out of fear of civil litigation? 
Is Governor Pence saying that he surrenders to the Sodomite lobby and Democrats? 
Will a business that refuses to Sanctify Sodomite marriage by baking a wedding cake be sued for honoring 
God's Law, or will the business have right to refuse Sanctification of Sodomite marriage by baking a cake? 
Is Governor Pence in effect seeking repeal of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act? 
If Governor Pence does not have the backbone to make one decision and stick with that decision as part of 
principle, maybe he should resign his office. 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 3:57 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Thank you for standing strong!
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From: Justice, Kimberly P [mailto:KJustice@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:29 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Thank you for standing strong! 
 
Dear Gov. Pence, 
 
I am a supporter!  
 
Thank you for standing strong and not backing down 
on the religious freedom bill…….. 
 
We as the people need more politicians such as yourself. 
 
God Bless 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kim Justice 
 
 
 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This e-mail contains information that may be privileged, confidential and subject 
to legal restrictions and penalties regarding its unauthorized disclosure or other use. You are prohibited from 
copying, distributing or otherwise using this information if you are not the intended recipient or the employee or 
agent to deliver to the intended recipient. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us immediately 
by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system. Thank you.  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 3:47 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act
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From: Diane Crecelius [mailto:Diane.Crecelius@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 2:39 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 
I would like to thank the Governor for passing this.  All we hear is the negative.  People need to know about all of us who 
agree with the law and appreciate our Governor for standing up for our rights. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Diane Crecelius 
812  
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 3:45 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: PLEASE STAND FIRM FOR RELIGIOUS FREEDOM

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Elizabeth Browning [mailto:emaib@   
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 3:19 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: PLEASE STAND FIRM FOR RELIGIOUS FREEDOM 
 
Dear Governor Pence,  
 
Please keep the law in place, as signed. You are protecting the rights of businesses that do not want to be complicit in 
"approving" of behaviors and choices inconsistent with their religious beliefs. 1% of the population, those with same-sex 
attraction issues, are discriminating against people with firmly held religious beliefs. DON'T ENABLE THEM. 
 
Thank you for protecting the First Amendment rights of ALL your citizens, and for being an example for other states to 
follow.  
 
Elizabeth Browning 
Natural Bridge, Virginia 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 3:17 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Tell Gov to be STRONG!!! Don't cower! Protect religious freedom!

 
 

From: SpeakrsForum@  [mailto:SpeakrsForum ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 2:29 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Tell Gov to be STRONG!!! Don't cower! Protect religious freedom! 
 
Hello, Ms. Brooks. CONFIDENTIAL SUBMISSION. DO NOT SHARE, BROADCAST MY EMAIL 
ADDRESS.  
  
I must say that Gov. Pence needs to be stronger in WHY people of faith don't have to bow to other 
people's actions. He needs to say (in short): 
  
No one should be forced to aid, service or provide goods to a conduct that doesn't comport 
with the vendor's faith! Period! 
  
This is NOT about ""Civil Rights" as with Blacks. No. Blacks could NOT vote. Homosexuals can get 
cakes, flowers, etc. they CAN get them. But if someone's actions conflict with a person's faith, 
WHY should they be forced to aid that conduct?  
  
I'm am Ob-Gyn. Abortions are the law of the land. I even feel women have the right to get an abortion; 
it's their body. But I, as a physician and a woman of faith, don't want to be the one to be sucking out 
all that embryonic tissue. Can the woman still get an abortion? YES. Just get it somewhere else. Her 
desire for an abortion doesn't supercede MY conduct and what I wish to participate in! 
  
This is ridiculous. I cannot believe how homosexuality is the rule of the day. It is the homosexual 
community that is intolerant of others. They can sleep with whomever they choose, but that doesn't 
mean the rest of us have to endorse, support or service those activities. Get your cake, flowers 
elsewhere!!!!!!!! 
  
And I am NOT a white male republican. Quite the contrary. I'm a Black female Democrat. 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 2:08 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Support the Fairness for All Hoosiers Act

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "lindaponterio ." <lindaponterio@ > 
Date: March 31, 2015 at 1:50:44 PM EDT 
To: undisclosed-recipients:; 
Subject: Support the Fairness for All Hoosiers Act 

Dear Governor Pence, 

Please act on the courage of your religious convictions and support the Fairness for All Hoosiers Act. 
 
The Fairness for All Hoosiers Act is exactly what Indiana needs to begin rebuilding our reputation and undo the 
harm RFRA has inflicted on our state. N 
  
This common sense legislation would do two important things: 

 Update Indiana’s state civil rights law to prohibit discrimination against LGBT Hoosiers in employment, 
housing and public accommodations. 

 Clarify that the recently enacted RFRA cannot be used to undermine local or statewide civil rights 
protections. 

 

People are speaking, and it's clearly more than the Left and the media.  Please be a leader for all Hoosiers. 

Linda Ponterio 
 

 

 

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: lindaponterio . <lindaponterio@ > 



Date: Mon, Mar 23, 2015 at 8:24 PM 
Subject: VETO RFRA 
To:  
 

Please veto the Religious Freedom Restoration Act.   
 
How can one argue that religious freedom is the factor preventing job growth in Indiana when: 

 22% of Indiana’s children live in poverty 
 Indiana is 43rd in the nation for infant mortality. 
 12.5% of our children have been abused or neglected prior to turning 18. 
 Suicide is a leading cause of death for Hoosiers aged 15-54 and is the 11th leading cause of death 

overall in Indiana.   
 Indiana females in grades nine through 12 have the nation’s second-highest rate of forced 

sex.  Nearly one in six Hoosier girls has been sexually assaulted or raped prior to leaving high 
school.   

 Indiana is ranked second in the nation for sexual assault crimes.   
 Indiana is a leader in the nation in rates of smoking, obesity, and diabetes. 

 
Stop using religion as a scapegoat and do the work of the people.  Create a safe, strong 
Indiana.  VETO RFRA. 
 
Linda Ponterio 

 
 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:45 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Fairness in Indiana
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Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: beattie_daniel@  
Date: March 31, 2015 at 1:32:45 PM EDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Fairness in Indiana 

Dear Ms Denault: 
 

 

I am writing to express my hope that you will encourage the Governor to push for 
repeal or a substantive fix to the recent Religious Freedoms law that in my view 
will make Indianapolis a less welcoming place to do business and to visit. I have 
many gay friends and a gay family member. Let's make no mistake that the new 
law will impact them regardless of political spin from some lawmakers. This is 
also about perception and basic fairness and dignity. I could not in good 
conscience encourage a gay friend or family member to invest a cent in the state 
when we treat residents or visitors this way. I am profoundly disappointed. The 
state is on the wrong side of history. Please do what you can to help make this 
right. This is costing us money and distracts from the state's good deeds.  

 

Daniel Beattie 

 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:45 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Constitution is Clear

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-31 01-44PM.html
IQmailID: 8389839
IQpeopleID: 9282247

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Zola Alves <daern25@ > 
Date: March 31, 2015 at 1:43:01 PM EDT 
To: cdenault@gov.in.gov 
Subject: Constitution is Clear 

I get that people are upset about this new religious freedom law, but the law was really not necessary as the 
Constitution already GUARANTEES religious freedom.  Last time I checked, the U.S. Constitution over rides 
anyone's hurt feelings about issues.  That is why we have the Constitution.  If a person wants to own a private 
business then the government should not have the ability to determine who they can service.  If that is the case, 
the next logical step would be that the government can then say what brands they can sell or not sell and so 
forth.  The founding fathers foresaw these issues which is why they made the freedom of religion the FIRST 
amendment.  I commend your administration for standing up for the Constitution, even though it does not sit 
well with the very noisy minority that disagrees with the Constitution.    



Scott.A.Milkey

From: fsmi@
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:59 PM
To: Wellen, Alex;Toppo, Mike;Kerns, Kitric;DeGrammont, Karen;Artley, Meredith;Morse, 

Andrew
Cc: Hodgin, Stephanie;Denault, Christina;Cleveland, Bridget;Brooks, Kara D;Governor Mike 

Pence;Costello, Carol;Bolduan, Kate;Pereira, Michaela;Phillips, Kyra;Wolf Blitzer;Baldwin, 
Brooke;Cuomo, Chris

Subject: Fwd: Spiritual Truth about Homosexuality and Same-Sex Marriage

Please find below a copy of a recent email to Governor Michael Richard Pency of Indiana to explain the issue 
of Homosexuality and Same-Sex Marriage and put the issue in a spiritual and Godly perspective. We also invite 
you to read the article 'The Decline and Fall of a Divided Nation' listed on our website 
www.aworlddeceived.ca  
   
As always, we welcome your questions  
   
In His Service.  
   
Andy & Dianne van den Berg - www.aworlddeceived.ca  
   
---------- Original Message ----------  
From: "fsmi@ " <fsmi@ >  
To: "Pence, Michael Richard" <mpence@gov.in.gov>  
Cc: "Denault, Christy" <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, "Hodgin, Stephanie" <shodgin@gov.in.gov>, "Cleveland, 
Bridget" <bcleveland@gov.in.gov>, "Brooks, Kara" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov>  
Date: March 31, 2015 at 11:56 AM  
Subject: Spiritual Truth about Homosexuality and Same-Sex Marriage  

Michael, 

Please find below the item listed on the Current Events page of our website www.aworlddeceived.ca 

It is our hope that you will circulate the item to as many people as you can as it communicates the only Spiritual 
Truth about the issue. In order prevent any further spin by the media we pray and ask that you circulate this 
email to all the Media outlets. Feel free to direct them to us with any questions they may have. 

All of the other pages and articles listed on our website explain how and by whom the people of this world have 
been deceived as confirmed in Revelation 12:9. 

We welcome your questions and would be please to address all those seeking the truth. 

In His Service. 

Andy & Dianne van den Berg - www.aworlddeceived.ca 

Homosexuality and Same-Sex Marriage 



Sixty years ago my grandparents never heard of homosexuality and it was only late in life that my parents heard 
of the subject. I was twenty one years of age myself when I was first informed of this unnatural behavior by a 
family member. The issue has now reached a whole new level of diversion and deception, where homosexual 
couples enter into a union and they even call it 'marriage'. 

What has happened in such a short period of time where all the foundations of this world are obviously out of 
its course and things have become so distorted? We invite you to read the article Foundations Out of Course on 
this website. 

The following is an excerpt from the article Julia Gillard ~ Prime Minister of Australia. 

"We know that the days we live in are as they were in the days of Noah (Matthew 24:37-39). In his days people 
were un-repenting and only few believed in Noah's message of repentance. As ministers and soldiers of Christ 
our challenges are very similar and the choices that people are called to make are no different today as they 
have always been. 

Noah was 950 years of age when he died in 1994 BC and that was only four thousand years ago (Genesis 9:29). 
For more of this mystery and the genealogies of the Patriarchs from Adam to Noah we invite you to read the 
article Who is God and who is Satan? 

Sexual perversion contributed to God's wrath on the sons of God during the days of Noah and it is no different 
today (Matthew 3:7; Luke 3:7; 1 Thess. 1:10). 

On June 15, 2005, we wrote the Legislative Committee on Bill-C38, a bill which eventually passed and Canada 
became the fourth country in the world to legalize same-sex marriage. Receipt of our correspondence was never 
acknowledged, neither was our voice ever allowed to be heard. One thing we know with certainty, that God's 
judgment accelerated rapidly, since same-sex marriage was allowed in so many countries, and it is only a matter 
of time before it becomes an acceptable practice in most countries throughout the world. 

Can't the law makers of the nations even understand and recognize that the anatomy of the male and female 
body was created for the sole purpose of procreation? For this reason God created them male and female 
(Genesis 2:25; Matthew 19:5). Through his own free will mankind concocted the idea of homosexuality for his 
own pleasures as God has given them up to such vile affections (Romans 1:24-32; Jude 10). Consider the 
problem of pedophilia and the sexual perversion of priests and ministers, in which children are preferred as 
sexual objects. There are many other forms of sexual perversion that we will not even mention. It is all an 
abomination in God's eyes as this whole world lieth in wickedness (1 John 5:19). One thing is clear that even 
the animal kingdom knows the difference and their behavior towards their own gender and the younger ones 
can be considered more respectful than that of mankind." 

To show mankind what impact the issue of Homosexuality and Same-Sex Marriage  has had on society, we 
have added the article CNN Belief Blog ~ Sign of the Times to this website. 

Our website was designed to show mankind how and by whom they have been deceived as confirmed by the 
Word of God in Revelation 12:9 and we invite you to read all the pages and articles, so that you may come to 
know the ways of the true and living God. 

Seek, and ye shall find (Matthew 7:7). 

 
   



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:40 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Outraged over SB101 and RFRA

 
 
From: Chad Seewald [mailto:sweetssogeek@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:09 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D; Cleveland, Bridget; Denault, Christina; Hodgin, Stephanie; Governor Mike Pence 
Subject: Outraged over SB101 and RFRA 
 
Governor Pence and communications staff -  
 
As a business owner in your state, I am affronted by the passage of this bill. Worse, is the way the bill has been handled since it was signed. 
Frankly, I would like to know why there were not open town hall meetings across the state prior to the vote on this bill to take the 
temperature on the bill to gain a true representation of your electorate? And, since the outrage following the passing of the bill, why have you 
not had meetings with your constituency to "clarify" the bill, your stance on the bill, and whether you are for or against amending the bill to 
rectify the extreme opening allowing for discrimination against the LGBT community? Why, in interviews, have you stuck to a rhetoric of 
trying to dissemble the responsibility for the act to two Democratic presidents, rather than answering simple yes or no questions, bringing 
additional shame on our state in a national arena? 
 
 I would appreciate an answer to these questions. 
 
 Thank you for your time -  
 
Chad Seewald 
Owner - Sweets So Geek 
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From: Ed K [mailto:edkruger83 ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:26 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Indiana's Relgious Freedom Law 
 

A privately owned business should retain the right to serve or not to serve those whose 
voluntary actions contradict the business owner's held religious beliefs.   

Ed  
 

  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:28 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: REPEAL OR RECALL!!!!!!

 
 

From: Troy Griffiths [mailto:troy@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:22 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Cc: Cleveland, Bridget; Denault, Christina; Hodgin, Stephanie 
Subject: REPEAL OR RECALL!!!!!! 
 
Dear Mrs. Brooks: 
 
If you would be kind enough, I would like you to please pass along this message to your boss.  Apparently 
we can’t contact him directly and you have been appointed as the chief gate keeper (that’s democracy at 
its finest): 
 
Governor Pence: 
 
I am contacting you today to express my great displeasure for the hit that the reputation of Indiana has 
taken as a result of your singing into law the Religious Freedom Restoration Act.  As the sole owner of an 
accounting firm located in Mokena, Illinois, I have chosen to take valuable time away from my clients in 
order to send this message.  I am in the planning process of expanding my company to a second location 
near my home in Portage, Indiana.  Effective immediately, I have decided to put these plans on hold.  I 
will not and cannot consider hiring in Indiana until the Religious Freedom Restoration Act is fully 
repealed.    
 
I have received calls, letters and e-mails from clients, family and friends who have cited our state as “out 
of touch”, “setting the country back 50 years” and “filled with religious yahoos” (the last being from a 
Christian minister).  Until today, I was an advocate for Indiana.  I always offered moving to a state that’s 
better on taxes, employment and regulation as a solution to my clients business needs.  Starting today I 
can no longer offer this as a solution.  I cannot suggest that anyone open a business in a state who’s 
governor openly condones bigotry of any kind.  I cannot suggest that anyone open a business in a state in 
which I’m ashamed to say I live. 
 
Next I hope you do the right thing, so I can fully focus on my clients businesses:  Immediately REPEAL 
the Religious Freedom Restoration Act in full.  If you cannot find it in yourself to personally correct 
your error of judgement in signing this law, I will do everything in my power to see you are recalled from 
office.  To further express my point, I’ve attached below some additional reading you might be interested 
in. 
 
http://www.newyorker.com/humor/borowitz-report/indiana-defines-stupidity-as-religion 
http://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/pro-discrimination-religious-freedom-laws-are-dangerous-to-
america/2015/03/29/bdb4ce9e-d66d-11e4-ba28-f2a685dc7f89_story.html?tid=sm_fb 
http://www.rawstory.com/rs/2015/03/twitter-pounds-indianas-mike-pence-enjoy-your-last-term-as-
governor-you-ass-backward-dipsht/ 
http://www.king5.com/story/news/local/seattle/2015/03/31/seattle-travel-ban-to-indiana/70712554/ 
http://wishtv.com/2015/03/30/chicago-mayor-rahm-emanuel-hoping-to-lure-indiana-businesses/ 
http://wishtv.com/2015/03/30/chicago-mayor-rahm-emanuel-hoping-to-lure-indiana-businesses/ 
 
 



Kind Regards, 
Troy W. Griffiths 

 
 

 
P.S.  When I said “I’m ashamed to say I live” in Indiana, I meant that I’m ashamed of you!!! 
 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:27 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Governor Pence Presser on RFRA

 
 

From: randi riley [mailto:therandiriley@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:06 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D; Denault, Christina 
Subject: Governor Pence Presser on RFRA 
 
 
Good morning, 
  
I just watched your boss throw the ENTIRE Christian population in America under the Left's Gay Extortion Bus. 
He validated the taunts from the Left by demonstrating that Republican leadership is a hoax.  That promises 
during a campaign are merely lies.  That Indiana is fronted by a coward. 
  
While LGBTs comprise perhaps 4% of America's total population, Christians, and incidentally many Black and 
Latino voters who oppose the Gay Agenda on moral grounds, are in the majority still--barely--but we're still here. 
And now, with his "no right to deny services" retreat, he raised the white flag of surrender to a ruthless horde of 
sexual jihadists and made your state the target of LGBT activist revenge.  Unprotected Christian-owned businesses 
will suffer the excruciating fate of that innocent baker in the state of Washington; be victimized by contrived 
lawsuits to intimidate future Governors and States from enforcing a legitimate and necessary law.  You are now co-
conspirators, abettors of an illegitimate group in the willful destruction of the businesses and income of decent 
people who are weary of being scapegoated and demonized everyday by the press and a secular Left who desire to 
destabilize and deconstruct our precious Republic.  They know the traditions and values that built this nation must 
be removed/replaced if they are to achieve the goal of destroying it. 
  
Governor Pence disgraced himself today.  He brought shame and humilitation upon your state and its citizens.  If 
you feared the backlash and boycotts of radical LGBT supporters before, you will now suffer the economic & 
public abandonment of the silent American majority from within and without Indiana.  I for one, refuse to touch 
one inch of Indiana turf in my travels.  That is known as acting on principle.  Mr. Pence should try it. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Randi Riley 
Edgewater, Florida 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 12:17 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Governor Pence Presser on RFRA

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: randi riley <therandiriley@ > 
Date: March 31, 2015 at 12:05:48 PM EDT 
To: "kbrooks@gov.in.gov" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov>,  "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Governor Pence Presser on RFRA 
Reply-To: randi riley <therandiriley@ > 

 
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

From: Chad Seewald <sweetssogeek@ >
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 11:09 AM
To: Brooks, Kara D;Cleveland, Bridget;Denault, Christina;Hodgin, Stephanie;Governor Mike 

Pence
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 10:57 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Cc: Denault, Christina;Hodgin, Stephanie;Cleveland, Bridget;Brooks, Kara D
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 9:00 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Stay strong!!
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From: Kevin Gordon [mailto:kevin-gordon@ ]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 6:03 AM 
To: Cleveland, Bridget; Brooks, Kara D; Denault, Christina 
Subject: Stay strong!! 
 
Hi Bridget, Kara and Christy 
 
Please convey my support to Governor Pence. 
 
This morning, I posted the following on my facebook page when I shared: 
Pence: Coverage of religious freedom law 'shameless' 
  

     

  

   

Pence: Coverage of religious freed
om law 'shameless' 
Indiana Gov. Mike Pence on Sunday sternly d

efended his state’s new religious freedom law 

from what he called “reckless” and “shameles

s” media coverage,...  
View on www.politico.com  Preview by Yahoo
 

  

 
In June, 2003 with George W. Bush's approval rating at around 70% and Republicans in control of the 
House, then Congressman Pence, was summoned to the Dick Cheney "woodshed" because he was 
refusing to vote yes on H.R.1 - Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 
2003, (Prescription drugs for all seniors regardless of income level) The final vote was Ayes 216. 
Noes 215, Present 1 and Not voting 3. Congressman Pence was one of 19 Republicans to vote NO 
on the Bill. Don't count on Governor Pence to be intimidated now. 
  

Kevin 
Kevin J. Gordon 
859-  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:47 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Thank you for Religious Freedom

 
 
From: Jacob J [mailto:jacob.wfg@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:44 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Thank you for Religious Freedom 
 
I just want to send you an email saying thank you for standing up for freedom when so many are caving in to 
the minority.  I support the Religious Freedom Act and I know that it isn't about discrimination. 
 
Keep up the good fight. 
 
Jacob Jorgensen 
Utah Resident 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:42 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Indiana does not and will not discriminate. But we do pray for our Governor

 
 

From: JAMES LANDRUM [mailto:jasland@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:25 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Indiana does not and will not discriminate. But we do pray for our Governor 
 
Indiana gay supporters can not read 
The media supporters join by their own hate groups are promoting these  lies.  
 

Indiana does not and will not discriminate.  
 

The big lie the media is spreading regarding freedom for all vs rights of religious conviction. 
 

The Washington Post article largely mirrors the argument advanced by Indiana Governor Mike Pence. 
Appearing on ABC’s This Week, Pence claimed “Then state-Sen. Barack Obama voted for [the Religious 
Freedom Restoration Act]. The very same language.” 
 

Indiana city ordinances typically prohibit the discrimination employment, housing, education and public 
accommodations on the basis of a person’s sexual orientation or gender identity. The cities and counties in 
Indiana with these ordinances in effect are the City of Bloomington, the City of Evansville, the City of 
Indianapolis, Marion County, Monroe County, and the City of South Bend. 
 

"No, Indiana did not just pass a law discriminating against gay people. 
Catholic News 
--- 
Indianapolis, Ind., Mar 27, 2015 / 05:32 pm (CNA/EWTN News).- Despite media hype, a new Indiana law is 
not based on anti-gay discrimination, but on a 20-year legal precedent of protecting the rights of religious 
individuals and charitable organizations, say religious liberty advocates. 
 

Glenn Tebbe, executive director of the Indiana Catholic Conference, said he was “a little surprised” by the 
controversy. “It seems to have no relationship to what the law actually said.” 
 

“The law does not authorize or promote or in any way encourage discrimination towards anyone. The law is 
there to determine when rights conflict with one another and the best way to resolve that conflict.” 
 



If the bill had encouraged unjust discrimination, Tebbe told CNA March 27, “the Catholic Conference and the 
Church would not be supportive of it.” 
 

He called on the law’s critics to “take more time to look at what the law actually says, to listen to what 
constitutional and legal scholars have said about it and also take a look at where this law is already in place and 
in practice.” 
 

Fiedorek noted that the religious freedom restoration acts date back 25 years. 
 

--- 
LITTLE ROCK, Ark. —March 27,2025 The Arkansas Senate has passed a bill aimed at preventing the 
government from infringing upon someone’s religious beliefs, a measure that critics say would be a blank check 
for businesses to discriminate against gays and lesbians. 
 

The bill approved by the Senate on a 24-7 vote Friday prohibits state and local government action that would 
substantially burden someone’s religious beliefs unless a “compelling” interest is proven. The measure heads 
for a final vote in the House, which approved an initial version of the bill. 
 

Supporters of the bill say it merely mirrors a similar federal protection in place for more than 20 years, but 
opponents say it amounts to state-sanctioned discrimination on religious grounds. 
 

Republican Gov. Asa Hutchinson has said he’ll sign the measure if it reaches his desk. Christian Post 
 

-- 
RFRA, of course, does not grant anyone the right to “discriminate” or deny service to anyone else. All the law 
does is articulate that religious freedom is a factor to be weighed in making court decisions about the common 
good, that the government must show good cause in restricting someone’s free exercise of religion. 
 

So where does all the ignorance come from in this case? 
Russel Moore 
 
 
Jim Landrum 
Jasland@   
Sent from Indiana James 

The Apostle Paul said........9 "The things you have learned and received and heard and seen in me, practice these 
things, and the God of peace will be with you."Philippians 4:9 (NASB)  

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:42 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: To the Governer of Indiana...persevere

 
 

From: Dennis Cain [mailto:decain7@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:30 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: To the Governer of Indiana...persevere 
 
I’m a resident of Texas and am encouraging you to persevere during this time of trouble concerning the 
Religious Freedom Restoration Act. I have just read your statement from March 26 and it is clear of the intent. 
It is also intuitively obvious to the most casual observer that those who are opposing you and your state 
clearly have not read it...nor do they really care. 
  
Dennis Cain 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:16 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Governor Mike Pence

 
 

From: mcitysports@  [mailto:mcitysports@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:15 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Governor Mike Pence 
 
March 31, 2015 

  

Governor Mike Pence 

Office of the Governor 

Statehouse 

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2797 

  

Mr. Pence,  

I am appalled that not only did you sign legislation that allows businesses to discriminate against gay and lesbian 
individuals but also according to the Huff Post Politics dated March 29. 2015 in an article titled, “Indiana Governor Mike 
Pence Seeks To 'Clarify' 'Religious Freedom' Law” they indicated the following: 

Being against gay and lesbian now a days is so primitive in thinking and if this is the way you will conduct business I will 
not support your reelection.  I am not gay but I think people have the right to be happy.  

Business and religious beliefs should not ever be in the same arena.  Catering to the public means cater to all.     

I have family members who are gay and lesbian. Gay people pay taxes just as all of us do and only support the growth of 
our businesses.   If this is your stand you will not have my vote in the next election.  Politicians should be working for the 
people and that means gay people too.  

  

                                                                          ROBINETT FAMILIES OF MICHIGAN CITY 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 7:42 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act

 
 

From: Ray Rauenhorst [mailto:raue@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:50 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 
Governor Pence, 
  
I think your recently passed law is a valid one.  I encourage you and the State of Indiana to stay the course. 
  
The gay/lesbian faction demands a lot of tolerance but in turn gives very little. 
  
Keep up the good work. 
  
  
Ray and Sharon Rauenhorst 
Easton MN 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 7:06 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: My support for Governor Pence
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-----Original Message----- 
From: Bob [mailto:foog8@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 6:58 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: My support for Governor Pence 
 
Hello, 
I just wanted to relay to you my 100 percent support and admiration for Governor Pence signing into law the Freedom 
of Religion Protection Act. It is very nice to see Indiana doing what is guaranteed by the Constitution of the United States 
of America, Freedom of Religion. I understand that the far left better known as progressive liberals are going to try and 
turn this into something it's not because that's what they do best. I have been sickened at how under the current 
Administration in the Whitehouse our freedoms in America have been eroded and attacked like I've never seen before in 
my life. Instead of our focus on job creation, the economy, debt reduction, etc... As our President promised to all 
Americans if they'd just give him that 2nd term. Anybody that actually knew the history and voting record of this man 
while a inexperienced Senator found that laughable. Religion amongst other things such as the Second Amendment, 
First Amendment and Fifth Amendment have been the lefts targets to try to destroy during Obama's entire term. To do 
as much harm to our nation while they have one of them in charge who refuses to listen to his own Congress and "We 
The People" Do not bow into the pressure being applied by the 18 percent of Americans who somehow think that 
whatever they want applies to 100 percent of Americans. My former company does more business than any company in 
America today and for the foreseeable future. I have sat in those meetings enough is all I'll say and I can assure you that 
we hired only the top Attorneys in the World. Our Company has the biggest target of any company in the world on them 
as we were sued on average once every 46 seconds. Deep pockets equals big target. We gave any member of 
Management at any store in the world to have the right to not do business with anybody they choose. They can refuse 
business to anyone at anytime and we can trespass people from any of our locations or subsidiaries in the world. If 
caught on any of our properties including all stores and Corporate Offices they will be charged with Criminal Trespass. 
Our Managers do not have to explain nor does our Executive Protection or Loss Prevention Team to anyone why they do 
this. Only if we seen a large pattern from the same members having this authority did we even question it at all. I can 
assure you that I've never known of any discrimination in any way against anyone for being a homosexual. The liberal 
media is trying to put their usual spin on this as a cry for attention and ratings. Do not give into this because most 
Americans do not listen to so called celebrities for guidance as to what is right and wrong because they are the poorest 
examples of morals in America. This will actually increase tourism and large corporations who don't have an openly gay 
man as CEO such as Apple will reward this with twenty times what money or employment opportunities that an Angie's 
list could ever dream of. One of our average locations employees over 500 people and we are also all over Indiana. Our 
Mgmt. Conventions currently pump millions into it's current annual site. This will ultimately define how this Governor 



works under a little pressure from the left. If he truly stands with nearly the 80 percent of the rest of Americans he will 
not bow down to progressive liberals and their outlandish accusations. 📝 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 6:55 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: SB101

 
 

From: Jonathan Alley [mailto:jalleydo@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 6:47 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: SB101 
 
Kara:  I am so proud of Indiana and Gov. Pence regarding the Religious Freedom Restoration 
Act.  The misinformation/disinformation out there just makes me sick.  Where are the protests going 
on at all the other state capitols that have passed this law?  Well, anyway, encourage the 
governor.  Also, how can I pull  the law up to read it for myself (or refer it to others to read)? It is so 
grievous for me to see Christian business people in other states be persecuted and such because 
they can't violate their long-held Christian beliefs in order to make money.  It is only worse when they 
find someone else who will do the work for the homosexuals.  Do the homosexuals want to 
punish/spank those Christian businesspeople, or do they want a cake made?   Thanks.  Jon Alley, 
DO, Angola.   



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:04 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: RFRA

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Chris Hannibal [mailto:c7hannibal@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:50 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RFRA 
 
Hi Kara, 
 
While I do not reside in Indiana, I have read the governor’s statement and have watched his attempts to justify this 
discriminatory law in the days subsequent to his signing of the legislation.  I am originally from St. Louis and have 
traveled through Indiana and spent money in the state many times over many years.  I will however, not do so in the 
future, until this law is repealed.  Our precious constitution protects all Americans, not just some.  It’s quite shocking in 
2015 to know that Indiana’s attempts to pit whole groups of people’s basic rights against other’s religious beliefs, is 
somehow justified on the basis of religion.  It’s just not right, and I hope that the people of Indiana re-think this stance as 
it is completely NOT what America proudly stands for.  Indeed, it’s the antithesis of the comprehensive freedoms that 
sets America apart from other less-tolerant societies.  I hope the legislature and Governor Pence will change their minds 
based on so many clear interpretations of the intent of this law…to allow those who dislike gay and lesbian people to 
justify their actions and discriminate on the basis of religious beliefs. 
 
Until then, neither I, nor my extended family and friends will step foot in Indiana until this law is repealed.  Thanks for 
this opportunity to speak out on an issue that affects people well-beyond the borders of your state. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Chris Hannibal 
Easthampton, MA 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:37 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: I support Indiana & Mike Pence
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From: Marilynn Ward [mailto:marilynnward@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:23 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: I support Indiana & Mike Pence 
 
Hi. 
 
Religious freedom is a right.  Being gay is not. 
 
If being gay/lesbian were a dictate, logically, everyone should be gay. 
 
This is an anti-Christian effort.  Not anti-Muslim or Zoroastrian.  Eradication of the faith is the ultimate goal. 
 
I am straight.  I am Christian.  I have business partners who are gay.  Shoving this down my throat is akin to what 
happened in Sodom and Gomorrah.  Irrespective of the hysteria of others or appeals to authority and the ‘media,’ 
what’s wrong is wrong.  To put the force of the State behind trampling religious freedom is to nullify the First 
Amendment. 
 
Stand firm. 
 
Sincerely, 
Marilynn Ward 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:37 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Support for the Governor and the Religious Freedom Restoration Act

 
 

From: Linda Wright [mailto:write2lindacw@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:25 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Support for the Governor and the Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
 
Dear Ms. Brooks, 
 
Please convey to Governor Pence the message that many in this country support both him and the 
Religious Freedom Restoration Act.  I am writing from South Carolina, and I can tell you that many here 
support this effort to protect people of faith from the onslaught of those who wish to shove their beliefs 
and opinions down everyone else's throats. Please encourage the Governor to be courageous in the face of 
this extremely hateful vitriol. He is in the right, and the law should not be changed in order to pacify 
those who would take all our rights away if they could. As a Bible-believing Christian I say it is a bleak, 
ominous day when such enemies of freedom so ferociously attack our First Amendment rights. Please 
take courage and stand strong. I would urge Brian Bosma and David Long to do the same. If legislators 
are always going to cave in to such pressure, then our country is already lost. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Linda Wright 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:52 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: religious freedom bill

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: jpetrel@  [mailto:jpetrel@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 12:47 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: religious freedom bill 
 
Thank GOD that someone has the courage to stand up and claim equal rights for those of us who believe in God and his 
laws that were written 2000+ years ago.  I wish that more people in public places would also stand up for our rights, too. 
If people would only remember what happened at Sodom and Gomorrah, maybe we, as a whole country, would come 
back to GOD.  And it upsets me terribly that we have a president who stands at his podium and declares that it is ok for 
same sex marriage. 
 
Again THANK YOU , and keep up the good work!! 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:51 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: gay problems

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Jim Green [mailto:JimSigns@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 1:29 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: gay problems 
 
Dear Kara Brooks, 
I may have the wrong understanding of this debacle, but I, first of all, want to make it clear that I support the governor.  
It may not have been in the forefront of his mind when Gov. Pence signed it into law, but one thing I see it preventing is 
someone in the gay/lesbian camp coming to the door of a church with nothing but confrontation in mind, who applies 
for a job, and when turned down, goes directly to the ACLU claiming that he wasn't hired because he's gay, and the 
church being forced to hire him as a result, even though there's no interest whatever in working for God in that church, 
but merely to make a point. 
 
Kudos to his courage, and willingness to do what's right, in spite of the ramifications. 
 
Sincerely, 
Jim Green 
Rockford, IL 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:50 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Support of Governor Pence

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Elaine Andreski [mailto:granny114@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 1:57 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Support of Governor Pence 
 
Dear Governor Pence 
 
We are from Michigan, and we fully support you in your efforts with regard to the Religious Freedom Law.  Please, 
please do not back down - it is vital that we have somebody in our court.  The entire country has been intolerant of 
truth, goodness and the law, and that goes for the sitting man in the White House too. 
 
My blood begins to boil at the thought of what is being left for our children and grandchildren via the progressive/liberal 
agenda which has sadly permeated our schools and colleges.  As home school parents/grandparents, we urge you to 
continue  in this direction whatever way you can.  You are one in a million in this country.  It has become popular or 
rather politically correct to be tolerant of every evil that is in society, and intolerant to Christianity in general.   
 
Again, we urge you to continue to call the media out as you did on This Week with George Stephanoupolis; continue on 
with the help of God to call them all out, every darn one of them. 
 
We love you; have you considered a run for the Presidency? 
 
Thank you very much, 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Edward Andreski 

 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:49 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Visits in 2015
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-----Original Message----- 
From: Michael Silver [mailto:msilver73@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 2:03 PM 
To: Visitin 
Cc: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Re: Visits in 2015 
 
Dear Visit Indiana, 
 
Since I have not received a reply from your organization, not even a message that "All are Welcome" to visit the Hoosier 
State, I have decided to cancel vacation plans and look instead to other places that don't legislate bigotry.  My son needs 
to see that his Dad will not reward hatred disguised as freedom.   
 
What's next for Gov Spence and the hateful Republican legislative majority, the "Indiana KKK and Nazi Freedom Act"?    
 
Sincerely  
 
Michael Silver 
 
 
> On Mar 27, 2015, at 5:27 PM, Michael Silver <msilver73@ > wrote: 
>  
> Dear Visit Indiana, 
>  
> I was considering a family visit to Indiana in 2015 but am leaning against it because of the new law legalizing 
discrimination against gay people.  It just seems unAmerican.  
>  
> Please confirm whether gay people are welcome in Indiana and whether the government or courts will clarify the new 
law does not permit discrimination in accommodations, employment, or housing.  The Governor's statement provides 
little comfort either in principal or legally.  
>  
> Sincerely, 
> Michael Silver  
>  



> Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:45 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Governor Pence
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From: Carla Henderson [mailto:CHenderson@   
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:36 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Governor Pence 
 
Ms. Brooks, 
 
I am well aware that I am merely one person and my words may mean nothing. However, since we are discussing a 
matter of freedom and rights I believe it is necessary that I at least voice my opinion regarding the stance that our 
governor has taken. 
 
I would first like to understand as to why an educated man would have used the Affordable Care Act as a part of his 
stance. The Affordable Care Act is Federal and should not be confused or related to any State issue. Secondly, I am a 
Christian but I also believe that there are many religions that are here on this earth that allow each of us and our 
differences to best serve God. For example even as a Christian I still study other words and other beliefs. The story of 
Buddha is very similar to the story of Christ. Do you know however which story is actually the oldest? The answer is the 
story of Buddha. So, how can I say that their religion is less than my own. 
 
To allow someone to deny service based on the fact that one’s religious preference does not match my own, point us 
towards a direction of discrimination. It would appear that this topic has a lot to do with members of the LGBT 
community and giving individuals the opportunity to deny service to such individuals in the name of God. How is this not 
discrimination? Passing this law takes us many years back in regards to discrimination. If I look different and not 
perceived to be a Christian can I be denied service when the truth of the matter is I probably know the Bible and all of its 
text better than the individuals who pushed for this law. Should we go back to the days when the KKK originated and 
many of the beliefs held came from various individuals’ interpretation of the Bible. My God is a loving God and he or she 
loves me and my beliefs equal to all others. If this is truly the land of freedom why is our freedom being taken away. 
 
I am deeply saddened that a government official who we placed in office to represent all people does not. As a matter of 
fact I think Matthew 24:24 is very appropriate at this present time. “For there shall arise false Christs, and false 
prophets, and shall shew great signs and wonders; insomuch that, if it were possible, they shall deceive the very elect. It 
is my belief that Governor Pence is truly a false prophet and I can say I will not cast a vote for him in the next election. 
 
Carla Henderson, MBA 
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From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 12:54 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Recent Legislation and its impact on commerce...No Kidding!
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From: John Heidke [mailto:john@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 12:51 PM 
To: Pence, Benjamin A 
Cc: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Recent Legislation and its impact on commerce...No Kidding! 
 
Dear Governor Pence, 
 
I am a leader in a professional organization planning a convention in 2017.  The group is likely to have between 7,000 
and 8,000 attendees for a 4 day + stay.  Indiana, being a centrally-located and previously inclusive state, was being 
strongly considered  as a venue.  You can imagine the economic impact it would have on Indiana as well as a “feather in 
its cap” in the mind’s eye of many influential professional people who would attend.  However, a large number of our 
members have expressed a level of concern about Indiana’s Religious Freedom law. 
 
After a conference call over the weekend, Indiana has been removed from consideration due to the recent 
legislation.  And, to quote you, as told on ABC's "This Week,” the original federal law is more than 20 years old and that 
the purpose of the new Indiana one is to expand individual rights for those who feel government has impinged on their 
personal rights.  “This is not about discrimination.”  “This is about empowering people to confront government 
overreach.”  However, Pence did not answer directly when asked six times whether under the law it would be legal for a 
merchant to refuse to serve gay customers.” 
 
I have no clue as to if or how many members of our organization are gay or Islamic, Republican or whatever.  And, 
frankly, it is an irrelevant issue.  However, I can only imagine how some might feel that Indiana’s recent legislation is 
likely to allow for a hostile an offense climate for those visiting from other places.  The law seems to be 
clear.  “Clarification’ is not required. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
John Heidke, PhD., President                 
Double H Consulting                  
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:44 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious Freedom Restoration Act -thanks

 
 

From: Terence Paige [mailto:Terence.Paige@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:28 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act -thanks 
 
Dear Ms. Brooks: 
I wanted to thank the governor for the recent signing of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, even though not an 
Indiana resident.  It gives me hope that somewhere the government is still for the people, and ethics are not just bought 
by the media. 
 
I have followed for a number of years with some concern the turn of events that has happened following adoption by 
various sectors of gay marriage laws, or arguments for LGBT equality. What has almost invariably happened has been (i) 
a total shutdown of public discourse, so that there is no dialogue or debate allowed and only one side may ever be 
heard in the schools, in the media, and in the workplace; (ii) anyone who dares to publicly hold an opinion at variance 
with the LGBT movement, even in private life, is severely punished with loss of work, fines, loss of tenure if a 
professor.  In a case a few years ago,  Canadian pastor Brian Boissoin wrote a letter to the Red Deer Advocate, simply 
stating the traditional Christian position, and for this was actually tried and fined by the Alberta’s Human Rights 
Commission! You are aware of travesties that have gone on in our country also, I am sure.  
 
I believe gay people, like anyone else, are entitled to fair work, pay, housing, fair treatment, etc.  I believe we should 
love our neighbor.  But when gay “equality” means using the power of the state to silence your opponents, put them out 
of work, force them to say or do things against their conscience… this is not democracy. 
I hope things will be able to settle out so that all citizens will have an actual voice, all will be able to speak freely and not 
only those who happen currently to be promoted by the media. 
And I hope that the media will soon cease its not-so-subtle campaign of incitement of religious hatred (ironically, while 
calling for tolerance). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Terence Paige 

 
 

 
Office: (585)  
“You should have the same attitude toward one another that Christ Jesus had” Phil 2:5 NET 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:32 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: THANK YOU!

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Beth Jones <bethnboj@ > 
Date: March 30, 2015 at 7:19:56 AM CDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, "s37@iga.in.gov" <s37@iga.in.gov> 
Cc: "h44@iga.in.gov" <h44@iga.in.gov>, "bassler@iga.in.gov" <bassler@iga.in.gov>, "h46@iga.in.gov" 
<h46@iga.in.gov> 
Subject: THANK YOU! 

Please do not weaken the RFRA bill or make homosexuality a "protected class".  I am a HOOSIER, not outside 
interest group.... And I greatly THANK YOU for standing up for religious freedom!  I know it is hard to stand 
up in the face of great opposition, but Indiana stands behind you!! 
 
Bo and Beth Jones and family 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Katie Blair <katie.blair@freedomindiana.org>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 8:31 AM
To: s16@iga.in.gov;h88@iga.in.gov;Governor Mike Pence;Atterholt, Jim
Cc: Katie Blair
Subject: Fairness For All Hoosiers Act
Attachments: Fairness For All Hoosiers Act.docx

The Honorable Governor Pence, House Speaker Bosma, and Senate President Pro Tempore Long: 
 
Attached you will find the proposed Fairness for all Hoosiers Act. We look forward to working with you on this 
legislation to ensure that all Hoosiers are protected by law.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Katie Blair 
Campaign Manager, Freedom Indiana 
 



SUMMARY:

The proposed amendments in this bill would add sexual orientation and gender identity to the list of
protected characteristics under the Indiana Civil Rights law for purposes of housing, employment and
public accommodations.

The bill defines sexual orientation and gender identity, making clear that gender identity may be shown by
medical history or treatment, consistent and uniform expression, or other evidence that the gender identity
is a part of the individual’s core identity and not asserted for any improper purpose.

The bill also clarifies that where sex may be lawfully taken into account under the civil rights law, those
distinctions must be made in accordance with an individual’s gender identity.  This ensures that transgender
people are not subject to discrimination.

Indiana law already exempts religious organizations and religious schools entirely from the definition of
employer for purposes of the civil rights law, and this bill will not change that exemption.

Finally, the bill states that the Indiana Religious Freedom Restoration Act cannot be used as a defense in
any claim under the Indiana Civil Rights Act, or local or other state law prohibiting discrimination.

Article 9, Chapter 1 is hereby amended as follows (amendments in red underline):

IC 22-9-1-2
Public policy; construction of chapter

Sec. 2. (a) It is the public policy of the state to provide all of its citizens equal opportunity for education,
employment, access to public conveniences and accommodations, and acquisition through purchase or
rental of real property, including but not limited to housing, and to eliminate segregation or separation
based solely on race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin or
ancestry, since such segregation is an impediment to equal opportunity. Equal education and employment
opportunities and equal access to and use of public accommodations and equal opportunity for acquisition
of real property are hereby declared to be civil rights.

(b) The practice of denying these rights to properly qualified persons by reason of the race,
religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin, or ancestry of such
person is contrary to the principles of freedom and equality of opportunity and is a burden to the objectives
of the public policy of this state and shall be considered as discriminatory practices. The promotion of
equal opportunity without regard to race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability,
national origin, or ancestry through reasonable methods is the purpose of this chapter.

(c) It is also the public policy of this state to protect employers, labor organizations, employment
agencies, property owners, real estate brokers, builders, and lending institutions from unfounded charges of
discrimination.

(d) It is hereby declared to be contrary to the public policy of the state and an unlawful practice for
any person, for profit, to induce or attempt to induce any person to sell or rent any dwelling by
representations regarding the entry or prospective entry into the neighborhood of a person or persons of a
particular race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin, or
ancestry.

(e) The general assembly recognizes that on February 16, 1972, there are institutions of learning in
Indiana presently and traditionally following the practice of limiting admission of students to males or to
females. It is further recognized that it would be unreasonable to impose upon these institutions the expense



of remodeling facilities to accommodate students of both sexes, and that educational facilities of similar
quality and type are available in coeducational institutions for those students desiring such facilities. It is
further recognized that this chapter is susceptible of interpretation to prevent these institutions from
continuing their traditional policies, a result not intended by the general assembly. Therefore, the
amendment effected by Acts 1972, P.L.176, is desirable to permit the continuation of the policies
described.

(f) This chapter shall be construed broadly to effectuate its purpose.

IC 22-9-1-3
Definitions

Sec. 3. As used in this chapter:
(a) "Person" means one (1) or more individuals, partnerships, associations, organizations, limited

liability companies, corporations, labor organizations, cooperatives, legal representatives, trustees, trustees
in bankruptcy, receivers, and other organized groups of persons.

(b) "Commission" means the civil rights commission created under section 4 of this chapter.
(c) "Director" means the director of the civil rights commission.
(d) "Deputy director" means the deputy director of the civil rights commission.
(e) "Commission attorney" means the deputy attorney general, such assistants of the attorney

general as may be assigned to the commission, or such other attorney as may be engaged by the
commission.

(f) "Consent agreement" means a formal agreement entered into in lieu of adjudication.
(g) “Gender identity” means gender-related identity, appearance, expression, or behavior, whether
or not such gender-related identity, appearance, expression, or behavior is different from that
traditionally associated with the person's assigned sex at birth.  Gender identity can be shown by
providing evidence, including, but not limited to: (1) medical history, care, or treatment of the
gender identity; (2) consistent and uniform assertion of the gender identity; or (3) other evidence
that the gender identity is a sincerely held part of the person's core identity and is not asserted for
an improper purpose.
(h) “Sexual orientation” means actual or perceived homosexuality, heterosexuality, or bisexuality.
(g) (i) "Affirmative action" means those acts that the commission determines necessary to assure

compliance with the Indiana civil rights law.
(h) (j) "Employer" means the state or any political or civil subdivision thereof and any person

employing six (6) or more persons within the state, except that the term "employer" does not include: (1)
any nonprofit corporation or association organized exclusively for fraternal or religious purposes; (2) any
school, educational, or charitable religious institution owned or conducted by or affiliated with a church or
religious institution; or (3) any exclusively social club, corporation, or association that is not organized for
profit.

(i) (k) "Employee" means any person employed by another for wages or salary. However, the term
does not include any individual employed: (1) by the individual's parents, spouse, or child; or (2) in the
domestic service of any person.

(j) (l) "Labor organization" means any organization that exists for the purpose in whole or in part
of collective bargaining or of dealing with employers concerning grievances, terms, or conditions of
employment or for other mutual aid or protection in relation to employment.

(k) (m) "Employment agency" means any person undertaking with or without compensation to
procure, recruit, refer, or place employees.

(l) (n) "Discriminatory practice" means:
(1) the exclusion of a person from equal opportunities because of race, religion, color,

sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin, or ancestry;
(2) a system that excludes persons from equal opportunities because of race, religion,

color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin, or ancestry;
(3) the promotion of racial segregation or separation in any manner, including but not

limited to the inducing of or the attempting to induce for profit any person to sell or rent any
dwelling by representations regarding the entry or prospective entry in the neighborhood of a



person or persons of a particular race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
disability, national origin, or ancestry; or

(4) a violation of IC 22-9-5 that occurs after July 25, 1992, and is committed by a
covered entity (as defined in IC 22-9-5-4). Every discriminatory practice relating to the acquisition
or sale of real estate, education, public accommodations, employment, or the extending of credit
(as defined in IC 24-4.5-1-301.5) shall be considered unlawful unless it is specifically exempted
by this chapter.
(m) (o) "Public accommodation" means any establishment that caters or offers its services or

facilities or goods to the general public.
(n) (p) "Complainant" means:

(1) any individual charging on the individual's own behalf to have been personally
aggrieved by a discriminatory practice; or

(2) the director or deputy director of the commission charging that a discriminatory
practice was committed against a person other than himself or a class of people, in order to
vindicate the public policy of the state (as defined in section 2 of this chapter).
(o) (q) "Complaint" means any written grievance that is:

(1) sufficiently complete and filed by a complainant with the commission; or
(2) filed by a complainant as a civil action in the circuit or superior court having

jurisdiction in the county in which the alleged discriminatory practice occurred. The original of
any complaint filed under subdivision (1) shall be signed and verified by the complainant.
(p) (r) "Sufficiently complete" refers to a complaint that includes:

(1) the full name and address of the complainant;
(2) the name and address of the respondent against whom the complaint is made;
(3) the alleged discriminatory practice and a statement of particulars thereof;
(4) the date or dates and places of the alleged discriminatory practice and if the alleged

discriminatory practice is of a continuing nature the dates between which continuing acts of
discrimination are alleged to have occurred; and

(5) a statement as to any other action, civil or criminal, instituted in any other form based
upon the same grievance alleged in the complaint, together with a statement as to the status or
disposition of the other action. No complaint shall be valid unless filed within one hundred eighty
(180) days from the date of the occurrence of the alleged discriminatory practice.
(q) (s) "Sex" as it applies to segregation or separation in this chapter applies to all types of

employment, education, public accommodations, and housing. However:
(1) it shall not be a discriminatory practice to maintain separate restrooms;
(2) it shall not be an unlawful employment practice for an employer to hire and employ

employees, for an employment agency to classify or refer for employment any individual, for a
labor organization to classify its membership or to classify or refer for employment any individual,
or for an employer, labor organization, or joint labor management committee controlling
apprenticeship or other training or retraining programs to admit or employ any other individual in
any program on the basis of sex in those certain instances where sex is a bona fide occupational
qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of that particular business or enterprise;

(3) it shall not be a discriminatory practice for a private or religious educational
institution to continue to maintain and enforce a policy of admitting students of one (1) sex only;
and

(4) for purposes of this chapter, where distinctions based on sex are authorized, such
distinctions must be applied consistent with an individual’s gender identity.
(r) (t) "Disabled" or "disability" means the physical or mental condition of a person that constitutes

a substantial disability. In reference to employment, under this chapter, "disabled or disability" also means
the physical or mental condition of a person that constitutes a substantial disability unrelated to the person's
ability to engage in a particular occupation.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.3; Acts 1963, c.173, s.3; Acts 1967, c.276, s.2; Acts 1969, c.298,
s.2; Acts 1971, P.L.357, SEC.3; Acts 1972, P.L.176, SEC.2; Acts 1974, P.L.111, SEC.1; Acts 1975,
P.L.256, SEC.2.) As amended by Acts 1978, P.L.123, SEC.1; P.L.37-1985, SEC.44; P.L.111-1992, SEC.1;
P.L.8-1993, SEC.292; P.L.23-1993, SEC.131; P.L.203-1993, SEC.1; P.L.1-1994, SEC.114; P.L.14-1994,
SEC.2; P.L.164-1997, SEC.1; P.L.35-2010, SEC.3.



IC 22-9-1-4
Civil rights commission; creation

Sec. 4. (a) There is hereby created a civil rights commission composed of seven (7) members, not
more than four (4) of whom shall be members of the same political party, to be appointed by the governor.
In making such appointments, the governor shall take into consideration all interests in the community
including but not limited to the interests of minority groups, employers, labor, and the public.

(b) Except as provided in IC 4-21.5-2, IC 4-21.5 applies to the commission.
(c) Successors to all members of the commission shall be appointed for terms of four (4) years,

excepting when appointed to fill a vacancy, in which case such appointment shall be for the unexpired
term.

(d) Members of the commission may be removed by the governor for cause but for no other
reason.

(e) The members of the commission shall be paid per diem and travel expenses and other
necessary and reasonable expenses for attendance at meetings and hearings of the commission.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.4; Acts 1963, c.173, s.4; Acts 1969, c.298, s.3; Acts 1971, P.L.357,
SEC.4.) As amended by P.L.7-1987, SEC.99.

IC 22-9-1-5
Civil rights commission; appointment of members; meetings

Sec. 5. The members of the Commission shall be appointed within thirty (30) days after the
effective date of IC 1971 22-9-1 and the first meeting thereof shall be called by the member first appointed
within sixty (60) days after the effective date of IC 1971, 22-9-1.

At its first meeting and at each annual meeting held thereafter, the Commission shall organize by
the election of a chairman and vice chairman from its membership, each of whom, except those first
elected, shall serve for a term of one (1) year and until his successor is elected.

The Commission shall hold one (1) regular meeting each month, and such called meetings as its
chairman may deem to be necessary. The April meeting shall be the annual meeting.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.5; Acts 1971, P.L.357, SEC.5.)

IC 22-9-1-6
Civil rights commission; powers and duties

Sec. 6. (a) The commission shall establish and maintain a permanent office in the city of
Indianapolis.

(b) The commission may appoint such attorneys and other employees and agents as it considers
necessary, fix their compensation within the limitation provided by law, and prescribe their duties. All
these employees, with the exception of the executive director and attorneys, shall be appointed by the
commission from eligible lists to be promulgated by the department of personnel as the result of a
competitive examination held under IC 4-15-2 and rules of the department and on the basis of training,
practical experience, education, and character. However, special consideration and due weight shall be
given to the practical experience and training that a person may have for the particular position involved
regardless of his academic training. Promotions, suspensions, and removal of persons appointed from such
lists shall be in accordance with IC 4-15-2. The reasonable and necessary traveling expenses of each
employee of the commission while actually engaged in the performance of duties in behalf of the
commission shall be paid in accordance with the state travel policies and procedures established by the
Indiana department of administration and approved by the budget agency.

(c) Except as it concerns judicial review, the commission may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to
implement this chapter.

(d) The commission shall formulate policies to effectuate the purposes of this chapter and make
recommendations to agencies and officers of the state or local subdivisions thereof to effectuate such
policies. The several departments, commissions, divisions, authorities, boards, bureaus, agencies, and



officers of the state or any political subdivision or agency thereof shall furnish the commission, upon its
request, all records, papers, and information in their possession relating to any matter before the
commission.

(e) The commission shall receive and investigate complaints alleging discriminatory practices. The
commission shall not hold hearings in the absence of a complaint. All investigations of complaints shall be
conducted by staff members of the civil rights commission or their agents.

(f) The commission may create such advisory agencies and conciliation councils, local or
statewide, as will aid in effectuating the purposes of this chapter. The commission may itself, or it may
empower these agencies and councils to:

(1) study the problems of discrimination in the areas covered by section 2 of this chapter
when based on race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, handicap, national
origin, or ancestry; and

(2) foster through community effort, or otherwise, good will among the groups and
elements of the population of the state. These agencies and councils may make recommendation to
the commission for the development of policies and procedures in general. Advisory agencies and
conciliation councils created by the commission shall be composed of representative citizens
serving without pay, but with reimbursement for reasonable and necessary actual expenses.
(g) The commission may issue such publications and such results of investigations and research as

in its judgment will tend to promote good will and minimize or eliminate discrimination because of race,
religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, handicap, national origin, or ancestry.

(h) The commission shall prevent any person from discharging, expelling, or otherwise
discriminating against any other person because he filed a complaint, testified in any hearing before this
commission, or in any way assisted the commission in any matter under its investigation.

(i) The commission may hold hearings, subpoena witnesses, compel their attendance, administer
oaths, take the testimony of any person under oath, and require the production for examination of any
books and papers relating to any matter under investigation or in question before the commission. The
commission may make rules as to the issuance of subpoenas by individual commissioners. Contumacy or
refusal to obey a subpoena issued under this section shall constitute a contempt. All hearings shall be held
within Indiana at a location determined by the commission. A citation of contempt may be issued upon
application by the commission to the circuit or superior court in the county in which the hearing is held or
in which the witness resides or transacts business.

(j) The commission may appoint administrative law judges other than commissioners, when an
appointment is deemed necessary by a majority of the commission. The administrative law judges shall be
members in good standing before the bar of Indiana and shall be appointed by the chairman of the
commission. An administrative law judge appointed under this subsection shall have the same powers and
duties as a commissioner sitting as an administrative law judge. However, the administrative law judge may
not issue subpoenas.

(k) The commission shall state its findings of fact after a hearing and, if the commission finds a
person has engaged in an unlawful discriminatory practice, shall cause to be served on this person an order
requiring the person to cease and desist from the unlawful discriminatory practice and requiring the person
to take further affirmative action as will effectuate the purposes of this chapter, including but not limited to
the power:

(A) to restore complainant's losses incurred as a result of discriminatory treatment, as the
commission may deem necessary to assure justice; however, this specific provision when applied
to orders pertaining to employment shall include only wages, salary, or commissions;

(B) to require the posting of notice setting forth the public policy of Indiana concerning
civil rights and respondent's compliance with the policy in places of public accommodations;

(C) to require proof of compliance to be filed by respondent at periodic intervals; and
(D) to require a person who has been found to be in violation of this chapter and who is

licensed by a state agency authorized to grant a license to show cause to the licensing agency why
his license should not be revoked or suspended.
(l) Judicial review of a cease and desist order or other affirmative action as referred to in this

chapter may be obtained under IC 22-9-8. If no proceeding to obtain judicial review is instituted within
thirty (30) days from receipt of notice by a person that an order has been made by the commission, the
commission, if it determines that the person upon whom the cease and desist order has been served is not
complying or is making no effort to comply, may obtain a decree of a court for the enforcement of the order



in circuit or superior court upon showing that the person is subject to the commission's jurisdiction and
resides or transacts business within the county in which the petition for enforcement is brought.

(m) If, upon all the evidence, the commission shall find that a person has not engaged in any
unlawful practice or violation of this chapter, the commission shall state its findings of facts and shall issue
and cause to be served on the complainant an order dismissing the complaint as to the person.

(n) The commission may furnish technical assistance requested by persons subject to this chapter
to further compliance with this chapter or with an order issued thereunder.

(o) The commission shall promote the creation of local civil rights agencies to cooperate with
individuals, neighborhood associations, and state, local, and other agencies, both public and private,
including agencies of the federal government and of other states.

(p) The commission may reduce the terms of conciliation agreed to by the parties to writing (to be
called a consent agreement) that the parties and a majority of the commissioners shall sign. When signed,
the consent agreement shall have the same effect as a cease and desist order issued under subsection (k). If
the commission determines that a party to the consent agreement is not complying with it, the commission
may obtain enforcement of the consent agreement in a circuit or superior court upon showing that the party
is not complying with the consent agreement and the party is subject to the commission's jurisdiction and
resides or transacts business within the county in which the petition for enforcement is brought.

(q) In lieu of investigating a complaint and holding a hearing under this section, the commission
may issue an order based on findings and determinations by the federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development or the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission concerning a complaint that has
been filed with one (1) of these federal agencies and with the commission. The commission shall adopt by
rule standards under which the commission may issue such an order.

(r) Upon notice that a complaint is the subject of an action in a federal court, the commission shall
immediately cease investigation of the complaint and may not conduct hearings or issue findings of fact or
orders concerning that complaint.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.6; Acts 1963, c.173, s.5; Acts 1965, c.214, s.2; Acts 1967, c.276,
s.3; Acts 1969, c.298, s.4; Acts 1971, P.L.357, SEC.6; Acts 1974, P.L.111, SEC.2; Acts 1975, P.L.256,
SEC.3.) As amended by Acts 1978, P.L.6, SEC.33; Acts 1979, P.L.31, SEC.13; P.L.37-1985, SEC.45;
P.L.7-1987, SEC.100; P.L.111-1992, SEC.2; P.L.1-1993, SEC.187; P.L.23-1993, SEC.132; P.L.203-1993,
SEC.2; P.L.14-1994, SEC.3; P.L.1-1994, SEC.115; P.L.2-1995, SEC.84.

IC 22-9-1-7
Educational programs

Sec. 7. In order to eliminate prejudice among the various racial, religious, and ethnic groups in this
state and to further goodwill among such groups, the commission, in cooperation with the state department
of education and the universities and colleges of the state, and such other universities and colleges as are
willing to cooperate, is directed to prepare a comprehensive educational program, designed to emphasize
the origin of prejudice against such minority groups, its harmful effects, its incompatibility with American
principles of equality and fair play, and violation of the brotherhood of man.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.7.) As amended by P.L.20-1984, SEC.196.

IC 22-9-1-8
Civil rights commission; director

Sec. 8. The governor shall select and appoint a director who shall be secretary of the commission
and chief administrative officer for the commission. The director shall devote his entire time and effort to
the administration of the provisions of this chapter and shall not engage in or have any interest in any
business or activity which may create a conflict of interest. The salary of the director shall be fixed by the
governor with the approval of the budget agency.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.8.) As amended by P.L.144-1986, SEC.178.

IC 22-9-1-9



Civil rights commission; director; oath of office

Sec. 9. The director and the members of the commission before entering upon the discharge of
their official duties shall each take and subscribe to an oath of office which shall be endorsed upon their
respective certificates of appointment.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.9.)

IC 22-9-1-10
Public contractors; public utility franchises

Sec. 10. Every contract to which the state or any of its political or civil subdivisions is a party,
including franchises granted to public utilities, shall contain a provision requiring the contractor and his
subcontractors not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment to be employed in the
performance of such contract, with respect to his hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of
employment or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of his race, religion, color,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, national origin, or ancestry. Breach of this covenant may
be regarded as a material breach of the contract.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.10; Acts 1971, P.L.357, SEC.7; Acts 1975, P.L.256, SEC.4.) As
amended by P.L.23-1993, SEC.133.

IC 22-9-1-11
Investigation of complaints; recommendations to legislature

Sec. 11. In addition to its power to investigate the discriminatory practices referred to in this
chapter, the commission may receive written complaints of violation of this chapter or other discriminatory
practices based upon race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, or
ancestry and to investigate such complaints as it deems meritorious, or to conduct such investigation in the
absence of complaints whenever it deems it in the public interest. It may transmit to the general assembly
its recommendations for legislation designed to aid in the removing of such discrimination.

(Formerly: Acts 1961, c.208, s.11; Acts 1974, P.L.111, SEC.3.) As amended by P.L.144-1986,
SEC.179. IC 22-9-1-12 Repealed (Repealed by Acts 1978, P.L.123, SEC.3.)

IC 22-9-1-12.1
"State agency" defined; local government; ordinances; exclusive jurisdiction; transfer of

complaints; appeals

Sec. 12.1. (a) As used in this section, the term "state agency" means:
(1) every office, officer, board, commission, department, division, bureau, committee,

fund, agency; and
(2) without limitation by reason of any enumeration in this section:

(A) every other instrumentality of the state, every hospital, every penal
institution, and every other institutional enterprise and activity of the state, wherever
located;

(B) the state educational institutions; and
(C) the judicial department of the state. "State agency" does not mean counties,

county offices of family and children, cities, towns, townships, school corporations (as
defined in IC 20-18-2-16), or other municipal corporations, political subdivisions, or
units of local government.

(b) Any city, town, or county is hereby authorized to adopt an ordinance or ordinances, which may
include establishment or designation of an appropriate local commission, office, or agency to effectuate
within its territorial jurisdiction the public policy of the state as declared in section 2 of this chapter without
conflict with any of the provisions of this chapter. Any city or town may adopt such an ordinance or
ordinances jointly with any other city or town located in the same county or jointly with that county. A city



ordinance that establishes a local commission may provide that the members of the commission are to be
appointed solely by the city executive or solely by the city legislative body or may provide for a
combination of appointments by the city executive and the city legislative body. The board of
commissioners of each county is also authorized to adopt ordinances in accordance with this section. An
agency established or designated under this section has no jurisdiction over the state or any of its agencies.

(c) An ordinance adopted under this section may grant to the local agency the power to:
(1) investigate, conciliate, and hear complaints;
(2) subpoena and compel the attendance of witnesses or production of pertinent

documents and records;
(3) administer oaths;
(4) examine witnesses;
(5) appoint hearing examiners or panels;
(6) make findings and recommendations;
(7) issue cease and desist orders or orders requiring remedial action;
(8) order payment of actual damages, except that damages to be paid as a result of

discriminatory practices relating to employment shall be limited to lost wages, salaries,
commissions, or fringe benefits;

(9) institute actions for appropriate legal or equitable relief in a circuit or superior court;
(10) employ an executive director and other staff personnel;
(11) adopt rules and regulations;
(12) initiate complaints, except that no person who initiates a complaint may participate

as a member of the agency in the hearing or disposition of the complaint; and
(13) conduct programs and activities to carry out the public policy of the state, as

provided in section 2 of this chapter, within the territorial boundaries of a local agency.
(d) Any person who files a complaint with any local agency may not also file a complaint with the

civil rights commission concerning any of the matters alleged in such complaint, and any person who files
a complaint with the civil rights commission may not also file a complaint with any local agency
concerning any of the matters alleged in such complaint. Any complaint filed with the commission may be
transferred by the commission to any local agency having jurisdiction. The local agency shall proceed to
act on the complaint as if it had been originally filed with the local agency as of the date that the complaint
was filed with the commission. Any complaint filed with a local agency may be transferred by the local
agency to the commission if the commission has jurisdiction. The commission shall proceed to act on the
complaint as if it had been originally filed with the commission as of the date that the complaint was filed
with the local agency. Nothing in this subsection shall affect such person's right to pursue any and all other
rights and remedies available in any other state or federal forum.

(e) A decision of the local agency may be appealed under the terms of IC 4-21.5 the same as if it
was a decision of a state agency.

As added by Acts 1978, P.L.123, SEC.2. Amended by Acts 1979, P.L.230, SEC.1; P.L.7-1987,
SEC.101; P.L.111-1992, SEC.3; P.L.4-1993, SEC.259; P.L.5-1993, SEC.272; P.L.1-2005, SEC.188; P.L.2-
2007, SEC.307.

IC 22-9-1-13
Employment of persons with physical disability; discrimination; promotion or transfer;

physical accommodations

Sec. 13. (a) The prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability does not
apply to failure of an employer to employ or to retain as an employee any person who because of a
disability is physically or otherwise unable to efficiently and safely perform, at the standards set by the
employer, the duties required in that job.

(b) After a person with a disability is employed, the employer shall not be required under this
chapter to promote or transfer such person with a disability to another job or occupation, unless, prior to
such transfer, such person with a disability by training or experience is qualified for such job or occupation.
(c) This section shall not be construed to require any employer to modify any physical accommodations or
administrative procedures to accommodate a person with a disability.



(Formerly: Acts 1975, P.L.256, SEC.6.) As amended by Acts 1978, P.L.123, SEC.1; P.L.226-1985,
SEC.1; P.L.23-1993, SEC.134. IC 22-9-1-14 Repealed (Repealed by P.L.2-1995, SEC.140.)

IC 22-9-1-15 Reserved

IC 22-9-1-16
Election of civil action

Sec. 16. (a) A respondent or a complainant may elect to have the claims that are the basis for a
finding of probable cause decided in a civil action as provided by section 17 of this chapter. However, both
the respondent and the complainant must agree in writing to have the claims decided in a court of law. The
agreement must be on a form provided by the commission.

(b) The election may not be made if the commission has begun a hearing on the record under this
chapter with regard to a finding of probable cause.

As added by P.L.14-1994, SEC.4. Amended by P.L.167-1996, SEC.1.

IC 22-9-1-17
Filing of civil action; relief; trial by court

Sec. 17. (a) If a timely election is made under section 16 of this chapter, the complainant may file
a civil action in a circuit or superior court having jurisdiction in the county in which a discriminatory
practice allegedly occurred.

(b) If the court finds that a discriminatory practice has occurred the court may grant the relief
allowed under IC 22-9-1-6(k).

(c) A civil action filed under this section must be tried by the court without benefit of a jury.

As added by P.L.14-1994, SEC.5.

IC 22-9-1-18
Hearings by commission; appeals

Sec. 18. (a) If a timely election is not made under section 16 of this chapter, the commission shall
schedule a hearing on the finding of probable cause.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c), IC 4-21.5 governs a hearing under this section.
(c) A proceeding under this section may not continue regarding an alleged discriminatory practice

after the filing of a civil action.
(d) IC 22-9-8 governs appeal of a final order issued under this section.

As added by P.L.14-1994, SEC.6.

Effect of Religious Freedom Restoration Act
Sec. 19

The Indiana Religious Freedom Restoration Act, P.L. ____, shall not establish or eliminate a
defense to any claim under this chapter, or under any local ordinance or other state law prohibiting
discrimination.



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 1:31 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: THANK YOU!

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-29 01-31PM.html
IQmailID: 8388070
IQpeopleID: 9281257

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Beth Jones <bethnboj@ > 
Date: March 28, 2015 at 10:18:28 AM CDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, "s37@iga.in.gov " <s37@iga.in.gov> 
Cc: "h44@iga.in.gov" <h44@iga.in.gov>, "bassler@iga.in.gov" <bassler@iga.in.gov>, "h46@iga.in.gov" 
<h46@iga.in.gov> 
Subject: THANK YOU! 

I am a HOOSIER, not outside interest group.... And I greatly THANK YOU for standing up for religious 
freedom!  I know it is hard to stand up in the face of great opposition, but Indiana stands behind you!! 
 
Bo and Beth Jones and family 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Adam <a_bushy@ >
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 12:35 PM
To: Brooks, Kara D;Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Support for religious freedom

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-29 12-34PM.html
IQmailID: 8388069
IQpeopleID: 9281256

 
Governor Pence, 
 
Thank you for defending our religious freedoms!  Keep on fighting the good fight even in the face of great pressure from 
the media and other groups to compromise your (and our) values and be "politically correct". 
 
Stay strong! 
 
Thank you! 
Adam Bush 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 12:00 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Photo of Gov. Pence at Religious Freedom signing

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-29 12-00PM.html
IQmailID: 8388068
IQpeopleID: 9281255

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Ernest Britton <disneybritton@ > 
Date: March 28, 2015 at 10:25:52 AM CDT 
To: "cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: Photo of Gov. Pence at Religious Freedom signing 

I am Roman Catholic Hoosier, and a collector of imagery linked to religious freedom. I would love to have the 
photo from the signing of the religious freedom bill with the governor surrounded by the sisters. How can I go 
about adding that to my collection of other religious-themed imagery? I've never made a government request, so 
your help is appreciated.  
 
Ernest  
 
Sent from my iPad 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2015 11:12 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Statement of Protest from the Association of Children's Museums on the Passage 

of SB 101
Attachments: ATT00001.htm; ATT00002.htm; ATT00003.htm; ACM Letter to Governor Pence.pdf; 

ATT00004.htm

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Laura Huerta Migus <laura.huertamigus@childrensmuseums.org> 
Date: March 27, 2015 at 9:07:07 AM CDT 
To: "dmcgrath@gov.in.gov" <dmcgrath@gov.in.gov>, "jatterholt@gov.in.gov" <jatterholt@gov.in.gov>, 
"cdenault@gov.in.gov" <cdenault@gov.in.gov> 
Cc: Jeannette Thomas <JThomas@childrensmuseums.org>, "'mjennings@cdm.org'" <mjennings@cdm.org> 
Subject: Statement of Protest from the Association of Children's Museums on the Passage of SB 101 

Dear Ms. McGrath, Ms. Denault and Mr. Atterholt, 
  
On behalf of the Association of Children’s Museums, please find attached our official letter of protest on passage of SB 
101 by the Indiana General Assembly and Governor Pence. 
  
Sincerely,  
  
Laura Huerta Migus 
  
LAURA HUERTA MIGUS 
Executive Director 
Association of Children’s Museums  
(o) 703.224.3100 x106 | (m) 443.  | Laura.HuertaMigus@ChildrensMuseums.org 
Calendar: https://doodle.com/lhuertamigus | Skype: laura.huerta.migus 
  
Connect with us  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 27, 2015 

 

The Honorable Mike Pence 

Governor of the State of Indiana 

200 W. Washington St. 

Room 206 

Indianapolis, IN 46204 

 

Dear Governor Pence: 

 

The Association of Children’s Museums (ACM) will be hosting its annual conference, 

InterActivity, in Indianapolis May 13-15, 2015. The InterActivity conference brings nearly 1,000 

practitioners from every state in the nation and more than 20 countries. The conference brings 

more than $1 million in revenue to the communities in which it is held. The success of the 

conference relies on the field’s total commitment to equity and diversity, allowing ACM to 

create an inclusive atmosphere and environment that celebrates and maximizes the diversity of 

our attendees. This commitment is reflected in our programming, which includes high-profile 

sessions to increase the capacity of children’s museums to welcome and serve all families – with 

particular attention to issues of sexual orientation and gender identity. 

 

This commitment to inclusion drives every decision we make as an association, including 

selection of sites for InterActivity. The decision to bring the conference to Indianapolis for the 

third time was predicated not only on the strength of our membership in the state, but also on 

the hospitality and welcome of the community to all our attendees. The passage of SB 101 

not only conflicts with ACM’s core values, but also compromises our service 

promise to our membership.  

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, staff and more than three hundred institutional members 

of the Association, we strongly disagree with the signing into law of SB 101. We stand 

committed to adding the voices of our field to those citizens and business owners in the state 

who advocate for inclusion rather than exclusion. 

 

Sincerely, 

   
Marilee Jennings     Laura Huerta Migus 

President, ACM Board of Directors  Executive Director, ACM 

Executive Director, Children’s Discovery 

Museum of San Jose 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2015 10:40 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: BOYCOTT INDIANA HEADQUARTERED COMPANIES

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Brett Johnson <hap1marr@ > 
Date: March 26, 2015 at 11:49:16 PM CDT 
To: <IRContact@simon.com> 
Cc: <cdenault@gov.in.gov>, <valerie.phipps-jewell@house.ga.gov>, <terry.chastain@house.ga.gov>, 
<talmadge.james@house.ga.gov>, <stacy.williams@house.ga.gov>, <shirley.nixon@house.ga.gov>, 
<sheena.wright@house.ga.gov>, <sara.arroyo@house.ga.gov>, <roma.amin@house.ga.gov>, 
<rebecca.hammock@house.ga.gov>, <phil.tucker@house.ga.gov>, <pat.harris@house.ga.gov>, 
<pam.norwood@house.ga.gov>, <nicole.chappelle@house.ga.gov>, <misty.walker@house.ga.gov>, 
<michelle.sloan@house.ga.gov>, <michael.parkerson@house.ga.gov>, <matt.wosotowsky@house.ga.gov>, 
<maryanna.meeks@house.ga.gov>, <martha.wigton@house.ga.gov>, <marsha.barnes@house.ga.gov>, 
<malcolm.hall@house.ga.gov>, <lynn.mckenzie@house.ga.gov>, <lucia.hames@house.ga.gov>, 
<leonel.chancey@house.ga.gov>, <leishea.johnson@house.ga.gov>, <leigh.goff@house.ga.gov>, 
<lauren.talley@house.ga.gov>, <laura.hurd@house.ga.gov>, <kristy.lindstrom@house.ga.gov>, 
<kristin.tipton@house.ga.gov>, <kristin.andris@house.ga.gov>, <kim.wideman@house.ga.gov>, 
<keith.williams@house.ga.gov>, <kathy.little@house.ga.gov>, <kathy.hutcherson@house.ga.gov>, 
<kaleb.mcmichen@house.ga.gov>, <julie.roser@house.ga.gov>, <julie.jordan@house.ga.gov>, 
<josephine.lamar@house.ga.gov>, <john.pelzel@house.ga.gov>, <jessica.bagwell@house.ga.gov>, 
<jesse.weathington@house.ga.gov>, <jerrie.baughman@house.ga.gov>, <jeremy.betts@house.ga.gov>, 
<jc.bryant@house.ga.gov>, <jan.brown@house.ga.gov>, <jamie.baculi@house.ga.gov>, 
<jackie.hicks@house.ga.gov>, <gail.morgart@house.ga.gov>, <fallon.goodman@house.ga.gov>, 
<falak.hindash@house.ga.gov>, <emily.pattillo@house.ga.gov>, <elaine.myers@house.ga.gov>, 
<doris.littlejohn@house.ga.gov>, <dianne.hardin@house.ga.gov>, <dianna.brooks@house.ga.gov>, 
<diana.lynn@house.ga.gov>, <delane.roberts@house.ga.gov>, <debra.stokes@house.ga.gov>, 
<debra.miller@house.ga.gov>, <debbie.lynn@house.ga.gov>, <cynthia.danzey@house.ga.gov>, 
<craig.foster@house.ga.gov>, <cory.mulkey@house.ga.gov>, <cortney.gillham@house.ga.gov>, 
<christine.murdock@house.ga.gov>, <christel.raasch@house.ga.gov>, <cheryl.jackson@house.ga.gov>, 
<carrie.vick@house.ga.gov>, <candice.blackwell@house.ga.gov>, <calvin.robinson@house.ga.gov>, 
<brian.walker@house.ga.gov>, <brian.groome@house.ga.gov>, <brent.cranfield@house.ga.gov>, 
<bill.reilly@house.ga.gov>, <betsy.lynch@house.ga.gov>, <beth.green@house.ga.gov>, 
<belle.doss@house.ga.gov>, <anna.miller@house.ga.gov>, <andrea.postell@house.ga.gov>, 
<alicia.hautala@house.ga.gov>, <abby.day@house.ga.gov>, <abbey.wicker@house.ga.gov>, <scbi@scbi.org>, 
<media@patch.com>, <stevelevene@reporternewspapers.net>, <ngolgowski@nydailynews.com>, 
<kerrie@nytimes.com>, <fox5tips@wttg.com>, <netaudr@abc.com>, <2020@abc.com>, 



<evening@cbsnews.com>, <earlyshow@cbs.com>, <info@cnbc.com>, <comments@foxnews.com>, 
<world@msnbc.com>, <nightly@nbc.com>, <today@nbc.com>, <dateline@nbcuni.com>, 
<letters@nytimes.com>, <wsj.ltrs@wsj.com>, <info@ap.org>, <letters@newsweek.com>, 
<letters@time.com> 
Subject: BOYCOTT INDIANA HEADQUARTERED COMPANIES 

David Simon 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
  
I am writing to let you know that I am starting a nationwide boycott of your products.  Unfortunately, the character of a 
company begins with the laws of its home-state.  Your Governor has signed legislation that places LGBT residents (and 
your employees, vendors and visitors) at significant risk of harm, discrimination and dangerous circumstance.  Georgia is 
a MUCH better place to do business. I am copying the Georgia legislature in hopes they can offer you some assistance in 
a relocation of your headquarters.  Once a law is signed by a Governor, it cannot be undone easily.  If there were ways to 
accomplish a better solution than relocation, I am not aware of it.  Indiana is better off without your tax dollars.  Georgia 
would welcome you with open arms. Please note the following statements from other major organizations: 
  

Shortly after Pence signed the bill, Salesforce CEO Marc Benioff announced he would no longer send 

employees or customers to Indiana. 

"Today we are canceling all programs that require our customers/employees to travel to Indiana to face 

discrimination," he tweeted. 

The NCAA, which is holding the Final Four men's basketball tournament in Indianapolis next week, also 

expressed concerns. NCAA President Mark Emmert said the Indianapolis-based group would examine 

"how it might affect future events as well as our workforce." 

And earlier in the week, the city's largest convention, Gen Con, threatened to take its 56,000 attendees to 

another state when its contract with the Indiana Convention Center expires in 2020. 

  
  
Thanks, 
  
Brett Johnson 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2015 10:39 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: 

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Brett Johnson <hap1marr@ > 
Date: March 26, 2015 at 11:56:26 PM CDT 
To: <Abilities@itt-tech.edu> 
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

Kevin M. Modany 
 Chief Executive Officer 
ITT Educational Services, Inc. 
  
I am writing to let you know that I am starting a nationwide boycott of your schools.  Unfortunately, the character of a 
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
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2015 10:38 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: 

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Brett Johnson <hap1marr@ > 
Date: March 26, 2015 at 11:47:12 PM CDT 
To: <jtryka@thorindustries.com> 
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

Thor Industries, Jeffery A. Tryka, CFA, Director of Corporate Development and Investor Relations, (574)   
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
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2015 10:36 AM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: Fwd: Statement of Protest from the Association of Children's Museums on the Passage 

of SB 101
Attachments: image001.jpg; ATT00001.htm; ATT00002.htm; image003.jpg; ATT00003.htm; ACM Letter 

to Governor Pence.pdf; ATT00004.htm

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-28 

10-35AM.html||image001.jpg||ATT00001.htm||ATT00002.htm||image003.jpg||ATT00003.h
tm||ACM Letter to Governor Pence.pdf||ATT00004.htm

IQmailID: 8386714
IQpeopleID: 9280548

 
 
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
(o) 703.224.3100 x106 | (m) 443  | Laura.HuertaMigus@ChildrensMuseums.org 
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
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 5:04 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: SEA 101

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-27 05-04PM.html
IQmailID: 8386703
IQpeopleID: 9280539

 
 

From: Alison A. Gordon [mailto:aag711@ ]  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 4:54 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: SEA 101 
 
Amen for the Governor. We are ALL praying this Religious Freedom Act spreads nationwide. It is overdue and premised 
upon truth. Thank you!  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 4:14 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Reliigious Freedom DISCRIMINATION Act

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-27 04-14PM.html
IQmailID: 8386701
IQpeopleID: 9280537

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Kevin P McAnarney [mailto:kminnyc ]  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 3:45 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Reliigious Freedom DISCRIMINATION Act 
 
I lived for 10 years in Indianapolis.  I did advance education at Marian (college) University and Butler University.  I 
worked there at Clowes Memorial Hall, Starlight Musicals, State Fairgrounds, Market Square Arena. 
I was always proud of my Hoosier association (I was born and raised in Springfield, IL - the burial place for Abraham 
Lincoln). 
I loved my time in Indy. 
 
The old saying goes 
If it walks like a duck, 
Talk likes a Duck…. 
 
No matter what the Governor states.  It is an ACT OF DISCRIMINATION! 
 
I am currently in public relations here in New York City. 
 
From this day forward I will NOT STEP ONE FOOT INTO THE STATE even for any class reunions. 
I will automatically boycott any thing that is mainly produced or manufactured in the state (including Lily drugs). 
I will immediately be informing my friends, associates and as many others that I can about this terrible situation and for 
them to do the same. 
The state is going to loose millions of dollars from this act. 
 
SHAME SHAME SHAME on the state of Indiana The lyrics now of the popular song Back Home In Indiana has a new 
meaning DISCRIMINATION passed off as an act of religion. 
 
SHAME  
 
 
Kevin P McAnarney 
 



 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 3:30 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Indiana Discrimination

 
 

From: bwmcfadden [mailto:bwmcfadden@   
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 12:53 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Cc: BRUCE MCFADDEN 
Subject: Indiana Discrimination 
 
On Governor Pence’s official website he says, "Governor Pence is dedicated to continuing Indiana on a 
pathway to success through fiscal responsibility, economic development and educational opportunity for 
every Hoosier child.”  (My emphasis.)  Of course, now it is clear that what he means is “every 
Christian, heterosexual child.”  Way to go Governor !!  You have found a way to discriminate via statute 
that allows you to look Indiana - and America - in the eye and tell a big old-fashioned, whopping lie. 
 
Along with friends and family, I am now dedicated to continuing to avoid travel to and products/services of 
Indiana. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Bruce McFadden 
Denver  CO 
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From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 3:29 PM
To: Governor Mike Pence
Subject: FW: Religious freedom act

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-27 03-29PM.html
IQmailID: 8386694
IQpeopleID: 9280530

 
 

From: Daniel Kojetin [mailto:dankojetin@ ]  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 12:56 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious freedom act 
 
Mike Pence says, "In fact, it does not even apply to disputes between private parties unless 
government action is involved."  
 
This is exactly the point. although one that the mass media has not fully recognized since they are focused on 
private to private parties.  The government now is allowed legal discrimination. 
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
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-27 03-28PM.html
IQmailID: 8386693
IQpeopleID: 9280529

 
 
From: Paul White [mailto:pdwhite0846@ ]  
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 1:11 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: Religious freedom 
 

My family in Indiana will have to (travel visit me. How does this govern(or define discrimination, anyway. Can 
Muslim physicians now refuse treatment to uncircumcised women without burkas? 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Dara Middleton <dara1212@ >
Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 11:17 AM
To: Brooks, Kara D;Cleveland, Bridget;Denault, Christina;Hodgin, Stephanie;Governor Mike 

Pence;Governor IQ Mail Forwarder
Subject: Religious Freedom Restoration Act

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

IQaccount: GOV
IQmailAttach: E-Mail Message 2015-03-25 11-16AM.html
IQmailID: 8386062
IQpeopleID: 9259640

Governor . Pence, 
 
I am a born and raised Hoosier.  I have always been proud to be a Hoosier.  Until now.  Veto this legislative 
bigotry!!! This is the first step in a downward spiral we, as Hoosiers, do not want to be credited with.  It's 
wrong.  Jesus didn't believe it discriminating against others.  By signing this, you proved yourself a bigot, not a 
christian.   
--  
Dara MIddleton 

 
  

 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject: Re: email?

From: Kathleen McLaughlin [mailto:kmclaughlin@IBJ.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 19, 2015 1:51 PM 



To: Brooks, Kara D; Denault, Christina 
Subject: email? 
  
Hello. I’m writing a story about elected officials’ email habits. Can you answer the following questions?  
  

1. Does Gov. Pence use any account other than mpence@gov.in.gov? 
2. If so, when did he start using the other account/accounts? 
3. Who else has access to mpence@gov.in.gov?  

  
Ideally I could have answers by tomorrow afternoon, but let me know if for some reason that is not 
doable. Thank you, 
  
KATHLEEN MCLAUGHLIN 
IBJ REPORTER 
Indianapolis Business Journal 
317.472.5373 
kmclaughlin@ibj.com 
  
Twitter: @IBJGovernment 
  
<image001.gif> 

•Submit news tips online 
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From:
Sent: PM
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: email?

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

 
Ideally I could have answers by tomorrow afternoon, but let me know if for some reason that is not doable. Thank you, 
 



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
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2015 3:27 PM
To: Atkins, Chris;Atterholt, Jim;Brothersbridge, Tonya J;Denault, Christina;Doden, 

Eric;sje;Keefer, Sean (GOV);Mantravadi, Adarsh V;mrp;Schpok, Jacob;Smith, Victor 
P;Zarazee, Megan

Cc: Marshel, Michelle E;Leeuw, Allison A;Elliott, Stephen P (Steve)
Subject: January Employment Report 
Attachments: January Employment Report V1.docx; ATT00001.htm

Please find attached the January 2015 Employment Report. 
 
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
January 2015 Employment Report

Key Points

 Indiana’s January seasonally adjusted unemployment rate increased by 0.1 to 6.0%. Indiana’s rate
is down (-0.2%) from January 2014. (LAUS, a survey of approximately 1,000 Indiana households). The national rate
was 5.7% in January. (LAUS)

 Indiana’s labor force also continued to grow, increasing by 14,000 (total growth of 59,000 over the
past year).  This was driven by gains in LAUS employed by 9,100 over the month.  Unemployed also
increased by 5,000 this month.  This is the 5th consecutive month of unemployed gains.  This trend can
indicate strength in the labor market for unemployed Hoosiers looking for work once again.

 Indiana’s labor force growth continues to surpass the national growth. The rate of growth for
Indiana’s labor force is 1.8% over the year, compared to growth of 1.1% for the nation since January
2014. Indiana’s labor force stands at 3,267,825. (LAUS)

 Indiana’s labor force has grown 85,500 since January 2013 (2.7%), compared to growth of 0.9%
nationally.  Neighboring Midwest states have seen Labor Force declines of (-0.6%) since January 2013
(December 2014 latest available for other states).

 The labor force participation rate in Indiana grew by 0.2 to 63.9%, this compares to the national rate
of 62.9% in January.

 Indiana Private sector employment is up 57,000 from a year ago, January 2014. This is an annual
growth of (2.2%). (CES, a survey of approximately 5,000 Indiana employers)

 Indiana’s private sector grew by 8,600 jobs (0.3%) in January.  US Private employment grew by
237,000 over the month, a rate of (0.2%). (CES).

 Since January 2013 Indiana’s private employment has grown by 98,600 (4.0%). Private sector monthly
job growth has averaged about 4,100 over the last two years with 19 of 24 months showing positive
job growth. (CES)

Private Sector Jobs

 Key sectors showing job increases in January:
o The largest super sector gains were in Trade, Transportation, and Utilities up 1.2% with growth

of 6,700, and Manufacturing grew by 1,500 or (0.3%).
 Key sectors showing job decreases in January:

o Construction down by 2,800 (-2.3%).
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Indiana and National Net Job Creation Comparison

Manufacturing, Professional & Business Services, and Trade Transportation & Utilities gains in Indiana are
outpacing the national average over the month and over the year.

Industry
January

2014
December

2014
January

2015
Month

Change
Y-to-D

Change
Y-to-Y

Change
Private Educational & Health Services 436.1 441.5 442.4 0.9 0.9 6.3

.....Private Educational Services 64.6 65.5 63.3 -2.2 -2.2 -1.3

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 371.5 376.0 379.1 3.1 3.1 7.6

Manufacturing 501.0 514.6 516.1 1.5 1.5 15.1

Professional & Business Services 318.4 328.2 328.7 0.5 0.5 10.3

Financial Activities 127.6 130.9 130.8 -0.1 -0.1 3.2

Construction 122.0 122.9 120.1 -2.8 -2.8 -1.9

Leisure and Hospitality 290.9 295.0 295.2 0.2 0.2 4.3

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 571.4 581.5 588.2 6.7 6.7 16.8

.....Trade 434.1 440.1 443.6 3.5 3.5 9.5

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 137.3 141.4 144.6 3.2 3.2 7.3

All Other 167.1 168.3 170.0 1.7 1.7 2.9

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,534.5 2,582.9 2,591.5 8.6 8.6 57.0

Government (Includes Public Schools &
Hospitals) 417.4 429.2 426.1 -3.1 -3.1 8.7

Total Nonfarm 2,951.9 3,012.1 3,017.6 5.5 5.5 65.7

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 115,831.0 118,690.0 118,927.0 237.0 237.0 3,096

IN Employment Change Over the Month, Year-to-Date and Over the Year
(seasonally adjusted)

Industry

Indiana
Month to

Month
U.S. Month

to Month

Indiana
vs

U.S.
Change

Indiana
Year-to-

Date
U.S. Year-

to-Date

Indiana vs
U.S.

Change

Indiana
Year-to-

Year
U.S. Year-

to-Year
Private Educational & Health Services 0.2% 0.2% UNDER 0.2% 0.2% UNDER 1.4% 2.4%

.....Private Educational Services -3.4% -0.2% UNDER -3.4% -0.2% UNDER -2.0% 1.9%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 0.8% 0.3% OVER 0.8% 0.3% OVER 2.0% 2.5%

Manufacturing 0.3% 0.2% OVER 0.3% 0.2% OVER 3.0% 2.2%

Professional & Business Services 0.2% 0.1% OVER 0.2% 0.1% OVER 3.2% 3.0%

Financial Activities -0.1% 0.3% UNDER -0.1% 0.3% UNDER 2.5% 2.2%

Construction -2.3% 0.8% UNDER -2.3% 0.8% UNDER -1.6% 6.7%

Leisure and Hospitality 0.1% 0.3% UNDER 0.1% 0.3% UNDER 1.5% 3.6%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 1.2% 0.2% OVER 1.2% 0.2% OVER 2.9% 2.1%

.....Trade 0.8% 0.2% OVER 0.8% 0.2% OVER 2.2% 1.7%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utils 2.3% 0.0% OVER 2.3% 0.0% OVER 5.3% 3.6%

All Other 1.0% 0.1% OVER 1.0% 0.1% OVER 1.7% 2.8%

NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN UNDER NaN NaN

Total Private 0.3% 0.2% OVER 0.3% 0.2% OVER 2.2% 2.8%

Government (Includes Public Schools &
Hospitals) -0.7% 0.0% UNDER -0.7% 0.0% UNDER 2.1% 0.3%

Total Nonfarm 0.2% 0.2% OVER 0.2% 0.2% OVER 2.2% 2.4%

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

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 441.5 442.4 112.3 31.3 0.9

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 65.5 63.3 11.1 0.0 -2.2

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 376.0 379.1 101.2 31.3 3.1

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 514.6 516.1 -155.0 88.2 1.5

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 328.2 328.7 68.2 72.8 0.5

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 130.9 130.8 -14.9 0.1 -0.1

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.9 120.1 -34.0 3.6 -2.8

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 295.0 295.2 28.0 18.4 0.2

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 581.5 588.2 -29.3 42.5 6.7

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 440.1 443.6 -41.5 22.0 3.5

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 141.4 144.6 12.2 20.5 3.2

All Other 166.4 158.6 168.3 170.0 3.6 11.4 1.7

0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,582.9 2,591.5 -21.1 268.3 8.6

Government (Includes Public Schools &
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.2 426.1 21.5 -8.4 -3.1

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,012.1 3,017.6 0.4 259.9 5.5

0.0 0.0 0.0

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,098.0 118,690.0 118,927.0 8,054.0 10,829.0 237.0

IN Statewide Estimates (seasonally adjusted) -- January 2015

IN Statewide Estimates (seasonally adjusted) -- January 2015

Supersector

Private
Empl.
Peak

March
2000

Private
Empl.

Trough
July 2009

December
2014

January
2015

% Chg.
Since
Peak

% Chg.
Since
Trough

% Month
to Month
Change

Private Educational & Health Services 330.1 411.1 441.5 442.4 34.0% 7.6% 0.2%

.....Private Educational Services 52.2 63.3 65.5 63.3 21.3% 0.0% -3.4%

.....Health Care & Social Assistance 277.9 347.8 376.0 379.1 36.4% 9.0% 0.8%

Manufacturing 671.1 427.9 514.6 516.1 -23.1% 20.6% 0.3%

Professional & Business Services 260.5 255.9 328.2 328.7 26.2% 28.4% 0.2%

Financial Activities 145.7 130.7 130.9 130.8 -10.2% 0.1% -0.1%

Construction 154.1 116.5 122.9 120.1 -22.1% 3.1% -2.3%

Leisure and Hospitality 267.2 276.8 295.0 295.2 10.5% 6.6% 0.1%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 617.5 545.7 581.5 588.2 -4.7% 7.8% 1.2%

.....Trade 485.1 421.6 440.1 443.6 -8.6% 5.2% 0.8%

.....Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 132.4 124.1 141.4 144.6 9.2% 16.5% 2.3%

All Other 166.4 158.6 168.3 170.0 2.2% 7.2% 1.0%

NaN NaN NaN

Total Private 2,612.6 2,323.2 2,582.9 2,591.5 -0.8% 11.5% 0.3%

Government (Includes Public Schools &
Hospitals) 404.6 434.5 429.2 426.1 5.3% -1.9% -0.7%

Total Nonfarm 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,012.1 3,017.6 0.0% 9.4% 0.2%

NaN NaN NaN

United States Total Private 110,873.0 108,096.0 118,690.0 118,927.0 7.3% 10.0% 0.2%
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Private Sector Growth – IN %

Since the low point of employment (July 2009), private sector employment growth in Indiana has
surpassed the U.S. (11.5% vs. 10%).

Since Indiana’s high point of employment (March 2000), private sector employment growth in Indiana
has lagged the U.S. (-0.8% vs. 7.3%).
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Production Worker Hours

 Average weekly hours for Indiana manufacturing workers gained 0.3 from 42.7 to 43.0 in January 2015.
Nationally, average weekly hours declined from 42.7 to 41.9.  This is the fourth consecutive month hours
have been at or above 42 per week in Indiana. (CES)

Unemployment Rate
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Neighboring Midwestern Unemployment Rates – Seasonally Adjusted

Indiana’s unemployment rate increased to 6.0% in January. Michigan saw a decline in January of 0.1%.
Ohio’s rate stands at 5.1%, Michigan is 6.3%, and Kentucky is 5.5% for January. The rate in Illinois is
unreported prior to official release.

CES/LAUS Point in Time Comparison – Seasonally Adjusted

LAUS employment gained 9,200 over the month. CES showed increases of 5,500 (Total Nonfarm) for the
month.

January 2014 December 2014 January 2015 Monthly change Yearly change
Indiana 6.2% 5.9% 6.0% 0.1% -0.2%

U.S. 6.6% 5.6% 5.7% 0.1% -0.9%

Illinois 8.2% 6.2%

Kentucky 7.5% 5.5% 5.5% 0.0% -2.0%

Michigan 7.9% 6.4% 6.3% -0.1% -1.6%

Ohio 6.5% 5.1% 5.1% 0.0% -1.4%

Current Employment Statistics (CES) and Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS)
Point in Time Comparison

March 2000
(Peak)

July 2009
(Trough)

December
2014

January
2015

Change
Peak

Change
Trough

Change
Prev.

 Month
CES Employed 3,017.2 2,757.7 3,012.1 3,017.6 0.4 259.9 5.5
LAUS Employed 3,039.1 2,847.9 3,061.5 3,070.7 31.5 222.8 9.2
LAUS Unemployed 102.9 340.8 192.1 197.2 94.2 -143.6 5.1
Labor Force 3,142.1 3,188.7 3,253.6 3,267.8 125.8 79.2 14.2
Unemployment Rate 3.3 10.7 5.9 6.0 2.7 -4.7 0.1
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Indiana’s labor force has grown 2.5% since the tough, and has increased by 85,500 since January 2013 (2.7%),
compared to growth of 0.9% nationally.  Neighboring Midwest states have seen Labor Force declines of (-0.6%)
since January 2013 (December 2014 latest available for other states).

The comparison is similar for a wider range of Midwest States. The BLS Midwest Defined states include:
Illinois | Indiana | Iowa | Michigan | Minnesota | Nebraska | North Dakota | Ohio | South Dakota | Wisconsin
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Employment to Population Ratio

Indiana’s employment to population ratio remained unchanged at 60.0 in January.  This is an increase
of 1.3 over the year and surpassing the growth rate for the US.

The broader list of Midwest BLS States shows a different trend, given strong employment growth in oil
and manufacturing related industries for some of these states.



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Saturday, March 07, 2015 8:23 PM
To: mrp
Cc: Pavlik, Jennifer L;Norton, Erin (Ladd);Crabtree, Chris;Johnson, Matt (GOV);Cleveland, 

Bridget;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Speeches for Monday
Attachments: 03092015_Raytheon Jobs Announcement.docx; Gov speech to NAWBO.ed.docx

Sir,  
 
Attached please find your remarks for Monday.  
 
Thanks,  
 
Christy 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 
Phone: 317/233-9997 
Cell: 317/  
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Thank you so much for that introduction, and I want to
welcome all of you here to the Statehouse.

It’s always a privilege to pay tribute to the impressive
contributions made by the National Association of
Women Business Owners (NAWBO), and we’re glad
you’re here. Thanks for helping make Indiana a state that
works.

Your history is inspiring.

It was back in 1975 that a dozen businesswomen started
holding meetings in the Washington D.C. area. They got
together to discuss common concerns and interests and
strategies. Eventually, they reached out to like-minded
women in other cities and towns.
And that little group has grown to become this powerful
organization represented here today – with 5,000
members in 60 chapters across the United States.

Indiana, I’m told, has the largest statewide chapter in the
nation.
So I respect your firm commitment to equal rights and
opportunities for women, and I respect your commitment
to economic progress. Your mission includes “promoting
economic development within the entrepreneurial
community” and “creating innovative and effective
changes in the business culture.”
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Here in Indiana, these are priorities we pursue every day.
At last count, we had 1,798 certified women-owned
business enterprises operating here in our state, and
many of them continue adding jobs.

Just last week (March 5), our Indiana Economic
Development Corporation announced the expansion of
Langham Logistics’ corporate headquarters on
Indianapolis’ northwest side. This is a thriving global
distribution company. Last year, it grew by 27 percent.
Serving Fortune 500 companies in the industrial, life
science and retail industries, this Indiana company also
operates facilities in Evansville and at the Indianapolis
International Airport -- and a West Coast facility in Los
Angeles. Already employing more than 80 Hoosiers,
Langham plans to create up to 20 new jobs by 2018.

As state government, we do a lot of our own business
with women-owned enterprises. Our most recent figures
show that, in subcontracting dollars, Indiana spends more
than $42 million with women-owned business
enterprises.

Our Division of Supplier Diversity works daily to provide
educational tools to help minorities, women and veterans
grow their businesses and realize their dreams. We help
business-owners get certified with the Indiana
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Department of Administration, which in turn helps
connect them with contracting opportunities and
information about best business practices.

In 2014, the Division of Supplier Diversity coordinated
more than 57 outreach events across the state. These
workshops covered such topics as human resources and
legal issues for small businesses; using social media to
grow a business; and gaining access to capital, financing
and bonding.

Now, these services are valuable, but we all know the
most important ingredient in your own ventures is the
drive and knowledge and skills you bring to your areas of
expertise.

Let me share a quote from one of Indiana’s own business
pioneers – Madam CJ Walker. She was born just after the
Emancipation Proclamation. Her parents were former
slaves. So she knew hard circumstances. But she rose
from poverty to build one of the most successful
businesses of her time, creating jobs for hundreds of
other women.

She once said, “Don’t sit down and wait for the
opportunities to come. Get up and make them.”
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As I look out across this audience today, I see people who
have followed that very advice. I’m sure that’s true of
modern Hoosier businesswomen who have blazed trails
and achieved success – people such as Angela Ahrendts, a
top executive at Apple, or Barbara Bradley Baekgaard and
Patricia R. Miller, the co-founders of Vera Bradley.
I know very well that when it comes to the businesses
you’ve started and operated -- or the already established
businesses you have helped to survive and thrive – well,
you built that.

And now, with the knowledge and experience you
possess, I hope you’ll stay engaged in public policy. The
fact you’re here today tells me you will do exactly that.

As citizens of every background and description, we’re all
in this effort together to build a better future.

And together, as we look at our economy overall, we are
encouraged to see great progress.

 The State has added more than 100,000 private
sector jobs in the last two years.

 And since I entered office, unemployment in the
Hoosier State has gone from 7.9% in January 2013
to 5.8% today.

 And if you look further out, things look even
brighter for Indiana.
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 Indiana is projected to add 336,640 new jobs by
2022.

 That’s a staggering 11.86 percent rate of
growth, higher than the national average
and higher than our neighbors

National experts are taking notice:
 The Hoosier State ranks fourth in the nation for its

concentration of jobs in advanced tech-related
industries. The high-growth industries employ more
than 11 percent of the state’s workforce (February
2015).

 Indiana ranks best in the Midwest and 7th overall in
Area Development magazine’s Top States for Doing
Business survey (Sept. 2014).

 We rank best in the Midwest and 7th in the nation
as the best place to do business in the Pollina
Corporate Top 10 Pro-Business States for 2014
study (July 2014).

 And we rank best in the Midwest and 8th nationally
in the Tax Foundation’s 2015 State Business Tax
Climate Index (Oct. 2014).

 While some states are still struggling with the
basics, we’ve got them covered.

 Balanced budget:
 In Indiana, our budgets are balanced. We

hold the line on spending and maintain
strong reserves, earning us a triple-A
bond rating from all three rating
agencies.
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 Remarkably, Indiana is one of the few
states in the country that does not have
a balanced budget amendment in its
constitution.

 While the spending and financial
governance of the last ten years has
ensured balanced budgets, those are not
guaranteed when we look to the future.

 A balanced budget requirement in the
Constitution will assure Hoosiers that
today and tomorrow Indiana will spend
wisely, protect our state from an
economic downturn, and unlike
Washington, D.C., we won’t bury our
children and grandchildren under
mountains of debt.

 Tax cuts:
 Over the past two years, we’ve made

great progress cutting taxes:
 In 2013, we passed the largest state

tax cut in Indiana history. But we
didn’t stop there.

 Last year we placed our corporate
income tax on a reduction
schedule, ultimately lowering it to
4.9 percent.

 Local Indiana communities now
also have an enhanced abatement
tool, giving them the ability to
provide further property tax relief
to small businesses.
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 Indiana has no inventory or
inheritance tax.

 Business property taxes are capped
at three percent.

 This year, we aim to simplify the tax code
and prevent the rapid increase of
property taxes on family farms.

 Cutting red tape:
 If you want to build a business, why

should government stand in your way?

 In Indiana, we have again attempted to
lead the way. On my first day in office,
we placed a moratorium on any new
state regulations. Outdated, ineffective,
excessively burdensome laws have no
place in Indiana, and we’re working to
wipe those from the books. In 2013, new
state regulations were reduced by 55%
as compared to 2012, and, this year, that
number has been reduced again by 36%
as compared to last year.

 We are doing our best to make Indiana a
great place to start a business or grow a
business, as all of you have done.

As each of you dream big dreams, remember that Indiana
is committed as a partner in your success.

Your success is our success.
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Indiana is in a state of innovation, home to more jobs, a
stronger economy and a future where the possibilities are
endless and opportunity is boundless.

So thanks again for the work you are doing for our great
state, and I hope you enjoy the rest of your day here.
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Raytheon | Indianapolis | March 9, 2015

Thank You, Raytheon
 Today we’re meeting at a historic site, home to a deep

legacy of supporting key defense and national
security interests.
o Founded as the Indianapolis Naval Ordnance

plant in 1942, it produced the top secret Norden
Bombsight, which improved the Army Air Corps’
bombing accuracy during World War II.

o Through the Korean War, this facility, by then in
Navy hands, developed various forms of avionics
technology.

 Since 1998 when Raytheon took the reins, Hoosiers
have contined making history here.
o Today Ratheon is supporting defense, security

and civil markets with technology and innovation.
o That technology supports more than 1,500 high-

wage jobs in Indy and Fort Wayne, along with
278 suppliers throughout the state, where
Raytheon spends $49 million annually.

 We’re gathered here today for another historic
moment for Indiana and for Raytheon.
o Over the coming years, Raytheon will be growing

its Hoosier team in Indianapolis by 25 percent.
o That’s bringing more than 250 new high-wage,

defense and aerospace industry jobs right here
to Indiana!



2

 Thank you:
o Todd Probert (pro-bert) and Rudy Lewis for

helping lead Raytheon into this incredible
position of growth and opportunity.

o Deputy Mayor Adam Collins and your team for
helping build Indianapolis into a community
where days like today are possible.

o And to each and every member of Raytheon’s
team. You are the foundation of today’s growth
and the reason for our celebration. Let’s have a
hand for this remarkable team!

Defence and Aerospace Industries Soar in Indiana
 Much like the history of this very facility, the aerospace

and defense  industries reflect Indiana’s past and
future.
o Since 2002, Indiana exports for the aircraft and

spacecraft industries have grown at an average
annual rate of nearly 30 percent.

o Companies like Raytheon have played a crucial
role in laying that groundwork.

o We’re coming off a year where the aerospace
industry truly soared in Indiana:
 In March, GE Aviation announced plans to

build a $100 million jet engine facility in
Lafayette, projecting to create 200 new
Hoosier jobs.
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 In May, BAE Systems broke ground on a
$39 million, state-of-the-art engineering
and production facility in Fort Wayne.

 In October, Alcoa cut the ribbon on the
company’s aluminum-lithium cast house in
Lafayette, serving the aerospace industry
with 75 new Hoosier jobs.

o And today Raytheon continues what it started
here back in 1998, when it helped lay the
foundation that has attracted other aerospace
powerhouse companies to Indiana, creating great
jobs throughout the state.

Indiana Around the World
 It’s that very foundation I was so honored to have a

chance to discuss with Thomas Kennedy, Raytheon’s
chairman and chief executive officer, last summer at
the Farnborough International Airshow in the United
Kingdom.
o Among some of the world’s most influential

aviation and aerospace companies, it was so
exciting to see Raytheon highlight the remarkable
things it’s doing right her in Indiana.

o Thomas Kennedy—like all of you here today—
understood firsthand Indiana’s commitment to
helping Raytheon’s Indianapolis facility prosper.
And look at what that’s brought today!
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 While traveling the world, it appears that the
Raytheon brand keeps coming up.
o For example, while on another jobs and

economic development mission to Isreal, we
were touring the Iron Dome, an all-weather air
defense system designed to intercept and
destroy rockets and artillery shells.

o And there was Raytheon, which received a nearly
$150 million contract to provide products for the
Tamir interceptor used in the Iron Dome.

Indiana: The Sky is the Limit
 With the help of companies like Raytheon, Indiana

gained 4,000 private sector jobs in December and
ended 2014 with a total of 51,500 jobs added.

 Indiana is home to the best, brightest and most
hardworking workforce in America. Nowhere else will
you find the true innovative spirit and unrelenting
drive that embodies a Hoosier.
o From Indiana State to Vincennes University to

Notre Dame to Purdue, our higher education
institutions specialize in aviation and aerospace.
If a dedicated workforce is a company’s strongest
asset, then a Hoosier workforce may be the most
powerful asset any aerospace company can
claim.
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 Thank you again, Raytheon, for your commitment to
the Hoosier State. I look forward to watching you
propel our economy, create jobs and lift opportunity
for all here in Indiana.



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Lloyd, Matthew
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 10:06 PM
To: mpence1314@aol.com
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: NY Times

Governor,

The NY Times is in town and doing a story on pride week/RFRA fall out. 

Two main premises are lgbt won victory legislatively and Indiana rep took hit.

Matt

Sent from my iPhone



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Vincent, Micah
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 9:55 PM
To: Mike
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Lloyd, Matthew
Subject: Lottery Deal Discussed in Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15
Attachments: Aigi1517.pdf; ATT00001.htm

Governor, 
 
Gaming Insight led with a good story on the new Lottery deal that we renegotiated. I’m very pleased with how this is 
being portrayed here. 
 

From: Taylor, Sarah  
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 7:25 PM 
To: Vincent, Micah 
Subject: Fwd: Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15 
 
Here you go 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Ed Feigenbaum <EDF@ingrouponline.com> 
Date: June 11, 2015 at 6:57:18 PM EDT 
To: INGroup <info@ingrouponline.com> 
Subject: Indiana Gaming Insight, 06/15/15 
Reply-To: <EDF@ingrouponline.com> 

Your newsletter is attached for you to download. 
 
Please bear in mind that this is copyrighted material, and must be treated as a normal paper copy 
of the newsletter should be treated. Under federal law, this newsletter may not be electronically 
forwarded, and copies may not be made unless arrangements exist with the publisher to purchase 
the rights to make or forward additional copies. 
 
Copyright infringement is a serious crime, and can have expensive implications. 
 
Your newsletter is attached in .pdf format. To access it, you must have Adobe Acrobat Reader 
3.0 (or higher) software, the universal program used to view documents in a .pdf format. To 
download Adobe Acrobat Reader at no charge, please visit the Adobe website at 
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html  



Box 383   Noblesville, IN  46061-0383
317/817-9997       FAX  317/817-9998

06/15/15     Volume 23, No. 17

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

   Copying, FAXing, or e-mailing without written 
   publisher’s permission violates federal law!

INDIANA DAILY INSIGHT
www.ingrouponline.com



June 15, 2015/11

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

From: Cleveland, Bridget
Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2015 2:35 PM
To: 'Mike'
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Bauer, Zachary C;Crabtree, Chris;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Norton, Erin 

(Ladd);Lloyd, Matthew
Subject: REMINDER: 3:07 p.m. EDT LIVE Radio - Fort Wayne's 1190 AM WOWO w/Pat Miller

3:07-3:17 p.m. EDT LIVE Radio – Fort Wayne’s 1190 AM WOWO w/Pat Miller 
Re: GM announcement (press release below for reference), China jobs mission 
 
CALL: 260-  
 
 

General Motors Announces Billion-Dollar Investment in Northeast Indiana 

ROANOKE, Ind. (May 26, 2015) – Governor Mike Pence joined executives from General Motors Co. (NYSE: GM) today to 
announce the company’s plans to invest more than $1 billion to expand its operations here. 
 
“Around the world, Indiana is known as a proven leader in advanced manufacturing,” said Pence. “Powered by a pro-
growth business environment and a highly-skilled workforce, GM is leveraging Indiana’s strengths to help it remain 
competitive across the globe. Today’s announcement marks a significant promise to the Hoosier State and ensures GM’s 
presence in Indiana and its support of Hoosier jobs long into the future, reaffirming that Indiana is a state that works for 
business.” 
 
GM will invest more than $1.2 billion to expand and enhance the Fort Wayne Assembly plant’s existing 1.3 million-
square-foot campus. The new construction, which is expected to total approximately 1.5 million square feet of new 
space at the plant, will include a new pre-treatment facility and expanded body shop, as well as an expansion of its 
general assembly capabilities. The upgrades will improve the plant’s efficiencies while equipment upgrades will enhance 
technology and energy efficiency, helping to further reduce emissions.   
 
“The upgrades taking place at Fort Wayne Assembly assure we can meet consumer demand and grow customers for life 
for years to come,” said Cathy Clegg, vice president of GM North America Manufacturing. 
 
Established in 1986, Fort Wayne Assembly produces full-size pickup trucks sold worldwide and employs approximately 
3,800 Hoosiers. According to GM, this project is expected to be one of the company’s largest investments to date at a 
U.S. manufacturing plant. GM, which produces vehicles under leading brands such as Chevrolet, Cadillac, Buick and 
GMC, employs more than 200,000 manufacturing employees at 169 plants in 31 countries. 
 
The Indiana Economic Development Corporation (IEDC) offered General Motors up to $500,000 in training grants based 
on the company's economic development plans. The IEDC will also provide the community with up to $5 million in 
infrastructure assistance from the state’s Industrial Development Grand Fund. Additionally, the Indiana Department of 
Transportation will allocate up to $4.6 million to Allen County for additional public infrastructure assistance. Allen 
County has approved additional incentives at the request of Greater Fort Wayne Inc. 
  
“The expansion of the Fort Wayne General Motors facility is a tremendous commitment because it not only cements 
GM’s future in the Allen County community, but it also ensures that we will continue to employ Northeast Indiana 
residents for years to come,” said Allen County Commissioner Nelson Peters.  
 
Today’s announcement comes on the heels of Governor Pence’s meeting with Mary Barra, chief executive officer of GM, 



during the 2015 North American International Auto Show in Detroit in January. Meeting at the company’s headquarters 
in Detroit, Pence and Barra discussed GM’s current operations in Indiana and plans for the future. 
 
About General Motors Co. 
General Motors Co. (NYSE:GM, TSX: GMM) and its partners produce vehicles in 30 countries, and the company has 
leadership positions in the world's largest and fastest-growing automotive markets. GM, its subsidiaries and joint venture 
entities sell vehicles under the Chevrolet, Cadillac, Baojun, Buick, GMC, Holden, Jiefang, Opel, Vauxhall and Wuling 
brands. More information on the company and its subsidiaries, including OnStar, a global leader in vehicle safety, 
security and information services, can be found at http://www.gm.com. 
 
About GM Global Manufacturing 
GM employs more than 200,000 manufacturing employees at 169 plants in 31 countries. More information about GM’s 
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives can be found here: http://www.gmsustainability.com/. 
 
About IEDC 
The Indiana Economic Development Corporation (IEDC) leads the state of Indiana’s economic development efforts, 
focusing on helping companies grow in and locate to the state. Governed by a 12-member board chaired by Governor 
Mike Pence, the IEDC manages many initiatives, including performance-based tax credits, workforce training grants, 
public infrastructure assistance, and talent attraction and retention efforts. For more information about the IEDC, visit 
www.iedc.in.gov.  
   
 
Thank you, 
 
Bridget Cleveland  
Deputy Press Secretary 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 

   
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Prentice, Katelyn
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 8:40 AM
To: 'mpence1314@aol.com'
Cc: Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D
Subject: WSBT Interview Recording
Attachments: WSBT_Gov China.m4a

Governor- 
 
Attached is the recording from your interview with WSBT this evening. It starts at :21. It is a little spotty in parts due to 
all of the background noise on the street. However, your answers to the questions he asked you about RFRA/religious 
freedom start at 4:43 and are fairly clear. 
 
Thanks, Katelyn 
 
KATELYN PRENTICE 
Director of Communications  

Indiana Economic  
Development Corporation 
1 North Capitol Avenue, Suite 700 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
Office: 317.234.2294 
Cell: 317.  

 

 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2015 3:15 PM
To: Mike
Subject: FW: [Clip] Indystar - Swarens: How Mike Pence can save his political career

 
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 
Phone: 317/233-9997 
Cell: 317/  
 

   
 
 

From: Hodgin, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2015 3:02 PM 
To: Denault, Christina; Brooks, Kara D; Hodgin, Stephanie; Atterholt, Jim; Espich, Jeff; Ahearn, Mark; Anderson, 
Christopher M; Johnson, David (OSBI); Crabtree, Chris; Atkins, Chris; Pitcock, Josh; Keefer, Sean (GOV); McGrath, 
Danielle; Brookes, Brady; Pavlik, Jennifer L; 'smith@sextonscreek.com' 
Subject: [Clip] Indystar - Swarens: How Mike Pence can save his political career 
 
Swarens: How Mike Pence can save his political career 
 

Mike Pence leaves the country this week, on a trade mission to China, with a big question about his political future 

unanswered. 

Three months ago, many pundits thought that question would be: Will Pence jump into the already crowded pool of 

Republican presidential contenders? 

Way back in February, no less than The Washington Post’s George Will wrote a glowing column under the headline, 

“Why Indiana’s Mike Pence deserves the trust of conservatives.” The Koch brothers appeared ready to back Pence 

with untold millions. And even Vox.com (hardly FOX News) had published a Matt Yglesias piece,“7 reasons why 

Mike Pence will be the GOP nominee in 2016.” 

As Mr. Will would say: Well. 

Ninety days later, after a legislative session that was bloodier than a Bass-o-maticcommercial, the relevant question 

is: Can Pence save his political career? 

The answer is yes. But it won’t be easy. And half steps and a pleasant smile won’t be enough to avoid defeat in next 

year’s election. 



On the long trek from Indy to Beijing, Pence needs to ask himself several hard questions. To start, why does he 

want to be governor? Really want it? Even more important, what does he want to accomplish as governor in the 

next 20 months? And, if he earns the chance, in the four years after that? Does he want to represent and serve, 

equally, the best interests of all 6.6 million Hoosiers? Is he willing to humble himself, rebuild broken trust and pour 

himself into the task of learning to be a better leader? 

Glib answers — like “it’s the media’s fault,” or, “they still love us at the Lincoln Day dinners” — won’t do. Team 

Pence, starting with its captain, needs to invest in honest soul-searching. 

What comes after the introspection? To start, Pence needs finally to go big (or go home). 

That preschool pilot program for at-risk children? It needs to be expanded aggressively throughout the state, and 

that should be priority number one on the governor’s 2016 legislative agenda. 

Likewise, the regional cities strategy for economic development and the vocational training initiative — important but 

still nascent Pence accomplishments — need to be ramped up and assigned faster tracks. 

That’s not just good short-term politics. Far more important, such efforts are vital to strengthening Indiana’s 

economy, and better preparing more Hoosiers for the big changes that will hit many workplaces in the next decade. 

The problem isn’t that Pence’s economic instincts have been wrong; it’s that the timetables for rolling out his 

initiatives have been too timid. 

The new Pence mantra needs to be: On the things that matter, be aggressive. 

Starting today, the governor’s leadership team needs to be much more inclusive. Here’s a simple test: If Pence 

walks into a room and most of the people already there are middle-age conservative white guys (in other words, 

iterations of the governor), then he should know that he’s not hearing from a representative cross-section of 

Hoosiers. We’re a diverse state, filled with people with diverse interests, needs and beliefs. The governor needs to 

embrace that diversity, and, as a byproduct, he will grow as a leader. 

There’s also an essential political benefit: Listening to and respecting a broad range of perspectives will help Pence 

and his team spot potential landmines (see RFRA). 

So why should anyone not on the Pence payroll care about the governor’s political future? First, Pence still has 20 

months left in his term. A duck so wounded that he can’t waddle from the nest handicaps the entire state for almost 

two years, and at a time when the window is closing on preparing for the technological and economic changes 

ahead. 

Second, the Democratic opposition that has emerged so far is less than inspiring. There’s a real danger that next 

year Indiana will elect Frank O’Bannon, 2.0 — a nice person who is caretaker for, not the chief executive of, a state 

at high risk of tumbling into decline. 

Ultimately the question Pence needs to answer: Is he willing to do what it takes to push himself to be bolder, to be 

more inclusive, to build bridges with people who have different world views, to show passion for the state and for the 

people he serves? To become a better leader? 



Mike Pence is getting ready for a long flight. Where he decides to land will determine not only his future, but shape 

this state’s as well. 

 
 
Stephanie Hodgin 
Communications Specialist 
Office of Governor Michael R. Pence 
shodgin@gov.in.gov 
Office: 317-234-8926 

   
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Atkins, Chris
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 11:36 AM
To: Mike
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Vincent, Micah;Ahearn, Mark;Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Smith, 

Victor P;Cotterill, Chris W;Baltzell, Paul
Subject: FW: SAP Release Time Line
Attachments: Donato_Final_4_28 Indiana_Gov't as a business.docx; 2015.4.27 IEDC SAP letter.pdf

Governor: 
 
As we discussed, at 1 pm today SAP will be launching their videos showcasing MPH. The links to the videos are below, 
and attached is a “blog style” article that SAP will post today. I have attached the letter of intent from IEDC to SAP, 
establishing that IEDC will use these videos for its economic development purposes. 
 
Big thanks to our partners at IEDC who worked with SAP on edits to the videos and for seeing the economic 
development potential in them. If SAP gets any press inquiries asking to speak with us, those will be routed from SAP to 
the IEDC comms shop. I copy Christy and Kara so they can be aware of this, and I will consult with them prior to doing 
any press interviews routed through IEDC. 
 
Speaking of IEDC, they will be with us at the SAPPHIRE conference next week. 23 companies have already asked to meet 
with us at SAPPHIRE to talk about MPH, and IEDC will be on-site to follow up on potential economic development leads. 
We believe these videos will help develop even more economic development interest in Indiana and showcase all the 
innovative things we are doing in state government. 
 
Also, as an FYI, IOT is close to securing the services of Gartner, an international leader in analytics consulting, to help us 
with one of our big MPH projects this summer. This new partnership with Gartner shows that MPH is about way more 
than just our partnership with SAP, and will lead to even more economic development potential down the road. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Chris 
 
 
 

From: McCloskey, Sean [mailto:sean.mccloskey01@sap.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 11:21 AM 
To: Marshall, Sara (Cardwell) 
Cc: Kirtley, Virginia; Hovet, Michele 
Subject: SAP Release Time Line 
 
Sara: 
 
All three video’s will be released on SAP.com at 1:00 EST on Thursday April 30th.  Once released on SAP.com  it will be 
available for viewing and download by customers.   There is a 48 hour lead time for upload at you tube. 

State of Indiana Showcase video: http://sap-
customers.flowcenter.de/mfc/medialink/6/dec956a220f78c697e1fa6db50a93c6a86c1288a9ea979f6467c2308
185b9cb1db/SAP_indiana-showcase_en_360p.mp4 



Line of Business video: http://sap-
customers.flowcenter.de/mfc/medialink/6/de4813f328d43ccc84f4f8809d039be92407b171c6d901d3ac57958f
db529c3a2f/SAP_indiana-line-of-business_en_360p.mp4 

Run Simple video: http://sap-
customers.flowcenter.de/mfc/medialink/6/de742eb59f9a20d3f5c817adf497034bfaa7f1cb0665ede958f1aa4fc
f4f370462/SAP_indiana-run-simple_en_360p.mp4 

BLOG’s time frame:  
The State of Indiana Runs Government like a Business – Set to release Thursday April 30th at 1:00 EST, once SAP 
releases the content to its blog, it will be tweeted out as well and media will pick up and push through their channels. 
 
Indiana Aims to Lower Infant Mortality with Analytics – Set to release Monday May 4th at 1:00 EST, once SAP releases 
the content to its blogs, it will be tweeted out as well and media will pick up and push through their channels. 
   
Indiana Hopes to be the Best Place for a Second Chance – Set to release on Monday May 11th at 1:00 EST, once SAP 
releases the content to its blogs, it will be tweeted out as well and media will pick up and push through their channels. 
 
Once the topics above are blogged and tweeted, this will begin the starting point for media activity.  
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or suggestions. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Sean McCloskey 
Account Executive | Midwest 
SAP Public Services, Inc. 
Cell: 317-  



The State of Indiana Runs Government like a Business

By Christine Donato

Do you ever smile at someone who passes you on the
street and they fail to smile back, or even
acknowledge your gesture?  It’s one of my biggest
pet peeves.  However, take a trip to Indiana, and
you’ll find that people smile back.

Hoosiers are defined by their large hearts.  They’re
quick on emergency response and disaster relief, and
even if a Hoosier doesn’t know you, if you need help,
they’ll come running.

Problem solvers by nature, if a Hoosier feels something needs to be fixed, they’ll work as hard as they
can to do it. And that’s exactly the mindset that Governor Mike Pence brought into office. He’s
dedicated his time to ensure that Indiana has the most effective, efficient, and transparent state
government in the country. His current challenges include maintaining financial stability and creating
jobs, reducing an unusually high infant mortality rate, fixing the transportation system, and lowering
recidivism.

The Power of Facts and Numbers

To solve the issues facing Indiana, the government implemented SAP HANA and SAP Lumira to help the
state run like a business. For the first time, Indiana is using raw data to drill into key performance
indicators to determine how well the State is serving its citizens.

“SAP was the type of partner that could deliver in terms of real time performance management, real
time access to data, breaking down our data silos, and really simplifying how we gather insights to help
our decision markers make better decisions,” said Chris Atkins the CFO of the State of Indiana. “Ten years
ago only about a third of our state agencies even had key performance indicators. They weren’t keeping
score and they weren’t being transparent.”

Operating Government like a Business

When comparing a government to a business, the taxpayers are the shareholders.  They contribute their
hard earned dollars into the system in hopes that their money is being well spent within society.

Now with new technology, instead of spreading tax dollars evenly across the board in hopes that the
money will make a positive impact on current issues, the State of Indiana can target funding to different
programs that, based on the data, need it most.

Previously, reports were outdated by the time they were opened, and attempted solutions were based
on assumptions and estimations.  Now the information within these reports is accurate and up-to-date,



and enables Indiana to make faster and more efficient
decisions that ultimately benefit the citizens of the state.

“The taxpayers work very hard for their money.  They want to
make sure that they are getting value for the way the
government spends it. We are trying to leverage the dollars
that the taxpayers give us towards the most effective
programs that give back the most value to the taxpayers
whether that’s transportation, healthcare, education, and/or
workforce,” –Chris Atkins, CFO, State of Indiana

Transparency Builds Trust

Just like a private sector business must report results to shareholders, Indiana is reporting its
performance to voters and tax payers. Hoosiers now have better insight into how the state government
is performing.

With this new transparency, Indiana is gaining trust. And by tapping into taxpayers and voters for
feedback on performance, the state has a broad range of input and can better determine new ways to
run better.

Watch this short video explaining how the State of Indiana has simplified the way it runs its government:
https://fancyrhino-1.wistia.com/medias/2kvn522mmv (Embed Run Simple Video)

Future Growth

In addition to combatting issues such as infant mortality and recidivism, Indiana’s goal is to harness the
power of technology to positively impact all citizens. To do this, the State of Indiana feels that their
relationship with SAP is only going to grow.

One grave example Indiana wants to target in the future is the fight to combat child abuse. It hopes to
use its SAP HANA engagement to empower caseworkers to make more informed decisions regarding
individual cases.

With SAP HANA mathematical algorithms, the caseworkers will be able to identify factors that usually
result in child abuse. They can then determine and remove children from situations in which abuse is
highly likely.

As Indiana CIO Paul Baltzell explained,  “The vision is to provide caseworkers with the information they
need to make better decisions, to provide a child with a happy life, and to not only survive, but to have a
productive life, and a good childhood, and the things that they need to be successful.”

Indiana as a Thought Leader



The State of Indiana has been approached by other US
State governments since its transformation to run like
a business.  So now, instead of just helping Hoosiers
lives, Indiana is serving as a thought leader for
governments and helping lives across the US. Indiana
is a testament to the power having real-time
information to drill into current issues and build
factual solutions as opposed to making assumptions.

As some of the State of Indiana government employees noted, if they can help solve a particular
problem with research and data-driven decisions, and help save lives, then they can sleep a little better.
Employees are excited to come to work because they feel like they’re doing something no one else has
done.  They’re in the forefront of helping people every day.

At the state of Indiana, the government is to work for the people.  The citizens are the boss, and as Sara
Marshall, Director of Business Intelligence and Analytics put it, “It’s that we care about our people.  We
really want their lives to improve.”

For more information about this story, check out the following:

-List links to all additional reference materials

Keep an eye out for a deep dive into how the State of Indiana is combatting infant mortality and
recidivism in new blogs to come.  To be notified via social media, follow me on Twitter and LinkedIn.

You might also like:

- Millennials Benefit from Big Data at the University of Kentucky
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VIA EMAIL 
 
April 27, 2015 
 
 
Mr. Sean McCloskey 
Account Executive | Midwest 
SAP Public Services, Inc. 
sean.mccloskey01@sap.com 
 

Re: Video Release 

Sean, 

To confirm more formally our recent discussions, the IEDC is very pleased with the videos prepared by 
SAP that highlight the State of Indiana’s initiative to leverage data and cutting edge technology solutions to 
make demonstrable progress on so many of the State’s priorities like infant mortality and recidivism. 

From the start, we have been excited by the prospect of these videos, as their usefulness from an economic 
development perspective is tremendous.  It is important that people know that Hoosiers are a hard-working, 
innovative, positive people who work constantly to improve the quality of life in our communities, and these 
videos are another important reflection of that message. 

We look forward to seeing the videos “launched” as soon as possible online, to seeing them highlighted 
often at the upcoming SAPPHIRE conference, and to seeing them used often in SAP’s other marketing 
efforts!  We are also looking forward to making use of the videos in other settings here.  Indeed, all of this 
helps us tell Indiana’s story to those who may be interested in expanding operations in Indiana and who 
may want to visit one of Indiana’s many vibrant communities. 

So, please accept this letter as IEDC’s approval of the videos along with the enclosed release. 

Thank you again for your team’s efforts to coordinate with the various state employees whose participation 
was essential to having the videos reflect the positive and serious nature of our efforts and for your team’s 
collaboration with IEDC’s marketing professionals to align the messaging in the videos with our economic 
development strategies.  The results are yet another positive result from the State’s partnership with SAP. 

Please let me know if you have any remaining questions or concerns.  I look forward to seeing you at the 
upcoming SAPPHIRE conference. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Chris W. Cotterill 
General Counsel 
 
Enclosures 

mailto:sean.mccloskey01@sap.com


Scott.A.Milkey

From: Dowd, Jaclyn (DWD)
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2015 5:25 PM
To: Mike Pence
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Braun, Steven J;Denault, Christina;Baker, Lou Ann (DWD)
Subject: Great Media Coverage - Region 8 Works Council and Friday's CTE Summit (600+ 

attendees)

Governor applauds announcement of career technical education 
summit 

Friday, April 10, 2015 

The Indiana Region 8 Works Council announces the First Annual CTE Summit to be held at WestGate Academy 
April 10. 

The Indiana Works councils were created to further Governor Pence's ideals of technical training options which 
encourage all students to achieve by providing opportunity for success whether they want to go to college, learn a 
trade, or start their career right out of high school. The councils work to provide a path to skill attainment and 
employment that involves the secondary and postsecondary educational system, which are the biggest areas of 
public investment producing the largest numbers of talent supply for a region. 

"Indiana's Regional Works Councils are leading the charge when it comes to ensuring our young people are on a 
pathway to success in the workforce or in post-secondary studies," said Governor Pence. "Members of the Councils 
have been working with industry partners, high school counselors, teachers, parents, and students to bolster CTE 
opportunities, align and grow critical sector partnerships, and collaborate on curriculum improvements and design, 
and I applaud their efforts." 

The Region 8 Works Council "CTE Summit 2015," was developed in partnership with the Monroe County 
Community School Corporation, Ivy Tech Community College, Vincennes University, Indiana University, Indiana 
State University, the Center for Excellence in Leadership of Learning (CELL), Radius Indiana; and Indiana Region 8 
employers, including Duke Energy, MSP Aviation, TASUS, Jasper Engines and STIMULUS Engineering. 

Attendees will have the opportunity to engage directly with local business to learn more about the opportunities 
available for the future careers, as well as the types of education, training, and soft skills needed to build careers with 
these companies. 

Presentations will be made by various CTE students highlighting their skills alongside post-secondary and 
business/industry partners in connection with industry cluster career pathways. 

Freshmen through seniors will also have the opportunity to engage in mock interviews and meet with college, 
university and industry representatives specific to region 8 counties, which include Brown, Daviess, Greene, 
Lawrence, Martin, Monroe, Orange and Owen counties. 

Key items students need to know when seeking careers will also be covered, including topics such as soft skills, mock 
interviews, resume writing, financial aid/scholarship search, IVY Tech-ASAP, Vincennes--CNC, STEM Premier, and 
a 4-year college panel. 

"Business and postsecondary education have found a common cause in the preparation of a highly skilled workforce 
to build economic opportunity," said Cary Bledsoe, COO of STIMULUS Engineering, a partner in coordinating the 
event. "As a part of the business community at WestGate and within this region, we're honored to collaborate with 
education and industry partners to find ways to open doors, invigorate young minds, and help provide more direct 



pathways to in-demand careers in high-growth industries. Events such as these provide an opportunity to improve 
the economic environment of the community." 

Sessions begin at 9 a.m. and end at 1:40 p.m. For more information and to register, go to: 
cte3summit2015.eventbrite.com. 

Source: Green County Daily World, http://www.gcdailyworld.com/story/2184325.html 

Jackie 
Jaclyn P. Dowd 
Executive Director, Indiana Career Council 
Chief Operating Officer for Workforce 
Department of Workforce Development 
317.232.0204 | www.in.gov/dwd 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Sent: Friday, April 10, 2015 8:44 AM
To: Mike Pence;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Fwd: Governor Pence

See below. This is a follow up from the convention calls you made during RFRA. Good news. I will follow up about his 
request to address the event .  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Dr. Ron DeHaven" <RDeHaven@ > 
Date: April 10, 2015 at 7:51:50 AM EDT 
To: "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc: Lisa Perius <lisa@ > 
Subject: RE: Governor Pence 

Dear Jennifer, 
  
Please let Governor Pence know that the American Veterinary Medical Association  Board of Directors 
discussed our 2017 Convention plans at their meeting yesterday.  They quickly agreed, without 
dissension, that we will keep our convention in Indianapolis. 
  
As a Purdue grad with a fond spot in my heart for Indiana, I know the Hoosiers will warmly welcome all 
of our AVMA Convention attendees.  If it fits his schedule, it would be great to have the Governor 
provide a welcome during the Convention. 
  
Best regards, 
  
Ron 
  
W. Ron DeHaven, DVM, MBA 
CEO 
AVMA 
  

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L [mailto:JPavlik@gov.IN.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 10:51 AM 
To: Dr. Ron DeHaven 
Cc: Joanne Mazur; Tracy Olsen 
Subject: RE: Governor Pence 
  
I will have him call you at 1:00 CT/2:00 ET. 
  
Thanks!  
  

From: Dr. Ron DeHaven [mailto:RDeHaven@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:48 AM 
To: Pavlik, Jennifer L 



Cc: Joanne Mazur; Tracy Olsen 
Subject: RE: Governor Pence 
  
Dear Jennifer, 
  
I will certainly make myself available at any time the Governor wants to call.  1pm CENTRAL would be 
ideal.  My direct line is 847- . 
  
Ron DeHaven 
  

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L [mailto:JPavlik@gov.IN.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 10:26 AM 
To: Dr. Ron DeHaven 
Subject: Governor Pence 
  
Dr. DeHaven, 
Governor Pence would like to call you today.  Is there a good time to reach you today? Thanks! I also left 
Tracy Olson a message with the same request.  He is available anytime after 12:30 today.   
  
Jennifer Pavlik 
Director of Operations 
Governor Mike Pence  
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 09, 2015 12:10 PM
To: Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;MRP (mpence1314@aol.com);Atterholt, Jim
Subject: ENDA

Here is the no vote on ENDA and floor speech. 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT NON-DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 2007 -- (House of Representatives - November 07, 2007) 

 Mr. PENCE. Madam Chairman, I thank the gentleman for yielding.  

   Madam Chairman, I come before the House today in strong opposition to H.R. 3685, the Employment Non-
Discrimination Act. However well-intended, the bill extends existing employment discrimination provisions of Federal 
law like those contained in title VII of the Civil Rights Act to prohibit employment discrimination based on sexual 
orientation.  

   Let me be clear. I don't condone discrimination against people for any reason whatsoever. I believe in civility and 
decency in society. But the problem here is that by extending the reach of Federal law to cover sexual orientation, 
employment discrimination protections, in effect, can wage war on the free exercise of religion in the workplace. In 
effect, as has been said already, this sets up something of a constitutional conflict between the right to religious 
freedom in the workplace and another person's newly created right to sue you for practicing your faith or 
acknowledging your faith in the workplace. This is, as has been said before, a deeply enshrined tradition in the American 
experiment, emanating, as it does, out of the first amendment of the Constitution of the United States.  

   Some examples: Under ENDA, employees around the country who possess religious beliefs that are opposed to 
homosexual behavior would be forced, in effect, to lay down their rights and convictions at the door. For example, if an 
employee keeps a Bible in his or her cubicle, if an employee displays a Bible verse on their desk, that employee could be 
claimed by a homosexual colleague to be creating a hostile work environment because the homosexual employee 
objects to passages in the Bible relating to homosexuality.  

   The employer is in a no-win situation as well. Either the employer has to ban employees from having a Bible at the 
workplace for their break time, or displaying Bible verses, and thereby face a lawsuit under title VII for religious 
discrimination, or the employer then has to continue to allow it and face a potential lawsuit under ENDA by the 
homosexual employee. This sets up a constitutional conflict headed for the courts, about which Congress should not 
involve itself.  

   Madam Chairman, I strongly oppose the Employment Non-Discrimination Act. We must stand for the right of every 
American to practice their faith according to the dictates of their conscience, whether it be in the public square or in the 
workplace. So I oppose the Employment Non-Discrimination Act and urge my colleagues to do likewise.  

 
 
 
 
 
House Vote 1057 - HR 3685: Employee Non-Discrimination - Passage 
November 07, 2007 - Passage of the bill that would prohibit job discrimination on the basis of an 
individual's actual or perceived sexual orientation. It would define sexual orientation as heterosexuality, 
homosexuality or bisexuality. An employee who alleged discrimination would be required to 



demonstrate that the nature of the discrimination was intentional. As amended, it would exempt 
religious organizations. It also would specify that the bill would not alter the federal definition of 
marriage as being between a man and woman. 
Passed 235-184: R 35-159; D 200-25; I 0-0. 
Note: A "nay" was a vote in support of the president's position. 
Nays (1) 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org>
Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 2:51 PM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com)
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Gov. Christie

In case you didn’t see this statement by Gov. Christie about you: 
 
"Well, we should not have a situation where people perceive that anybody will be denied service. But, I can tell you this, 
I know Mike Pence, and he's got nothing but love in his heart for people and I just do not believe that in any way Mike 
Pence would intend for anything that happen in his state on his watch to be discriminatory towards any person," Christie 
said in a statement. 
"And so, my guess is that he'll fix the problem and move on," Christie said. "Because that's the kind of guy he is. I will tell 
you, amongst the governors, there is nobody that I've met amongst the governors who is more sincere in his faith and in 
his love for people than Mike Pence. So, I just don't believe any of this stuff is true and to the extent that something 
needs to be fixed to clarify that no one will be denied service for discriminatory reasons, I'm sure that's exactly what 
Mike will do." 
 
http://www.nj.com/politics/index.ssf/2015/04/christie_breaks_silence_on_indiana_religious_freed.html 
 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:39 AM
To: Pitcock, Josh;MRP (mpence1314@aol.com);Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;'Ryan

Streeter';smith@sextonscreek.com
Subject: RE: Governor Pence Issues Statement Regarding the Religious Freedom Restoration

Act

Hard copies on way to MSR.

From: Pitcock, Josh [mailto:jpitcock@sso.org]
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:38 AM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com); Pavlik, Jennifer L; Atterholt, Jim; Ahearn, Mark; 'Ryan Streeter';
smith@sextonscreek.com
Subject: FW: Governor Pence Issues Statement Regarding the Religious Freedom Restoration Act

Statement from signing last Thursday.

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
March 26, 2015

Contact: Kara Brooks
kbrooks@gov.in.gov

Governor Pence Issues Statement Regarding the Religious Freedom Restoration Act
Pence: “This bill is not about discrimination, and if I thought it legalized discrimination in any way in Indiana, I would

have vetoed it.”

Indianapolis – Governor Mike Pence today issued the following statement after signing the Religious Freedom
Restoration Act (SEA 101) in a private ceremony.

“Today I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, because I support the freedom of religion for every Hoosier of
every faith.

“The Constitution of the United States and the Indiana Constitution both provide strong recognition of the freedom of
religion but today, many people of faith feel their religious liberty is under attack by government action.

“One need look no further than the recent litigation concerning the Affordable Care Act. A private business and our own
University of Notre Dame had to file lawsuits challenging provisions that required them to offer insurance coverage in
violation of their religious views.

“Fortunately, in the 1990s Congress passed, and President Clinton signed, the Religious Freedom Restoration Act—
limiting government action that would infringe upon religion to only those that did not substantially burden free
exercise of religion absent a compelling state interest and in the least restrictive means.

“Last year the Supreme Court of the United States upheld religious liberty in the Hobby Lobby case based on the federal
Religious Freedom Restoration Act, but that act does not apply to individual states or local government action. At
present, nineteen states—including our neighbors in Illinois and Kentucky—have adopted Religious Freedom
Restoration statutes. And in eleven additional states, the courts have interpreted their constitutions to provide a
heightened standard for reviewing government action.



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 02, 2015 11:39 AM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com);Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;'Ryan

Streeter';smith@sextonscreek.com
Subject: RE: Ensuring Religious Freedom in Indiana

WSJ op-ed

Ensuring Religious Freedom in Indiana
Our new law has been grossly misconstrued as a ‘license to discriminate.’ That isn’t true, and
here’s why.
By Mike Pence
3/30/15

Last week I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, known as RFRA, which ensures that Indiana law will respect
religious freedom and apply the highest level of scrutiny to any state or local governmental action that infringes on
people’s religious liberty. Unfortunately, the law has stirred a controversy and in recent days has been grossly
misconstrued as a “license to discriminate.”

I want to make clear to Hoosiers and every American that despite what critics and many in the national media have
asserted, the law is not a “license to discriminate,” either in Indiana or elsewhere. In fact, the Religious Freedom
Restoration Act reflects federal law, as well as law in 30 states nationwide. Indiana’s legislation is about affording
citizens full protection under Indiana law.

I abhor discrimination. I believe in the Golden Rule that you should “do unto others as you would have them do unto
you.” If I saw a restaurant owner refuse to serve a gay couple, I wouldn’t eat there anymore. As governor of Indiana, if I
were presented a bill that legalized discrimination against any person or group, I would veto it. Indiana’s new law
contains no reference to sexual orientation. It simply mirrors federal law that President Bill Clinton signed in 1993.

As Prof. Daniel O. Conkle of Indiana University’s Maurer School of Law, a supporter of gay rights, including same-sex
marriage, wrote last week in the Indianapolis Star: “The proposed Indiana RFRA would provide valuable guidance to
Indiana courts, directing them to balance religious freedom against competing interests under the same legal standard
that applies throughout most of the land. It is anything but a ‘license to discriminate,’ and it should not be
mischaracterized or dismissed on that basis.”

People have asked why this is necessary. After all, the U.S. Constitution and the Indiana Constitution provide strong
recognition of freedom of religion. But RFRA is in many ways overdue in Indiana.

In 1990 the U.S. Supreme Court ruled in Employment Division of Oregon v. Smith that the First Amendment’s free
exercise clause could not be raised as a defense to generally applicable laws, even if the law infringed on a person’s
religious liberty. In response, Congress passed and President Clinton signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act in
1993. This law limits federal government action that would infringe upon religion to only those acts that did not
substantially burden free exercise of religion, absent a compelling governmental interest and in the least restrictive
means.



For example, a public school in Texas in 2008 told a Native American kindergartner that he would have to cut his hair
because of the school’s grooming policies. But keeping his hair long was part of his religious practice, which allowed his
parents to prevail in federal court under RFRA.

Many states have enacted RFRAs of their own; 19 states have passed such laws and 11 state courts have interpreted the
law to provide a heightened standard for reviewing government action. When President Obama was a state senator in
Illinois, he supported Illinois’s version of the law in 1998. Historically, this law has received wide bipartisan support.

But Indiana never passed such a law. Then in 2010 came the Affordable Care Act, which renewed concerns about
government infringement on deeply held religious beliefs. Hobby Lobby and the University of Notre Dame both filed
lawsuits challenging provisions that required the institutions to offer certain types of insurance coverage in violation of
their religious views.

Last year the Supreme Court upheld religious liberty in Burwell v. Hobby Lobby, based on the federal RFRA. With the
Supreme Court’s ruling, the need for a RFRA at the state level became more important, as the federal law does not apply
to states. To ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under Indiana law, this year the General Assembly enshrined
these principles in Indiana law. I fully supported that action.

Some express concern that Indiana’s RFRA law would lead to discrimination, but RFRA only provides a mechanism to
address claims, not a license for private parties to deny services. Even a claim involving private individuals under RFRA
must show that one’s religious beliefs were “substantially burdened” and not in service to a broader government
interest—which preventing discrimination certainly is. The government has the explicit power under the law to step in
and defend such interests.

As Thomas Jefferson noted, “No provision in our Constitution ought to be dearer to man than that which protects the
rights of conscience against the enterprises of civil authority.” I regret that false narratives and misrepresentations of
the RFRA have taken hold.

The hospitality and character of Hoosiers are synonymous with everything that is good about America. Faith and religion
are important values to millions of Indiana residents. With the passage of this legislation, Indiana will continue to be a
place that respects the beliefs of every person in our state.

Mr. Pence, a Republican, is the governor of Indiana.



“In order to ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under Indiana law, this year our General Assembly joined
those 30 states and the federal government to enshrine these principles in Indiana law, and I fully support that action.

“This bill is not about discrimination, and if I thought it legalized discrimination in any way in Indiana, I would have
vetoed it. In fact, it does not even apply to disputes between private parties unless government action is involved. For
more than twenty years, the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act has never undermined our nation’s anti-
discrimination laws, and it will not in Indiana.

“Indiana is rightly celebrated for the hospitality, generosity, tolerance, and values of our people, and that will never
change. Faith and religion are important values to millions of Hoosiers and with the passage of this legislation, we
ensure that Indiana will continue to be a place where we respect freedom of religion and make certain that government
action will always be subject to the highest level of scrutiny that respects the religious beliefs of every Hoosier of every
faith.”

###



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Hodgin, Stephanie
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:13 PM
To: 'mpence1314@aol.com'
Cc: Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Atterholt, Jim;Espich, Jeff;Ahearn, Mark;Simcox, 

Stephen;Crabtree, Chris;Atkins, Chris;Pitcock, Josh;Keefer, Sean (GOV);McGrath, 
Danielle;Brookes, Brady;Pavlik, Jennifer L;'smith@sextonscreek.com'

Subject: RFRA Clips 3.31.2015
Attachments: RFRA Clips 3.31.15.docx

Sir, 
 
Clips re: today’s press conference can be found below and are attached to this email. 
 
------------------------------- 
STATEWIDE 
 
Pence wants fix for ‘religious freedom’ law by end of week 
NWI Times – Dan Carden 
 
INDIANAPOLIS | Gov. Mike Pence requested Tuesday that the General Assembly send him legislation by the end of the 
week clarifying that Indiana's "religious freedom" law is not discriminatory. 

At the same time, the Republican said he still does not support adding sexual orientation as a protected class under 
Indiana's civil rights laws, and he rejected calls to repeal Senate Enrolled Act 101, also known as the Religious Freedom 
Restoration Act. 

"This law does not give anyone a license to deny services to gay and lesbian couples," Pence said. "This law does not give 
anyone a license to discriminate." 

Pence said he worked late into the night Monday with leaders of the Republican-controlled House and Senate crafting 
language they hope will fix what he described as "smears" against Indiana coming from national media and Internet 
commenters. 

"The gross mischaracterizations about this bill early on, and some of the reckless reporting by some in the media about 
what this bill is all about, was deeply disappointing to me," Pence said. 

"If I read some of that stuff about this bill, I would have had the same concerns that millions of Hoosiers have had and 
millions across the country." 

But, Pence insisted, the new law -- which is similar to statutes in 19 other states, including Illinois, and the 1993 federal 
"religious freedom" law -- simply sets the standard Indiana courts must use in determining whether government action 
infringes on religious liberty. 

"I don't believe for a minute that it was the intention of the General Assembly to create a license to discriminate or a 
right to deny services to gays, lesbians or anyone else in the state," Pence said. "And that certainly wasn't my intent." 



Pence emphasized that he "abhors" discrimination of every kind, and mentioned civil rights leaders Martin Luther King, 
Jr. and U.S. Rep. John Lewis, R-Ga., are among his heroes. 

"No one should be harassed or mistreated because of who they are, who they love or what they do," Pence said. "I 
believe that with all my heart." 

Legislative leaders have yet to detail the specifics of any plan to clarify the law, or when the House and Senate might act 
on it. 

No "religious freedom" fix was debated or voted on Tuesday. 

The General Assembly next meets Thursday, but lawmakers then leave town until April 7 due to the NCAA Final Four 
men's basketball tournament taking over their Indianapolis hotel rooms. The Legislature adjourns for the year April 29. 

Pence said he does not believe the fix requires adding sexual orientation to Indiana's civil rights laws -- which would bar 
discrimination against gays in hiring, housing and other matters, in addition to public accommodations -- but refused to 
say that he would veto such a proposal if it made it to his desk. 

"I've never supported that, and I want to be clear -- it's not on my agenda," Pence said. "But I do believe moving 
legislation this week that would make it clear this law does not give businesses a right to deny services to anyone would 
be appropriate." 

Democratic leaders proclaimed only repeal of the "religious freedom" statute and passage of a law explicitly protecting 
gays from all forms of discrimination can undo the worldwide damage to Indiana's reputation. 

"If the state of Indiana does not believe in discrimination, then let's put it in law and make a statement," said Senate 
Democratic Leader Tim Lanane, D-Anderson. 

House Democratic Leader Scott Pelath, D-Michigan City, suggested Pence perhaps doesn't yet realize how truly horrible 
the reaction to the law has been for the state, especially since the governor is blaming the media instead of accepting 
that most Hoosiers don't share his 1950s vision for Indiana. 

Pelath added that leaders of major corporations, such as Apple which has condemned the law, don't take their cues 
from the nightly news. 

"I don't like running into my friends from Michigan and my friends from Illinois and the first thing out of their mouths is, 
"What are you doing in Indiana?'" Pelath said. "We have a national and international problem that requires a bold 
response in reaction to a major mistake." 

There is precedent for the Democrats' proposal. Illinois revised its 1998 "religious freedom" law in 2013 to add civil 
rights protections for gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender residents. 

----------------------- 
 
Pence wants General Assembly to move this week to clarify “religious freedom” law 
Evansville Courier & Press 



INDIANAPOLIS - Gov. Mike Pence is calling on the General Assembly to send him a fix this week for the state’s 

controversial “religious freedom” law that would make it clear the law does not give businesses the right to deny 

services to anyone. 

“We want to make it clear that Indiana is open for business,” Pence said at a Tuesday press conference where the 

Republican governor offered insight into how he wants the law clarified.   

As of Tuesday afternoon, proposed language by Republican legislative leadership to clarify the state’s Religious Freedom 

Restoration Act was still in the works. The law has become a topic of mounting criticism nationwide over fears it could 

be used to discriminate against gays and lesbians. 

House Speaker Brian Bosma said lawmakers are working with the corporate and sports communities on language and 

said it’s the goal to send Pence a clarification by week’s end. 

“We have to have consensus on language,” said Bosma, noting the proposal has to go through a lot of hands. 

Lawmakers also are exploring adding a preamble to give context as well. 

“I think we all want to bring the misconception that now appears to be nearly factual nationally to a prompt close,” 

Bosma said, “and we’re united on that.  I think the approach we’re still discussing.” 

On Monday, Bosma said talk has centered on clarifying that the state’s new law can’t be used to deny services, facilities 

or goods to any member of the public. 

Meanwhile, Democrats continued calls for the law’s repeal following Pence’s press conference. 

Senate Democratic Leader Tim Lanane said he was disappointed by Pence’s reaction. Democrats also have called for 

adding protections for sexual orientation and gender identity to the state’s Civil Rights Law. 

“What has happened here this situation created by this bill has gone from beyond just being about the bill and about 

whether or not the bill has a license to discriminate to the very question does Indiana discriminate,” Lanane said. “We 

know Indiana, the people of Indiana do not discriminate we need to put that into law – we need to make a bold 

statement.” 

Pence acknowledged the week had been tough as Indiana came under the “harsh glare” of criticism from around the 

country, but said the state was going to “move forward.” 



Pence said he would have vetoed the bill if he felt it would have legalized discrimination and that the law had been 

“grossly mischaracterized.” 

“This law does not give anyone a license to deny services to gay or lesbian couples,” Pence said. 

When asked if he’d support sexual orientation being a protected class in the state, Pence said he’s never supported that 

addition. 

“It’s not on my agenda, but I think it’s a completely separate question,” Pence said. 

Movement to clarify the law comes after Indiana has faced intense scrutiny over its passage. Organizations, including the 

NCAA, said the law could cause them to rethink holding events in Indiana in the future. Several mayors and governors 

from across the country have canceled publicly-funded travel to the state, and university and business officials 

expressed concern about the harm they believe the law has caused to the state’s reputation. 

The law is a state-level version of the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act, passed by Congress and signed into law 

by U.S. President Bill Clinton in 1993. Supporters say the law will better protect Hoosiers in state court if government 

intrudes on their ability to exercise their religion by adopting a judicial standard like the federal law. But opponents 

argue it could lead to Hoosiers denying services to others, especially gays and lesbians, on the basis of Indiana having 

such a law. 

The law asserts a person’s right to practice their religion without a substantial burden by government. It also requires 

government to demonstrate a compelling interest to restrict religious expression. 

Critics say Indiana’s version is broader than comparable laws. 

Proponents of the law say Indiana is adopting protections for “religious freedom” that have been on the federal books 

for more than 20 years and what some 30 other states have either by law or court decision. 

However, White House Press Secretary Josh Earnest said Pence has “tried to falsely suggest” that the law is the same as 

the federal version, but he noted the law applies not just to individuals but businesses such as a partnership, a limited 

liability company and a corporation. Earnest said the law also applies to private transactions. 

“So, this obviously is a significant expansion of the laws – of the law in terms of the way that it would apply. It leaves 

open the question what sort of religious views a joint stock company may hold, but that may be something for lawyers 

to ponder,” Earnest said. 



---------------------------------- 
Pence Seeks RFRA Followup Making Clear Indiana Does Not Discriminate 
WIBC – Eric Berman 
 
Governor wants bill by end of week, but legislative calendar an obstacle. 
Governor Pence is calling on legislators to pass a clarification to Indiana's new Religious Freedom Restoration Act by the 
end of the week. 

Pence echoed legislative leaders in declaring the controversial law does not and should not allow discrimination or 
denial of service, to gays and lesbians or anyone else. And he conceded he should have said so when asked Sunday in an 
appearance on ABC's "This Week" -- he says he was focused at the time on "setting the record straight" about what the 
law does do. 

As he has since signing the law last week, Pence criticized "reckless" mischaracterization of the law by opponents and 
national media as a license to discriminate. The governor calls that a "smear" against the state, but says the perception 
of discrimination requires a legislative fix. 

It's not only opponents who have contended the law would allow businesses to turn away gays and lesbians. The 
conservative group Advance America, which led the push for the law, celebrated the bill's signing on its website and in 
emails by proclaiming it would do exactly that. Pence declined to criticize the group directly, but repeatedly declared in a 
news conference that Indiana will not tolerate discrimination. 

Pence wants a follow-up bill explicitly prohibiting denial of service or other discrimination. But he says he and legislators 
are still working on specific wording. And he notes it's ultimately up to the courts to balance state interests against 
religious beliefs, on a case-by-case basis. He says the law, like the 1993 federal version and similar laws in 19 other 
states, is designed to give judges guidance on the legal test that applies. The law prohibits "substantially burdening" 
religious beliefs unless the government can show a "compelling state interest" to do so. 

Pence repeated earlier declarations to national media that he "abhors" discrimination. He recalled crossing Selma's 
Edmund Pettus Bridge as a congressman in 2010 alongside Georgia Representative John Lewis, who was badly beaten 
during the original Selma protest march 45 years earlier. 

House and Senate Democrats' leaders say they agree with Pence that Indiana does not discriminate. But Senate Minority 
Leader Tim Lanane contends merely saying so is no longer good enough. Democrats say only a full repeal of the law can 
restore Indiana's reputation. 

House Minority Leader Scott Pelath charges Pence has recognized political peril to his governorship and Republican 
legislative majorities, but hasn't fully grasped the potential damage to the state. He says the governor "has moved from 
denial to bargaining." 

Gay-rights groups, including Freedom Indiana and Lambda Legal, have called for an anti-discrimination statement similar 
to what Pence and Republican leaders have indicated, but coupled with the addition of sexual orientation to protected 
classes under Indiana civil rights law. Pence says that's a separate issue, and "not on (his) agenda." 

The governor also won't say whether the followup bill will clarify the status of local ordinances in Indianapolis and other 
cities which offer such protections. Opponents charge the RFRA law overrides those ordinances, while supporters say 
they're misreading the law. Pence says his sole focus is on making clear that discrimination won't be tolerated. 

Pelath and Lanane endorse the call to add gays and lesbians to the civil rights law, but they say it should be in addition to 
repeal of RFRA, not instead of. Lanane says Democrats would "take a look at" the proposal. But he says he has doubts 
about the religious-freedom bill even if protections for gays and lesbians were ironclad. He questions whether the law 
and its federal and state counterparts adequately define what constitutes religious belief. And he objects to Indiana's 
inclusion of protections for businesses, along the lines of last year's Hobby Lobby decision from the Supreme Court. 



With the wording of the followup bill still undetermined, Pence's goal of passing a fix by the end of the week appears 
unlikely. Legislators' only remaining session day this week is Thursday -- it would require a two-thirds vote in both 
houses to suspend normal procedures and pass the bill in a single day. Calling the House and Senate into session 
Wednesday would conflict with committee hearings on other bills. And legislators had already announced a four-day 
Easter weekend, because out-of-town legislators are losing their hotel rooms to Final Four visitors. 

Pelath and Lanane say unless Republicans change their mind and endorse repeal, the process shouldn't be rushed. 
Pelath says the followup bill needs careful review to ensure it doesn't have to be fixed a second time. 

--------------------------- 

White House disputes Pence’s description of RFRA  

Maureen Groppe 

WASHINGTON – White House spokesman Josh Earnest on Tuesday disputed Gov. Mike Pence's claim that Indiana's 
controversial new law protecting religious freedom is similar to the federal protections signed into law by President Bill 
Clinton more than two decades ago. 

Both laws say there has to be a compelling government interest to burden someone's guarantee under the First 
Amendment to freely exercise his or her religion. 

But Earnest said that while the 1993 law was an effort to protect religious minorities from actions taken by the federal 
government, Indiana's law is much broader. 

Indiana allows the law to be invoked in disputes between private parties, instead of only those involving a government 
entity. And it applies to more types of businesses than just the family-owned companies the Supreme Court recently 
ruled are covered under the federal version. 

"Which means that this is a much more open-ended piece of legislation that could reasonably be used to try to justify 
discriminating against somebody because of who they love," Earnest said in his daily briefing with reporters. 

Pence has said the law was not intended to allow businesses to discriminate against gays and lesbians in providing 
services. But some backers of the bill have said it's needed to protect businesses that don't want to provide services 
such as photography or flowers for wedding ceremonies of same-sex couples. 

Pence on Tuesday called on lawmakers to pass legislation clarifying the law, but it's still unclear how it would be 
changed. 

Earnest said the public outcry in response to the law "is indicative of how this piece of legislation flies in the face of the 
kinds of values that people all across the country strongly support." 

 
------------------------------ 
Pence wants changes to religious freedom law 
FW Journal Gazette 
 
INDIANAPOLIS -- Gov. Mike Pence said Tuesday lawmakers need to send him a fix to the controversial religious freedom 
law by the end of the week to address a misperception that is damaging Indiana.  



 
"We will fix this and we will move forward. That's what Hoosiers do," he told a throng of state and national media. "I 
don't support discrimination against gays or lesbians or anyone else." 

 
He stood behind signing the law last week but said it needs to be clear that it can't be used to deny services to anyone. 

 
The language under consideration would say a person or business cannot use Indiana's religious freedom act as a 
defense for denying services, goods or facilities to anyone. But that would not provide protection against discrimination 
based on employment and housing.  

 
A key advocate of the bill, meanwhile, sent an email to supporters warning of attempts to alter the law, which takes 
effect July 1. 

 
"Because of this deluge of intolerance against Hoosiers of all faiths by liberal elites from outside our borders, Indiana 
House and Senate members are under intense pressure to water down and even roll back these 1st Amendment 
protections before the ink can even dry on the new law," the Indiana Family Institute said. 

 
Senate Bill 101 provides a legal framework for judges to use when deciding conflicts between religious liberty and 
government regulation. 
Indiana doesn't have statewide protections for gays and lesbians, but a handful of cities have local human rights 
ordinances that prohibit discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation in housing, employment and public 
accommodations. Many feel the new law would supersede those ordinances. 

--------------------- 

Indiana Democrats repeat call for RFRA repeal 
Indystar – Tony Cook 
 
Indiana's Democrats on Tuesday said Republican Gov. Mike Pence has to take quick action and ditch the "religious 
freedom" law to undo the damage the measure has caused to the state's reputation. 

House Minority Leader Scott Pelath, D-Michigan City, said at a news conference that the remedy has to be clear, decisive 
and understandable and the fastest way to do that is to repeal the law. He said to push for anything less than a repeal 
would be incorrect. 

Sen. Tim Lanane, D-Anderson, said the reaction over the law has mushroomed, going from does the law discriminate to 
does Indiana discriminate? 

Instead of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, Lanane, the Senate Minority Leader, said that because of the 
backlash, the state now needs an "Indiana Reputation Restoration Act." 

Lanane also said the state should take the opportunity now to make it illegal to discriminate based on sexual orientation. 
Adding such protections would be an acceptable compromise, he said. 



The Democrats made their remarks in response to Pence's news conference Tuesday where he said he wanted a quick 
amendment to RFRA to make it clear that the law does not discriminate and that businesses should not be allowed to 
deny services to anyone. 

Call Star reporter Tony Cook at (317) 444-6081. Follow him on Twitter: @indystartony. 

---------------------------- 
Gov. Mike Pence: Change RFRA law to make it clear discrimination won't be allowed 
IndyStar – Tim Evans 
 
Embattled Indiana Gov. Mike Pence attempted again Tuesday morning to "clarify" the state's controversial new 
"religious freedom" law. 

Pence said it has been a tough week and said "we've got a perception problem" that needs to be fixed. 

Pence said he concluded that it is necessary to move legislation to amend the law to make it clear that it does not give 
businesses the right to deny services to anyone. He said he wanted legislation on his desk by the end of the week to 
accomplish that. 

The governor also said: 

-- There's been misunderstanding and confusion and mischaracterization about the potential impact of the Religious 
Freedom Restoration Act. 

-- This legislation was intended to ensure the vitality of religious liberty in this state. 

-- He has been working around the clock, talking to people around the state and nation, and "we've been listening." 

He stressed that RFRA was about "religious liberty, not discrimination" and emphasized that the law does not give 
anyone the right to turn away customers on religious grounds. 

"This law does not give anyone the right to discriminate...This law does not give anyone the right to deny services," he 
said. 

When asked whether Christian businesses should be compelled to supply services to gay and lesbian weddings, 
Pence answered: "I don't support discrimination against anyone." 

"I don't support discrimination against gays and lesbians or anyone else. I abhor discrimination." 

However, Pence again said that adding protections for gays and lesbians is not on his agenda. 

Pence also said he found "deeply offensive" the criticisms lodged against Indiana and its residents after the passage of 
the law last week. He blamed the national media and critics partly for those perceptions and any damage that may have 
done to the state's reputation. 

"We want to make it clear that Hoosier Hospitality is not a slogan, it's our way of life," he said. 

"Hoosiers are a loving, kind, generous, decent and kind people," Pence said. 



Pence said he will work with the Indiana legislature this week to make the changes he is seeking to the RFRA law. 

"We will fix this and we will move forward," he said. 

Since Pence signed the law on Thursday, he has faced a barrage of criticism from top business executives, celebrities and 
civil rights groups who fear the law would allow discrimination against gays and lesbians. He attempted to "clarify" the 
law on national television Sunday, but was widely derided for repeatedly refusing to answer a yes-or-no question 
regarding whether the law would allow discrimination against gays and lesbians. 

Pence acknowledged Tuesday that he had done not a good job of explaining the law. 

Supporters have said the law is necessary to protect religious freedoms from government intrusion. Opponents say it 
will give businesses the right to deny services to customers on religious grounds. 

Star reporters Tony Cook and Tom LoBianco contributed to this story. 

This story will be updated. 

 
---------------------------------- 
 
NATIONAL 
 
Indiana Gov. Mike Pence Says Religious Freedom Law Doesn't OK Discrimination 

NBC News 

Gov. Mike Pence of Indiana said on Tuesday that he hopes to sign legislation by the end of this week making it clear that 
his state's controversial religious freedom law does not give businesses the right to deny service to anyone. 

Pence, a Republican, said that it was a "smear" to suggest that the law, as written, justifies discrimination. 

"Had this law been about legalizing discrimination, I would have vetoed it," he told reporters in Indianapolis. 

But he cited the "harsh glare" of national criticism of the law, which opponents say could be used to justify anti-gay 
discrimination. That outcry has included objections from the NCAA, corporate leaders and other public figures. 

Asked whether he would support a state law barring discrimination outright against gays, the governor said: "I've never 
supported that. I want to be clear. It's not on my agenda. But I think it's a completely separate question." 

Republicans who control the state Legislature said on Monday that they would work quickly to clarify the law, and they 
insisted that it was not meant to sanction discrimination. 

Those Republicans said they were motivated in part by Pence's performance Sunday on the ABC program "This Week." 
He sidestepped repeated questions about whether the law legalized discrimination against gays in Indiana. 

Pence published an Op-Ed in The Wall Street Journal on Tuesday saying that the law is not a license to discriminate. 

"If I saw a restaurant owner refuse to serve a gay couple, I wouldn't eat there anymore," he wrote. 

----------------- 



 
Gov. Mike Pence continues to defend religious freedom law 
MSNBC – Michele Richinick 

The controversial “religious freedom law” that Indiana’s Republican Gov. Mike Pence passed last week is not 

discriminatory, he said Tuesday morning during a press conference. But, after a week of criticism for passing the 

measure, the governor thinks it would be helpful to clarify the measure. 

“I want to clarify in the law that it doesn’t give businesses the right to deny services to anyone,” he said. 

“This law does not give anyone a license to discriminate,” he added. “It is simply a balancing test used by our federal 

courts and jurisdictions across the country.” 

COLUMN: George Takei: Boycott Indiana 

He asked for the General Assembly to present clarified legislation to him by Friday. 

“We need to focus on this perception that this creates some license to discriminate, and that’s what I’m calling on the 

Legislature to do,” he said, adding that the measure has been “grossly miscategorized by advocates that oppose the bill” 

and “sloppy reporting” in the national media. 

“This law has been smeared,” he said. 

Pence reportedly privately signed the contended bill last Thursday, surrounded by a group of anti-LGBT activists. He 

signed the measure amid intense criticism from residents, convention customers, tech leaders, and celebrities. The new 

law will prohibit a governmental entity from substantially burdening a person’s religious beliefs, unless that entity can 

prove it’s relying on the least restrictive means possible to further a compelling governmental interest. The bill was 

modeled off of the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act (RFRA), which gained notoriety in the U.S. Supreme 

Court’s controversial Hobby Lobby ruling last year. 

After signing the bill last week, Pence said he approved the legislation because he supports “the freedom of religion for 

every Hoosier of every faith.” 

The law, he said on Tuesday, doesn’t give businesses the right to deny services to anyone. Rather, the intent “was to give 

the courts in our state the highest level of scrutiny in cases where people feel that their religious liberty is being 

infringed upon by government action,” he added. 

Opponents warn the measure will sanction discrimination against LGBT people on religious grounds and cost the Hoosier 

State millions in tourism revenue. The bill has reverberated throughout the country. The mayors of Seattle and San 

Francisco have all but barred the use of public funds to travel to Indiana. The CEO of Angie’s List, an online concierge to 

find companies to perform various household maintenance, has halted a planned expansion to its campus in 

Indianapolis. 



Connecticut Gov. Dannel Malloy signed an executive order on Monday to ban state-backed travel to Indiana. 

“The reality is, the governor’s not a stupid man, but he’s done stupid things. Signing this law, and quite frankly 

promoting this law knowing exactly what it was going to do, was an incredibly stupid thing for him to do,” Malloy said 

Tuesday on “Morning Joe.” 

Democratic Rep. Greg Porter of Indiana on Tuesday said the law brings back images of people being denied service at 

local restaurants because of their skin color. 

“These are sad times in the state of Indiana. At a time when we should be looking forward, we find our leaders 

determined to take us back to a time when discrimination was the order of the day,” he said. 

Ex-NBA stars have put pressure on the NCAA to remove Indiana from the Final Four March Madness games. The NCAA 

final four basketball games are scheduled to be played in the shadow of the increasingly contentious civil rights fight. 

Earlier on Tuesday, Fox News asked Pence if the law is discriminatory. 

“It’s not. I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act last week because I support religious liberty,” he said during 

the interview. “Really, the Religious Freedom Restoration Act is simply a framework for courts to balance the various 

interests of citizens in a way that respects our nation’s strong and longstanding commitment to the importance of 

religious liberty.” 

RELATED: GOP presidential hopefuls line up to support ‘religious freedom’ law 

The Indianapolis Star newspaper published an editorial late Monday calling on Pence to address the backlash. “We urge 

Gov. Pence and lawmakers to stop clinging to arguments about whether RFRA really does what critics fear; to stop 

clinging to ideology or personal preferences; to focus instead on fixing this. Governor, Indiana is in a state of crisis. It is 

worse than you seem to understand. You must act with courage and wisdom. You must lead us forward now. You must 

ensure that all Hoosiers have strong protections against discrimination.” 

“There is no license to discriminate in this law,” he told Fox on Tuesday. “For my part, I abhor discrimination, like every 

other Hoosier. I don’t think anyone should ever be mistreated because of who they are or who they love.” 

Indiana House Speaker Brian Bosma told msnbc’s Jose Diaz-Balart earlier on Tuesday morning that his state doesn’t 

discriminate. 

“We’re simply going to fix the bill,” he said. “[The bill] doesn’t allow discrimination… mischaracterization has taken 

hold.” 

Emma Margolin contributed to this report. 

----------------------------------- 
Mike Pence Says Criticism of Indiana's Law Is a 'Smear.' But He'll 'Clarify' It Anyway. 



National Journal – Nora Kelly 
 
March 31, 2015 "It's been a tough week here in the Hoosier state." 
Indiana Gov. Mike Pence—the target of much public criticism for his signing of Indiana's new "religious freedom" law—
opened his press conference Tuesday morning with a meditation on how hurt his state has been by the 
"mischaracterization" of the new law, and how he hopes Indiana legislators will correct the record with amendments. 

"I am calling on the General Assembly to send me a bill that focuses on the issue here—that focuses on the smear that's 
been leveled against the law and against the people of Indiana," Pence said. "And that is that, somehow through our 
legislative process, we enacted legislation that created a license to discriminate." 

It's been less than one week since the Republican governor signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, which 
supporters say protects people, businesses, and organizations from being forced to act against their religious beliefs. But 
local and national opponents of the law claim the language tacitly permits discrimination of LGBT individuals on religious 
grounds. 

"I don't support discrimination against gays or lesbians or anyone else. I abhor discrimination. I want to say this: No one 
should be harassed or mistreated because of who they are, what they love, or what they believe," Pence said Tuesday. "I 
believe it with all my heart." 

Pence, saying that he represents the tolerance of Hoosiers, praised Martin Luther King Jr. and talked about how proud 
he was to walk with Rep. John Lewis across the Edmund Pettus Bridge in Selma on the 45th anniversary of Bloody 
Sunday. "This issue of discrimination has been an anthem through my life," he said. 

Indiana state legislators said this week they'll seek to "clarify" that the law doesn't allow discrimination. Pence said 
additional legislation now being worked through by state lawmakers will correct the "perception problem" surrounding 
the law. 

"It would be helpful to move legislation this week to clarify that this doesn't give businesses the right to deny services to 
anyone," Pence said, including gays and lesbians. 

The specific language of the changes, Pence said, is still being worked out. 

When asked if his state should introduce legislation that would specifically protect people from discrimination due to 
sexual orientation, Pence said he's never supported that idea, and he feels it's a completely separate issue from the 
debate over the new law. 

Pence made connections between his state's law and religious freedom laws at the federal level and in 30 other 
jurisdictions across the country. Though Pence treated the laws as equals, there are key differences between Indiana's 
law and some of the others. For one,, the Indiana law places for-profit businesses on par with individuals and other 
organizations as having a right to express their religious convictions. For another, the statute can be used as protection 
against a lawsuit brought by a private citizen, not just one brought by the government. 

"I thought it was an appropriate addition to Indiana's statutes," Pence said, describing how the bill moved through the 
legislative process with little controversy until last week. 



Pence blamed the public outcry on misinterpretation of the law and "sloppy reporting" by the national media, especially 
in the controversy's early days. 

Which isn't to say that his state media was particularly friendly: On Tuesday, The Indianapolis Star ran a front-
page editorial calling on Pence and the legislature to "Fix This Now." 
 
The governor published an op-ed Tuesday in The Wall Street Journal describing how the intent of the legislation was 
make sure religious freedom is respected in Indiana and to "apply the highest level of scrutiny to any state or local 
governmental action that infringes on people's religious liberty." 
 
Echoing comments he made Tuesday morning on Fox & Friends, Pence said at the press conference that he doesn't 
regret signing the bill. 
"I was pleased to have signed it, and I stand by the law," Pence said.  
 
------------------------------------------ 
 
Pence defends Indiana law, says state will ‘fix’ religious bill to say it will not allow discrimination 
Washington Post – Mark Berman 
 

Indiana Gov. Mike Pence (R) vowed Tuesday morning that the state would alter a religious liberties bill that has drawn 

widespread criticism, even as he defended the law and insisted it was being unfairly portrayed in the media. 

Pence urged lawmakers to pass legislation making it clear “that this law does not give businesses the right to deny 

services to anyone.” 

“We need to focus specifically on this perception that this creates some license to discriminate,” he said at a news 

conference in Indianapolis. 

The change is a “clarification, but it’s also a fix,” Pence said of the update he hopes to see in the bill, which has been 

pilloried as anti-gay and has prompted business leaders and organizations across the country to question the law. 

While Pence promised that the bill would be updated, he did not support a repeal of the legislation, nor did he say that 

language would be added explicitly protecting gay or transgender people. He also spent a significant portion of the news 

conference defending the bill and criticizing the media, insisting that the current legislation did not allow for 

discrimination. 

“This law has been smeared,” he said. 



Rather than saying that the bill would be changed because it was problematic, he instead said that Indiana had to act 

because the state now has a “perception problem.” 

The bill has been heavily criticized by business leaders like Tim Cook, chief executive of Apple, as well as the NCAA, the 

powerful collegiate sports organization that is headquartered in Indianapolis and is having the men’s basketball Final 

Four there this weekend. Mark Emmert, president of the NCAA, said Monday that if the law was not changed, the 

organization could reconsider whether to host future events in the state. 

“People don’t want this,” Adam Talbot of the Human Rights Campaign said Monday of this legislation and a similar 

bill being considered in Arkansas. “People don’t need this. People think it’s dangerous.” 

Nine chief executives of Indiana companies signed a letter Monday calling on Pence to update the law, saying that they 

were concerned about “the impact it is having on our employees and on the reputation of our state.” 

The Indianapolis Star, in an editorial that ran on the front page of Tuesday’s newspaper, said that the law “has already 

done enormous harm to our state and potentially our economic future.” 

Pence said he was proud to sign the act last week and stood by it, saying that the law is “about religious liberty, not 

about discrimination.” 

“This legislation was designed to ensure the vitality of religious liberty in the Hoosier state,” he said. He added: “This law 

does not give anyone a license to discriminate.” 

Still, Pence admitted Tuesday that he was “taken aback” by the way the story erupted into a national firestorm, pointing 

to similar (but different) laws that had been passed across the country and by then-President Bill Clinton in 1993. 

“Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no,” he said. 

As he has in recent days, Pence lashed out at what he called “sloppy” media reporting that he said mischaracterized the 

bill, decrying what he called a perception that the bill allows for discrimination. He called this “baseless,” but he also said 

that the state needs to make it clear that businesses will not be allowed to deny services. 

“Early on, there was some really reckless and irresponsible reporting about this,” he said, adding later: “The 

perception of this has, you know, gone far afield from what the law really is.” 



A day earlier, Indiana House Speaker Brian Bosma (R) said the legislature could act as soon as this week to “clarify” the 

state’s new Religious Freedom Restoration Act, which grants individuals and businesses legal grounds to defend 

themselves against claims of discrimination. The fix, Bosma said, would make clear that the law does not allow people to 

discriminate against gays, as critics contend. 

“It’s been a tough week for the Hoosier state, but we’re going to move forward,” Pence said Tuesday. 

Pence said he had spoken to business leaders and organizations about the bill, though he did not go into detail about 

what these conversations had entailed. “Clearly, there’s been misunderstanding and confusion and mischaracterization 

of this law,” he said. 

----------------------------------- 
 
 
Mike Pence: 'Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no.' 
CNN – Eric Bradner & Jeremy Diamond 
 
(CNN)Gov. Mike Pence pledged Tuesday to "fix" Indiana's controversial religious freedom law to clarify that it does not 
allow discrimination against gays and lesbians. 

But he insisted the problem isn't the law itself but how it's being perceived, saying a fix is needed only because of 
"frankly, the smear that's been leveled against this law." And he said the fix won't involve statewide anti-discrimination 
protections for LGBT Hoosiers. 

The first-term Republican governor sought to tamp down the backlash Indiana has faced since he signed the law -- which 
its in-state supporters had claimed would allow businesses to turn away LGBT customers -- last week. He said he's asking 
state lawmakers to send him a followup measure before this week's end to ensure that's not the case. 

"It would be helpful to move legislation this week that makes it clear that this law does not give businesses a right to 
deny services to anyone," Pence said in a press conference in Indianapolis on Tuesday. 

Pence's comments come amid intense criticism from major corporations like Apple, Walmart and tech giant Salesforce 
against Indiana's law and similar measures advancing in at least a dozen other states this year. The NCAA, which is set to 
host its men's basketball Final Four in Indianapolis, has said it could move events elsewhere in the future. 

Republican contenders for the party's 2016 presidential nomination, meanwhile, have rallied to Pence's defense. Jeb 
Bush, Marco Rubio, Ted Cruz and several other likely candidates said Monday evening that they support religious 
freedom laws. 

The debate touched a raw nerve in Indiana, which is just a year away from an emotional battle over a Republican-driven 
proposal to amend the state's constitution to ban same-sex marriage. 

Just months before the Supreme Court is set to rule on whether same-sex marriage is legal everywhere in the United 
States, the religious freedom debate has offered a look at the next front in America's culture clashes -- and the cross-
currents facing the Republican Party, with social conservatives seeing religious freedom laws as sturdier ground and the 
typically pro-GOP business community and younger voters seeing those measures as veiled efforts at discrimination. 

"Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no," Pence admitted Tuesday. 



He'd waffled in recent days over whether or not he would support a legislative fix to the law before finally announcing 
that he wanted one -- but he didn't say what that fix would be. 

Potentially complicating his effort to quell the criticism, Pence said he opposes adding sexual orientation to the list of 
Indiana's protected categories under state anti-discrimination law. 

Democrats who'd seen their proposals to do just that rejected by the legislature in recent months said only a solution 
along those lines would suffice. 

"You have to take affirmative action -- you can't just tinker with this language," state Senate Democratic leader Tim 
Lanane said. 

Pence's statement came a day after Indiana's top state legislators announced they were working on a legislative fix to 
clarify the intent of the law and following an intense backlash against the law, especially from the business community in 
Indiana and across the country. 

Pence and other Indiana Republicans have repeatedly insisted that the law was never intended to allow discrimination 
against anyone and have charged that, even in its current form, the law could not be used as a legal defense to 
discriminate against someone on the basis of sexual orientation. 

Instead, Pence and his GOP allies have accused the media and opponents of the law of mischaracterizing the law and 
spreading misinformation. But opposition to the law was swift and broad-sweeping, with large organizations and top 
companies ranging from the NCAA to Apple and Salesforce raising red flags over the law. 

The state's House speaker, Brian Bosma, said he "didn't see that [reaction] coming" in the Monday press conference 
announcing work on a legislative fix. 

RELATED: Indiana law reveals GOP's challenge 

Pence, the Indiana Republican who has been floated as a potential 2016 presidential candidate, again repeated that he 
is unflinchingly opposed to discrimination. 

He also noted that he joined civil rights icon Rep. John Lewis in a march across the Edmund Pettus Bridge to 
commemorate the anniversary of Bloody Sunday, when hundreds of activists fighting for civil rights for African-
Americans were brutally assaulted by police officers. 

Pence did get some beefy backup from the field of potential 2016 presidential contenders as former Gov. Jeb Bush, Sen. 
Marco Rubio, Gov. Bobby Jindal and others, including the only declared 2016 presidential candidate Sen. Ted Cruz, 
rushing to defend the Indiana law. 

 
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

INDIANAPOLIS | Gov. Mike Pence requested Tuesday that the General Assembly send him legislation by
the end of the week clarifying that Indiana's "religious freedom" law is not discriminatory.

At the same time, the Republican said he still does not support adding sexual orientation as a protected
class under Indiana's civil rights laws, and he rejected calls to repeal Senate Enrolled Act 101, also known
as the Religious Freedom Restoration Act.

"This law does not give anyone a license to deny services to gay and lesbian couples," Pence said. "This
law does not give anyone a license to discriminate."

Pence said he worked late into the night Monday with leaders of the Republican-controlled House and
Senate crafting language they hope will fix what he described as "smears" against Indiana coming from
national media and Internet commenters.

"The gross mischaracterizations about this bill early on, and some of the reckless reporting by some in
the media about what this bill is all about, was deeply disappointing to me," Pence said.

"If I read some of that stuff about this bill, I would have had the same concerns that millions of Hoosiers
have had and millions across the country."

But, Pence insisted, the new law -- which is similar to statutes in 19 other states, including Illinois, and
the 1993 federal "religious freedom" law -- simply sets the standard Indiana courts must use in
determining whether government action infringes on religious liberty.

"I don't believe for a minute that it was the intention of the General Assembly to create a license to
discriminate or a right to deny services to gays, lesbians or anyone else in the state," Pence said. "And
that certainly wasn't my intent."

Pence emphasized that he "abhors" discrimination of every kind, and mentioned civil rights leaders
Martin Luther King, Jr. and U.S. Rep. John Lewis, R-Ga., are among his heroes.

"No one should be harassed or mistreated because of who they are, who they love or what they do,"
Pence said. "I believe that with all my heart."

Legislative leaders have yet to detail the specifics of any plan to clarify the law, or when the House and
Senate might act on it.

No "religious freedom" fix was debated or voted on Tuesday.



The General Assembly next meets Thursday, but lawmakers then leave town until April 7 due to the
NCAA Final Four men's basketball tournament taking over their Indianapolis hotel rooms. The
Legislature adjourns for the year April 29.

Pence said he does not believe the fix requires adding sexual orientation to Indiana's civil rights laws --
which would bar discrimination against gays in hiring, housing and other matters, in addition to public
accommodations -- but refused to say that he would veto such a proposal if it made it to his desk.

"I've never supported that, and I want to be clear -- it's not on my agenda," Pence said. "But I do believe
moving legislation this week that would make it clear this law does not give businesses a right to deny
services to anyone would be appropriate."

Democratic leaders proclaimed only repeal of the "religious freedom" statute and passage of a law
explicitly protecting gays from all forms of discrimination can undo the worldwide damage to Indiana's
reputation.

"If the state of Indiana does not believe in discrimination, then let's put it in law and make a statement,"
said Senate Democratic Leader Tim Lanane, D-Anderson.

House Democratic Leader Scott Pelath, D-Michigan City, suggested Pence perhaps doesn't yet realize
how truly horrible the reaction to the law has been for the state, especially since the governor is
blaming the media instead of accepting that most Hoosiers don't share his 1950s vision for Indiana.

Pelath added that leaders of major corporations, such as Apple which has condemned the law, don't
take their cues from the nightly news.

"I don't like running into my friends from Michigan and my friends from Illinois and the first thing out of
their mouths is, "What are you doing in Indiana?'" Pelath said. "We have a national and international
problem that requires a bold response in reaction to a major mistake."

There is precedent for the Democrats' proposal. Illinois revised its 1998 "religious freedom" law in 2013
to add civil rights protections for gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender residents.

-----------------------



Pence wants General Assembly to move this week to clarify “religious freedom” law
Evansville Courier & Press

INDIANAPOLIS - Gov. Mike Pence is calling on the General Assembly to send him a fix this week for the

state’s controversial “religious freedom” law that would make it clear the law does not give businesses

the right to deny services to anyone.

“We want to make it clear that Indiana is open for business,” Pence said at a Tuesday press conference

where the Republican governor offered insight into how he wants the law clarified.

As of Tuesday afternoon, proposed language by Republican legislative leadership to clarify the state’s

Religious Freedom Restoration Act was still in the works. The law has become a topic of mounting

criticism nationwide over fears it could be used to discriminate against gays and lesbians.

House Speaker Brian Bosma said lawmakers are working with the corporate and sports communities on

language and said it’s the goal to send Pence a clarification by week’s end.

“We have to have consensus on language,” said Bosma, noting the proposal has to go through a lot of

hands.

Lawmakers also are exploring adding a preamble to give context as well.

“I think we all want to bring the misconception that now appears to be nearly factual nationally to a

prompt close,” Bosma said, “and we’re united on that. I think the approach we’re still discussing.”

On Monday, Bosma said talk has centered on clarifying that the state’s new law can’t be used to deny

services, facilities or goods to any member of the public.

Meanwhile, Democrats continued calls for the law’s repeal following Pence’s press conference.

Senate Democratic Leader Tim Lanane said he was disappointed by Pence’s reaction. Democrats also

have called for adding protections for sexual orientation and gender identity to the state’s Civil Rights

Law.



“What has happened here this situation created by this bill has gone from beyond just being about the

bill and about whether or not the bill has a license to discriminate to the very question does Indiana

discriminate,” Lanane said. “We know Indiana, the people of Indiana do not discriminate we need to put

that into law – we need to make a bold statement.”

Pence acknowledged the week had been tough as Indiana came under the “harsh glare” of criticism

from around the country, but said the state was going to “move forward.”

Pence said he would have vetoed the bill if he felt it would have legalized discrimination and that the

law had been “grossly mischaracterized.”

“This law does not give anyone a license to deny services to gay or lesbian couples,” Pence said.

When asked if he’d support sexual orientation being a protected class in the state, Pence said he’s never

supported that addition.

“It’s not on my agenda, but I think it’s a completely separate question,” Pence said.

Movement to clarify the law comes after Indiana has faced intense scrutiny over its passage.

Organizations, including the NCAA, said the law could cause them to rethink holding events in Indiana in

the future. Several mayors and governors from across the country have canceled publicly-funded travel

to the state, and university and business officials expressed concern about the harm they believe the

law has caused to the state’s reputation.

The law is a state-level version of the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act, passed by Congress

and signed into law by U.S. President Bill Clinton in 1993. Supporters say the law will better protect

Hoosiers in state court if government intrudes on their ability to exercise their religion by adopting a

judicial standard like the federal law. But opponents argue it could lead to Hoosiers denying services to

others, especially gays and lesbians, on the basis of Indiana having such a law.

The law asserts a person’s right to practice their religion without a substantial burden by government. It

also requires government to demonstrate a compelling interest to restrict religious expression.



Critics say Indiana’s version is broader than comparable laws.

Proponents of the law say Indiana is adopting protections for “religious freedom” that have been on the

federal books for more than 20 years and what some 30 other states have either by law or court

decision.

However, White House Press Secretary Josh Earnest said Pence has “tried to falsely suggest” that the

law is the same as the federal version, but he noted the law applies not just to individuals but businesses

such as a partnership, a limited liability company and a corporation. Earnest said the law also applies to

private transactions.

“So, this obviously is a significant expansion of the laws – of the law in terms of the way that it would

apply. It leaves open the question what sort of religious views a joint stock company may hold, but that

may be something for lawyers to ponder,” Earnest said.

----------------------------------
Pence Seeks RFRA Followup Making Clear Indiana Does Not Discriminate
WIBC – Eric Berman

Governor wants bill by end of week, but legislative calendar an obstacle.
Governor Pence is calling on legislators to pass a clarification to Indiana's new Religious Freedom
Restoration Act by the end of the week.

Pence echoed legislative leaders in declaring the controversial law does not and should not allow
discrimination or denial of service, to gays and lesbians or anyone else. And he conceded he should have
said so when asked Sunday in an appearance on ABC's "This Week" -- he says he was focused at the time
on "setting the record straight" about what the law does do.

As he has since signing the law last week, Pence criticized "reckless" mischaracterization of the law by
opponents and national media as a license to discriminate. The governor calls that a "smear" against the
state, but says the perception of discrimination requires a legislative fix.

It's not only opponents who have contended the law would allow businesses to turn away gays and
lesbians. The conservative group Advance America, which led the push for the law, celebrated the bill's
signing on its website and in emails by proclaiming it would do exactly that. Pence declined to criticize
the group directly, but repeatedly declared in a news conference that Indiana will not tolerate
discrimination.

Pence wants a follow-up bill explicitly prohibiting denial of service or other discrimination. But he says
he and legislators are still working on specific wording. And he notes it's ultimately up to the courts to
balance state interests against religious beliefs, on a case-by-case basis. He says the law, like the 1993



federal version and similar laws in 19 other states, is designed to give judges guidance on the legal test
that applies. The law prohibits "substantially burdening" religious beliefs unless the government can
show a "compelling state interest" to do so.

Pence repeated earlier declarations to national media that he "abhors" discrimination. He recalled
crossing Selma's Edmund Pettus Bridge as a congressman in 2010 alongside Georgia Representative
John Lewis, who was badly beaten during the original Selma protest march 45 years earlier.

House and Senate Democrats' leaders say they agree with Pence that Indiana does not discriminate. But
Senate Minority Leader Tim Lanane contends merely saying so is no longer good enough. Democrats say
only a full repeal of the law can restore Indiana's reputation.

House Minority Leader Scott Pelath charges Pence has recognized political peril to his governorship and
Republican legislative majorities, but hasn't fully grasped the potential damage to the state. He says the
governor "has moved from denial to bargaining."

Gay-rights groups, including Freedom Indiana and Lambda Legal, have called for an anti-discrimination
statement similar to what Pence and Republican leaders have indicated, but coupled with the addition
of sexual orientation to protected classes under Indiana civil rights law. Pence says that's a separate
issue, and "not on (his) agenda."

The governor also won't say whether the followup bill will clarify the status of local ordinances in
Indianapolis and other cities which offer such protections. Opponents charge the RFRA law overrides
those ordinances, while supporters say they're misreading the law. Pence says his sole focus is on
making clear that discrimination won't be tolerated.

Pelath and Lanane endorse the call to add gays and lesbians to the civil rights law, but they say it should
be in addition to repeal of RFRA, not instead of. Lanane says Democrats would "take a look at" the
proposal. But he says he has doubts about the religious-freedom bill even if protections for gays and
lesbians were ironclad. He questions whether the law and its federal and state counterparts adequately
define what constitutes religious belief. And he objects to Indiana's inclusion of protections for
businesses, along the lines of last year's Hobby Lobby decision from the Supreme Court.

With the wording of the followup bill still undetermined, Pence's goal of passing a fix by the end of the
week appears unlikely. Legislators' only remaining session day this week is Thursday -- it would require a
two-thirds vote in both houses to suspend normal procedures and pass the bill in a single day. Calling
the House and Senate into session Wednesday would conflict with committee hearings on other bills.
And legislators had already announced a four-day Easter weekend, because out-of-town legislators are
losing their hotel rooms to Final Four visitors.

Pelath and Lanane say unless Republicans change their mind and endorse repeal, the process shouldn't
be rushed. Pelath says the followup bill needs careful review to ensure it doesn't have to be fixed a
second time.

----------------------------



White House disputes Pence’s description of RFRA

Maureen Groppe

WASHINGTON – White House spokesman Josh Earnest on Tuesday disputed Gov. Mike Pence's claim
that Indiana's controversial new law protecting religious freedom is similar to the federal protections
signed into law by President Bill Clinton more than two decades ago.

Both laws say there has to be a compelling government interest to burden someone's guarantee under
the First Amendment to freely exercise his or her religion.

But Earnest said that while the 1993 law was an effort to protect religious minorities from actions taken
by the federal government, Indiana's law is much broader.

Indiana allows the law to be invoked in disputes between private parties, instead of only those involving
a government entity. And it applies to more types of businesses than just the family-owned companies
the Supreme Court recently ruled are covered under the federal version.

"Which means that this is a much more open-ended piece of legislation that could reasonably be used to
try to justify discriminating against somebody because of who they love," Earnest said in his daily
briefing with reporters.

Pence has said the law was not intended to allow businesses to discriminate against gays and lesbians in
providing services. But some backers of the bill have said it's needed to protect businesses that don't
want to provide services such as photography or flowers for wedding ceremonies of same-sex couples.

Pence on Tuesday called on lawmakers to pass legislation clarifying the law, but it's still unclear how it
would be changed.

Earnest said the public outcry in response to the law "is indicative of how this piece of legislation flies in
the face of the kinds of values that people all across the country strongly support."

------------------------------
Pence wants changes to religious freedom law
FW Journal Gazette

INDIANAPOLIS -- Gov. Mike Pence said Tuesday lawmakers need to send him a fix to the controversial
religious freedom law by the end of the week to address a misperception that is damaging Indiana.

"We will fix this and we will move forward. That's what Hoosiers do," he told a throng of state and
national media. "I don't support discrimination against gays or lesbians or anyone else."

He stood behind signing the law last week but said it needs to be clear that it can't be used to deny
services to anyone.



The language under consideration would say a person or business cannot use Indiana's religious
freedom act as a defense for denying services, goods or facilities to anyone. But that would not provide
protection against discrimination based on employment and housing.

A key advocate of the bill, meanwhile, sent an email to supporters warning of attempts to alter the law,
which takes effect July 1.

"Because of this deluge of intolerance against Hoosiers of all faiths by liberal elites from outside our
borders, Indiana House and Senate members are under intense pressure to water down and even roll
back these 1st Amendment protections before the ink can even dry on the new law," the Indiana Family
Institute said.

Senate Bill 101 provides a legal framework for judges to use when deciding conflicts between religious
liberty and government regulation.
Indiana doesn't have statewide protections for gays and lesbians, but a handful of cities have local
human rights ordinances that prohibit discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation in housing,
employment and public accommodations. Many feel the new law would supersede those ordinances.

---------------------

Indiana Democrats repeat call for RFRA repeal
Indystar – Tony Cook

Indiana's Democrats on Tuesday said Republican Gov. Mike Pence has to take quick action and ditch the
"religious freedom" law to undo the damage the measure has caused to the state's reputation.

House Minority Leader Scott Pelath, D-Michigan City, said at a news conference that the remedy has to
be clear, decisive and understandable and the fastest way to do that is to repeal the law. He said to push
for anything less than a repeal would be incorrect.

Sen. Tim Lanane, D-Anderson, said the reaction over the law has mushroomed, going from does the law
discriminate to does Indiana discriminate?

Instead of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, Lanane, the Senate Minority Leader, said that because
of the backlash, the state now needs an "Indiana Reputation Restoration Act."

Lanane also said the state should take the opportunity now to make it illegal to discriminate based on
sexual orientation. Adding such protections would be an acceptable compromise, he said.

The Democrats made their remarks in response to Pence's news conference Tuesday where he said he
wanted a quick amendment to RFRA to make it clear that the law does not discriminate and that
businesses should not be allowed to deny services to anyone.



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

Embattled Indiana Gov. Mike Pence attempted again Tuesday morning to "clarify" the state's
controversial new "religious freedom" law.

Pence said it has been a tough week and said "we've got a perception problem" that needs to be fixed.

Pence said he concluded that it is necessary to move legislation to amend the law to make it clear that it
does not give businesses the right to deny services to anyone. He said he wanted legislation on his desk
by the end of the week to accomplish that.

The governor also said:

-- There's been misunderstanding and confusion and mischaracterization about the potential impact of
the Religious Freedom Restoration Act.

-- This legislation was intended to ensure the vitality of religious liberty in this state.

-- He has been working around the clock, talking to people around the state and nation, and "we've
been listening."

He stressed that RFRA was about "religious liberty, not discrimination" and emphasized that the law
does not give anyone the right to turn away customers on religious grounds.

"This law does not give anyone the right to discriminate...This law does not give anyone the right to
deny services," he said.

When asked whether Christian businesses should be compelled to supply services to gay and lesbian
weddings, Pence answered: "I don't support discrimination against anyone."

"I don't support discrimination against gays and lesbians or anyone else. I abhor discrimination."

However, Pence again said that adding protections for gays and lesbians is not on his agenda.

Pence also said he found "deeply offensive" the criticisms lodged against Indiana and its residents after
the passage of the law last week. He blamed the national media and critics partly for those perceptions
and any damage that may have done to the state's reputation.

"We want to make it clear that Hoosier Hospitality is not a slogan, it's our way of life," he said.



"Hoosiers are a loving, kind, generous, decent and kind people," Pence said.

Pence said he will work with the Indiana legislature this week to make the changes he is seeking to the
RFRA law.

"We will fix this and we will move forward," he said.

Since Pence signed the law on Thursday, he has faced a barrage of criticism from top business
executives, celebrities and civil rights groups who fear the law would allow discrimination against gays
and lesbians. He attempted to "clarify" the law on national television Sunday, but was widely derided for
repeatedly refusing to answer a yes-or-no question regarding whether the law would allow
discrimination against gays and lesbians.

Pence acknowledged Tuesday that he had done not a good job of explaining the law.

Supporters have said the law is necessary to protect religious freedoms from government intrusion.
Opponents say it will give businesses the right to deny services to customers on religious grounds.

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

Gov. Mike Pence of Indiana said on Tuesday that he hopes to sign legislation by the end of this week
making it clear that his state's controversial religious freedom law does not give businesses the right to
deny service to anyone.

Pence, a Republican, said that it was a "smear" to suggest that the law, as written, justifies
discrimination.

"Had this law been about legalizing discrimination, I would have vetoed it," he told reporters in
Indianapolis.

But he cited the "harsh glare" of national criticism of the law, which opponents say could be used to
justify anti-gay discrimination. That outcry has included objections from the NCAA, corporate leaders
and other public figures.



Asked whether he would support a state law barring discrimination outright against gays, the governor
said: "I've never supported that. I want to be clear. It's not on my agenda. But I think it's a completely
separate question."

Republicans who control the state Legislature said on Monday that they would work quickly to clarify
the law, and they insisted that it was not meant to sanction discrimination.

Those Republicans said they were motivated in part by Pence's performance Sunday on the ABC
program "This Week." He sidestepped repeated questions about whether the law legalized
discrimination against gays in Indiana.

Pence published an Op-Ed in The Wall Street Journal on Tuesday saying that the law is not a license to
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

The controversial “religious freedom law” that Indiana’s Republican Gov. Mike Pence passed last week is

not discriminatory, he said Tuesday morning during a press conference. But, after a week of criticism for

passing the measure, the governor thinks it would be helpful to clarify the measure.

“I want to clarify in the law that it doesn’t give businesses the right to deny services to anyone,” he said.

“This law does not give anyone a license to discriminate,” he added. “It is simply a balancing test used by

our federal courts and jurisdictions across the country.”

COLUMN: George Takei: Boycott Indiana

He asked for the General Assembly to present clarified legislation to him by Friday.

“We need to focus on this perception that this creates some license to discriminate, and that’s what I’m

calling on the Legislature to do,” he said, adding that the measure has been “grossly miscategorized by

advocates that oppose the bill” and “sloppy reporting” in the national media.

“This law has been smeared,” he said.

Pence reportedly privately signed the contended bill last Thursday, surrounded by a group of anti-LGBT

activists. He signed the measure amid intense criticism from residents, convention customers, tech



leaders, and celebrities. The new law will prohibit a governmental entity from substantially burdening a

person’s religious beliefs, unless that entity can prove it’s relying on the least restrictive means possible

to further a compelling governmental interest. The bill was modeled off of the federal Religious

Freedom Restoration Act (RFRA), which gained notoriety in the U.S. Supreme Court’s

controversial Hobby Lobby ruling last year.

After signing the bill last week, Pence said he approved the legislation because he supports “the

freedom of religion for every Hoosier of every faith.”

The law, he said on Tuesday, doesn’t give businesses the right to deny services to anyone. Rather, the

intent “was to give the courts in our state the highest level of scrutiny in cases where people feel that

their religious liberty is being infringed upon by government action,” he added.

Opponents warn the measure will sanction discrimination against LGBT people on religious grounds and

cost the Hoosier State millions in tourism revenue. The bill has reverberated throughout the country.

The mayors of Seattle and San Francisco have all but barred the use of public funds to travel to Indiana.

The CEO of Angie’s List, an online concierge to find companies to perform various household

maintenance, has halted a planned expansion to its campus in Indianapolis.

Connecticut Gov. Dannel Malloy signed an executive order on Monday to ban state-backed travel to

Indiana.

“The reality is, the governor’s not a stupid man, but he’s done stupid things. Signing this law, and quite

frankly promoting this law knowing exactly what it was going to do, was an incredibly stupid thing for

him to do,” Malloy said Tuesday on “Morning Joe.”

Democratic Rep. Greg Porter of Indiana on Tuesday said the law brings back images of people being

denied service at local restaurants because of their skin color.

“These are sad times in the state of Indiana. At a time when we should be looking forward, we find our

leaders determined to take us back to a time when discrimination was the order of the day,” he said.

Ex-NBA stars have put pressure on the NCAA to remove Indiana from the Final Four March Madness

games. The NCAA final four basketball games are scheduled to be played in the shadow of the

increasingly contentious civil rights fight.

Earlier on Tuesday, Fox News asked Pence if the law is discriminatory.



“It’s not. I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act last week because I support religious liberty,”

he said during the interview. “Really, the Religious Freedom Restoration Act is simply a framework for

courts to balance the various interests of citizens in a way that respects our nation’s strong and

longstanding commitment to the importance of religious liberty.”

RELATED: GOP presidential hopefuls line up to support ‘religious freedom’ law

The Indianapolis Star newspaper published an editorial late Monday calling on Pence to address the

backlash. “We urge Gov. Pence and lawmakers to stop clinging to arguments about whether RFRA really

does what critics fear; to stop clinging to ideology or personal preferences; to focus instead on fixing

this. Governor, Indiana is in a state of crisis. It is worse than you seem to understand. You must act with

courage and wisdom. You must lead us forward now. You must ensure that all Hoosiers have strong

protections against discrimination.”

“There is no license to discriminate in this law,” he told Fox on Tuesday. “For my part, I abhor

discrimination, like every other Hoosier. I don’t think anyone should ever be mistreated because of who

they are or who they love.”

Indiana House Speaker Brian Bosma told msnbc’s Jose Diaz-Balart earlier on Tuesday morning that his

state doesn’t discriminate.

“We’re simply going to fix the bill,” he said. “[The bill] doesn’t allow discrimination… mischaracterization

has taken hold.”

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
Indiana Gov. Mike Pence—the target of much public criticism for his signing of Indiana's new "religious
freedom" law—opened his press conference Tuesday morning with a meditation on how hurt his state
has been by the "mischaracterization" of the new law, and how he hopes Indiana legislators will correct
the record with amendments.

"I am calling on the General Assembly to send me a bill that focuses on the issue here—that focuses on
the smear that's been leveled against the law and against the people of Indiana," Pence said. "And that



is that, somehow through our legislative process, we enacted legislation that created a license to
discriminate."

It's been less than one week since the Republican governor signed the Religious Freedom Restoration
Act, which supporters say protects people, businesses, and organizations from being forced to act
against their religious beliefs. But local and national opponents of the law claim the language tacitly
permits discrimination of LGBT individuals on religious grounds.

"I don't support discrimination against gays or lesbians or anyone else. I abhor discrimination. I want to
say this: No one should be harassed or mistreated because of who they are, what they love, or what
they believe," Pence said Tuesday. "I believe it with all my heart."

Pence, saying that he represents the tolerance of Hoosiers, praised Martin Luther King Jr. and talked
about how proud he was to walk with Rep. John Lewis across the Edmund Pettus Bridge in Selma on the
45th anniversary of Bloody Sunday. "This issue of discrimination has been an anthem through my life,"
he said.

Indiana state legislators said this week they'll seek to "clarify" that the law doesn't allow
discrimination. Pence said additional legislation now being worked through by state lawmakers will
correct the "perception problem" surrounding the law.

"It would be helpful to move legislation this week to clarify that this doesn't give businesses the right to
deny services to anyone," Pence said, including gays and lesbians.

The specific language of the changes, Pence said, is still being worked out.

When asked if his state should introduce legislation that would specifically protect people from
discrimination due to sexual orientation, Pence said he's never supported that idea, and he feels it's a
completely separate issue from the debate over the new law.

Pence made connections between his state's law and religious freedom laws at the federal level and in
30 other jurisdictions across the country. Though Pence treated the laws as equals, there are key
differences between Indiana's law and some of the others. For one,, the Indiana law places for-profit
businesses on par with individuals and other organizations as having a right to express their religious
convictions. For another, the statute can be used as protection against a lawsuit brought by a private
citizen, not just one brought by the government.

"I thought it was an appropriate addition to Indiana's statutes," Pence said, describing how the bill
moved through the legislative process with little controversy until last week.

Pence blamed the public outcry on misinterpretation of the law and "sloppy reporting" by the national
media, especially in the controversy's early days.



Which isn't to say that his state media was particularly friendly: On Tuesday, The Indianapolis Star ran a
front-page editorial calling on Pence and the legislature to "Fix This Now."

The governor published an op-ed Tuesday in The Wall Street Journal describing how the intent of the
legislation was make sure religious freedom is respected in Indiana and to "apply the highest level of
scrutiny to any state or local governmental action that infringes on people's religious liberty."

Echoing comments he made Tuesday morning on Fox & Friends, Pence said at the press conference that
he doesn't regret signing the bill.
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

Indiana Gov. Mike Pence (R) vowed Tuesday morning that the state would alter a religious liberties

bill that has drawn widespread criticism, even as he defended the law and insisted it was being unfairly

portrayed in the media.

Pence urged lawmakers to pass legislation making it clear “that this law does not give businesses the

right to deny services to anyone.”

“We need to focus specifically on this perception that this creates some license to discriminate,” he said

at a news conference in Indianapolis.

The change is a “clarification, but it’s also a fix,” Pence said of the update he hopes to see in the bill,

which has been pilloried as anti-gay and has prompted business leaders and organizations across the

country to question the law.

While Pence promised that the bill would be updated, he did not support a repeal of the legislation, nor

did he say that language would be added explicitly protecting gay or transgender people. He also spent a

significant portion of the news conference defending the bill and criticizing the media, insisting that the

current legislation did not allow for discrimination.



“This law has been smeared,” he said.

Rather than saying that the bill would be changed because it was problematic, he instead said that

Indiana had to act because the state now has a “perception problem.”

The bill has been heavily criticized by business leaders like Tim Cook, chief executive of Apple, as well as

the NCAA, the powerful collegiate sports organization that is headquartered in Indianapolis and is

having the men’s basketball Final Four there this weekend. Mark Emmert, president of the NCAA, said

Monday that if the law was not changed, the organization could reconsider whether to host future

events in the state.

“People don’t want this,” Adam Talbot of the Human Rights Campaign said Monday of this

legislation and a similar bill being considered in Arkansas. “People don’t need this. People think it’s

dangerous.”

Nine chief executives of Indiana companies signed a letter Monday calling on Pence to update the law,

saying that they were concerned about “the impact it is having on our employees and on the reputation

of our state.”

The Indianapolis Star, in an editorial that ran on the front page of Tuesday’s newspaper, said that the

law “has already done enormous harm to our state and potentially our economic future.”

Pence said he was proud to sign the act last week and stood by it, saying that the law is “about religious

liberty, not about discrimination.”

“This legislation was designed to ensure the vitality of religious liberty in the Hoosier state,” he said. He

added: “This law does not give anyone a license to discriminate.”

Still, Pence admitted Tuesday that he was “taken aback” by the way the story erupted into a national

firestorm, pointing to similar (but different) laws that had been passed across the country and by then-

President Bill Clinton in 1993.



“Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no,” he said.

As he has in recent days, Pence lashed out at what he called “sloppy” media reporting that he said

mischaracterized the bill, decrying what he called a perception that the bill allows for discrimination. He

called this “baseless,” but he also said that the state needs to make it clear that businesses will not be

allowed to deny services.

“Early on, there was some really reckless and irresponsible reporting about this,” he said, adding

later: “The perception of this has, you know, gone far afield from what the law really is.”

A day earlier, Indiana House Speaker Brian Bosma (R) said the legislature could act as soon as this week

to “clarify” the state’s new Religious Freedom Restoration Act, which grants individuals and businesses

legal grounds to defend themselves against claims of discrimination. The fix, Bosma said, would make

clear that the law does not allow people to discriminate against gays, as critics contend.

“It’s been a tough week for the Hoosier state, but we’re going to move forward,” Pence said Tuesday.

Pence said he had spoken to business leaders and organizations about the bill, though he did not go into

detail about what these conversations had entailed. “Clearly, there’s been misunderstanding and

confusion and mischaracterization of this law,” he said.

-----------------------------------

Mike Pence: 'Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no.'
CNN – Eric Bradner & Jeremy Diamond

(CNN)Gov. Mike Pence pledged Tuesday to "fix" Indiana's controversial religious freedom law to clarify
that it does not allow discrimination against gays and lesbians.

But he insisted the problem isn't the law itself but how it's being perceived, saying a fix is needed only
because of "frankly, the smear that's been leveled against this law." And he said the fix won't involve
statewide anti-discrimination protections for LGBT Hoosiers.

The first-term Republican governor sought to tamp down the backlash Indiana has faced since he signed
the law -- which its in-state supporters had claimed would allow businesses to turn away LGBT



customers -- last week. He said he's asking state lawmakers to send him a followup measure before this
week's end to ensure that's not the case.

"It would be helpful to move legislation this week that makes it clear that this law does not give
businesses a right to deny services to anyone," Pence said in a press conference in Indianapolis on
Tuesday.

Pence's comments come amid intense criticism from major corporations like Apple, Walmart and tech
giant Salesforce against Indiana's law and similar measures advancing in at least a dozen other states
this year. The NCAA, which is set to host its men's basketball Final Four in Indianapolis, has said it could
move events elsewhere in the future.

Republican contenders for the party's 2016 presidential nomination, meanwhile, have rallied to Pence's
defense. Jeb Bush, Marco Rubio, Ted Cruz and several other likely candidates said Monday evening that
they support religious freedom laws.

The debate touched a raw nerve in Indiana, which is just a year away from an emotional battle over a
Republican-driven proposal to amend the state's constitution to ban same-sex marriage.

Just months before the Supreme Court is set to rule on whether same-sex marriage is legal everywhere
in the United States, the religious freedom debate has offered a look at the next front in America's
culture clashes -- and the cross-currents facing the Republican Party, with social conservatives seeing
religious freedom laws as sturdier ground and the typically pro-GOP business community and younger
voters seeing those measures as veiled efforts at discrimination.

"Was I expecting this kind of backlash? Heavens no," Pence admitted Tuesday.

He'd waffled in recent days over whether or not he would support a legislative fix to the law before
finally announcing that he wanted one -- but he didn't say what that fix would be.

Potentially complicating his effort to quell the criticism, Pence said he opposes adding sexual orientation
to the list of Indiana's protected categories under state anti-discrimination law.

Democrats who'd seen their proposals to do just that rejected by the legislature in recent months said
only a solution along those lines would suffice.

"You have to take affirmative action -- you can't just tinker with this language," state Senate Democratic
leader Tim Lanane said.

Pence's statement came a day after Indiana's top state legislators announced they were working on a
legislative fix to clarify the intent of the law and following an intense backlash against the law, especially
from the business community in Indiana and across the country.

Pence and other Indiana Republicans have repeatedly insisted that the law was never intended to allow
discrimination against anyone and have charged that, even in its current form, the law could not be used
as a legal defense to discriminate against someone on the basis of sexual orientation.

Instead, Pence and his GOP allies have accused the media and opponents of the law of mischaracterizing
the law and spreading misinformation. But opposition to the law was swift and broad-sweeping, with



large organizations and top companies ranging from the NCAA to Apple and Salesforce raising red flags
over the law.

The state's House speaker, Brian Bosma, said he "didn't see that [reaction] coming" in the Monday press
conference announcing work on a legislative fix.

RELATED: Indiana law reveals GOP's challenge

Pence, the Indiana Republican who has been floated as a potential 2016 presidential candidate, again
repeated that he is unflinchingly opposed to discrimination.

He also noted that he joined civil rights icon Rep. John Lewis in a march across the Edmund Pettus
Bridge to commemorate the anniversary of Bloody Sunday, when hundreds of activists fighting for civil
rights for African-Americans were brutally assaulted by police officers.

Pence did get some beefy backup from the field of potential 2016 presidential contenders as former
Gov. Jeb Bush, Sen. Marco Rubio, Gov. Bobby Jindal and others, including the only declared 2016
presidential candidate Sen. Ted Cruz, rushing to defend the Indiana law.



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Curt Smith <curtsmith2@ >
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 5:12 PM
To: Mike Pence;James Atterholt;Atterholt, Jim;Crabtree, Chris;Christopher Crabtree
Subject: Fwd: Possible wording...hopefully unneeded

Team Pence 
 
Our brain trust offers the following two suggestions. We like no. 2 better as we want to preserve as much freedom for as 
many as possible. I am still intrigued by Executive Order, even with its limitations.  
 
Curt 
 
>  
> If we must have a "clarification" ADF recommends one of the following (we believe pro-religious freedom 
conservatives could support this...we like #2 better but both are good): 
>  
> 1.  The Indiana General Assembly hereby declares today the dignity of every person to be of the utmost priority, and 
recognizes that part of respecting every citizen is to respect their freedom to live according to their beliefs without 
government intrusion unless the intrusion is in the furtherance of a compelling government interest, and is the least 
restrictive means of furthering that interest.   
>  
>  
> 2.  Since the 1997 Supreme Court decision in City of Boerne v. Florence, many states have enacted statutes similar to 
the Religious Freedom Restoration Act of 1993, 42 U.S.B. Section 2000bb, including: Alabama, Arizona, Connecticut, 
Florida, Idaho, Illinois, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Rhode 
Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia.  The past two decades, in the cases that have been brought involving 
these states, and Federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act, demonstrate that these laws should not be used as a 
license to harm others, but instead provide a reasonable check on unreasonably coercive government action.  It is the 
intent of the Indiana Legislature to provide it's citizens with the same protection under state law other states have, as 
well as the same protections that citizens have enjoyed under federal law.  
>  
> Ryan McCann 
> Director of Operations an Public Policy 
> 140 N. 1st St. 
> Zionsville, IN 46077 
> (317)  
> www.hoosierfamily.org 
> Blog:  www.veritasrex.com 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Cleveland, Bridget
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2015 1:36 PM
To: 'Mike'
Cc: Brooks, Kara D;Hodgin, Stephanie;Atterholt, Jim;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Norton, Erin 

(Ladd);Crabtree, Chris;Bauer, Zachary C
Subject: REMINDER: 2:05 Radio via phone - Sean Hannity Show

2:05 – 2:15 p.m. EDT Radio – Sean Hannity Show 
*Interview is pre-taped and will air between 4 and 6 today* 
Re: RFRA 
 
CALL: 212-  
 
 
 
 
Bridget Cleveland  
Deputy Press Secretary 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 

   
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Ryan Streeter <ryantstreeter@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:36 PM
To: Denault, Christina
Cc: Mike;Pitcock, Josh;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atkins, Chris;Bill Smith 

(smith@sextonscreek.com);Crabtree, Chris;sje
Subject: Re: RFRA op-ed FINAL 3-30-15

More good stuff:  
http://time.com/3764644/mike-pence-jeb-bush-indiana-gay-rights/?xid=tcoshare 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 12:23 PM, Denault, Christina <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

Then it's a good thing I like it.  
 
Christy Denault  
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 12:11 PM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote: 

It's gone out 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 1:10 PM, "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

Reviewing now.  
 
Christy Denault  
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 11:23 AM, Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org> wrote: 

THIS IS THE FINAL VERSION UNLESS PRESS TEAM SEES ANY TYPOS.   
<RFRA op-ed FINAL 3-30-15.docx> 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Ryan Streeter <ryantstreeter@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:30 PM
To: Denault, Christina
Cc: Mike Pence;Pitcock, Josh;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atkins, Chris;Bill 

Smith;Crabtree, Chris;sje
Subject: Re: RFRA op-ed FINAL 3-30-15

Making sure you all saw the Wall Street Journal’s editorial to complement MRP’s op-ed 
tomorrow: http://www.wsj.com/articles/the-new-intolerance-1427760183  
 
 
 

On Mar 30, 2015, at 2:55 PM, Ryan Streeter <ryantstreeter@gmail.com> wrote: 
 
My friend David Davenport at the Hoover Institution just sent this through. Use this in your 
outreach tomorrow. Good piece, helps reinforce the points you’re making in the op-ed.  
 
 
http://www.forbes.com/sites/daviddavenport/2015/03/30/bringing-a-little-clarity-to-indianas-
march-religious-
madness/?utm_source=followingimmediate&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=20150330  
 

Bringing A Little Sanity To 
Indiana's March 
(Religious) Madness 
David Davenport 
3/30/2015 @ 3:01PM 

 
 

You would think the sky is falling in Indiana.  Hundreds 
of protestors carried signs at the state capitol 
Saturday:  “hate costs the state” and “liberty for all 
Hoosiers.”  The mayors of San Francisco and Seattle 
rushed to announce that city employees could not travel 
to Indiana on government money anymore.  The new 
wise men of public policy—basketball analysts Charles 
Barkley and Reggie Miller and the Silicon Valley CEOs of 



Apple, Salesforce and Yelp—all decried hate and 
discrimination in Indiana. 

But wait.  What really happened in Indiana?  The state 
enacted a Religious Freedom Restoration Act.  The U.S. 
Senate voted 97-3 for such a federal law in 1993 and 
President Clinton signed it.  Forty percent (19) of states 
have such laws, and others are considering them.  These 
laws—including Indiana’s version—essentially do one 
thing:  they set a legal standard in lawsuits where a 
defendant feels his or her religious freedom is being 
harmed by the application of a law or regulation.  More 
specifically, these religious freedom laws require a 
showing that the government has a “compelling interest” 
in whatever regulation is in question and that it is 
meeting that interest in the “least restrictive way” to the 
individual’s religious practice. 

The words “gay” or “gay marriage” do not appear 
anywhere in the law.  A classic case under the federal law 
was whether members of a New Mexico church might 
imbibe psychotropic tea as part of their religious 
ceremonies in the face of a law against such 
substances.  The Supreme Court said that the state did 
not have a compelling interest in preventing that kind of 
private religious practice.  Or in Minnesota where a court 
said that a law requiring vehicles including Amish 
buggies to use bright fluorescent lighting should have 
used an alternative less restrictive to Amish religious 
practice such as reflective tape or kerosene lanterns. 

But, of course, the knee-jerk reaction is that this law was 
passed to allow Christians to discriminate against gays 
and gay marriage and it is therefore hateful, 
discriminatory and unacceptable.  So far, however, no 
such bill has actually trumped local nondiscrimination 
laws, such as exist in Indianapolis and a dozen other 
Hoosier cities.  And in both the states of Washington 
(where a florist refused to serve a gay wedding) and 



Colorado (a baker did the same), courts have held that 
religious rights do not trump anti-discrimination laws 
against gays.  Admittedly neither of these states had a 
religious freedom restoration law, but again that only 
provides a legal standard or balancing test, not 
necessarily implying any different outcome.  How they 
are actually applied by courts vis-à-vis gay marriage is yet 
to be seen. 

If the law on this is different than the protests suggest, so 
is the politics.  The federal law was sponsored by then-
Congressman Chuck Schumer, apparently in line to lead 
the Democrats in the U.S. Senate.  And it was signed by 
Democrat Bill Clinton.  Then state senator Barack Obama 
voted for Illinois’ version of the bill.  Of course this was 
before his views “evolved” but it at least suggests that 
historically these bills have not been about hate and 
discrimination. 

In the current white-hot debates over gay marriage, I 
submit that what the Indiana and other bills actually do 
is help manage an important policy dilemma.  As a 
society, do we value gay rights?  Increasingly the answer 
is yes.  Do we value religious freedom and 
practice?  Historically the answer is yes.  We value both, 
but they do not always live easily together.  What this bill 
does is help courts manage the dilemma—while 
protecting against discrimination, also protecting 
religious rights where the state has no compelling 
interest in violating them or where alternative policies 
less restrictive to religious rights should be pursued. 

In a sense, there’s nothing to complain about in such a 
bill which sets up an appropriate constitutional balancing 
test.  The proof of the test will be in its application in the 
courts, not in its enactment. 

 
 
 



On Mar 30, 2015, at 12:23 PM, Denault, Christina <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
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
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 9:45 PM
To: Mike Pence
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Pitcock, Josh;Ahearn, Mark;McGrath, Danielle;Crabtree, Chris
Subject: Fwd: The New Intolerance - The Wall Street Journal.

Strong piece from WSJ.  
 
Christy Denault 
Communications Director 
317/  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov> 
Date: March 30, 2015 at 9:42:49 PM EDT 
To: "Denault, Christina" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov>, "Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org> 
Cc: "Brooks, Kara D" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: RE: The New Intolerance - The Wall Street Journal. 

The New Intolerance 
Indiana isn’t targeting gays. Liberals are targeting religion. 

In the increasingly bitter battle between religious liberty and the liberal political agenda, religion is losing. Witness the 
media and political wrath raining down upon Indiana because the state dared to pass an allegedly anti-gay Religious 
Freedom Restoration Act. The question fair-minded Americans should ask before casting the first stone is who is really 
being intolerant.  

The Indiana law is a version of the federal Religious Freedom Restoration Act (RFRA) that passed 97-3 in the Senate and 
that Bill Clinton signed in 1993. Both the federal and Indiana laws require courts to administer a balancing test when 
reviewing cases that implicate the free exercise of religion. 

To wit: Individuals must show that their religious liberty has been “substantially burdened,” and the government must 
demonstrate its actions represent the least restrictive means to achieve a “compelling” state interest. Indiana’s law adds 
a provision that offers a potential religious defense in private disputes, but then four federal appellate circuits have also 
interpreted the federal statute to apply to private disputes.  

The federal RFRA followed the Supreme Court’s Employment Division v. Smith ruling in 1990 that abandoned its 30-year 
precedent of reviewing religious liberty cases under strict scrutiny. Congress responded with RFRA, which merely 
reasserted longstanding First Amendment protections. 

In 1997 the Supreme Court limited RFRA’s scope to federal actions. So 19 states including such cultural backwaters as 
Connecticut, Rhode Island and Illinois followed with copy-cat legislation, and Indiana is the 20th. Courts in 11 states have 
extended equally vigorous protections.  

Indiana was an outlier before the new law because neither its laws nor courts unambiguously protected religious liberty. 
Amish horse-drawn buggies could be required to abide by local traffic regulations. Churches could be prohibited from 



feeding the homeless under local sanitation codes. The state Attorney General even ruled Indiana Wesleyan University, 
a Christian college which hires on the basis of religion, ineligible for state workforce training grants. 

In February, 16 prominent First Amendment scholars, some of whom support same-sex marriage, backed Indiana’s 
legislation. “General protection for religious liberty is important precisely because it is impossible to legislate in advance 
for all the ways in which government might burden the free exercise of religion,” they explained. 

That hasn’t stopped the cultural great and good from claiming Indiana added the religious defense in private disputes as 
a way to target gays. If this is Indiana’s purpose, and there’s no evidence it is, this is unlikely to work.  

The claim is that this would empower, say, florists or wedding photographers to refuse to work a gay wedding on 
religious grounds. But under the RFRA test, such a commercial vendor would still have to prove that his religious 
convictions were substantially burdened.  

And he would also come up against the reality that most courts have found that the government has a compelling 
interest in enforcing antidiscrimination laws. In all these states for two decades, no court we’re aware of has granted 
such a religious accommodation to an antidiscrimination law. Restaurants and hotels that refused to host gay marriage 
parties would have a particularly high burden in overcoming public accommodation laws.  

In any event, such disputes are rare to nonexistent, a tribute to the increasing tolerance of American society toward 
gays, lesbians, the transgendered, you name it. 

The paradox is that even as America has become more tolerant of gays, many activists and liberals have become ever-
more intolerant of anyone who might hold more traditional cultural or religious views. Thus a CEO was run out of 
Mozilla after it turned out that he had donated money to a California referendum opposing same-sex marriage. 

Part of the new liberal intolerance is rooted in the identity politics that dominates today’s Democratic Party. That’s the 
only way to explain the born-again opportunism of Hillary Clinton, who tweeted: “Sad this new Indiana law can happen 
in America today. We shouldn’t discriminate against ppl bc of who they love.”  

By that standard, Mrs. Clinton discriminated against gays because she opposed gay marriage until March 2013. But now 
she wants to be seen as leading the new culture war against the intolerant right whose views she recently held. 

The same reversal of tolerance applies to religious liberty. When RFRA passed in 1993, liberal outfits like the ACLU were 
joined at the hip with the Christian Coalition. But now the ACLU is denouncing Indiana’s law because it wants even the 
most devoutly held religious values to bow to its cultural agenda on gay marriage and abortion rights.  

Liberals used to understand that RFRA, with its balancing test, was a good-faith effort to help society compromise on 
contentious moral disputes. That liberals are renouncing it 20 years after celebrating it says more about their new 
intolerance than about anyone in Indiana. 

  
  

From: Denault, Christina  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 9:28 PM 
To: Pitcock, Josh 
Cc: Brooks, Kara D; Hodgin, Stephanie 
Subject: Re: The New Intolerance - The Wall Street Journal. 
  
Stephanie, can you send to me and I'll get to MRP. I'm at grocery store and only have phone, too.   
 
Christy Denault 



Communications Director 
317/  
  
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 9:10 PM, Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org> wrote: 

Can you paste for MRP?   
I can’t paste from my phone app and I can’t get my pw to work on my tablet.   
  
  

From: Mike [mailto:mpence1314@aol.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 9:07 PM 
To: Pitcock, Josh 
Subject: Re: The New Intolerance - The Wall Street Journal. 
  
I can access 
Can you paste? 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 8:58 PM, "Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org> wrote: 

WSJ goes in very strong! 

  

The New Intolerance 

http://www.wsj.com/articles/the-new-intolerance-1427760183 

Download the Wall Street Journal app here: WSJ. 

 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 6:03 PM
To: 'mpence1314@aol.com'
Subject: FW: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15

 
 

From: Brooks, Kara D  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 6:02 PM 
To: 'Bachelder, Kate' 
Subject: FW: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 
This is good. Thank you so much. 
Can you please let us know when this will be posted online? 
Thank you. 
 

From: Bachelder, Kate [mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:54 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 
Thanks, Kara—please give this a very quick read to make sure we’re all OK. Thanks again for all your quick work. 
 
 
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
were presented a bill that legalized discrimination against any person or group, I would not sign it. Indiana’s new law 
contains no reference to sexual orientation. It simply mirrors federal law that President Bill Clinton signed in 1993. 
 
As Prof. Daniel O. Conkle of Indiana University’s Maurer School of Law, a supporter of gay rights, including same-sex 
marriage, wrote last week in the Indianapolis Star, “The proposed Indiana RFRA would provide valuable guidance to 
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
exercise clause could not be raised as a defense to a generally applicable laws, even if the law infringed on a person’s 
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
 
 

From: Bachelder, Kate  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:47 PM 
To: 'Ahearn, Mark'; Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 
Can we be a little bit more specific? 
 

Some express concern that Indiana’s RFRA law would lead to discrimination, but 
RFRA only provides a mechanism to address claims, not a license for private 
parties to deny services.  Even a claim involving private individuals under RFRA 



must show that one’s religious beliefs were “substantially burdened” and not in 
service to a broader government interest—which preventing discrimination 
certainly is. The government has the explicit power under the law to step in and 
defend such interests. 
 
” 
 

From: Ahearn, Mark [mailto:MAhearn@gov.IN.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:38 PM 
To: Bachelder, Kate; Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 

Kate, 
Calling shortly: 
 
I think this language captures the matter: 
 
“It is important to note that RFRA does not apply to disputes between private 
parties unless government action is involved.  For those who would express 
concern that RFRA would lead to incidents of discrimination, it is important to 
recognize that RFRA only provides a mechanism to address claims, not a license to 
deny services between private parties.  Even a claim by a private individual against 
another private individual under RFRA must allege a government action.  If there is 
no government action, there is no RFRA claim.” 
 
 
Mark G. Ahearn 
General Counsel to Indiana 
Governor Mike Pence 
Office:   (317) 232-4579 
Cell:       (317)  
Email:    mahearn@gov.in.gov 
 
 
This email is subject to attorney client privilege and may be for internal and deliberative 
decision making purposes.  If you have received this email in error, I apologize - please delete 
and notify me at mahearn@gov.in.gov or call me at 317-232-4579.  Thank you. 
 
From: Bachelder, Kate [mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:16 PM 
To: Ahearn, Mark; Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 



 
Yes sir. Same number as before. 212.  
 

From: Ahearn, Mark [mailto:MAhearn@gov.IN.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:15 PM 
To: Bachelder, Kate; Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 

May Kara and I call you in about 3 minutes? 
Thank you 
 
Mark 
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 5:11 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D; Ahearn, Mark 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
 
Hi there— 
As I spoke with Kara about over the phone, we need something to address the concern that the individual defense 
clause makes the Indiana rfra bill different from those in other states/federal rfra. Could you add a sentence here 
elucidating? I’m not aware of a discrimination case that’s been upheld, and there’s still the substantial burden test, 
which might be worth pointing out? My editor simply feels we have to address this concern. 
 
 
Some have claimed that since Indiana’s RFRA law allows for an individual  defense in cases that don’t involved the 
government, say, a dispute between two private parties, that the bill condones discrimination. Not so. WHY??xxxxx For 
more than 20 years, the federal RFRA has never undermined federal antidiscrimination laws, and it won’t in Indiana. I 
am currently working with leaders of the Indiana General Assembly to determine if there is a way to clarify the intent of 
the RFRA. 
 
 

From: Brooks, Kara D [mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:45 PM 
To: Ahearn, Mark 
Cc: Bachelder, Kate 
Subject: Re: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 



 
Kate, 
please confirm that you received this edit. 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 30, 2015, at 4:36 PM, "Ahearn, Mark" <MAhearn@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

Kate, 

I think I see your point.  But, Section 9 addresses whether the 
government is an actual party to the litigation, not whether the 
litigation is based on a government action.  That is why the statute 
gives the government a chance to intervene (presumably to 
defend its ordinance or action) even if the governmental entity 
was not named as a party in the matter. 

  

  

Mark 

  
Mark G. Ahearn 
General Counsel to Indiana 
Governor Mike Pence 
Office:   (317) 232-4579 
Cell:       (317)  
Email:    mahearn@gov.in.gov 
  
  
This email is subject to attorney client privilege and may be for internal and 
deliberative decision making purposes.  If you have received this email in error, I 
apologize - please delete and notify me at mahearn@gov.in.gov or call me at 317-
232-4579.  Thank you. 
  

From: Bachelder, Kate [mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:31 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Cc: Ahearn, Mark 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  
Kara, 
I don’t see how that addresses the issue at hand. 
  

From: Brooks, Kara D [mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:29 PM 
To: Bachelder, Kate 
Cc: Ahearn, Mark 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  



Katie, 
Here’s our edit: 
  
It is important to note the Religious Freedom Restoration Act applies only if government action is 
involved. 
For more than 20 years, the federal RFRA has never undermined federal antidiscrimination laws, and 
it won’t in Indiana. I am currently working with leaders of the Indiana General Assembly to determine 
if there is a way to clarify the intent of the RFRA. 
  
  
  

From: Bachelder, Kate [mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:06 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  
Mucho thanks. Once we’ve ironed that out, we’ll be ready to go. 
  

From: Brooks, Kara D [mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 4:06 PM 
To: Bachelder, Kate; Ahearn, Mark 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  
Hi Kate, 
We have received this email and we will respond soon. 
  

From: Bachelder, Kate [mailto:Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:58 PM 
To: Ahearn, Mark 
Cc: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  
Hi— 
Thanks for your changes. We’re close, but one more issue here. We need to rework the sentence in the 
paragraph bolded below. Appellate circuits are split on whether RFRA creates an individual defense in 
the absence of government involvement and the Indiana rfra includes a section that explicitly does. 
  
Could you suggest a change to reflect this? (language we’re referring to is below.) 
  
  
Sec. 9. A person whose exercise of religion has been substantially burdened, or is likely to be 
substantially burdened, by a violation of this chapter may assert the violation or impending violation as a 
claim or defense in a judicial or administrative proceeding, regardless of whether the state or any 
other governmental entity is a party to the proceeding. If the relevant governmental entity is not a 
party to the proceeding, thegovernmental entity has an unconditional right to intervene in order to 
respond to the person’s invocation of this chapter. 
  
  
  
Last week I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, known as RFRA, which ensures that Indiana 
law will respect religious freedom and apply the highest level of scrutiny to any state or local 
governmental action that infringes on people’s religious liberty. Unfortunately, the law has stirred a 
controversy and in recent days has been grossly misconstrued as a “license to discriminate.” 



  
I want to make clear to Hoosiers and every American that despite what critics and many in the national 
media have asserted, the law is not a “license to discriminate,” either in Indiana or elsewhere. In fact, 
the Religious Freedom Restoration Act reflects federal law, as well as law in 30 states nationwide. 
Indiana’s legislation is about affording citizens full protection under Indiana law. 
  
I abhor discrimination. I believe in the Golden Rule that you should “do unto others as you would have 
them do unto you.” If I saw a restaurant owner refuse to serve a gay couple, I wouldn’t eat there 
anymore. As governor of Indiana, if I were presented a bill that legalized discrimination against any 
person or group, I would not sign it. Indiana’s new law contains no reference to sexual orientation. It 
simply mirrors federal law that President Bill Clinton signed in 1993. 
  
As Prof. Daniel O. Conkle of Indiana University’s Maurer School of Law, a supporter of gay rights, 
including same-sex marriage, wrote last week in the Indianapolis Star, “The proposed Indiana RFRA 
would provide valuable guidance to Indiana courts, directing them to balance religious freedom against 
competing interests under the same legal standard that applies throughout most of the land. It is 
anything but a ‘license to discriminate,’ and it should not be mischaracterized or dismissed on that 
basis.” 
  
People have asked why this is necessary. After all, the U.S. Constitution and the Indiana Constitution 
provide strong recognition of freedom of religion. But RFRA is in many ways overdue in Indiana.  
  
In 1990 the U.S. Supreme Court ruled in Employment Division of Oregon v. Smith that the First 
Amendment’s free exercise clause could not be raised as a defense to a generally applicable laws, even 
if the law infringed on a person’s religious liberty. In response, Congress passed and President Clinton 
signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act in 1993. This law limits federal government action that 
would infringe upon religion to only those acts that did not substantially burden free exercise of religion, 
absent a compelling governmental interest and in the least restrictive means. 
  
For example, a public school in Texas in 2008 told a Native American kindergartener that he would have 
to cut his hair because of the school’s grooming policies. But keeping his hair long was part of his 
religious practice, which allowed his parents to prevail in federal court under RFRA.  
  
Many states have enacted RFRAs of their own; 19 states have passed such laws and 11 state courts have 
interpreted the law to provide a heightened standard for reviewing government action. When President 
Obama was a state senator in Illinois, he supported Illinois’s version of the law in 1998. Historically, this 
law has received wide bipartisan support.  
  
But Indiana never passed such a law. Then in 2010 came the Affordable Care Act, which renewed 
concerns about government infringement on deeply held religious beliefs. Hobby Lobby and the 
University of Notre Dame both filed lawsuits challenging provisions that required the institutions to 
offer certain types of insurance coverage in violation of their religious views.  
  
Last year the Supreme Court upheld religious liberty in Burwell v. Hobby Lobby, based on the federal 
RFRA. With the Supreme Court’s ruling, the need for a RFRA at the state level became more important, 
as the federal law does not apply to states. To ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under 
Indiana law, this year the General Assembly enshrined these principles in Indiana law. I fully supported 
that action.  
  
It is important to note the Religious Freedom Restoration Act doesn’t apply to disputes between 
private parties unless government action is involved. APPELLATE CIRCUITS ARE SPLIT ON THAT 
QUESTION & DOESN’T THE INDIANA BILL EXPLICITLY CREATE AN INDIVIDUAL DEFENSE?? For more 
than 20 years, the federal RFRA has never undermined federal antidiscrimination laws, and it won’t in 



Indiana. I am currently working with leaders of the Indiana General Assembly to determine if there is 
a way to clarify the intent of the RFRA. 
  
As Thomas Jefferson noted, “No provision in our Constitution ought to be dearer to man than that which 
protects the rights of conscience against the enterprises of civil authority.” I regret that false narratives 
and misrepresentations of the RFRA have taken hold.  
  
The hospitality and character of Hoosiers are synonymous with everything that is good about America. 
Faith and religion are important values to millions of Indiana residents. With the passage of this 
legislation, Indiana will continue to be a place that respects the beliefs of every person in our state. 
  
Mr. Pence, a Republican, is the governor of Indiana.  
  
  
  

From: Ahearn, Mark [mailto:MAhearn@gov.IN.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:04 PM 
To: Bachelder, Kate 
Cc: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: FW: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  

Kate, 

As requested, attached are revisions and clarifications – red line 
version – from Kara Brooks. 

  

  

  

From: Pitcock, Josh [mailto:jpitcock@sso.org]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 2:58 PM 
To: Brooks, Kara D; Ahearn, Mark; Craig, Lindsey M; Johnson, David (OSBI); Anderson, Christopher M 
Subject: RFRA op-ed FINAL FINAL 3-30-15 
  
USE THIS VERSION. 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Ryan Streeter <ryantstreeter@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:56 PM
To: Denault, Christina
Cc: Mike Pence;Pitcock, Josh;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atkins, Chris;Bill 

Smith;Crabtree, Chris;sje
Subject: Re: RFRA op-ed FINAL 3-30-15

My friend David Davenport at the Hoover Institution just sent this through. Use this in your outreach tomorrow. 
Good piece, helps reinforce the points you’re making in the op-ed.  
 
 
http://www.forbes.com/sites/daviddavenport/2015/03/30/bringing-a-little-clarity-to-indianas-march-religious-
madness/?utm_source=followingimmediate&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=20150330  
 

Bringing A Little Sanity To 
Indiana's March 
(Religious) Madness 
David Davenport 
3/30/2015 @ 3:01PM 

 
 

You would think the sky is falling in Indiana.  Hundreds of 
protestors carried signs at the state capitol Saturday:  “hate costs the 
state” and “liberty for all Hoosiers.”  The mayors of San Francisco 
and Seattle rushed to announce that city employees could not travel 
to Indiana on government money anymore.  The new wise men of 
public policy—basketball analysts Charles Barkley and Reggie Miller 
and the Silicon Valley CEOs of Apple, Salesforce and Yelp—all 
decried hate and discrimination in Indiana. 

But wait.  What really happened in Indiana?  The state enacted a 
Religious Freedom Restoration Act.  The U.S. Senate voted 97-3 for 
such a federal law in 1993 and President Clinton signed it.  Forty 
percent (19) of states have such laws, and others are considering 
them.  These laws—including Indiana’s version—essentially do one 
thing:  they set a legal standard in lawsuits where a defendant feels 
his or her religious freedom is being harmed by the application of a 



law or regulation.  More specifically, these religious freedom laws 
require a showing that the government has a “compelling interest” 
in whatever regulation is in question and that it is meeting that 
interest in the “least restrictive way” to the individual’s religious 
practice. 

The words “gay” or “gay marriage” do not appear anywhere in the 
law.  A classic case under the federal law was whether members of a 
New Mexico church might imbibe psychotropic tea as part of their 
religious ceremonies in the face of a law against such 
substances.  The Supreme Court said that the state did not have a 
compelling interest in preventing that kind of private religious 
practice.  Or in Minnesota where a court said that a law requiring 
vehicles including Amish buggies to use bright fluorescent lighting 
should have used an alternative less restrictive to Amish religious 
practice such as reflective tape or kerosene lanterns. 

But, of course, the knee-jerk reaction is that this law was passed to 
allow Christians to discriminate against gays and gay marriage and it 
is therefore hateful, discriminatory and unacceptable.  So far, 
however, no such bill has actually trumped local nondiscrimination 
laws, such as exist in Indianapolis and a dozen other Hoosier 
cities.  And in both the states of Washington (where a florist refused 
to serve a gay wedding) and Colorado (a baker did the same), courts 
have held that religious rights do not trump anti-discrimination laws 
against gays.  Admittedly neither of these states had a religious 
freedom restoration law, but again that only provides a legal 
standard or balancing test, not necessarily implying any different 
outcome.  How they are actually applied by courts vis-à-vis gay 
marriage is yet to be seen. 

If the law on this is different than the protests suggest, so is the 
politics.  The federal law was sponsored by then-Congressman 
Chuck Schumer, apparently in line to lead the Democrats in the U.S. 
Senate.  And it was signed by Democrat Bill Clinton.  Then state 
senator Barack Obama voted for Illinois’ version of the bill.  Of 
course this was before his views “evolved” but it at least suggests 
that historically these bills have not been about hate and 
discrimination. 



In the current white-hot debates over gay marriage, I submit that 
what the Indiana and other bills actually do is help manage an 
important policy dilemma.  As a society, do we value gay 
rights?  Increasingly the answer is yes.  Do we value religious 
freedom and practice?  Historically the answer is yes.  We value 
both, but they do not always live easily together.  What this bill does 
is help courts manage the dilemma—while protecting against 
discrimination, also protecting religious rights where the state has 
no compelling interest in violating them or where alternative 
policies less restrictive to religious rights should be pursued. 

In a sense, there’s nothing to complain about in such a bill which 
sets up an appropriate constitutional balancing test.  The proof of 
the test will be in its application in the courts, not in its enactment. 

 
 
 

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
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 3:06 PM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com);Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Denault, Christina;Craig, 

Lindsey M
Subject: FW: Purdue Statement - RFRA

Purdue statement.  Daniels did not weigh-in on it but simply had the university reiterate their policy. 
 
 

From: Deborah Hohlt [mailto:debbie@ ]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 2:51 PM 
Subject: Purdue Statement - RFRA 
 
STATEMENT 

  

March 30, 2015 

  

Purdue issues statement regarding religious freedom restoration act 

Purdue works hard every day to be an open and welcoming institution, and we stand by our university-wide policy on 
nondiscrimination, which prohibits “discrimination against any member of the University community on the basis of race, 
religion, color, sex, age, national origin or ancestry, genetic information, marital status, parental status, sexual orientation, 
gender identity and expression, disability, or status as a veteran.” 

We will continue our proactive and persistent efforts to ensure that all members of the University community feel welcome 
and supported. 

While a longstanding Board of Trustees policy precludes Purdue taking institutional positions on matters such as the current 
controversy, we wish to take this opportunity to affirm our unwavering commitment to our principles and our opposition to 
any governmental measure that would interfere with their practice on our campuses. 

  

— Office of the President, 

Purdue University 

 
Deborah Hohlt 
Federal Consultant 
Purdue University 
Office of the President 
202  (mobile) 
202-347-0335 (office) 
  



http://www.purdue.edu/president/index.html 
  

@purduemitch   @PurdueDC 

@LifeAtPurdue  Purdue   
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 2:23 PM
To: Ahearn, Mark;Pitcock, Josh;Mike
Subject: Fwd: WSJ, please confirm op-ed edits

 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Bachelder, Kate" <Kate.Bachelder@wsj.com> 
Date: March 30, 2015 at 2:11:12 PM EDT 
To: "CDenault@gov.IN.gov" <CDenault@gov.IN.gov> 
Cc: "kbrooks@gov.in.gov" <kbrooks@gov.in.gov> 
Subject: WSJ, please confirm op-ed edits 

Edited text below, with questions noted in caps. Please mark all suggested changes in bold or using 
track changes, so I can be sure we’re working with the same copy.  
  
We’ll need to be ready by about 3:30 PM EST. Please let me know when you’ve received my note; I’m 
happy to be of any assistance. 
  
Thanks so much, 
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
simply mirrors the judicial-review standards that President Bill Clinton signed in 1993 and now prevail in 
a majority of the states. PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT “JUDICIAL-REVIEW STANDARDS” MEANS. 
  
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
anything but a ‘license to discriminate,’ and it should not be mischaracterized or dismissed on that basis. 



  
Many people have asked why this is necessary. After all, the U.S. Constitution and the Indiana 
Constitution both provide strong recognition of freedom of religion. But RFRA is in many ways overdue 
in Indiana.  
  
In 1990 the U.S. Supreme Court issued a ruling in WHAT CASE?? that reduced the level of scrutiny courts 
could apply when someone thought the government acted in a way that infringed on that person’s 
religious liberty. CHANGED FROM WHAT TO WHAT? WHAT COURTS ALLOWED TO DO THAT THEY 
WEREN’T AFTER THE DECISION? In response, Congress passed and President Clinton signed the Religious 
Freedom Restoration Act in 1993. This law limits federal government action LIKE WHAT? AN EXAMPLE 
that would infringe upon religion to only those acts that did not substantially burden free exercise of 
religion, absent a compelling governmental interest and in the least restrictive means. ADD AN EXAMPLE 
HERE OF HOW THIS PLAYS OUT IN REAL LIFE? OTHERWISE TOO ABSTRACT. 
  
Many states have enacted RFRAs of their own; 19 states have passed such laws and 11 state courts have 
interpreted the law to provide a heightened standard for reviewing government action. LIKE ALLOWING 
WHAT KIND OF REVIEW? When President Obama was a state senator in Illinois, he supported Illinois’s 
version of the law IN WHAT YEAR?. Historically, this law has received wide bipartisan support.  
  
But Indiana never passed such a law. Then in 2010 came the Affordable Care Act, which renewed 
concerns about government infringement on deeply held religious beliefs. Hobby Lobby and the 
University of Notre Dame both filed lawsuits challenging provisions that required the institutions to 
offer certain types of insurance coverage in violation of their religious views. Last year the Supreme 
Court upheld religious liberty in Burwell v. Hobby Lobby, based on the federal RFRA.  
  
With the Supreme Court’s ruling, the need for a RFRA at the state level became more important, as the 
federal law does not apply to states. Therefore, to ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under 
Indiana law, this year the General Assembly enshrined these principles in Indiana law. I fully supported 
that action. 
  
It is important to note the Religious Freedom Restoration Act doesn’t apply to disputes between private 
parties unless government action is involved. For more than 20 years, the federal RFRA has never 
undermined federal antidiscrimination laws, and it won’t in Indiana. I am currently working with leaders 
of the Indiana General Assembly to determine if there is a way to clarify the intent of the RFRA. 
  
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
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 1:54 PM 
To: 'CDenault@gov.IN.gov' 
Cc: 'kbrooks@gov.in.gov' 
Subject: op-ed edits 
  



Hi there, 
In a few minutes I’m going to have edits/questions for you on Gov. Pence’s op-ed. We’ll need to move 
quickly, so I just wanted to get in touch with you both in advance. Thanks so much for your help  & 
looking forward to working with you. 
  
  
  
Kate Bachelder 
Assistant Op-ed editor 
The Wall Street Journal. 
1211 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, N.Y. 10036 
212.  
  
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Denault, Christina
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 1:24 PM
To: Mike
Cc: Pitcock, Josh;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Ryan Streeter 

(ryantstreeter@gmail.com);Atkins, Chris;Bill Smith (smith@sextonscreek.com);Crabtree, 
Chris;sje

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
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 12:49 PM
To: 'Lasswell, Mark'
Subject: RE: Gov. Pence

Hi Mark, 
Below is the op-ed from Governor Pence. Please let me know when you plan to post it on-line.  I will also forward the 
op-ed to you in Word in just a few minutes. Let me know if you have any questions. 
Thank you. 
Kara 
 
 
Indiana is open for business.  Our state is rightly celebrated for our pro-business environment, and we enjoy an 
international reputation for the hospitality, generosity, tolerance and kindness of our people.  Hoosier hospitality is not 
a slogan, it is our way of life.   
 
Last week I signed the Religious Freedom Restoration Act (“RFRA”) ensuring that the law in Indiana will respect freedom 
of religion and apply the highest level of scrutiny to any state or local governmental action that infringes on people’s 
religious liberty.  Unfortunately, in recent days the law has become the subject of controversy, resulting from a gross 
mischaracterization that it somehow is a “license to discriminate.”   
 
In the last few days I have been speaking to leaders in business, sports, tourism and other industries, and I want to make 
it clear to Hoosiers and every American that despite what critics and many in the national media have asserted, the 
Religious Freedom Restoration Act is not a “license to discriminate” either in Indiana or across the country where it is 
federal law and the law in thirty other states.  RFRA is about fully protecting religious liberty under Indiana law.    
 
I abhor discrimination.  Like most Hoosiers, I was raised to believe in the Golden Rule that you should “do unto others as 
you would have them do unto you.”  If I saw a restaurant owner refuse to serve a gay couple I wouldn’t eat there 
anymore.   As governor of the state of Indiana, if I was presented a bill that legalized discrimination against any person, I 
would never sign it.  Indiana’s new law contains no reference to sexual orientation.  It simply mirrors the judicial review 
standards that President Bill Clinton signed and are reflected in the laws of some thirty other states. 
 
As Professor Daniel O. Conkle of the Indiana University Maurer School of Law, a supporter of gay rights including same-
sex marriage, said about our law “it is anything but a ‘license to discriminate,’ and should not be mischaracterized or 
dismissed on that basis.”   
 
Many people have asked me why this is necessary now.  They recognize that the Constitution of the United States and 
the Indiana Constitution both provide strong recognition of the freedom of religion and question why a law could be 
needed in addition to the Constitution.  RFRA is needed and in many ways overdue in Indiana.   
 
At the federal level, in 1990 the Supreme Court issued a ruling that reduced the level of scrutiny courts could apply when 
someone thought the government had taken an action that infringed on their religious liberty.  In the years following 
that decision, Congress responded and passed, and President Clinton signed, the federal Religious Freedom Restoration 
Act.  This law limits federal government action that would infringe upon religion to only those acts that did not 
substantially burden free exercise of religion absent a compelling governmental interest and in the least restrictive 
means. 
 
Many states followed with RFRAs of their own, including nineteen that passed state RFRAs and eleven whose courts 
interpreted their laws to provide a heightened standard for reviewing government action.  When President Obama was 



a state Senator in Illinois, he supported Illinois’s version of the law.  Historically, this law has received wide bipartisan 
support.   
 
But for one reason or another Indiana did not pass one right away and a period of years passed.  Then came the 
Affordable Care Act, which renewed concerns by many about the government infringing on deeply held religious 
beliefs.  Litigation was filed by Hobby Lobby and the University of Notre Dame challenging provisions that required them 
to offer certain types of insurance coverage in violation of their religious views.  Last year the Supreme Court of the 
United States upheld religious liberty in the Hobby Lobby case based on the federal RFRA.   
 
With the Supreme Court’s ruling, the need for a RFRA at the state level became more important because the federal 
RFRA does not apply to states.  Therefore, in order to ensure that religious liberty is fully protected under Indiana law, 
this year our General Assembly joined those thirty states and the federal government to enshrine these principles in 
Indiana law, and I fully supported that action. 
 
It is important to note the RFRA does not apply to disputes between private parties unless government action is 
involved.  For more than twenty years, the federal RFRA has never undermined our nation’s anti-discrimination laws, 
and it will not in Indiana.  I am currently working with leaders of the Indiana General Assembly to determine if there is a 
better way to clarify the true intent of the RFRA. 
 
Because, as Thomas Jefferson noted, “No provision in our Constitution ought to be dearer to man than that which 
protects the rights of conscience against the enterprises of civil authority,” I regret that false narratives and 
mischaracterizations of the RFRA have taken hold.   
 
People across this country know that Hoosiers are a gentle people whose hospitality and character are synonymous with 
everything that is good about America.  Faith and religion are important values to millions of Hoosiers.  With the passage 
of this legislation, we ensure that Indiana will continue to be a place where we respect freedom of religion and make 
certain that government action will always be subject to the highest level of scrutiny that respects the beliefs of every 
person in our state. 
 
 
 

From: Lasswell, Mark [mailto:Mark.Lasswell@wsj.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:10 AM 
To: Brooks, Kara D 
Subject: RE: Gov. Pence 
 
Thanks, Kara, as you’re probably aware, I’ve been in touch with Christina Denault. My hope is to run the piece in 
tomorrow’s paper, online later today, and having it sooner rather than later will be helpful, but we don’t commit to running 
op-eds until we’ve been able to read them. 
 
Best, 
Mark 
 
 
Mark Lasswell 
Editorial Features Editor 
The Wall Street Journal 
1211 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10036 
212-  
mark.lasswell@wsj.com 
 
 
 

From: Brooks, Kara D [mailto:kbrooks@gov.in.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:06 AM 



To: Lasswell, Mark 
Subject: Gov. Pence 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Mark, 
Governor Pence is writing an op-ed to clarify the Religious Freedom Restoration Act law and would like for it to appear in 
tomorrow’s newspaper and of course, you could post online today as well.  I expect to send you the op-ed in the next 
hour.  Please confirm. 
Thank you.  
 
Kara Brooks 
Press Secretary 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 
317-232-1622 (Office) 
317-  (Mobile) 
kbrooks@gov.in.gov 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Atkins, Chris
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 12:08 PM
To: Mike Pence;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pitcock, Josh
Subject: Fwd: FYI [Tweets] RFRA and HIV outbreak

Wait doesn't Connecticut have RFRA? 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE smartphone 

 

-------- Original message -------- 
From: "Cleveland, Bridget"  
Date:03/30/2015 8:38 AM (GMT-08:00)  
To: "Denault, Christina" ,"Brooks, Kara D" ,"Hodgin, Stephanie" ,"Ahearn, Mark" ,"Atterholt, Jim" ,"Espich, 
Jeff" ,"Simcox, Stephen" ,"Crabtree, Chris" ,"Atkins, Chris" ,"Pitcock, Josh" ,"Keefer, Sean (GOV)" 
,"McGrath, Danielle" ,"Brookes, Brady" ,"Pavlik, Jennifer L" ,"Craig, Lindsey M" ,"Neale, Brian S"  
Subject: FYI [Tweets] RFRA and HIV outbreak  
 

1.      Governor Dan Malloy @GovMalloyOffice 46m46 minutes ago  
Because of Indiana's new law, later today I will sign an Executive Order regarding state-funded travel. -DM 

1.      Abdul-Hakim Shabazz @AttyAbdul 4m4 minutes ago  
2.      Jesse Jackson says he will boycott coming to Indy and the Final Four because of #RFRA. Hmm, maybe it's not 

all bad after all. 
1.      Katie Heinz @katieheinz6 10m10 minutes ago  

.@RahmEmanuel: "I urge you to look next door to an economy that is moving into the 21st century" with 
diversity, business climate. @rtv6 

1.      Joseph Paul @JosephPaulJC 26m26 minutes ago  
#Purdue University spokesperson: President Daniels will not comment on #RFRA. 3 Indiana univ. presidents 
have issued statements @jconline 

1.      Brian Howey @hwypol 4m4 minutes ago  
National press has descended on Indiana Statehouse. The Indiana brand is in for an unprecedented and 
rigorous week. 
  
  

1.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 7m7 minutes ago  
Why docs alarmed: IU HIV expert identifies HALF of IN's counties as at risk for #HIV outbreaks due to high 
hepatitis C rates @JeromeAdamsMD 

1.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 10m10 minutes ago  
Despite @GovPenceIN veto threat, House committee passes measure to expand needle exchange in at-risk 
HIV counties.@JeromeAdamsMD #HIV 

1.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 17m17 minutes ago  
IN House Public Health Comm. getting "Pence treatment" from Gov's rep on why he opposes needle 
exchange: Can't get a straight answer.#HIV 

1.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 21m21 minutes ago  
Question to @JeromeAdamsMD: As state's leading public health officer, do you support needle exchange in 
high-risk HIV/Hep C communities? 



1.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 23m23 minutes ago  
Docs dealing w/HIV crisis support what Gov Pence opposes: letting health experts implement needle exchange 
before crisis hits.@JeromeAdamsMD 

1.      Shari Rudavsky @srudavsky 25m25 minutes ago  
2.      Gov. still opposes needle exchange as anti drug policy but we're moving in right direction, @StateHealthIN rep 

says at house hearing. 
3.        
4.      Maureen Hayden @MaureenHayden 26m26 minutes ago  

On IN's HIV crisis: Dept of Health staffer says Gov Pence still vehemently opposes needle exchange for other 
at-risk counties @JeromeAdamsMD 
  
  
  
Bridget Cleveland  
Deputy Press Secretary 
Office of Governor Mike Pence 

   
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Ryan Streeter <ryantstreeter@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 11:25 AM
To: Pitcock, Josh
Cc: Mike Pence;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Denault, Christina;Atkins, 

Chris;Bill Smith;Crabtree, Chris
Subject: UVA prof

You’ve probably all seen this but in case not….a UVA law professor who supports marriage equality supports IN RFRA: 
 
http://www.weeklystandard.com/blogs/uva-law-prof-who-supports-gay-marriage-explains-why-he-supports-indianas-
religious-freedom-law_902928.html  
 
To add to Conkle in talking points... 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Atkins, Chris
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2015 9:59 AM
To: Mike Pence;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Pitcock, Josh
Subject: Great article on IN RFRA discussion

http://thefederalist.com/2015/03/30/your-questions-on-indianas-religious-freedom-bill-answered/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE Tablet 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 7:47 PM
To: Atterholt, Jim
Cc: Hodgin, Stephanie;mpence1314@aol.com;Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Norton, Erin 

(Ladd);Crabtree, Chris;Bauer, Zachary C;Cleveland, Bridget
Subject: Re: Monday Radio Reminder

Steph can you confirm you cancelled? Thanks!  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 29, 2015, at 7:36 PM, Atterholt, Jim <jatterholt@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

Governor would like to reschedule this interview.  Please reach out.  Thanks all. 
 
Jim   
James Atterholt 
Chief of Staff 
Governor Mike Pence  
jatterholt@gov.in.gov 
Executive Assistant: Bridget Davis 
Office: 317-232-1800 
 
On Mar 29, 2015, at 6:43 PM, "Hodgin, Stephanie" <SHodgin@gov.in.gov> wrote: 

Sir, 
  
You have one radio hit tomorrow morning. 
  
8:38-8:48 a.m. EDT – Fort Wayne’s 1190 AM WOWO w/Charly Butcher 
Re: Religious Freedom Restoration Act 
LIVE 
  
I will send details in the morning. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Stephanie Hodgin 
Communications Specialist 
Office of Governor Michael R. Pence 
shodgin@gov.in.gov 
Office: 317-234-8926 
<image002.jpg><image004.jpg>  <image006.png> 
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Atterholt, Jim
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 7:37 PM
To: Hodgin, Stephanie
Cc: mpence1314@aol.com;Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Hodgin, Stephanie;Pavlik, 

Jennifer L;Norton, Erin (Ladd);Crabtree, Chris;Bauer, Zachary C;Cleveland, Bridget
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

From: Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, March 29, 2015 6:47 PM
To: MRP_home
Cc: Denault, Christina;Pitcock, Josh;Atkins, Chris;Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark
Subject: Fwd: Family Research Council Commends Indiana for Joining 19 States in Protecting 

Religious Liberty

Air cover 
More on the way hopefully 

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: "JP Duffy" <jpd@ > 
Date: Mar 29, 2015 6:43 PM 
Subject: Fwd: Family Research Council Commends Indiana for Joining 19 States in Protecting Religious 
Liberty 
To: "Matt Lloyd" <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> 
Cc:  
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Family Research Council <reply@frc.org> 
Date: March 29, 2015 at 6:53:08 PM EDT 
To: <jpd@frc.org> 
Subject: Family Research Council Commends Indiana for Joining 19 States in Protecting 
Religious Liberty 

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.
Family  
Research  
Council
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
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: March 29, 2015 
CONTACT: J.P. Duffy or Alice Chao, (866) FRC-NEWS or (866)-372-6397  

Family Research Council Commends Indiana for Joining 19 States in 
Protecting Religious Liberty  

WASHINGTON, D.C. - Family Research Council (FRC) President Tony Perkins 
released the following statement in response to Indiana Governor Mike Pence's 
appearance this morning on ABC's "This Week": 
"This morning Governor Mike Pence defended religious freedom; the ability to not 
only hold beliefs, but live by those beliefs. What is unfolding in Indiana reveals the 
source of true intolerance; those who want the government to punish people for 
freely living according to their beliefs.  
 
"We commend Indiana for joining 19 other states in aligning themselves with federal 
religious freedom law.  

 



"The Religious Freedom Restoration Act leaves people free to live and work 
according to their religious beliefs. Everyone's freedom is at risk when the 
government is empowered to more easily burden religious belief," concluded Perkins.

-30-  
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Brooks, Kara D
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 1:30 PM
To: Mike
Subject: Garrison

http://www.wibc.com/blogs/garrison/segments-interviews/garrison-presses-pence-rfra 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Hodgin, Stephanie
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2015 11:17 AM
To: 'mpence1314@aol.com'
Cc: Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Atterholt, Jim;Crabtree, Chris;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Norton, 

Erin (Ladd)
Subject: REMINDER: 11:20 EDT Radio – Indy’s 93.1 FM WIBC w/Garrison (live)

11:20-11:30 a.m. EDT – Indy’s 93.1 FM WIBC w/Garrison (live) 
Anticipated topics: likely the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, the HIV disaster declaration in Scott County and 
common construction wage 
 
CALL: 317-  
 
Stephanie Hodgin 
Communications Specialist 
Office of Governor Michael R. Pence 
shodgin@gov.in.gov 
Office: 317-234-8926 

   
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Hodgin, Stephanie
Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 6:41 PM
To: 'mpence1314@aol.com'
Cc: Denault, Christina;Brooks, Kara D;Atterholt, Jim;Pavlik, Jennifer L;Norton, Erin 

(Ladd);Crabtree, Chris;Bauer, Zachary C
Subject: Thursday Radio Preview

Sir, 
 
You have one radio hit via phone tomorrow morning. 
 
11:07-11:30 a.m. EDT – Indy’s 93.1 FM WIBC w/Garrison (live) 
Anticipated topics: likely the Religious Freedom Restoration Act and the HIV disaster declaration in Scott County 
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 23, 2015 3:12 PM
To: MRP_home
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Re: From Mike Pence

Sounds good. Look forward to chatting.  

On Mar 23, 2015 8:45 AM, "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote: 
Thanks for the kind words about our Marine 
 
Sounds like we need to talk 
I'll call today 
 
Mike  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 21, 2015, at 10:13 AM, Matt Lloyd <matthewhlloyd@gmail.com> wrote: 

Governor, 

"Phenomenal" describes his accomplishment. You and Karen have every right to be proud. I'm 
sure he will be one the Corps' finest. Please pass on my congratulations. 

Wanted you to know I've been contacted by a couple folks gauging my interest in running for 
Aaron Schock ' s seat. It's my home area. They think I could knock off LaHood ' s son, who's 
the frontrunner, and who they also expect to be about at squishy as his dad. Unless someone 
drops half mil in my lap before the end of March I'm a no on this and have communicated that 
to the players. I don't think it'll leak to the papers but in case it does, that's the back story.  

That said, Amy had a good meeting with Marty yesterday but it sounds like we've still got some 
details that need to be solidified on that side of things and I want to make sure things are where 
we discussed they'd be last weekend in 206 before I give notice to Koch.  

Look forward to chatting next week.  

Best,  
Matt 

On Mar 21, 2015 9:40 AM, "Mike" <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote: 
Matt 
Thought you would enjoy 
Michael said it was "phenomenal" you were coming to Indiana. 
I agree 
Best 



Mike 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: William Smith <smith@sextonscreek.com> 
Date: March 20, 2015 at 4:53:28 PM EDT 
To: Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Subject: Re: From Mike Pence 

The boys who would be men... 

 

 
From: Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> 
Sent: Friday, March 20, 2015 4:37 PM 
To: Jim Atterholt COS; Jennifer Pavlik; Christy Denault; Kara Brooks; Chris Atkins; Sean 
Keefer; Danielle McGrath; Lani Czarniecki; Erin Norton; Jeff Espich; Jeff Cardwell; Mark 
Ahearn; Chris Crabtree; Hannah Brown; Diego; Zach Bauer; John Hill; sje; Sue 
Ellspermann (email) 
Cc: Bailey, Brian (OMB); Pitcock, Josh; William Smith; tomrose@  
Subject: From Mike Pence  
  
Team 
He made it. 
We watched our son become Second lieutenant Michael J. Pence in the United 
States Marine Corps today.  
Thanks so all of your for your support and prayers. We feel truly blessed. 
Sincerely, 
Mike Pence 
<image.jpeg> 
<image.jpeg> 
<image.jpeg> 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 20, 2015, at 8:58 AM, "Gilson, Katie" <KGilson@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

GOVERNOR 
Governor’s son set for commissioning as Marine officer 
SFGate 
Gov. Mike Pence's son is set to become a Marine Corps officer. 
Pence and his wife, Karen, plan on going to the Marine Corps base 
in Quantico, Virginia, on Friday for the ceremony at which their 
son is to be commissioned as a second lieutenant. 
  
Gov. Pence picks every Indiana hoops team to win NCAA 
Indy Star 
Ever the politician, Gov. Mike Pence has filled out five Final Four 
brackets this year — each one predicting a different Indiana team 
to win the NCAA men's basketball tournament. 



  
Students recognized at JAG State Finals 
WBIW 
More than 300 high school students and staff gathered at Ivy 
Tech's Corporate College in downtown Indianapolis to take part in 
Indiana's annual Jobs for America's Graduates (JAG) Career 
Development Conference, which was held on Friday, March 13. 
  
New signups for Indiana health care program reach 100,000 
Evansville Courier & Press 
Indiana's expanded health care program for low-income residents 
has enrolled more than 100,000 new people in the two months 
since it received federal approval. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
New GOP chief brings people together 
Indy Star 
Jeff Cardwell might be the least political person whom Gov. Mike 
Pence could have selected as the Republican Party’s new state 
chairman. 
  
Public Transportation budget finally breaks four-year cap 
The Herald Tribune 
Since the state capped spending on public transportation six years 
ago, Catch-A-Ride in rural southeast Indiana has scrambled to keep 
up service for elderly, disabled and carless passengers who have 
no other way to get around. Mass transit dollars were first frozen 
in 2009, when the General Assembly stopped using sales tax 
revenues to fund public transportation. Sales tax revenues were 
plunging at the time, due to the recession, but have since 
recovered…Public transportation systems across Indiana have 
similar concerns, which are heightened now that Gov. Mike Pence 
is proposing less funding for recipients of the state’s Public Mass 
Transportation Fund. 
  
Regional Cities fund doubt 
South Bend Tribune 
An effort to improve quality of life in Indiana’s cities has created 
excitement among business<image001.png> leaders here, even 
though the General Assembly hasn’t committed to funding the 
state’s share of the program…Gov. Mike Pence suggested setting 
aside $84 million in the state’s next two-year budget for Regional 
Cities grants, but the House of Representatives passed a budget bill 
last month that includes $20 million for the program. The 
legislation is now wending its way through the Senate, where that 
allocation could be changed. 
  
Terror and the heartland 
Washington Times Herald 
On the February day President Obama spoke at Ivy Tech, a Bosnian 
man was arrested on the Ronald Reagan Parkway in Plainfield and 
detained on terror-related charges of funneling money and guns to 
ISIS fighters in the Middle East. Early this month, ISIS allegedly 
hacked into several Indianapolis websites, prompting a Homeland 
Security investigation…Since leaving Congress in December, 



Rogers has formed the Americans for Peace, Prosperity and 
Security organization that will brief the 2016 Republican 
presidential candidates and voters designed to “educate and 
identify” issues related to national security. Just prior to my 
interview, Rogers huddled with Gov. Mike Pence at the Statehouse. 
  
LEGISLATURE 
Bad legislation that will choke our cities 
Kokomo Perspective 
Legislation coursing through the Indiana General Assembly is 
poised to essentially starve the state’s cities and towns by 
empowering opponents of annexation. It is legislation that, should 
it end up on the desk of Gov. Mike Pence, be vetoed. Senate Bill 330 
would make law that for an annexation to proceed, a municipality 
that initiates the process must file a petition with the court signed 
by at least: (1) 51 percent of the owners of land (that is not exempt 
from property taxes) in the territory; or (2) the owners of more 
than 75 percent in assessed valuation of land (that is not exempt 
from property taxes) in the territory. 
  
GOP rejects amendments to religion bill 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
House Republicans turned back attempts Monday to clarify how 
“religious freedom” protections could be used – setting up a full 
House vote on the measure as early as Monday. 
  
‘Right-to-try’ terminal illness bill heads to Governor 
NWI Times 
Hoosiers with terminal illnesses are one signature away from 
gaining access to new drugs that have yet to be fully approved by 
the federal government for general use. 
  
STATE AGENCIES 
Multi-language Web created for global businesses 
The Batesville Herald Tribune 
InvestIndiana.com, a multi-language Web site promoting foreign 
direct investment in Indiana, has launched as a resource for 
international businesses considering Indiana for investment and 
job creation. “This Web site is a conversation starter,” said Victor 
Smith, Indiana secretary of commerce. “Indiana and international 
businesses both speak the same language, and that’s a language of 
growth and opportunity. This site acts as an online resource, 
showing just how committed we are to helping international 
businesses meet their goals in Indiana, joining the hundreds of 
others currently dotting our state.” 
  
Funds to boost school tech programs 
Inside Indiana Business 
The Indiana Department of Education awarded more than $1.8 
million in Digital Learning Grants to select Hoosier school 
corporations today. 
  
Replacing hundreds of manhole covers with safer ones could take 
years 
Indy Star 



A utility consultant warned three years ago that manhole 
explosions would continue to rock Downtown Indianapolis three 
to five times a year and that Indianapolis Power & Light Co. should 
install newly designed manhole covers to prevent injuries. 
  
Chief Justice to speak at equality day luncheon 
Evansville Courier & Press 
Loretta Rush, chief justice of the Indiana Supreme Court, is the 
keynote speaker for this year’s Women’s Equality Day event, set 
for Aug. 26. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
State superintendent requests shift in House budget funds 
Evansville Courier & Press 
Indiana state schools Superintendent Glenda Ritz has proposed 
diverting state funds from charter schools and changes to student 
testing to cut its cost. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
AROUND INDIANA 
Ivy Tech trustees pass resolution in support of downtown med 
school 
Evansville Courier & Press 
In a resolution unanimously approved by Ivy Tech Community 
College Southwest Board of Trustees, the seven board members 
“fully” supported the proposed Downtown medical education 
center request for 223,000 gross square feet, designating 60,000 of 
it plus Simulation Center space to Ivy Tech. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
Indiana school district bans energy, supplement drinks 
Evansville Courier & Press 
A school district in central Indiana is banning nutritional 
supplements and energy drinks from its campuses. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
JOBS/ECONOMY 
Lowe’s holding hiring event 
Inside Indiana Business 
The event runs 1:30 p.m. - 5:00 p.m. at the Glendale Public Library 
on Keystone Avenue in Indianapolis. 
  
EDITORIAL 
Connections raise questions about incentives 
Courier & Post 
Decades of disinvestment have left Camden with a serious 
shortage of jobs needed to sustain healthy families, thriving 
neighborhoods and a self-supporting tax base. So it's hard not to 
get our hopes up when we hear one company after another 
announcing plans to move to the city. 
  
Electronic sunshine 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 



Open government is such a simple concept. And yet so many 
government officials at the state and federal levels struggle to 
grasp the concept or abide by it. 

 
New signups for Indiana health care program reach 100,000 
The Associated Press 
 Indiana's expanded health care program for low-income residents 
has enrolled more than 100,000 new people in the two months 
since it received federal approval. 
Gov. Mike Pence said Wednesday that sign-ups for the new Healthy 
Indiana Plan are off to a good start. 
Those new enrollees are in addition to some 180,000 people who 
were already part of the previous HIP or Hoosier Healthwise 
programs and were converted to the new plan. Officials estimate 
350,000 Indiana residents might be eligible for the program. 
The Indiana program uses Medicaid funding but federal officials in 
January waived some rules to allow Pence's proposal to require 
some payments from those receiving coverage. 
  
Chief Justice to speak at equality day luncheon 
Abbey Doyle 
Loretta Rush, chief justice of the Indiana Supreme Court, is the 
keynote speaker for this year’s Women’s Equality Day event, set 
for Aug. 26. 
Jennifer Briggs, co-chair for the planning committee, said they 
wanted the speaker to be representative of strong female leaders 
in the community. 
“This seemed like a natural fit,” she said of Rush. “We looked at 
some national names but decided we wanted someone who our 
members could connect with, someone working and raising a 
family that is more like us, not on a national stage. We wanted 
someone that would really connect with our community.” 
Rush was appointed to the state Supreme Court by Gov. Mitch 
Daniels in 2012. She became the first female chief justice in 2014. 
Before her appointment to the state Supreme Court she was 
elected Tippecanoe Superior Court 3 judge and served for 14 
years, according to Rush’s biography on the Supreme Court’s 
website. 
Rush serves on the Commission on Improving the Status of 
Children in Indiana and the Indiana Conference for Legal 
Education Opportunity as well as liaison to the Division of 
Supreme Court Administration, the Division of State Court 
Administration, the Indiana Judicial Center and the Indiana Judges 
Association. She chairs the Judicial Nominating/Qualifications 
Commission as chief justice and has represented the state at the 
National Judicial Leadership Summit on the Protection of Children 
several times. 
Briggs said Rush’s commitment to women and children was also a 
factor in her selection. Rush played a vital role in creating 
Tippecanoe County’s Court Appointed Special Advocate program. 
There she also implemented a certified juvenile drug treatment 
court and 24-hour assessment center for youth. Rush earned her 
undergraduate degree from Purdue University and graduated cum 
laude from the Indiana University Maurer School of Law in 
Bloomington. 



She is married and has four children. 
“It’s an honor to have her as our speaker,” Briggs said. “She is 
serving a key role in the state.” 
Women’s Equality Day commemorates the 1920 passage of the 
19th Amendment to the Constitution that granted women the right 
to vote. 
“Imagine a time when we couldn’t vote,” Briggs said. “We need to 
celebrate this because it wasn’t that long ago that we couldn’t. This 
celebration is a chance for us to come together and push for more 
women in leadership roles and a part of decision making.” 
A big part of the August event is recognizing a local woman with 
the Albion Fellows Bacon award. Those interested in nominating a 
local woman, or to purchase a ticket, should visit 
womensequalitydayevansville.com. 
Ark Crisis Child Care Center is the featured organization and the 
University of Southern Indiana the main sponsor. 
  
State superintendent requests shift in House budget funds 
LAURYN SCHROEDER Associated Press 
Indiana state schools Superintendent Glenda Ritz has proposed 
diverting state funds from charter schools and changes to student 
testing to cut its cost. 
Ritz told the Senate Appropriations Committee Thursday that 
nearly $60 million in the proposed House budget could be diverted 
toward additional funding for local school districts. 
Her proposals included eliminating $40 million that's been 
proposed in additional grants for charter schools. 
Ritz says she would also like to eliminate the IREAD test in 3rd 
grade and the 11th grade college and career readiness test. Her 
total testing plan could be delivered for about $75 million over two 
years, which is almost half of what she originally estimated in 
December. 
Legislators are currently considering a proposal that would 
replace the ISTEP with a national exam. 
  
Indiana school district bans energy, supplement drinks 
A school district in central Indiana is banning nutritional 
supplements and energy drinks from its campuses. 
The Western Boone County Community School Corporation held 
separate meetings for parents and students on Wednesday to 
inform them of the new districtwide policy. 
School district officials tell WRTV-TV that they were becoming 
increasingly concerned about students’ health. The athletic 
director at Western Boone Junior-Senior High School says many 
students who participate in weight training classes have been seen 
drinking supplement shakes and using energy boosters. 
The district says the ban specifically targets products with creatine 
and nitric oxide, which can cause heart irregularities, problems 
with the central nervous system and even strokes. 
Students who bring any of the now-banned items will face 
suspension. 
  
Ivy Tech trustees pass resolution in support of Downtown 
med school 
Megan Erbacher 



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
At a Thursday afternoon meeting, Board Chair David Gunn 
presented information to other members about the resolution. 
Gunn said the 60,000 gross square feet would provide space for 
Ivy Tech’s Health Sciences and School of Nursing programs to 
grow. There are 1,000 students enrolled in programs that could 
benefit from the medical campus, including registered nurse, 
medical assistants, paramedics, surgical technologists and certified 
nursing assistants. 
First-year Ivy Tech nursing student Nick Reed spoke to the board 
about his excitement over the opportunities the Downtown 
medical education center will provide. 
“Having this multidisciplinary building in Downtown, the heart of 
Evansville ... the excitement to have all these disciples come 
together in one school — EMTs, doctors, CNAs, nurses — we get to 
come together and work together,” Reed, 20, said. 
In its resolution, Ivy Tech states the medical campus “will be an 
immediate boost to the economy as well as to the atmosphere in 
Downtown Evansville.” 
Hoosier Hot 50 Jobs projects that, by 2020, two of the top four jobs 
will be in health care fields, and both will require an associate 
degree, Gunn said. And the shortage of registered nurses and 
skilled health care workers has been a challenge statewide for 
many years, he said. 
Ivy Tech officials estimate to see an increase of almost 1,600 
students enrolled in programs through the new medical education 
center, as well as additional students for other institutions. 
When the Downtown facility is finished, Ivy Tech plans to relocate 
all health-field programs to the medical education center. 
The current 52,000 square feet of the main campus facility will 
then be used for other high-demand programs such as welding, 
automotive, technology and business. It will also allow Ivy Tech to 
expand community collaborations with WorkOne and high school 
Career and Technical Education programs. 
Ivy Tech Southwest Chancellor Jonathan Weinzapfel gave an 
update to board members on funding for the project. Weinzapfel 
said the City Council unanimously committed a $57 million bond. 
Gov. Mike Pence included $19 million for the project in his budget, 
which the House increased to $37 million. And now the Senate will 
consider the biennial state budget. Weinzapfel said he expects the 
Senate version of the budget to be released the week of April 6. 
“Then we’ll know whether they are building upon the funding 
already provided by the House for this project. ... So roughly a $50 
million investment by the state to leverage a $125 million 
investment overall. Seems to me that is a good deal. ... I’m 
optimistic that in the end it will be included in the budget,” he said. 
Weinzapfel noted consequences if the project is not fully funded. 
Those include less of an economic impact, less project student 
enrollment and not the same level of programming. 
Partners in the medical education center are Indiana University 
School of Medicine-Evansville, the University of Southern Indiana 



and the University of Evansville. Partner hospitals are Evansville’s 
Deaconess and St. Mary’s, Memorial of Jasper and Good Samaritan 
of Vincennes. 
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Mike <mpence1314@aol.com>
Sent: Monday, March 23, 2015 8:45 AM
To: Matt Lloyd
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
Aaron Schock ' s seat. It's my home area. They think I could knock off LaHood ' s son, who's the 
frontrunner, and who they also expect to be about at squishy as his dad. Unless someone drops 
half mil in my lap before the end of March I'm a no on this and have communicated that to the 
players. I don't think it'll leak to the papers but in case it does, that's the back story.  

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
Gov. Mike Pence's son is set to become a Marine Corps officer. Pence 
and his wife, Karen, plan on going to the Marine Corps base in 
Quantico, Virginia, on Friday for the ceremony at which their son is 
to be commissioned as a second lieutenant. 
  
Gov. Pence picks every Indiana hoops team to win NCAA 
Indy Star 
Ever the politician, Gov. Mike Pence has filled out five Final Four 
brackets this year — each one predicting a different Indiana team to 
win the NCAA men's basketball tournament. 
  
Students recognized at JAG State Finals 
WBIW 
More than 300 high school students and staff gathered at Ivy Tech's 
Corporate College in downtown Indianapolis to take part in 



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
up service for elderly, disabled and carless passengers who have no 
other way to get around. Mass transit dollars were first frozen in 
2009, when the General Assembly stopped using sales tax revenues 
to fund public transportation. Sales tax revenues were plunging at 
the time, due to the recession, but have since recovered…Public 
transportation systems across Indiana have similar concerns, which 
are heightened now that Gov. Mike Pence is proposing less funding 
for recipients of the state’s Public Mass Transportation Fund. 
  
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
Security investigation…Since leaving Congress in December, Rogers 
has formed the Americans for Peace, Prosperity and Security 
organization that will brief the 2016 Republican presidential 
candidates and voters designed to “educate and identify” issues 
related to national security. Just prior to my interview, Rogers 
huddled with Gov. Mike Pence at the Statehouse. 
  



LEGISLATURE 
Bad legislation that will choke our cities 
Kokomo Perspective 
Legislation coursing through the Indiana General Assembly is 
poised to essentially starve the state’s cities and towns by 
empowering opponents of annexation. It is legislation that, should it 
end up on the desk of Gov. Mike Pence, be vetoed. Senate Bill 330 
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
explosions would continue to rock Downtown Indianapolis three to 
five times a year and that Indianapolis Power & Light Co. should 
install newly designed manhole covers to prevent injuries. 
  
Chief Justice to speak at equality day luncheon 



Evansville Courier & Press 
Loretta Rush, chief justice of the Indiana Supreme Court, is the 
keynote speaker for this year’s Women’s Equality Day event, set for 
Aug. 26. 
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
Decades of disinvestment have left Camden with a serious shortage 
of jobs needed to sustain healthy families, thriving neighborhoods 
and a self-supporting tax base. So it's hard not to get our hopes up 
when we hear one company after another announcing plans to 
move to the city. 
  
Electronic sunshine 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
Open government is such a simple concept. And yet so many 
government officials at the state and federal levels struggle to grasp 
the concept or abide by it. 

 
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
wanted the speaker to be representative of strong female leaders in 
the community. 
“This seemed like a natural fit,” she said of Rush. “We looked at 
some national names but decided we wanted someone who our 
members could connect with, someone working and raising a family 
that is more like us, not on a national stage. We wanted someone 
that would really connect with our community.” 
Rush was appointed to the state Supreme Court by Gov. Mitch 
Daniels in 2012. She became the first female chief justice in 2014. 
Before her appointment to the state Supreme Court she was elected 
Tippecanoe Superior Court 3 judge and served for 14 years, 
according to Rush’s biography on the Supreme Court’s website. 
Rush serves on the Commission on Improving the Status of Children 
in Indiana and the Indiana Conference for Legal Education 
Opportunity as well as liaison to the Division of Supreme Court 
Administration, the Division of State Court Administration, the 
Indiana Judicial Center and the Indiana Judges Association. She 
chairs the Judicial Nominating/Qualifications Commission as chief 
justice and has represented the state at the National Judicial 
Leadership Summit on the Protection of Children several times. 
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
Women’s Equality Day commemorates the 1920 passage of the 19th 
Amendment to the Constitution that granted women the right to 
vote. 
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
A big part of the August event is recognizing a local woman with the 
Albion Fellows Bacon award. Those interested in nominating a local 
woman, or to purchase a ticket, should visit 
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
Legislators are currently considering a proposal that would replace 
the ISTEP with a national exam. 
  
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
increasingly concerned about students’ health. The athletic director 
at Western Boone Junior-Senior High School says many students 
who participate in weight training classes have been seen drinking 
supplement shakes and using energy boosters. 
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
  
Ivy Tech trustees pass resolution in support of Downtown med 
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
Gunn said the 60,000 gross square feet would provide space for Ivy 



Tech’s Health Sciences and School of Nursing programs to grow. 
There are 1,000 students enrolled in programs that could benefit 
from the medical campus, including registered nurse, medical 
assistants, paramedics, surgical technologists and certified nursing 
assistants. 
First-year Ivy Tech nursing student Nick Reed spoke to the board 
about his excitement over the opportunities the Downtown medical 
education center will provide. 
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
degree, Gunn said. And the shortage of registered nurses and skilled 
health care workers has been a challenge statewide for many years, 
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
The current 52,000 square feet of the main campus facility will then 
be used for other high-demand programs such as welding, 
automotive, technology and business. It will also allow Ivy Tech to 
expand community collaborations with WorkOne and high school 
Career and Technical Education programs. 
Ivy Tech Southwest Chancellor Jonathan Weinzapfel gave an update 
to board members on funding for the project. Weinzapfel said the 
City Council unanimously committed a $57 million bond. Gov. Mike 
Pence included $19 million for the project in his budget, which the 
House increased to $37 million. And now the Senate will consider 
the biennial state budget. Weinzapfel said he expects the Senate 
version of the budget to be released the week of April 6. 
“Then we’ll know whether they are building upon the funding 
already provided by the House for this project. ... So roughly a $50 
million investment by the state to leverage a $125 million 
investment overall. Seems to me that is a good deal. ... I’m optimistic 
that in the end it will be included in the budget,” he said. 
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
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2015 9:24 AM
To: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Ahearn, Mark;Norton, Erin (Ladd);Brown, Hannah;Bauer, Zachary 

C;Crabtree, Chris;Denault, Christina;Czarniecki, Cary (Lani)
Subject: Re: I'm alive! 

Jennifer 
Karen and I are so relieved that you are feeling better! 
 
I'm glad to hear you got the strength to catch up a little bit from home but please feel no obligation to come in before 
the first of the week. In fact- as your long time employer- I will insist that you take the balance of the week to rest and 
refresh I recover....! 
;) 
 
Erin and the team have done a nice job picking up the slack this week and .....as I will not be in on Friday....there is really 
no need for you to come in tomorrow. 
 
Give yourself Time to recover and we will pray for you to be back to hundred and 110% by Monday!  
 
Every blessing, 
Mike and Karen 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
> On Mar 12, 2015, at 8:55 AM, "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 
>  
> After four days of feeling run over by a semi I woke to feeling like a  
> somewhat normal person today.  That said I am not 100% and do not want to get anyone sick. I am going to continue 
to rest this morning then if up to it try and dig out of email debt this afternoon from home. Thanks for all your prayers 
and thanks to everyone for pitching in, not being at work was just as stressful as being there :) I should be back I hope 
tomorrow. 
>  
> Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Mike <mpence1314@aol.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2015 9:09 AM
To: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Norton, Erin (Ladd);Karen Pence
Subject: Re: Sick kid and mommy 

No apology necessary Jenn 
Take all the time you need to get well 
 
Everything is under control 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
> On Mar 10, 2015, at 9:00 AM, "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 
>  
> Still feverish and nauseous but brooks fever went away yesterday so he is going to school so hoping one more day of 
rest and fluids and I hope to be back tomorrow. Sorry I know it is busy .  
>  
> Sent from my iPhone 
>  
>> On Mar 9, 2015, at 10:20 AM, Mike <mpence1314@aol.com> wrote: 
>>  
>> Jen, sorry to bother you at home when you are not well. Please take good care and we will pray for you and Brooks to 
feel better. Get well soon. Mike 
>>  
>> Sent from my iPhone 
>>  
>>> On Mar 9, 2015, at 9:12 AM, "Pavlik, Jennifer L" <JPavlik@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 
>>>  
>>> Both brooks and I have a bug. We slept all afternoon yesterday and thought I was just tired from flying back so early 
but sick stomach and fever overnight. Brooks has fever and hasn't eaten in a couple days. Sorry after being gone but I 
wont be in today.  
>>> Sent from my iPhone 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pavlik, Jennifer L
Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2015 9:01 AM
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
Sent: Thursday, March 05, 2015 9:59 AM
To: 'Mike'
Cc: Denault, Christina
Subject: RE: Morning Clips-March 5, 2015

Yes sir. Will do. We can pull a round of clips of last night’s coverage and send those around this morning. 
 
Thank you, 
Bridget 
 

From: Mike [mailto:mpence1314@aol.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 05, 2015 9:58 AM 
To: Cleveland, Bridget 
Cc: Denault, Christina 
Subject: Re: Morning Clips-March 5, 2015 
 
Bridget 
Could you ask Katie to make sure we check south bend media for daily clips? 
 
It occurs to me that we are not checking southbend clips since there are no clips of last nights event and it is covered 
extensively on television and newspaper up there. Thanks 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 5, 2015, at 8:46 AM, "Gilson, Katie" <KGilson@gov.IN.gov> wrote: 

GOVERNOR 
Pence makes multiple board, commission appointments 
Inside Indiana Business 
Governor Mike Pence recently named appointees to multiple boards and commissions. 
  
Pence options with Supreme Obamacare decision 
Washington Herald  
CHARLESTON, S.C. - Last Wednesday, the U.S. Supreme Court heard arguments on King v. Burwell 
that could determine the fate of Obamacare. The law’s survival could come down to the vote of 
Hoosier-bred Chief Justice John G. Roberts…Into this scenario walks presidentially ambitious 
Indiana Gov. Mike Pence, a vociferous opponent of Obamacare, who repeatedly urges its repeal. 
Pence will make a decision following the Indiana General Assembly session on whether to seek 
reelection, or take a shot at a wide-open Republican nomination. The Supreme Court decision will 
be announced in June, which would be several weeks after Pence makes his political decision. Part 
of that decision could be based on issues that will propel the eventual nominee. And it is in the 
health care debate the first-term Hoosier governor has a fascinating set of talking points. 
  
LEGISLATURE 
Indiana Senate panel set to begin state budget work 
NWI Times 
The Indiana Senate is set to take its turn at working on the state's new two-year budget. 
  
Faiths divided over Indiana’s ‘religious freedom’ bill 
Indy Star 



For a Southern Baptist pastor bound to his Bible, the legal protections around religious freedom do 
not go far enough. Without further safeguarding, he fears he could be forced to wed a gay couple 
against his beliefs. 
  
State appeals ruling blocking fenced hunting preserve rules 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
The Indiana attorney general's office is appealing a court ruling that state wildlife officials 
overstepped their authority in trying to shut down Indiana's high-fenced deer-hunting preserves. 
  
Senate panel to consider banning plastic beads in soaps 
NWI Times 
An Indiana Senate committee is set to consider a bill that would ban the sale and manufacture of 
soaps and cosmetics containing plastic particles that environmentalists say are polluting water 
resources. 
  
E-Liquids regulation bill nears state OK 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
State lawmakers are nearing first-time regulations for the growing trend of vaping, and the industry 
isn’t too happy about it. 
  
Senate panel considers ‘right to try’ trial drugs bill 
Evansville Courier & Press 
An Indiana Senate committee is considering a bill that would give terminally ill patients easier 
access to experimental drugs that have not received full federal approval. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
Proposed teacher tax credit now in Indiana Senate 
Evansville Courier & Press 
A tax credit to help educators who use personal money to purchase classroom supplies is making 
its way through the General Assembly. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
STATE AGENCIES 
Lawmakers honor Umbarger for 45 years of Indiana National Guard service 
Evansville Courier & Press 
Lawmakers recognized Adjutant General Martin Umbarger for his 45 years of service to the Indiana 
National Guard, describing him as a devoted and caring leader. 
  
Indiana BMV suit on overcharges heads to mediation 
Indy Star 
A second class-action lawsuit alleging the Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles overcharged Hoosier 
motorists millions of dollars is headed toward mediation. 
  
Companies adding jobs in central Indiana 
Inside Indiana Business 
Three companies today announced new investment across central Indiana expected to create a 
combined 59 new jobs over the next few years. 
  
AROUND INDIANA 
‘Father Ted’ memorialized at funeral Mass 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
The Rev. Theodore Hesburgh, who transformed the University of Notre Dame into an academic 
power during his more than three decades as president, was memorialized Wednesday as a world 
leader in social issues but whose main goal was helping people connect with God. 
  



Donors Push EDC Campaign close to Target 
Inside Indiana Business 
The Whitley County Economic Development Corporation (EDC) announced today key community 
supporters have stepped forward to commit two-thirds of the funding sought in its "Start Where 
You Are" investment campaign to continue the organization's economic development initiatives. 
  
JOBS/ECONOMY 
Strong local economy driving real estate sectors 
Indianapolis Business Journal 
Indianapolis’ strong economy is helping drive the growth of most local real estate sectors to heights 
that outpace the city's Midwestern counterparts, a panel of commercial real estate experts said 
Wednesday. 
*Subscription required, full text below 
  
Officials to Cut Ribbon on Fort Wayne Center 
Inside Indiana Business 
 Nearly seven months after Gov. Mike Pence joined executives from Lutheran Health Network and 
other local and state leaders to announce plans for an expansion of Shared Services Center Fort 
Wayne, almost a third of the 320 new jobs have already been filled. 
  
Social media company lands funding, targets talent 
Inside Indiana Business 
Geofeedia, the pioneer in location-based social media intelligence, today announced the closing of a 
$3 million series A4 financing. Hyde Park Venture Partners led the financing round with follow-on 
participation from Tim Kopp, former CMO of ExactTarget; David Gupta, founder and CEO of SDI 
Enterprises; and Gene Delaney, former president at Motorola. The financing brings the company's 
total funding to $6.8 million and will enable Geofeedia to hire key talent, to invest in marketing, and 
to expand into additional vertical segments. 
  
EDITORIAL 
Tully: On pot, partnership goes up in smoke 
Indy Star 
Finally, we have something Democrats and Republicans agree on. At least young ones. 
  
Overturning ACA counters conservative goal 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
If the Supreme Court rules against the government in the latest challenge to Obamacare, 
conservatives will have done more than undercut the Affordable Care Act. They will also have 
crippled a cause they have long supported: weakening the link between health insurance and 
employment. 
  
At war over wages 
Fort Wayne Journal Gazette 
In a session quickly marked by unexpected and divisive issues, a bid to repeal common construction 
wage stands out. The interest in pushing the measure through before the 2016 election is obvious, 
but the lack of concern for another hit on Indiana paychecks is puzzling. 
  

Senate panel considers 'right-to-try' trial drugs bill 
An Indiana Senate committee is considering a bill that would give terminally ill patients easier 
access to experimental drugs that have not received full federal approval. 
Senate health committee members heard testimony Wednesday about the measure. It would allow 
patients to opt in for experimental drug treatments that have passed at least Phase-1 of the Federal 
Drug Administration's approval process. 
The "right to try" legislation passed through the state House last month. 



Supporters say it would shorten the time patients wait for potentially life-saving drugs. No one 
spoke in opposition at the hearing, but lawmakers raised several questions, including how drug 
usage would be tracked and monitored. 
Committee Chairwoman Patricia Miller, an Indianapolis Republican, decided not to hold a vote until 
next week so that changes can be made. 
  
  
Proposed teacher tax credit now in Indiana Senate 
Chelsea Schneider 
3:50 PM, Mar 4, 2015 
A tax credit to help educators who use personal money to purchase classroom supplies is making 
its way through the General Assembly. 
A proposal, which already cleared the House and is now in the Senate, provides for as much as $200 
per year in income tax credits for teachers to help offset the purchase of supplies that benefit 
students. 
The bill's author, state Rep. Ben Smaltz, an Auburn Republican, said the proposal is "one small step" 
in helping attract the best and brightest teachers to work in Indiana's classrooms. 
Smaltz told a Senate committee on Wednesday that teachers don't go into the field for money. They 
do it to help students learn, he said. 
"They don't make a lot of money doing that. They go into it knowing they won't make a lot of 
money," Smaltz said. 
John Barnes, a representative with the Indiana Department of Education, spoke in support of the 
legislation and recalled purchasing items, such as tissues, hand sanitizer and pencils, in his 33 years 
as a school teacher before working for the state. 
"This is an awesome gesture and recognition of the fact they make that kind of sacrifice and put 
themselves into doing what they do every day," Barnes said. 
More than 65,000 teachers spent an average of $250 apiece on classroom supplies in 2012, 
according to a fiscal analysis by the nonpartisan Legislative Services Agency. However, the analysis 
also found about 60,000 teachers used an expense deduction in 2011, with the average claim 
amount at $950. 
Along with classroom teachers, superintendents, principals and guidance counselors are eligible for 
the tax credit, Smaltz said. 
The proposal passed the House unanimously in February, and now needs to pass the Senate before 
it can head to Gov. Mike Pence's desk for consideration. 
House Republicans made the proposal part of their legislative priorities for this year, and say the 
credit is a way to support funding that goes directly to the classroom. 
  
Strong local economy driving real estate sectors 
March 4, 2015 
Scott Olson 
Indianapolis’ strong economy is helping drive the growth of most local real estate sectors to heights 
that outpace the city's Midwestern counterparts, a panel of commercial real estate experts said 
Wednesday. 
Leaders of the local office of the Chicago-based global real estate services firm DTZ (formerly 
Cassidy Turley) delivered the optimistic message at the company's annual State of Real Estate 
outlook. 
The city last year ranked 35th in job growth out of roughly 280 metropolitan areas, while lowering 
its unemployment rate to about 5 percent, DTZ chief economist Kevin Thorpe said. 
Ticking through the office, industrial and multifamily sectors, Thorpe described industrial as “on 
fire” while noting the more than 17 million square feet of space absorbed in the market in recent 
years. 
“You’re one of the few markets that absorbed space during the recession,” Thorpe said. “It’s because 
you’re in the middle of the country. You have a great advantage there.” 
The job growth also is helping drive the huge surge in downtown apartment construction, as 
millennials enter the rental market. The number of apartment units (4,200) that came on line last 



year downtown equaled the entire amount built throughout the rest of the metro area. 
Another 4,000 units downtown are expected to be ready for occupancy this year. The building 
boom should last for another five to seven years, Thorpe predicted. 
Though the downtown population is growing, the office market so far is failing to keep pace. The 
vacancy rate stands at an alarming 24 percent, mostly driven by disappointing occupancy in 
traditional towers, said Jon Owens, a DTZ managing director and office broker. 
“But I’m optimistic about downtown,” he said. “It’s undergoing rapid change, a renaissance.” 
More than half of the city's office towers were built before 1980 and still sport outdated interior 
designs that need to come out of the “dark ages,” Owens said. 
Building owners are beginning to remodel common areas to help attract tenants, who in turn need 
more modern workspaces to recruit millennials. 
White Plains, N.Y.-based True North Management Group, the owner of the troubled BMO Plaza, has 
added a trendy-looking tenant lounge. And the new owner of Market Tower, Chicago-based Zeller 
Realty, is embarking on a multi-million-dollar renovation of the building’s atrium, Owens said. 
Just as the office market is changing, the retail sector is, too, shifting to make shopping experiences 
more experiential, said Jacque Haynes, a DTZ senior vice president and retail broker. 
The change is driven by the recovering economy and the influence of millennials and their shopping 
demands and interests. 
It’s occurring at high-end luxury malls where retailers like Tesla, Apple and Microsoft are tenants, 
Haynes said. 
Despite the perception that millennials prefer to shop online, statistics show they actually enjoy 
visiting malls. That’s driving online retailers such as Amazon to open outlets. The company opened 
its first ever staffed store in February at Purdue University. 
  



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Rose Thomas <tomrose@ >
Sent: Tuesday, March 03, 2015 10:54 AM
To: Brooks, Kara D
Cc: Denault, Christina;Pence Mike
Subject: Re: Governor Pence Statement Regarding Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu’s Speech 

Before Joint Session of Congress

perfect—  i look forward to hearing Scott Walker repeating this message verbatim  
 
 

On Mar 3, 2015, at 10:49, Brooks, Kara D <kbrooks@gov.in.gov> wrote: 
 
Thanks, Tom. 
Here’s what we sent out. 
  

From: Govcomm [mailto:govcomm-bounces@lists.in.gov] On Behalf Of Cleveland, Bridget 
Sent: Tuesday, March 03, 2015 10:35 AM 
Subject: [Govcomm] Governor Pence Statement Regarding Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu’s Speech 
Before Joint Session of Congress 
  
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 3, 2015 
  
Contact: Kara Brooks 
kbrooks@gov.in.gov 
  
Governor Pence Statement Regarding Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu’s Speech Before Joint Session 

of Congress 
Urges Indiana Delegation to Attend the Speech 

  
Indianapolis – Governor Mike Pence today issued the following statement regarding Israeli Prime 
Minister Netanyahu’s speech before a joint session of Congress. 
  
“As Governor of Indiana, I offer a warm welcome to Prime Minister Netanyahu as he speaks before a 
joint session of Congress today and encourage every member of the Indiana delegation to attend the 
address in order to demonstrate the continued bipartisan support for the U.S.-Israel relationship. 
The unfortunate talk of a boycott of the Prime Minister's speech only plays into the hands of Israel's 
enemies when this historic moment gives us the opportunity to demonstrate the deep and bipartisan 
support of the American people for the State of Israel.” 
  

### 
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_______________________________________________ 
Govcomm mailing list 
Govcomm@lists.in.gov 
http://lists.in.gov/mailman/listinfo/govcomm 

 



Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org>
Sent: Wednesday, February 25, 2015 10:36 AM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com)
Cc: Atterholt, Jim;Neale, Brian S;Seema Verma (sverma@svcinc.org)
Subject: Phil Gramm nails it in WSJ on King v Burwell

A Simple Cure for ObamaCare: Freedom 
The GOP needs a politically defensible alternative if the Supreme Court overturns 

federal-exchange subsidies. 
 
By PHIL GRAMM 
Feb. 23, 2015 6:26 p.m. ET 
 

On March 4 the Supreme Court will hear oral arguments in King v. Burwell, with a decision expected in late 

June. If the court strikes down the payment of government subsidies to those who bought health insurance on 

the federal exchange, Republicans will at last have a real opportunity to amend ObamaCare. Doing so, however, 

will be politically perilous. 

The language of the Affordable Care Act states that subsidies should only be paid through state exchanges. The 

bill’s authors perhaps believed that pressure from citizens and the health-care providers who would benefit 

would entice states to set up exchanges. But, faced with mounting technical problems in setting up the 

exchanges, the Obama administration decided—legally or illegally—to allow subsidies to be paid through a 

federally run exchange. Therefore, political pressure that might have convinced states to set up exchanges never 

developed. 

The political pressures to set up state exchanges if federal subsidies are now struck down will be enormous. The 

Kaiser Family Foundation used Congressional Budget Office data to estimate that 13 million people will 

receive subsidies in 2016 through the federal exchange. If the Supreme Court strikes down these subsidies, 13 

million people would lose an average of $4,700 a year, and health-care providers would certainly fight to 

protect some $60 billion a year in subsidies. 

The president’s most likely response to an adverse court decision would be to refuse to work with Congress to 

fix ObamaCare. Instead he will likely mount an effort to force the 37 states now using the federal exchange to 

set up state exchanges to qualify for the subsidies. His administration could make it easy for states to continue 

to use the federal exchange while nominally taking ownership through a shell state entity. Ten states already 

have some form of partnership with the federal exchange. 



Absent a strong Republican alternative, the president’s strategy would unleash powerful political pressure on 

Republican governors and legislators and force them to establish state exchanges. Such a result would saddle 

Republicans with a partial ownership of ObamaCare, alienating their political base and producing substantial 

fallout in the 2016 elections. 

Republicans need a strategy that is easy to understand, broadly popular and difficult to oppose. It must unite 

Republicans and divide congressional Democrats, while empowering Republican governors and legislators to 

resist administration pressure. I believe that strategy is what I would call “the freedom option.” Every American 

should have the right to decide not to participate in ObamaCare: If you like ObamaCare and its subsidies, you 

can keep it. If you don’t, you are free to buy the health insurance that fits your needs. 

The freedom option would fulfill the commitment the president made over and over again about ObamaCare: If 

you like your health insurance you can keep it. If Republicans crafted a simple bill that guarantees the right of 

individuals and businesses to opt out of ObamaCare, buy the health insurance they choose from any willing 

seller (with risk pools completely separate from ObamaCare), millions of Americans would rejoice and exercise 

this freedom. Such a proposal would be easy for Republicans to articulate and defend. And it would be very 

difficult for Democrats to attack. 

Of all potential Republican proposals, the freedom option seems the most likely to garner the six Democratic 

votes in the Senate needed to break a filibuster, pass the bill and put it on the president’s desk. If the freedom 

option were combined with a provision that allowed federal-exchange subsidies or state actions setting up state 

exchanges, existing providers and recipients of subsidies would not be threatened. 

The opposition would come solely from those who understand that ObamaCare is built on coercion—and that 

unless young, healthy Americans are forced into the program to be exploited with above-market insurance rates, 

the subsidies will prove unaffordable. That will be an exceedingly difficult case to make to the public. 

By extinguishing coercion, the freedom option would put ObamaCare on the path to extinction. Without the 

ability to exploit the young and healthy, the Affordable Care Act will collapse under its own funding weight, all 

but guaranteeing a 2017 revision of the entire law. 

Whether in large states like Florida and Texas—with 2.5 million and 1.7 million people receiving subsidies 

through the federal exchange, respectively—or in small states like North Dakota and Iowa—with 26,000 and 

70,000 recipients—Republican governors should have the political high ground in demanding that their citizens 

be given the right to opt out of ObamaCare. 



Restoring this freedom would be what Republicans demand for setting up state exchanges or supporting the 

restoration of federal-exchange subsidies. Public opinion would strongly favor the Republican position and put 

pressure on the Obama administration to relent. 

Adopting the freedom option will require a level of discipline that Republicans have yet to show in this 

Congress. It is imperative that the message not be muddled with other amendments that Democrats and Mr. 

Obama could use as an excuse for opposing it. The leadership that will be required in this effort will test the 

courage of a Republican congressional majority and Republican governors across the country; victory will 

require a determination to govern. The alternative will almost certainly be a long or a short path to capitulation. 

Mr. Gramm, a former Republican senator from Texas, is a visiting scholar at the American Enterprise Institute 
 



Scott.A.Milkey

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject: Fwd: SB 436 (BPPT)
Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Matt Greller <MGreller@citiesandtowns.org> 
Date: February 5, 2015 at 2:30:11 PM EST 
To: "Vincent, Micah(DLGF) (MVincent@dlgf.IN.gov)" <MVincent@dlgf.IN.gov>, "Chris Atkins 
(catkins@gov.in.gov)" <catkins@gov.in.gov> 
Cc: Leah McGrath <lmcgrath@citiesandtowns.org>, Justin Swanson <JSwanson@citiesandtowns.org>, 
Jennifer Simmons <jsimmons@citiesandtowns.org>, Rhonda Cook <RCook@citiesandtowns.org> 
Subject: SB 436  

Micah/Chris, 
  
Is the Governor going to weigh-in on SB 436?  It provides for an automatic property tax 
exemption for taxpayers with less than $20k of total business personal property in a 
county and lowers the 30% floor for pool 3 & 4 equipment.  Neither provision provides 
for replacement revenue.   
  
Thanks, 
Matt 
  
  
MATT GRELLER  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CEO 
Indiana Association of Cities and Towns    125 W Market Street, Suite 240   Indianapolis, IN 46204 
OFFICE: (317) 237-6200 
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Mike <mpence1314@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 5:29 PM
To: Pitcock, Josh
Cc: Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: Re: Speaker Boehner Mourns the Passing of Rep. Alan Nunnelee

I'm very saddened by this 
I spoke to him in December  
Jennifer please send flowers 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Feb 6, 2015, at 3:59 PM, "Pitcock, Josh" <jpitcock@sso.org> wrote: 

Governor – Rep.  Alan Nunnelee (MS) passed away today.  You served together from 2011-2012.  He 
died from complications from brain surgery last year that continued and eventually caused him not to 
be able to travel to Washington.  He was sworn-in for this session in Mississippi, and had been in hospice 
in recent days.   
  
  

From: Speaker Boehner Press Office [mailto:SpeakerBoehnerPressOffice@messages.speaker.gov]  
Sent: Friday, February 6, 2015 3:18 PM 
To: Pitcock, Josh 
Subject: Speaker Boehner Mourns the Passing of Rep. Alan Nunnelee 
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
February 6, 2015 
Permalink 
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CONTACT: 
Kevin Smith, Michael Steel 
202-225-0600 
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picture from the Internet.  

Speaker Boehner Mourns the Passing of Rep. Alan 
Nunnelee 
WASHINGTON, DC – House Speaker John Boehner (R-OH) today issued the following 
statement mourning the passing of Rep. Alan Nunnelee of Mississippi: 
 
“Alan Nunnelee served this House with grace and distinction.  He was the rare calming 
presence in the cauldron of politics.  He never let cancer get the best of him.  We know this 
because, at the end of his life, all Alan asked of us was whether he made a difference.  Indeed 
he did, very much so.  But there is more to it than that.  Because when you think about all the 
good Alan did and all the lives he touched, it is plain that he will continue to make a 
difference.  So we mourn now, for we will miss Alan, but we also celebrate the gift of his life 
and service, and all he meant to us as a friend and colleague.  Let us pray that God holds 
Alan’s family close and gives them comfort in these difficult hours.” 
 

 



 

NOTE:  Speaker Boehner has ordered that flags over the Capitol be flown at half-staff in 
memory of Rep. Nunnelee. 
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Scott.A.Milkey

From: Pitcock, Josh <jpitcock@sso.org>
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 3:59 PM
To: MRP (mpence1314@aol.com)
Cc: Pavlik, Jennifer L;Atterholt, Jim
Subject: FW: Speaker Boehner Mourns the Passing of Rep. Alan Nunnelee

Governor – Rep.  Alan Nunnelee (MS) passed away today.  You served together from 2011-2012.  He died from 
complications from brain surgery last year that continued and eventually caused him not to be able to travel to 
Washington.  He was sworn-in for this session in Mississippi, and had been in hospice in recent days.   
 
 

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

From: Hill, John (DHS)
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 1:23 PM
To: Mike
Cc: Atterholt, Jim
Subject: FW: Warsaw Chemical
Attachments: image001.png

David Kane is en route to the scene. 
 
Sent from my Windows Phone 

From: Kane, David 
Sent: 2/6/2015 1:21 PM 
To: Carter, Doug; Hill, John (DHS) 
Cc: Mike 
Subject: Re: Warsaw Chemical 

EMA is reporting two, seemingly minor inhalation injuries to responding firefighters. They are being on treated on scene 
currently.  
 

 
On Feb 6, 2015, at 1:16 PM, Carter, Doug <DCarter@isp.IN.gov> wrote: 

Info ref Warsaw Chemical.  
 

 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Bilkey, Matt" <MBilkey@isp.IN.gov> 
Date: February 6, 2015 at 12:56:49 EST 
To: "Carter, Doug" <DCarter@isp.IN.gov>, "French, Mark" <MFrench@isp.IN.gov>, "Hill, 
John (DHS)" <jhill@gov.in.gov>, "Karns, Allison" <AKarns@gov.IN.gov> 
Subject: RE: Warsaw Chemical 

Sir-  here is what we have on the chemical fire at Warsaw Chemical.   
  
Helicopter is NOT available until after 4pm.  Ref: presidential detail. 
  
ISP is assisting with traffic control at this time.  
  
  

From: ISP Operations Center  
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 12:53 PM 
To: Bilkey, Matt 
Cc: Bundy, Clint 
Subject: Warsaw Chemical 
  
1104-Troopers enroute to Warsaw Chemical to assist with a business fire. 



  
1105-24-55K advised several explosions from the business, shutting down the area. 
  
1142-Evacuating area due to chemical fumes. 
  
1200-ISP Operations contacted IERC Ian Ewusi for additional information regarding 
chemicals.  He advised that Warsaw Chemical had contacted IDEM reference methanol 
leak in underground tank believed to be leaking into lake.  No additional at this time but 
he will update us when he learns more. 
  
1214-Elkhart HAZMAT contacted for assistance. 
  
According to their website, Warsaw Chemical makes misc. different “green” cleaners 
and disinfectants.   
  
ISP Currently has six Troopers on scene including Sgt. Brandon Mcbrier with one 
additional enroute. 
  
  
Indiana State Police 
     Operations Center 
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